
 

 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
PACKET 

 
FOR 

 

Tuesday, September 3, 2013 
 

Sherwood City Hall 
22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, Oregon 
    

 
 

6:00 pm URA Board of Directors Work Session 
 

6:15 pm City Council Work Session 
 

7:00 pm Regular City Council Meeting 
 



  

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
September 3, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

  
 
URA BOARD WORK SESSION 
1. Grant Writing Alternatives 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
1. Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) Project 
 
 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT 

 
A. Approval of August 20, 2013 Council Meeting Minutes 
B. Approval of August 22, 2013 Council Meeting Minutes 
C. Resolution 2013-050 Authorizing the City Manager to sign the 2013 IGA with Washington 

County for the purposes of continued participation in the Urban Area Security Initiative 
(UASI) 

D. Resolution 2013-051 Authorizing the City Manager to sign an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(IGA) with Washington County Health and Human Services for the purposes of supporting 
the Sherwood Youth Substance Abuse Team 
 

5. PRESENTATIONS 
 
A. Proclamation Declaring Constitution Week 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING-Business Carried Forward 
 

A. Ordinance 2013-003 to amend Section 16.12 of the Zoning and Community Development 
Code relating to property zoned Very Low Density Residential 
(Michelle Miller, Senior Planner) 
 

7. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

8. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

9. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

10. ADJOURN  
 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL 

September 3, 2013 
 

URA Board Work Session 
6:00-6:15 pm 

 
6:15-7 pm City Council Work Session 

 
7:00 pm Regular City Council Meeting 

 
Sherwood City Hall 

22560 SW Pine Street 
Sherwood, OR  97140 

1



  

City Council Agenda                                                                                                                                                        
September 3, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

How to Find Out What's on the Council Schedule: 
City Council meeting materials and agenda are posted to the City web page at www.sherwoodoregon.gov, by the Friday prior to a Council 
meeting. Council agendas are also posted at the Sherwood Library/City Hall, the YMCA, the Senior Center, and the City's bulletin board at 
Albertson’s. Council meeting materials are available to the public at the Library.   
 
To Schedule a Presentation before Council: 
If you would like to appear before Council, please submit your name, phone number, the subject of your presentation and the date you wish to 
appear to the City Recorder Sylvia Murphy by calling 503-625-4246 or by e-mail to: murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov 

2

http://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/
mailto:murphys@sherwoodoregon.gov


DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 1 of 27 

 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

August 20, 2013 
 

 
WORK SESSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Bill Middleton called the meeting to order at 5:35 pm. 

 
2. COUNCIL PRESENT:  Mayor Bill Middleton, Council President Linda Henderson, Councilors Bill 

Butterfield, Matt Langer and Dave Grant. Councilor Krisanna Clark arrived at 5:39 pm. Councilor Robyn 
Folsom was absent. 

 
3. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: Joseph Gall City Manager, Tom Pessemier Assistant City 

Manager, Jeff Groth Police Chief, Julia Hajduk Community Development Director, Public Works Director 
Craig Sheldon, Julie Blums Interim Finance Director, Colleen Resch Administrative Assistant and Sylvia 
Murphy City Recorder. City Attorney Pam Beery. 

 
4. TOPICS DISCUSSED: 

 
A. Washington County Vehicle Registration Fee 

 
Community Development Director Julia Hajduk explained and presented a presentation (see record, 
Exhibit A). She recapped background, explained the uses for the fees, explained local share and 
Sherwood’s needs. Council discussion followed and staff sought feedback from the Council on whether 
or not the question of the proposed fee should be put before the voters. Council conceded the voters 
should decide.  

 
B. SW Corridor Plan 

 
Julia Hajduk explained and presented information (see record, Exhibit B). General discussion followed. 

 
C. Review of City Council Rules 
 
City Attorney Pam Beery explained the meeting format and Council reviewed their City Council Rules 
(see record, Exhibit C). Discussion occurred on Section D-Agenda, Section E.3.f and better defining of 
“extra-territorial”, Section E.3.j, changing “will set” to “may set”, referring to the Council setting time limits 
on discussion. The Council discussed “Public Comments” and the public providing name and addresses 
when coming before the Council to speak. City Manager Gall indicated he had received feedback from 
the public concerned with providing addresses. The Council agreed to continue discussion of the rules 
at a future work session.  
 

5. ADJOURN: 
 

3



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 2 of 27 

Mayor Middleton adjourned the work session at 6:58 pm and convened to a regular Council Session. 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Middleton called the meeting to order at 7:03 pm. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
3. COUNCIL PRESENT:  Mayor Bill Middleton, Council President Linda Henderson, Councilors Dave 

Grant, Bill Butterfield, Krisanna Clark and Matt Langer. Councilor Robyn Folsom was absent. 
 

4. STAFF AND LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT: Tom Pessemier Assistant City Manager, Jeff Groth Police 
Chief, Julia Hajduk Community Development Director, Julie Blums Interim Finance Director, Craig 
Sheldon Public Works Director, Kristen Switzer Community Services Director, Administrative Assistant 
Colleen Resch and City Recorder Sylvia Murphy. City Attorney Pam Beery.  

 
Mayor Middleton addressed the Consent Agenda and asked for a motion. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
A. Approval of August 6, 2013 Council Meeting Minutes 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON TO ADOPT THE CONSENT AGENDA, 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR CLARK, MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL PRESENT MEMBERS VOTED IN 
FAVOR, (COUNCILOR ROBYN FOLSOM WAS ABSENT). 

 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 

 
6. PRESENTATIONS: 

 
A. Recognition of Sherwood High School Students Academic Achievement 

 
Mayor Middleton stated Sherwood School Superintendent Heather Cordie was unable to attend tonight 
due to a prior commitment. The City Council recognized Sherwood High School Students for Academic 
Achievements, students that received a perfect 4.0 GPA for the 2012-13 school year. Assistant City 
Manager Tom Pessemier called forward students and the Council presented them with Certificates of 
Achievement.  
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 
B. Washington County Presentation, Tualatin-Sherwood Road Improvements 
 
Russell Knoebel Principle Engineer with Washington County Land Use and Transportation Department 
came forward and presented information to the Council (see record, Exhibit D). Russell explained 
Tualatin-Sherwood Road is one of the most congested arterials in Washington County with an average 
of 60,000 vehicles per day, a critical route connecting I-5 to 99W, designated by Washington County as 
a thru-truck route, with approximately 10% of the 60,000 being heavy vehicles. He said this 10% is a 
large number for a typical arterial in Washington County as far as truck traffic. He said Tualatin-

4



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 3 of 27 

Sherwood Road and 99W has a high rate of collisions, ranking in the top 5% of ODOT’s Safety Priority 
Index System List and is currently ranked 21 out of 262 high collision intersections in Washington 
County. He said there is a significant vehicle queuing and explained queuing as a technical term for 
indicating how far cars are backed-up. He said we see vehicles queuing in the intersection from past 
Baler Way, about 1500 feet and at times extending to Old’s place, about 2700 feet from the intersection.  
 
He explained project funding and said in 2005 the Washington County Coordinating Committee 
recommended MSTIP 3c funding for the design and in 2012, the Washington County Coordinating 
Committee looked at 49 different projects and selected 19 projects, this project being one of the 19 
projects selected for construction funding.  He said the project will improve traffic flow through the 
corridor and is planned to provide dedicated bicycle facilities and improve pedestrian circulation and 
address future anticipated capacity needs. He said currently there is a combination of factors causing 
delays in capacity; the single west-bound lane through 99W, as you’re heading down Tualatin-Sherwood 
Road towards Roy Rogers Road, there’s a single lane getting across 99W. He said there is also a single 
west-bound lane back at Baler Way, he explained the confusion of the lanes in this area. He said 
another issue is the signal spacing and said the signals are not adequately spaced distance wise, and 
overlap from one signal to the next signal, causing backup. He said there are also short turn pockets for 
cars and not enough room for people to store that do want to take turns.  
 
He stated the project team looked at four options as well as two additional options 2A and 2B after 
discussion with property owners. Russell referred to Map Option 1 in the presentation and said this 
would remove the signal at the Albertsons and Theater entrance, leaving a six lane cross section, with 
two lanes in each direction, plus two left bound turn lanes onto Hwy 99W. He stated Option 2 looked at 
what it would look like to leave all the signals in place. He said Option 2 created the need for eight lanes, 
with two additional turn lanes, these lanes would be the left turns into the Theater complex and these 
would overlap with the left turn lanes onto 99W, creating four turn lanes in that area and two thru lanes 
in each direction. He said turn lanes are about 14 feet wide and this would mean an additional 28 feet of 
right-of-way that would be needed, putting you into the buildings and having a larger impact. He stated 
Option 3 looked at removing the signal at Baler Way. He said this also created an eight lane cross 
section with the dual lefts overlapping at the signal at Albertsons. He stated it kind of affected the 
investment the City made in the collector with Baler Way and the connection to the arterial. He stated 
Option 4, they looked at removing both signals, the one at Baler Way and the signal at Albertsons and 
placing another one in the middle next to Bank of America and across from the Burger King. He stated 
this also creates a right-of-way impact, putting you into the Burger King and other businesses there. He 
said this option had very little public support, if any.  
 
Russell explained the public involvement process and said the County used a range of public 
involvement activities to educate and involve the public. He said they had an Open House; they sent 
notices to property owners, posted newspaper ads, invited the Sherwood Town Center Advisory 
Committee and the Steering Committee and briefed them at two separate meetings in September of last 
year. He said Washington County released media releases and they had 45 people attend the first Open 
House. He said they created a website that would allow public access to the project status and 
opportunities for public involvement and meeting materials. He said we are in the process of scheduling 
a second Open House this fall.  
 
He said some key themes of the first general public involvement process was to look and try to make 
vehicle travel times better and said some of the comments were to reduce traffic lights to maximize 

5



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 4 of 27 

capacity, lengthen the traffic light time at 99W for Roy Rogers and Tualatin-Sherwood Rd. He said this is 
under ODOT’s control. He said other comments were to clear up the signage for lane usage and gave 
examples. He said other standard themes they see are about landscaping and landscaping planters, 
and said there were positive comments about having more of those and negative comments about the 
ones that are out there and getting rid of them. He said there were a lot of comments about pedestrian 
and bike facilities, both pro and cons. He said in addition to this they had specific property owner 
meetings, eight meetings with commercial property owners, that included Les Schwab, a couple of 
meeting with them and the Cinemas, with the Jim Morris property and Langer properties and also met 
with the Sherwood Market Center, which is the Albertsons property and with the Sherwood Cross Road 
Center, which is the Safeway anchor. He said both of these properties are managed by Regency 
Center. He said they also met with Target and Sherwood Langer Farms LLC. He said in addition to 
these meetings they held four additional meetings with the property owners of the Albertsons complex 
and Theater complex, where we looked at the two extra options under Option 2, options 2A and 2B. He 
said they had hired a traffic engineer and they looked at some of their traffic analysis and our studies 
based on their traffic analysis. He said in addition to that, the County decided to hire a facilitator to help 
with discussions with these two property owners. He said the County hired Jean Lawson and said she 
worked with these property owners, the City and the County in individual meetings and then we had 3 or 
4 combined meetings with all those groups to talk about issues and try to address certain concerns. 
 
Russell said after all this, the design teams recommendation is Option 1, which removes the signal in 
front of Albertsons. He said our studies reveal this option provides several benefits, including achieving 
traffic operation, such as the best access spacing and the best traffic time. He said their studies show 
that by 2035 if you do nothing verses doing Option 1, it’s a difference of 15 minutes, with Option 1 
saving you 15 minutes through this corridor, verses doing nothing over the next twenty years. He said 
they talked about the least amount of right-of-way impacts with Option 1, no building or drive through 
impacts and very limited parking space impacts throughout the area. He said it’s the lowest construction 
cost and pointed out it’s very consistent with previous planning work, the I-5/99W Connector Study, 
Washington County’s TSP and the City of Sherwood’s TSP, the City’s Adam’s North Concept Plan and 
the Sherwood Town Center Plan. Russell referenced the map in the presentation of the recommended 
option with the removal of the signal in front of Albertsons and the extension of the five lanes to the 
northwest and passed the future Walmart site to the southeast.  
 
Russell explained the next steps and said they will start undertaking final design and they want to 
continue coordinating with individual property owners and talk about access to Sherwood Market Place 
and access to the Regal Cinemas and we are also seriously considering, if not added to the plan a 
pedestrian crossing to replace the signal we remove at Albertsons and understand there is a transit stop 
or some type of park and ride on that side of the theater side of the street, therefore a need for 
pedestrians to cross there. Russell gave an example of a recently installed fully signalized pedestrian 
crossing on Evergreen in Hillsboro. He said they are also looking at local street types of improvements 
and an additional Open House this fall and hopefully get construction underway in 2014. Russell offered 
to answer questions.  
 
Councilor Grant referenced a map in the presentation and asked to confirm he understands; the primary 
access to the cinema and bank would become the Baler Way signal, going behind the Les Schwab, 
being the functional in and out.  
 

6



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 5 of 27 

Russell responded correct, and said the other access would remain in place, but this would be the right-
in right-out.  
 
Councilor Grant commented regarding many people using the Albertsons to get to the theater and said 
he believes this was a huge mistake made a long time ago. He said when Langer Farms Parkway is 
completed and goes out towards Home Depot, which is currently underway, this will change a lot. He 
said people traveling north on 99W will go this route and not wait to get to the intersection at 99W. He 
asked if the change there will be more dramatic than Russell anticipates and cause them to rethink 
some of their assumptions or do they feel they have certainty of how the change will play out.  
 
Russell responded that there is certainty and they took into consideration throughout their traffic study, 
and while there are a lot of people turning right at the 99W signal, the majority of that traffic is continuing 
either onto Roy Rogers Road or taking a left onto 99W. He said the people that will cutoff at Langer 
Parkway, will definitely help in that access area. He said this is another strategy the County looks at, is 
trying to get traffic out of busier intersections and local street connections.  
 
Councilor Langer stated people know one of the tougher tasks is accommodating Regency Centers and 
Juniper Ridge at the theater and restaurants and asked what solutions the County has offered them to 
accommodate the loss of the left turn movements.  
 
Russell referenced a slide in his presentation and said this is what the County is proposing to do right 
now, and said we have already had a neighborhood meeting and we will be coming to staff with a TSP 
amendments, which in the lower section of the slide extends Baler Way to the back of Jim Morris’ 
property. He said Jim has an easement on the back of his property for the theater for that site, this is a 
potential opportunity for additional access to that site.  
 
Councilor Langer asked regarding allowing U-turns at 99W and Baler? Russell replied, yes and said this 
is another thing we are continuing to look at, the U-turn at Baler is something we can control and easily 
do, the U-turns at 99W are tougher as we will have to work with ODOT, but is something we will 
continue to look at. 
 
Councilor Clark asked in regards to the development in the Albertsons area as well as Regal Cinema 
development, and referenced the U-turn which is before and asked if the County is making any kind of 
accommodations for signage issues as the signage will be past the light that is being created so that 
people know where to turn before they have passed the complex.  
 
Russell replied, yes, and said the County has looked at this and has spoken with City staff and said the 
County has options with our blue signage. He said with the actual on site marque signage, the County is 
more than willing to work with the business to help facilitate that, but this will ultimately be the City’s call 
on what those will look like. He said the City has fairly stringent sign codes, but they will have 
opportunities to work with the businesses and City staff.  
 
Mayor Middleton asked to receive public comments on the presentation. 
 
Phil Grillo and Beth Faherty (spelling?) came forward and provided the Council with a letter (see record). 
Mr. Grillo stated he was here on behalf of TakFal Properties, LLC, owners of the Sherwood Cinema 
Centers and Beth is a principle there. He stated the letter he provided outlines some of their concerns 

7



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 6 of 27 

and based on some of the comments, the Council understands some of their concerns. Mr. Grillo stated 
roughly 75% of all the trips going into our site make a left into the center. He said when the light goes 
away and left turn movements are prevented, 75% of our business will go someplace else. He said the 
question is, will the 75% go to the backdoor entrance that the County is talking about and asked is this 
reasonable commercial access for a center like ours. He said they are certain that it is not and this is 
why they have tried to work with the County on other options. He said they had two options in front of 
the County and said he was at the last of the County meetings on this project and said as far as he 
knows, based upon that meeting, there is no public support for Option 1. He said he has heard this will 
be a significant impact on the businesses and said he heard that from the planning commission last 
week when they were before them with the aspect of the Town Center. He said he is asking for solutions 
and the Councils support to push the County to find better solutions to that the option they are talking 
about, with the backdoor entrance.  
 
Mr. Grillo stated their first option they spoke with the County about, that Russell spoke of but did not 
explain, was to remove one of the left turn pockets coming into the center, which would create more 
right-of-way space, more building space on Tualatin-Sherwood Road that would allow the road to be 
widened in the westbound direction, where the congestion is in that direction. He said they have worked 
with traffic engineer Lancaster Engineering and they have a preliminary design for that. He said the 
County doesn’t like that option but has not pointed to any adopted standards that would be violated by 
what we are proposing, which would reduce delay and increase safety both on that street and at the 
main intersection. He said the second option, he thinks is more innovative and said that option has three 
parts to it and is explained in his letter. The first is for the County and the City to work together with 
ODOT to create access onto 99W, right-in only access, so instead of having to make a left-turn 
movement in, we can get a right-turn movement off 99W and not have to put all the traffic through the 
light. He said the second aspect is to have better connectivity to the backdoor, which is what the County 
has been proposing. He said they don’t oppose that, they just can’t exist solely on that. He said the third 
component, in part to protect other turning movement is, that we would under that circumstance agree to 
a restriction on the left-turn movement into our site, but we would ask that the left-turn movements that 
go from our site out onto Tualatin-Sherwood Road and from the Albertsons, the left-turn movement in for 
them, which doesn’t really restrict the flow of traffic westbound, that those movements be retained, 
therefore the signal be retained except the movement left into our site. He said this continues to protect 
the pedestrian movements and said he stopped at this location today before tonight’s Council meeting, 
for about 20 minutes and counted 23 students, children, crossing that intersection, this number does not 
include adults. He said there are a lot of kids that cross that intersection.  
 
He stated they need the Council’s support and the County’s support to work on these and find another 
option. He said the option the County is proposing is not acceptable and we don’t want to have to take 
other measures to protect our interest, we are trying to work collaboratively, but so far this has not 
worked.  
 
Beth spoke and stated that she is one of the owners of Regency and said she wanted to provide 
background on the County’s intent to improve Tualatin-Sherwood Road back in November, which 
consisted of four proposed plans, two of which were absurd and not potentially possible with their $12 
million budget. She said the County’s approach to rollout their plan was a divide and conquer approach 
where they kept the shareholders on the north side of Tualatin-Sherwood Road and the south side 
separate to create a “just accept it, this is what we are doing” kind of deal. She said it was an awkward 
situation that elongated the process. She said we have been working hard to be collaborative in this 

8



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 7 of 27 

process and as mentioned by Russell, we did hire a mediator to work with the County and us. She said 
it resulted in lots of unproductive meetings. She commented about attending City meetings regarding 
the New Town Center and said with the County’s current plan, she sees it making a vacant shopping 
center and not conducive to what a Town Center should be. She said per the City’s TSP and land use 
approval for our site, the light was a requirement for the land use approval. She said she is aware that 
there is a City TSP and a County TSP, but currently the City’s TSP is to remove Baler and the County’s 
TSP is to remove the one at Regency and Regal. She said to her it suggests that the City and the 
County need to work together to come up with what is pertinent to the community. She said if the light is 
removed and the County thinks that might improve the accidents, fender benders, freight and large 
vehicle access, then wait to the first death of a child or someone crossing to catch a bus because they 
can’t make it down to Baler. She said this will put a freeway through the City, in addition to the one we 
already have and this frightens her for the community and the people that are running successful 
business at Regency and Regal.  
 
Ty Wyman and Chris Daniell Regency local Property Manager came forward. Mr. Wyman stated he is 
the attorney for Regency Centers, and said Regency owns both Sherwood Crossroads which is the 
Safeway based center as well as the Sherwood Market Center (Albertsons). He stated the time devoted 
to this issue tonight is not at all what this issue is worth. He said we are talking about an issue that will 
define this area of the City for many years. He said he fears if this signal is removed the City will spend 
the next several decades regretting that and trying to get it back. He stated he would add to Mr. Grillo’s 
thoughts, and said his experience and Mr. Grillo’s experience is in land use planning and the law in land 
use planning and commented that Oregon does land use planning. He commented regarding reasons 
for plans, plans that guide public infrastructure and plans that guide private entities investments in 
property. He said both of these properties were development with the subject traffic signal shown in the 
City’s TSP. He said the irony is that the City had the cinema install the signal that the County would now 
remove, killing the cinemas business. He said that the traffic signal still shows in the City’s TSP. He said 
they believe that removing the signal by the City or by the County would be unlawful as it still shows in 
the TSP. He commented regarding land use planning and coordination between the State, County and 
the City. He said they would rather not test this in court and would rather sit with everyone and talk 
through the options. He said the options should be subject to hearings either at this Council or at the 
County Board. He asked what is the criteria for the removal of the signal if it shows in the City’s TSP. He 
said at some point in time, this Council decided it should be there. He commented that the centers are 
filled with small businesses and the impact to those people would be utter decimation. He asked Mr. 
Daniell to describe the impact this would have.  
 
Chris Daniell stated that he is the Property Manager for Sherwood Crossroads and Sherwood Market 
Center. He asked that the City reevaluate the County’s proposed changes to Tualatin-Sherwood Road 
in light of its impact to businesses and direct contradiction to the proposed Town Center Plan from a 
pedestrian friendly standpoint. He said it doesn’t make commercial real estate sense to limit access, let 
alone the main entrance of a shopping center that is home to 27 businesses. He said the Burger King 
franchisee provided a similar example of a location of a store in Las Vegas where the store immediately 
dropped 30% in sales and was forced to close. He said cross shopping is well known between the 
Sherwood Market Center and the cinema center and taking away the pedestrian access will not only 
result in an inconvenience to customers and citizens of Sherwood, but raise clear safety concerns for 
those not interested in proceeding to either Hwy 99 or Baler Way to cross. He said we have tried to work 
with the County and reach a mutually acceptable solution for well over a year to no avail and we are 

9



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 8 of 27 

now asking for the support of the City of Sherwood, a place where we do business, offer  important 
neighborhood services, and pay taxes.  
 
Councilor Grant asked for clarification of the pedestrian access, as he heard in the first presentation that 
they County was going to leave or create a new form of pedestrian access and you (Mr. Wyman) are 
talking about the County taking away any pedestrian crossing, he asked what the proposal is in Option 
1. Mr. Wyman replied what they hear is what the County is “thinking about” and what they know is that 
the County wants to remove the signal. He said they don’t want to remove the signal to enhance 
pedestrian access to cross the road, they want to do it to increase the flow of traffic. He said we have 
had no assurance provided, he referenced Barbur Blvd. and said the only assurance they have received 
is that the signal is going to come out.  
 
Mayor Middleton called to receive public comments. 
 
Stephanie Garrison came forward and asked if anyone considered the Walmart traffic adding to this, as 
this will be significant. She asked when the Council makes their decision to try and remember where the 
Walmart traffic will be coming from, Tigard, Tualatin and Newberg. She said she has not heard anything 
about timing the lights on Tualatin-Sherwood Road and said ODOT told her 5 or 6 years ago that the 
lights should be timed in about three years and that was 2-3 years ago and they are still not timed. She 
commented regarding hearing of lights coming in and lights going out and commented regarding getting 
the lights timed for trucks and gave examples of hitting all the yellow lights. She said what should take 
her 10 minutes to travel to Tualatin takes her 25 minutes, not because of traffic but because she hits 
every yellow light. She asked the Council to consider this first when determining what lights to keep or 
remove. 
 
Eugene Stewart came forward and commented regarding the TSP amendment map and referenced two 
property owners across Roy Rogers Road from Safeway, and said with this program they are proposing 
to take way the entrance and there will not be an entrance to the property off Roy Rogers, the 
suggestion is for them to go down to Tualatin-Sherwood then to have a proposed road that will come 
back to the property. He said you’re creating an island with no access for them. He said the Anderson 
property has no access from 99W. He asked when are we going to put the road in so the property can 
be developed, it’s a prime corner and how do we approach this. He said it seems to him, that if 90% of 
the traffic coming down Tualatin-Sherwood Road is then turning left to go down 99W, do they want to 
stop in Sherwood or just get around Sherwood. He said in the 1980’s when they had the chance to build 
the 205 extension over, they gave that money away for something else and now we are trying to deal 
with this. He suggested getting them to six corners and then sending traffic down 99W rather than this 
option. He referenced the increased traffic in the downtown area and said this doesn’t stop the traffic it’s 
just trying to get around the mess. He asked how do we look at this analytically. He said Washington 
County indicated that 10% of the traffic on Tualatin-Sherwood Road was truck traffic and then at the 
public hearings for the Langer properties the traffic study said it was 5%, this is a big difference. He said 
this is the only way to get to I-5 until you get to Tigard, in between streets don’t allow truck traffic. He 
said we need to find a better way, we have not come up with a good solution. This may fit the County’s 
pocket book now, but will we spend twice as much down the road. He said it doesn’t make sense to him 
to drive into the Les Schwab, drive to the end and come back into the parking lot to park. He 
commented regarding speaking with the owner of Les Schwab and they were told at one time to flip their 
building. 
 

10



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 9 of 27 

Mr. Russell Knoebel returned and responded to the comments and questions and stated they have 
worked closely with Cam, and Les Schwab and said they are supportive of the TSP amendment for the 
Baler extension and understand the impact it will create and are comfortable with the solution.  
 
Russell addressed the pedestrian concerns and said the County is putting in a signal to replace the 
signal, and the new signal will be a pedestrian only signal, allowing pedestrians to trigger it to stop traffic 
in both directions and cross safely. He said it will also provide a refuge island in the middle. He said the 
other options we looked at created two additional lanes for pedestrians to cross, leaving the signal in 
place, there are now eight lanes for pedestrians to cross.  
 
Russell said another big issue that has come up numerous times is the lack of collaboration and lack of 
opportunities. He said he spoke of the public process and said it was a lot more extensive that what they 
typically do. He said we had eight meetings initially with commercial properties in this area. He said we 
realized that two properties were going to be affected and we had additional meetings with these 
properties to find out concerns. He said the County typically negotiates with an individual property 
owner, not two property owners at the same time. He referenced the comments received about the 
County trying to “divide and conquer” and the County saying they are willing to meet with them on an 
individual basis to talk about impacts and costs and try to solve. He said they have insisted on keeping 
both properties owners in the meeting together and the County has not had the ability to enter into a 
negotiated settlement with them and talk about money, because we can’t do that with two property 
owners at the same time. He said we have continued to meet with the property owners on a general 
basis to see what we can do to make this work for them. He said the Albertsons business area has five 
access points, and they are losing one signalized access point, it will be a right-in, right-out and will have 
four additional access points into that location.  
 
He addressed the comments regarding the signal being required as part of the theater development and 
said it was also required that they create a secondary access at Baler Way. He said their traffic study at 
the time said that 60% of their traffic would go out at the signal in front of them and 40% would go out at 
Baler Way. Russell said they testified tonight saying that 75% of their traffic is going out at the signal in 
front of them. He said they did not meet their original development agreement to create that easy 
access at Baler, he said there still is a way to do it, but it’s quite convoluted. He said the County is 
proposing to make that a lot better and to encourage that type of movement along the Baler extension.  
 
Russell addressed the comments regarding signal timing and said the County has implemented a “smart 
signal system” from Teton to I-5 and we are implementing that same system next year from Teton to 
99W. He said it’s a very smart signalized system and can do what was asked. He explained how the 
system works and said the signals have camera’s and can readjust each signal cycle to determine the 
amount of traffic coming through that signal, and adjust the signals ahead so someone can make all the 
signals. He said the light at 99W will not be part of the “smart system” and they are working with ODOT 
to try and include the signals throughout Sherwood to try and include them to the County’s “smart 
signal” process on Tualatin-Sherwood Road. He said if we get there, then all the signals will be able to 
communicate with each other and make it a better system.  
 
Russell addressed the business issues and said there are federal studies that talk about changes in 
access and how they affect businesses, and most of those studies are done by federal highways so they 
could be tainted, but the studies do show there is little to no impact to businesses by the access 

11



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 10 of 27 

changes, and they have studied it before and after. He gave an example of the access to the Tualatin 
McDonalds off Boones Ferry Road and said this is the busiest McDonalds in this region.  
 
Russell offered to answer Council questions; with none heard Mayor Middleton thanked Mr. Russell.  
 
Susan Claus came forward and indicated she wanted to speak on this subject. She told Councilor 
Langer that he should recuse himself and said all this is being caused by your Walmart and you’re 
directly impacting the existing businesses as well as your own businesses, asking questions and trying 
to get into the process, you should recuse yourself. She said both the County and the City are admitting 
that they are revising these existing site plans, violating both sets of their site plans. She commented 
regarding people having learned to use these business and you’re systematically cutting it off. She said 
there is not even a process for them, you’re violating their site plans and have not gone through a 
process with them and these were part of their agreements to do business in this town. She said what 
we are trying to do tonight needs to be tabled or wait until you get through this whole process. She said 
this is too sophisticated for staff to handle and you’re taking away driveways and access points and 
asking staff who has on-the-job training and a contracted attorney to make judgments on this. She 
commented regarding speaking with the small businesses in these two business complexes and they 
wanting to come and speak to the Council but fear being victimized. She said you can’t fundamentally 
change our commercial district on the promise, the disaster of Walmart and not acknowledge this is the 
first level of fallout we are getting from Walmart. She commented regarding an Intergovernmental 
agreement and potential litigation from the property owners and who will litigate this, the County, Metro 
or the City and said it usually falls to the City. She commented regarding they being here first and have 
existing rights and existing site plans and said you can’t violate our own land use laws. She commented 
regarding the Act Three Theater marque being in the front and how would people see this from behind. 
She said they had from ODOT access when they first went in there and it was bargained away in their 
original site plan. She referenced comments made by the County engineer and a traffic study from 15 
years ago. She said what they are telling us now is the way it is and we need to make sure we are 
honoring our existing businesses and not for the sake of current development dollars that have come to 
the staff, cobble all the existing businesses.  
 
Mayor Middleton stated the Council is not making decisions tonight, this was information only. He 
addressed the next agenda item. 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Resolution 2013-045 Amending the RedFlex contract for the Photo Red Light Enforcement 

System  
 
Police Chief Jeff Groth provided the staff report and stated staff identified a need for a contract 
amendment and said there are two changes; the monthly payment will switch to a flat rate from a per 
citation amount. He said there is no fluctuation in the amount and this will allow for consistency, billing 
and budgeting and remove existing burdens on staff and prevents costly programming needed for staff 
to rectify invoices.  He said the second change was, staff added performance clauses, he explained the 
clauses. Chief Groth recapped the staff report and provided the Council with background history of the 
contract, fees as indicted in the contract and explained the current process of rectifying invoice. Chief 
Groth offered to answer questions. 
 

12



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 11 of 27 

Council President Henderson confirmed the new term of the contract being five years and asked if five 
years was standard. Chief Groth confirmed the contract term was for 5 years and yes, it is a standard 
and consistent to what was in the original contract. 
 
Council President Henderson confirmed when an invoice is received by staff it will not have to be 
audited and asked how much time will be save. Chief Groth confirmed it will not have to be audited and 
Julie Blums replied it saves her about an hour per month.  
 
Chief Groth clarified that there was previously only a percentage that could be rectified and staff 
indicated that if they could not rectify the data in the invoice, they were not willing to pay that amount. He 
said this was causing issues with staff not wanting to pay for the full invoices.  
 
Councilor Butterfield asked if this process doesn’t work, will we have the opportunity to renegotiate. 
Chief Groth replied yes, we’ve had that opportunity from day one.  
 
Councilor Clark asked if the revenue generated by RedFlex pays for the average of the fee. Chief Groth 
replied yes, it more than covers it. 
 
Mayor Middleton confirmed the City will go to receiving a flat revenue of $18,000 per month and asked 
what had we received in revenue in prior months. Julie Blums replied over the 32 months of having this 
system in place, our total court revenue is about $90,000 per month, this includes both RedFlex and 
regular citations, and would estimate that 75-80% of that is Redflex.  
 
Councilor Clark asked where does the excess go. Julie replied it goes into the General Fund and pays 
for court staff and additional services.  
 
With no further comments, the following motion was received. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR GRANT TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2013-045, SECONDED BY 
COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON, MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL PRESENT COUNCIL MEMBERS 
VOTED IN FAVOR, (COUNCILOR FOLSOM WAS ABSENT). 
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 
B. Ordinance 2013-005 Amending Section 10.08.070 of the Municipal Code relating to prohibiting 

parking on certain streets  
 
Chief Groth thanked the residence that worked with the City on this program and the Mayor and 
recapped the staff report. He said the Council held a work session in May 2013 and said we have had 
an ongoing problem in the City with neighborhoods being used for overflow parking, alternative parking 
areas or drop-off points and or non-residence use. He said the neighborhoods in question have seen a 
tremendous amount of this, creating issues of congestion, overcrowding and littering. He said staff has 
created residential parking districts using models from other jurisdictions. He said Exhibit 1 to the 
Ordinance is the proposed code language and said there was not existing code language. He said this 
ordinance will allow the Council to add additional parking districts by resolution. He addressed the 
financial impacts and said each sign will cost about $200 and the majority of the cost will be offset by 
residents and or Homeowners Associations in the effected neighborhoods. He said he doesn’t have the 

13



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 12 of 27 

costs of permits yet, but it will be minimal and the permits will be simple vinyl window permits and a 
rearview mirror hanging permit, an insignificant cost borne by our existing budget. He said there has 
been some staff time, but once the program gets started it will not take much staff time to manage. Chief 
Groth offered to answer questions.   
 
Councilor Grant asked regarding the staff time of the police department to patrol and check parking 
permits. Chief Groth replied this is something that they already do.  
 
Councilor Langer referred to the area behind the high school and asked about dealing with the parking 
and not pushing the issue further out into the neighborhoods, he recalls discussing this in the work 
session and asked was this vetted out and how would we deal with this. Chief Groth replied we would 
look at this when we add districts and referred to the resolution the Council will be considering this 
evening if this ordinance was approved. He said we will have to wait and see and said he believes staff 
has identified the areas that are most prone to parking and the outer areas are too far and people 
probably won’t be parking there because it’s too far to walk. He said there is potential that there will be 
other areas around the school that can be added in the future and said we are working with another 
neighborhood to complete that process, and will address those as we need to.  
 
Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier asked a process question of the City attorney and stated the 
ordinance declares an emergency with an effective date of August 21st, and allowing resolutions to be 
adopted. He said on tonight’s agenda there is a resolution pertaining to this and asked if there is an 
amendment that needs to be made to this ordinance or is that acceptable.  
 
City Attorney Pam Beery stated the Council can enact the resolution this evening and the resolutions 
would not take effect until the ordinance takes effect by operational law. She said if it’s more convenient 
for the Council to do that you have the authority. 
 
Councilor Clark commented she recall the school district attending the work session when this was 
discussed and they spoke of additional ideas they had to help with the congestion issues, she asked if 
we will be working with them in the future as we create districts to address their issues and student 
ability to park outside. Chief Groth replied absolutely and said we have stayed in contact with the school 
district and the information before the Council tonight has been shared with the school district so they 
can message with parents. He commented regarding the school district doing things within their control, 
selling their parking permits and what level they want to oversell permits. He said the relationship we 
have with the school district and the high school staff will allow us to work out any issues and he does 
not have any concerns. 
 
With no further comments, the following motion was received. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON TO READ CAPTION AND ADOPT 
ORDINANCE 2013-005, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR CLARK, MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL 
PRESENT COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR, (COUNCILOR FOLSOM WAS ABSENT). 
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 
 
C. Resolution 2013-046 Establishing two (2) residential Parking Districts within the City of 

Sherwood in accordance with Chapter 10 of the Sherwood Municipal Code 

14



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 13 of 27 

 
Chief Groth stated this resolution establishes the first two parking districts in accordance with the 
ordinance that just passed. Chief Groth explained the exhibits attached to the staff report and said the 
two parking districts are entitled Woodhaven Phase 1. He explained that in working with the Woodhaven 
HOA, they identified a desire to do what they believe are the affected areas in two phases. He said they 
have been working with City staff to put this program together and financially helping to support this 
program. Chief Groth explained the Woodhaven fact sheet and letter for Phase 1, permit application. He 
explained exhibits C1 and C2 as the Smock fact sheet and letter. He said we have two forms because 
the particulars of each district are different. He said the issues in the Woodhaven area are related to 
school parking and explained the enforceable hours. He said the issues in the Smock area, considering 
the area is very small, is related to neighborhood and the Snyder Park access area and parking will be 
prohibited 7 days a week. Chief Groth reminded the Council that any of the forms can be amended as 
the need arises. 
 
Mayor Middleton asked for Council questions, with none heard he asked for a motion.  
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2013-046, 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR BUTTERFIELD, MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL PRESENT COUNCIL 
MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR, (COUNCILOR FOSLOM WAS ABSENT).  

 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 

 
D. Ordinance 2013-006 Assessing Sidewalk construction costs on certain lots and parcels in the 

City and directing the City Recorder to enter such assessments in the City’s Lien Docket  
 

David Janusz Program Coordinator in Public Works came forward and stated as written in Sherwood 
Municipal Code section 12.08 the city assigns sidewalk responsibility to the abutting property owners. In 
2011 the City Council approved the formation of the Sidewalk Repair Assistance Program. He said the 
program is in no way intended to relieve the property owner of their responsibilities, but rather intended 
to assist property owners with the cost of repairing and replacing sidewalks. He said the program will 
assist the homeowners by scheduling and performing all the work required to repair the sidewalk hazard 
and the City will share the cost of the repair 50/50. He said in 2012 the Public Works department 
completed a City wide inspection of all sidewalks and identified approximately 1700 sidewalk 
deficiencies. On August 9 2012 Public Works invited 150 residents to option into the program or perform 
their own repairs in the allotted 60 days. He said most residents in this first group either participated in 
the program or performed the repairs themselves. For those that neither participated in the program or 
repaired the sidewalks, the City repaired the sidewalks on their behalf in April 2013. The homeowners 
were then issued an invoice in early May requesting payment in full at 100% of the total cost within the 
next 30 days. He said in accordance to chapter 12.08 of the code, the unpaid balances after 30 days, 
may be accessed as a lien against the property. He said to date, we have three addresses where the 
property owners did not participate in the program nor compensated the City for the repairs completed 
on their behalf. David called out the addresses in question and said staff is recommending to place a 
lien on the properties identified to recoup costs associated with the program. David said as this 
ordinance takes effect in 30 days, the City would extend to the owners an opportunity to pay the balance 
in full within 30 days and prevent the lien process from going forward. He said although not required, a 
door hanger was provided to the homeowners inviting them to come tonight and offer comments in their 
own defense. 

15



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 14 of 27 

 
City Attorney Beery clarified that this is not a public hearing and the Council can offer an opportunity to 
the effected property owners. 
 
Mayor Middleton asked to receive comments from the affected property owners. 
 
Mike Stewart 22741 SW Martin Court Sherwood came forward (provided a letter, see record) and stated 
he has had maintenance issues with his home and the street tree issue is the third one. He said when 
he purchased the home in 1996, he spent three days rehanging the natural gas lines under the house 
because they were not to code. Mr. Stewart explained the issues with his gas line and said this is the 
way he bought the home after it was inspected by city inspectors. He said five years ago, he had a 
water leak with a main supply line under the garage floor and spent $1200 for a reroute. He explained 
the copper line and it being soldered at the joints and said code requires that the joints be braised not 
soldered. Mr. Stewart said the City has an approved list of trees that they require the builders and 
developers to plant. He said two of the trees he has a problem with, a red maple and an ornamental 
plum. He explained issues with the fruit tree dropping fruit, tracking into his home and staining the 
carpet, attracting insects and said it does not belong on a street. He said in regards to the red maple, he 
has contacted his attorney, Paul Nelson, who has been in contact with the City. Mr. Stewart read from a 
letter and commented regarding the City not planting the red maple tree and it being planted by a 
contractor, who selected the tree from a list provided by the City, thus the City having a direct role in the 
type of tree planted and the City failed to properly research the growth habits of the red maple before 
including it on the approved list. He said if the City had competently compiled its tree list the maple 
would have been excluded and the current maintenance issue would have never arisen. He continued 
and said it’s inequitable to expect his client or any other property owners to be responsible for the cure 
of a problem caused by the City inadequate research of the growth habits. Mr. Stewart said this is where 
he is coming from, he did not create the defect, as a property owner he expects to be responsible for the 
normal maintenance and repair of a sidewalk over its service life provided that it has been properly 
inspected and installed. Mr. Stewart referenced the documents provided to the Council and explained 
the photos. He said the City’s building and maintenance people did not do a review of where they 
located street trees and street lamps, therefore we have instances like this (referred to photos). He said 
we don’t have competent people doing the job and he is fed up with putting out his money for someone 
else’s negligence or incompetence. He said this is the reason he has not paid this and has spent his 
money contacting his attorney. He said he expects competent City government and he has not gotten it 
yet. 
 
Mayor Middleton thanked Mr. Stewart, no other property owners came forward and staff offered to 
answer questions.  
 
Councilor Grant stated this seems unusual to him, for this to be handled by an ordinance and said he 
doesn’t recall seeing something like this be an ordinance. He said when we put the sidewalk program in 
place, did we not put remedies in place for staff to handle issues.  
 
City Attorney Beery replied before the City can impose a lien it requires Council action. She said staff 
has administered the program all the way through to this point, but requires governing body approval by 
ordinance to impose a lien on the City’s lien docket. She said the reason an ordinance is required is 
because imposing a lien is a remedy the City doesn’t take lightly and the ordinance creates the 
appropriate level of formality and Council approval.  

16



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 15 of 27 

 
Tom Pessemier added the ordinance that requires this ordinance was put in place a long time ago and 
we did create a Sidewalk Assistance Program to try and help people who we knew were having 
problems trying to reach the original ordinance. He said the ordinance was put in place in the 1980’s or 
1990’s and basically outlined this process and we are now at the very last step of what the ordinance 
requires, we did not make changes to that ordinance.  
 
Council President Henderson referred to Mr. Stewarts cost of repairs $783 and asked if this is half of the 
cost of the repairs. David replied no, this is the total cost for all the vendors to perform all the work. 
David explained the actual repair consisted of the removal of a concrete panel, the removal of a tree, 
and said the removal of the street tree required an arborist report and a tree removal permit, the cost of 
the removal of the tree and the cost of the replacement of the concrete panel.  
 
Mayor Middleton asked in regards to the removal of the tree and if we had to remove any other trees in 
sidewalks performing sidewalk repairs. David replied, yes, there were many trees that were removed as 
it’s designated as the cause of the problem with the sidewalk. He said for those who opted to participate 
in the program, the costs of the tree are split in half.  
 
Mayor Middleton confirmed Mr. Stewarts full cost of $783 and asked what he was billed. David replied 
this is what he was billed, the full amount. David stated there may have been an uplifted panel that could 
have been shaved down, and asked Public Works Director Craig Sheldon to confirm. 
 
Craig Sheldon stated there were two shaves on the property and the City waived one shave, the tree 
removal and the permit. Craig explained when the City offered the program, Mr. Stewart did not sign up 
for the program, he sought legal advice and they contacted our attorney which started a process that’s 
laid out in our ordinance, he said we sent bills and said the city allowed more time than we could have. 
Craig said Mr. Stewarts attorney has spoken with our attorney and this is the final step in the process for 
the Council’s decision.  
 
Mayor Middleton asked if the City is giving Mr. Stewart 30 days to comply. David replied at this point we 
have 30 days before we can process any lien at the County, so we are offering during this period of 
waiting, for homeowners to rectify the balance.  
 
Councilor Langer asked to revisit the fundamental question brought forward by Mr. Stewart as it may 
have occurred in other places, with knowing the history of not-so-favorable trees planted and we 
recently revised the tree list, tree canopy requirements, and other code language and asked to hear a 
refresh on the concept. He said getting to the core, he hears that Mr. Stewarts tree was planted per 
code and per development and now the homeowner has to deal with fixing it. He said this had to occur 
in many places across the City.  
 
Craig replied he can’t answer all the questions as he was not here when the subdivision went in, and 
said he assumes the developer of the subdivision probably submitted a set of plans to the City and 
whoever in the Engineering or Planning departments approved a set of plans. Craig said he can’t speak 
of his waterline or his gas line as this doesn’t have anything to do with us. Craig said we do have issues 
out there with trees that were planted and said if you look at the code, the tree code indicates the 
property owner is responsible for the trees as well as maintaining them. Craig said we started the tree 
maintenance program last year because we wanted everything trimmed up with the proper canopy. He 

17



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 16 of 27 

said the sidewalk code says the same thing that the property owner is responsible for the sidewalk in 
front of their property. Craig said he knows the Community Development department went through a 
tree process list this last year and a half and cleaned up some of the code. He said under the current 
code the street trees as well as the sidewalks fall under the responsibility of the property owner and we 
are just following the process. 
 
Councilor Langer asked what solutions did the property owner have over the last ten years as the tree 
was growing under and shoving the sidewalk up. Could the homeowner realized the problem and cut 
down the tree without a permit or would they have gotten into trouble for that.  
 
Craig replied in the past any tree removal went through the Parks Board as there’s a tree ordinance, and 
now, some of the tree things go through the Planning department and this is now a staff decision and a 
tree needs to be planted off of the tree list if it’s removed. Craig said there is a removal process that 
could have happened.  
 
Councilor Langer said he still sees in town issues with trees planted next to street lights making the light 
ineffective at night. He said currently if a resident has this problem and comes into the City to go through 
the process, might that tree be removed and not be replanted because the trees are already too dense.  
 
Craig replied there is a process that not all trees can be removed, there’s a process if it’s causing 
damage to utilities and staff can make that decision and we would have an arborist look at that.  
 
Julia Hajduk, Community Development Director added that as part of the Planning Departments code 
cleanup, they made code amendments that would allow the removal of trees without replacement.  
 
Council President Henderson asked of the 150 residents in this first phase, those people that signed up 
for the assistance program, for a bill of $800, what would they have paid. David replied they would have 
been invoice for $400 and explained it’s a separate bill from a utility bill. He explained a payment or 
nonpayment of the sidewalk program will not reflect on your utility services. It is a payable amount, 
available to be paid over a 12 month period and is half of the total cost. He confirmed the City would 
have taken care of all the repairs and permitting.  
 
Councilor Langer clarified in Mr. Stewarts case, the entire amount was $783 and if he had signed up for 
the program, it would have been half of this cost. David confirmed this was correct. 
 
Councilor Langer said he heard staff was going to allow 30 days for the property owners to come in and 
pay, and asked if they would still get the 50% off. David replied, at this point it’s the full amount and said 
the option to get into the program is within the first 45 days of the 60 day window to repair the sidewalk. 
He explained this allows us to work closely with our vendors to schedule them to do the work in an area 
at the same time to be able to lower the cost. 
 
Councilor Langer asked in regards to these three properties, if the vendor returned at an inconvenient 
time. David replied we scheduled these three repairs in a time that the vendors where in another area of 
the City and these three owners had not paid the full cost due.  
 
Mayor Middleton confirmed it’s not possible to let them join the program now, correct. City Attorney 
Beery replied not as the ordinance is written.  

18



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 17 of 27 

 
With no further comments, the following motion was received. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR CLARK TO READ CAPTION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE 2013-006, 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR GRANT, MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL PRESENT COUNCIL MEMBERS 
VOTED IN FAVOR, (COUNCILOR FOLSOM WAS ABSENT). 
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item. 

 
E. Resolution 2013-047 Endorsing the SW Corridor Plan and providing direction for future 

participation in the implementation of the SW Corridor Plan  
 
Julia Hajduk Community Development Director stated the Council held a work session this evening 
regarding the SW Corridor and Council also received an update from Metro Councilor Dirksen a few 
months ago as part of your regular business meeting under presentations. Julia said for the past two 
years, staff and former Mayor Mays and current Mayor Middleton have been working on the Plan and 
the purpose of Plan was to create a framework intended to improve the land use and transportation 
conditions of the SW Corridor. She said throughout this process we identified existing conditions, 
opportunities, challenges, goals, worked with all the affected jurisdictions, Portland, Tigard, Tualatin, 
Sherwood, as well as jurisdictions that touch the SW Corridor area, Beaverton, Lake Oswego, Durham, 
King City, Washington County, Metro and Trimet. She said through this process a plan was developed 
and said the SW Corridor Plan identifies some of the things identified through the Plan and up to this 
stage, that high capacity transit is not an alternative to be considered further in Sherwood at this stage 
of the implementation, but local transit service particularly between Tualatin and Sherwood is an integral 
element of the plan.  
 
Julia stated the resolution before the Council will formally endorse the work that has been developed to 
date which will facilitate moving the project to the next step and it also confirms the City’s commitment to 
remain part of the process. She said one of the reasons why we believe that is important is that it allows 
us to benefit from funds leveraged with our jurisdictional partners to implement the Corridor Plan, and 
we would also have the ability to inform future decisions within the region and actively participate in 
addressing transportation and transit issues important to the local community.  
 
She said from a financial standpoint it will involve staff time, we anticipate 2-4 meetings per month 
throughout the process as well as the Mayor will be going to some meetings. We also anticipate that 
Metro will be asking the local jurisdictions to participate in some funding in the next budget cycle, and 
we don’t know what that is yet and we would certainly be able to make decisions on how much we are 
willing to pitch in as we get further along in the process.  
 
Councilor Butterfield stated he personally does not endorse the Plan, but does see the need to keep our 
finger on the pulse. He said he is kind of torn, and will await comments from the other Council members.  
 
Council President Henderson stated we have talked about this at a number, 3 or 4 work sessions, and 
as Julia mentioned, light rail is not an option for Sherwood. She said she has stated, as long term plans, 
that whatever improvements we get, improve not only residential traffic but commercial traffic. She said 
having discussed Tualatin-Sherwood Road this evening, and being part of the discussion, we are at the 
end of the line of the Corridor, and don’t want to be the last to be offered a piece of the pie, and sitting at 

19



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 18 of 27 

the table is an important issue.  She said she doesn’t believe there is anyone in the room that doesn’t 
want improved transportation east-west or who would turn away public transit east-west, which we 
currently don’t have, from Sherwood going east. She said this is what she is hoping for.  
 
With no further comments, the following motion was received. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCIL PRESIDENT HENDERSON TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2013-047, 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR CLARK, MOTION PASSED 5:1, (MIDDLETON, HENDERSON, 
CLARK, GRANT AND LANGER VOTED IN FAVOR, BUTTERFIELD VOTED AGAINST, 
(COUNCILOR FOLSOM WAS ABSENT). 
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the next agenda item and the City Recorder read the public hearing 
statement. 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
A. Resolution 2013-048 Calling an election on and approving a Ballot Title, Summary, and 

Explanatory Statement for the annexation of 12 tax lots comprising 97.5 acres of land in the 
Brookman Road Plan Area for the November 5, 2013 Election  

 
Brad Kilby Planning Manager came forward and made a presentation to the Council, (see record, 
Exhibit E). He said the Council has before them a request from 12 property owners in the Brookman 
area to annex their properties into the City of Sherwood and the total acreage of that request is about 
97.5 acres. Brad stated he will speak of the differences between this request and the request that was 
on the ballot in 2011.  
 
Brad stated the request from 2011 was a request to annex the entire Brookman area that was brought 
into the City in 2002 with the UGB expansion and that would have been 258 acres. It required approval 
by both the City voters and the voters within the affected area. He said within that affected area, the 
election went down 78% voting “no” with 38 properties against it and 10 properties for it. Within the City 
it failed with a margin of 51% to 48%. He said tonight’s request would be different because it was 
brought in under a triple majority method, meaning that the majority of the owners that own the majority 
of the property, with the majority of the assessed value have requested to be brought into the City and 
annexed into the City. He said it only requires a vote of the city folks as opposed to the city and the 
affected area, because the area that would be affected by this annexation, they have all signed on to 
come into the City. He said the “hatched” area down at the bottom (referencing the map in the 
presentation) shows the 12 properties that have requested and signed the petition to come in. He said if 
you choose to put this on the ballot, the City limits would extend to the west side of Brookman Road, 
and wouldn’t be the east side, we would extend it all the way over to the west side to accommodate 
future improvements if development was to come in.  
 
Brad said in 2009 the Brookman Concept Plan was approved by the Council, which essentially adopted 
zoning the area and the properties that are affected by this annexation, (Brad referenced the map in the 
exhibit) property near Ladd Hill and Middleton Road and said this property is all zoned for residential 
development and is bisected by a large natural resource area, and I would expect upon annexation that 
it would be zoned Medium Density Residential Low and Medium Density Residential High and any 
future development within that area would need to accommodate sewer and water access and would 

20



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 19 of 27 

have to be extended and upgraded from the existing City services as well as protect that resource in 
compliance with our development ordinance and the standards of Clean Water Services. He said 
Brookman Road would serve as a primary access for future development in this area, secondary road 
include Middleton, Ladd Hill and Old Hwy 99, but essentially the primary access into this area would 
probably come from either Middleton or Brookman Road. He said utilities are available (he referred to 
map in the exhibit) near Ladd Hill and said this is where the sewer would come in, a flag portion along 
the City limits and that piece of property is where the sewer is expected to come in. He said sewer and 
water would have to be brought in by future development and it would have to be upgraded. He said 
property zoned for primarily residential development, 97.5 acres, it’s served by Tualatin Valley Fire and 
Rescue (TVFR) and will continue to be served by TVFR. Police service is currently provided by 
Washington County Enhanced Sherriff Patrol District and that would go away with this resolution and 
ultimate approval by the voters and would be picked up by the Sherwood Police Department. 
 
Brad addressed taxes and said it did not change much from the 2011 election; the tax rate is such that 
people out there will be paying on average of $429 per $100,000 of assessed value over what they pay 
today, if they paid like the taxes that were the full tax on their property. A lot of the properties out there 
are in some type of tax deferral, whether forest or farmland or some other type. He said they do not lose 
that deferral if they are annexed into the City, they lose the deferral upon development. He said in 2011 
the City Council entertained, a City initiated request, an offer of phasing in the taxes over a period of ten 
years, this is something that the legislature allows, the applicant did not request it in the application and 
you might hear them request it tonight.  
 
Brad referred to the presentation and the list of properties and parcel sizes, from less than .5 acres to 
15.82 acres, but the overall assessed value of the properties is about $2,154,880 and all 12 of the 
properties have a represented signature asking to be brought into the City. Brad stated staff 
recommends the Council approve the annexation request by adopting a resolution. He said this has to 
occur tonight in order to get on the November 5, 2013 ballot and if you decide not to take action on this 
request tonight or want to consider it later, then it probably won’t get on until the March 5, 2014 election. 
He said this annexation request is on the same timeline as the Special Committee and ordinances being 
discussed.  
 
Brad said Council may amend the resolution to include additional properties, but this is not 
recommended by staff, they haven’t been brought in. Brad referred to the map and said typically we 
don’t like to see islands, and pointed out three properties surrounded by City property, if annexation is 
successful. He said he believes the applicant has spoken to all the property owners and these folks did 
not have an interest in coming into the City. Brad said there is a gentleman on the end (referred to map) 
that is interested in coming into the City, and staff has spoken to the City Attorney, and unfortunately it’s 
a procedural issue, he would not have met the notice requirements to get onto this ballot, and in order to 
bring him in would negate the request of the 12 other property owners and push it out to a March 5, 
2014 election.  
 
Brad offered to answer Council questions, with none heard the Mayor opened the public hearing. 
 
Brad stated written testimony was received today by the Council through the City Recorder, that he 
wants to enter into the record. An email from Bridgette Storey sent today at 12:29pm (see record, 
Exhibit F), who lives on Redfern and she had concerns about the extension of Redfern and she would 
like to see all the properties brought in, if they were going to be brought in at all. Brad said if the Council 

21



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 20 of 27 

looks at the ordinance staff has proposed it has language that does not extend Redfern and therefor 
takes care of that issue but does not take care of her request to bring in all the properties. We also 
received a letter from Chris and Meerta Meyer (see record, Exhibit G), who have indicated that they 
don’t believe this annexation is timely, that the 2009 Concept Plan is outdated and needs to be updated 
before we can consider annexation of this area.    
 
Mayor Middleton opened the public hearing to receive testimony. 
 
Stephanie Garrison came forward and confirmed the properties shown on the map with the hash marks 
signed something requesting to be annexed. Brad Kilby confirmed. She asked if it was through a realtor. 
Brad replied it was through a petition. Ms. Garrison said her concern is she knows one of the property 
owners did not sign anything and is not interested in being annexed. She said if she knows of one that is 
a personal friend, how many more x’s on the map, is staff lying about. Conversation ensued and Mayor 
Middleton interjected.  
 
Tom Pessemier spoke and asked for a process check. He said this is not a land use hearing, and we 
typically try and run these similar to a land use process. He said typically we allow the applicant of the 
proposal to come up and make opening remarks and we usually give them a period of time, due to the 
late time tonight, 10 minutes could be given to make a presentation, then allow the rest of the public to 
come up and provide comments and allow the applicant to reserve time to rebut those comments. He 
said this might add benefit to this process as questions can be answered by the applicant and staff 
doesn’t have to answer some of the questions because they are the applicants to address. Tom 
suggested inviting the applicant forward to answer questions and avoid the back and forth conversation 
between staff and members of the audience.  
 
City Attorney Pam Beery stated she concurs and said if folks come up to testify that questions are 
directed through the Mayor and not directly to staff. 
 
Ms. Garrison stated as a Sherwood land owner she would like to see written evidence that these people 
signed saying they wanted to be annexed in, she said she is finding it highly doubtful. She said she is 
concerned about the high density growth in the area and not having good roads, Brookman road does 
not have a shoulder, a hilly road, hardly any divider on it, people drive 50-55 miles per hour, it’s a really 
dangerous road. She said, if you guys are talking about development wise, and eventually it might get 
annexed in, in speaking of development, keep this in mind and drive the road and sit in some ones 
driveway, this is not an easy road to get out of. She said when we drive out on Brookman we get tagged 
nearly every day. She said she would like to see evidence that people signed up for this and offered to 
leave her contact number and said to the Council when you consider adopting a plan for this area keep 
in mind how, what a crappy road Brookman Road is for pull-in pull-out.  
Mayor Middleton asked if the applicant was present.  
 
Chris Goodell with AKS Engineering 13910 SW Galbreath Drive, Suite 100, Sherwood, came forward 
and said we prepared the application and submitted it for the property owners that are included, he 
commented regarding proceedings being a bit out of order with the applicant typically going first and 
now we are responding to comments. He said staff can talk about this as well and said the requirement 
for the triple majority in the annexation is that we get a majority of the property owners and a majority of 
the registered voters in the affected properties and we have well beyond that with 89% of the property 

22



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 21 of 27 

owners and 90% of the registered voters of the affected area that is hatched in there (referred to the 
map in the presentation). 
 
He said he thinks, he is guessing, the property that is being discussed is under a split ownership with a 
1/3 ownership, 6 owners he believes and said we have 2 out of the 6 owners, 1/3. He said one of the 
parties signed the petition. He said that issue aside, the application satisfies the annexation requirement 
criteria as far as the triple majority. Mr. Goodell offered to answer questions regarding the application.   
 
Councilor Grant asked Mr. Goodell to explain the improvements that are to come onto Brookman Road 
by the time all the property got developed, whenever that is. Mr. Goodell stated staff can probably 
answer this question better than himself and said the Concept Plan has a list of improvements to 
intersections and frontage improvements for the properties on Brookman Road. He said the 
expectations is, Brookman is a County road and would be improved to County standards, curb gutters, 
sidewalks and said he believes it’s a collector street, three lane section.  
 
Mayor Middleton indicated to the Council it was past 9:30pm and said this would be the last order of 
business for tonight and asked if the Council was okay with that, no Council objections were received. 
 
Tom Pessemier informed the Mayor, if we followed our normal process, we would have other members 
from the audience come up. He said Chris Goodell has taken 2 minutes of his time, he could provide 
comments to questions of the audience and could then have dialog with the Council.  
 
Mayor Middleton agreed. 
 
Neil Shannon 23997 SW Redfern Dr. came forward and stated he has been referred to as a citizen 
activist who you can take your activities back to a starting point, and he takes this back to October 10, 
2007, which was a first of a Brookman Road Concept Plan public meetings that I had an opportunity to 
attend. He commented regarding attending several meetings for Brookman road and said he is very 
familiar with the program. He said he is in opposition to this annexation and believes the City would be 
better served to take a look at annexing the entire section of properties as a lump sum rather than take it 
as piecemeal. He said he is concerned about leaving islands that are not part of the City that would 
continue to be parts of Washington County rather than the City. He said he knows that there were a lot 
of problems with that along Tualatin-Sherwood Road at times in the past. He said he is very aware of 
the election two years ago, and is not surprised that it failed at the time, he personally did not feel that 
the City was supporting the program very diligently. He said as far as the City not adopting it, there was 
a Council Charter change as well posed at that election and there was a lot of negativity towards the 
City at that time, and he is not surprised that the annexation failed. He said as far as the annexation 
failing from the Brookman Road residents, he said he talked a number of them, and the reason it failed 
at that time was because of the economy. He said no one there saw any opportunity of selling or 
developing their property and saw no reason to join the City of Sherwood, even with the ten year grace 
that was being offered at the time for City taxes and City services. He said he thinks that may be 
reversed now and thinks this proposal is an indication of that reversal. He said another concern he has 
is a note on display at the properties, the bottom right hand corner, he would like to double check that it 
is a property that is being proposed for annexation. He said he has looked at it and has some plot plats, 
he believes it’s labeled as property 105, and it is not listed as one of the tax ID’s that are on the table 
and I see that the owners, this was probably three years ago, the property may have sold, but the 
owners at that time were listed as John and Denise Hagg and said he did not see them on the 

23



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 22 of 27 

petitioners list either. He said he is concerned and wants to make sure this is accurate. He stated he is 
in opposition of this annexation and the City would be better served to look at trying to bringing the 
entire section of properties in. He said Brad mentioned the sewer line coming down the little flagpole 
and said he is surprised as the City just last year did a major sewer line improvement from Cedar Creek 
parallel to Redfern and have stubbed out at the stub end of Redfern Drive. 
 
Susan Claus 22211 SW Pacific Hwy came forward and said before, when the Concept Plan was 
contemplated, all of the annexed properties that were proposed in that whole Concept Plan were 
supposed to be responsible for the infrastructure, on whatever prorated basis or share. She asked what 
is the mechanism if it’s piecemealed in, are you obligating the people who have already said they don’t 
want to be annexed in, how do those prorated shares go and are we still dedicated to the idea that this 
group of properties, this concept, that they have to pay their own way for the infrastructure. She said she 
asked that not only on behalf of the citizens, but especially on behalf of the people contemplating the 
annexation. No one wants to be presented with an astronomical bill that they did not understand, that 
they were responsible for the infrastructure that would allow them to come into the town. Including 
Brookman Road, it is not part of the City, how are they going to improve that and what are we going to 
do there. She said until we have clarity where everybody understands their obligation, so the citizens 
are voting on who’s responsible for the infrastructure, the annexation people understand and the people 
who are not being annexed in also understand, we as a city obligate them as a future… their property 
values are going down tremendously, if there is some way we are obligating them to this whole idea and 
plan, everybody needs to be aware of that and it should be within the notification of all the people in this 
district so everyone is on the same page and no one gets surprised by a bill for infrastructure. She said 
she wants to confirm that even though there are high percentages of people that agree that the 
registered voters and property owners, that it does take at least 51% of the vote of the city residents. Is 
that 51% of the residents that vote on that particular time? What does that 51% entail and does that stop 
everything in its tracks. She stated like one of the other problems, we had either or language that 
said…maybe that was a scribers error or whatever. She said we have always been dedicated to the fact 
in the City of Sherwood that  the citizens have that vote and it’s a majority, not an either or, and if we 
had 49% or less with the citizens but these guys agreed to it, and because they agree to it can that 
override, it shouldn’t be that way and I want to make sure it’s not. She said it’s also incumbent on us as 
if we are preparing the ballot title that we have clear language and don’t use double negatives, people 
aren’t voting when they think they are voting no for something they are actually voting yes, please make 
the language clear on the ballot and any kind of writing that the city does on behalf of that on the ballot 
language, make it clear, let the voters know because a lot of those people are only going to engage 
themselves at the time they are going to vote. She said staff has been committed at the metro level to 
have high density coming into this area, whether it’s Brookman or the other side of 99W, if it is true that 
we are MDRH to MDRL, there should be some kind of notice to the citizens, if you’re going to try and 
jam a bunch of apartments on the south end of town we need to know and that is appropriate and don’t 
do a bait and switch.    
 
Denise Hagg 16655 SW Brookman Rd. came forward and stated we are that property on the far right 
hand side and that was a mistake, we did not sign a petition, we are not interested in coming into the 
City. 
 
Mike Walsh came forward and asked regarding process and asked if there is ever a situation that could 
arise where if this did not come to a ballot that the Council would be able to vote it into annexation or 
not. 

24



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 23 of 27 

 
City Attorney Beery asked for clarification on the question. Mr. Walsh stated right now the proposal is to 
put this to a vote to the citizens of Sherwood, and if it’s denied to put on the ballot now or in 2014, would 
there ever be a situation that would arise where the Council can make that decision to annex or not.  
 
City Attorney Beery stated the City Charter requires voter approval for annexations and there are also 
state law provisions that dictates who votes and in this case because of the level of consent, it’s 
Sherwood voters and it would take a Charter change to allow the City Council once again to allow 
annexation.  
 
Mr. Walsh said his understanding of the original assessment of how the property should be zoned and 
its impact to the community was done back in 2009 and to the point that the letter was proposed, what is 
the standard timeframe for the city to review these plans to where they are still valid, is there a set 
timeframe where a study may expire and be required by ordinance to be reviewed again.  
 
Julia Hajduk replied there is no set timeline and when this was adopted and implemented via our 
Comprehensive Plan, so you have Comprehensive Plan designations in place and it would not expire, 
that doesn’t mean you can’t reevaluate in the future or at any time, the zoning of an area and update a 
plan if you so choose, but there is no expiration to the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Mr. Walsh stated he would propose that this is postponed from being on the ballot for this year, for a few 
reasons; from 2009 to current date, seems to him as a fairly large span of time given the developments 
occurring on Tualatin-Sherwood, with Walmart and the light at Regal Cinema, this needs to be 
reassessed. And as a citizen of this city, I would like to know specifically what lots are going to be zoned 
high density, where apartment buildings are going in and would like to have that information so I can 
make a well informed decision and I don’t think that information is being presented currently.  
 
Tim Voorhies PO Box 908 came forward and thanked everyone for their time and effort and asked if this 
is a land use issue. City Attorney Beery replied this is the Councils determination of whether to send this 
to the ballot, if it’s approved by the voters then the later actions taken to zone it would be land use 
decisions. 
 
Mr. Voorhies said, but isn’t it land use because you’re voting to bring it in and stuff and should 
notifications have been sent out to property owners. Ms. Beery replied, this decision is 
whether…because we have a voter approver requirement in the Charter, the first step is for the Council 
to send the question to the voters and if the voters approve it, then it will come back to the city to take 
those land use actions and at that point notice will be provided.  
 
Mr. Voorhies said the problem he sees with this, directing his comments to the Mayor and said he 
knows it isn’t the Mayor, but after a decision is made by the city or any public comment has been made 
or anything like that, the decisions have already been made, the plot plans have already been mapped. 
We as citizens are always behind the eight ball, trying to get caught up. We lose money trying to play 
with the City and fight with the city and everything else, our tax dollars are paying them to fight with us. 
My property at SteelTek is probably 750 feet away, and if I had not come down today and read this, I 
would have not known anything about this until it’s too late. He asked what about all the other property 
owners, what about all those people that have kids in Middleton, Archer Glen, you bring in high density, 
where are those kids going to go to school. Where are those kids going to go to school with the 102 unit 

25



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 24 of 27 

insta-slum you’re putting in, what about the 40 extra apartments that are going in above the commercial 
that I’ve heard about at the cannery site. Why bring something in if you don’t have the infrastructure to 
support it, it doesn’t make any sense to bring it in. Tax dollars are tax dollars, it doesn’t make sense and 
one property up there is wrong, what it really a “slide of a hand”. He stated he doesn’t trust the election 
process, doesn’t trust the staff on getting the proper amount of signatures on initiatives, a lot of stuff has 
gone wrong here and we need to make it right and you all as Council members are the boss for the city. 
He said he has heard old city managers say it’s what you want us to do, we do what the Council says. 
 
City Attorney Beery stated she would like to add clarification on what notice was given to make it clear; 
she said this is clearly not a quasi-judicial proceeding, which is the kind of proceeding the witness 
indicated would require individual property owner notice, the city processes these initially as legislative 
matters because of the size of the proposal and the notice that was given was given in accordance to 
legislative procedures. Ms. Beery confirmed with Julia Hajduk and Julia said it a process in accordance 
with Metro and state law for annexations which are different from a traditional land use action. 
 
Comments and questions were heard from the audience and Mayor Middleton requested the audience 
members not speak from the audience and called forward Mr. Goodell. 
 
Mr. Goodell came forward and stated he believes city staff posted the sign on the site. He said their 
legal description included in the application did not include the corner property and said Brad can speak 
as to what happened there. Mr. Goodell said it was not included to be annexed. He said with respect to 
piecemeal, this is a property owner initiated annexation, the prior go-around was a city initiated 
annexation, he said it is almost impossible to gather 100% of the property owners in a private property 
owner initiated annexation, he said it’s different, you had a few property owner spearheading the 
process and got a large group of owners together that wanted to be annexed into the City, aside from 
the one property in the corner, that is what you see before you, it’s owner initiated and not possible to 
get every single person and it is not required. He commented regarding the high density comments and 
said this is all medium density and this is a function of the Concept Plan, all the zones have been 
spelled out for a couple of years is medium density residential, 5000-7000 square foot lots. He said he 
doesn’t know if this is considered high density residential, but it is not per the City’s ordinance. He said 
in terms of traffic and infrastructure, annexation in and of itself has no impact on traffic, you’re not going 
to see a single subdivision as a result of the annexation, you’re not going to see new homes built as a 
result of the annexation, or people hooking up to sanitary sewer connections as a result of the 
annexation, that is something that would become evident after a zone change application and after 
subdivision applications were approved. He said in that case, you would have neighborhood meetings, 
further hearings and a full public process for all those types of activities. Mr. Goodell emphasized, this 
was a property owner initiated annexation, people that wanted to join the City and this is the impetus 
behind the application. Mr. Goodell offered to answer questions.  
 
Mayor Middleton closed the public hearing and asked for Council discussion, indicating that Brad Kilby 
could address the question of noticing. 
 
Brad Kilby stated there is a mapping error on tax lot 105, and said if you notice (referring to the map in 
the presentation) at the end, all of the property owners that did sign it, 105 is not included, it’s simply a 
mapping error. He said that property is not included in your ordinance to be brought in, it was the actual 
legal description submitted by the applicant along with those properties that had signed the application. 
He said you can see this tax lot, which is 9.92 acres tax lot assessed value $63,900, about half way 

26



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 25 of 27 

down, it says signed petition, 1 of 3, this is what Chris Goodell was talking about with 1 of the 3 
landowners signed it. He said this is enough for a majority when you’re talking about the whole area. He 
said it’s the majority of the property owners, with the majority of the area with the majority of the 
assessed value, that’s what constitutes a triple majority. Brad said with regards to the notice, state law 
requires that everyone within 100 feet of the properties proposing to come in be notified, and that notice 
was sent out and it also required that we post notice in the Tigard Times and we did that for two 
consecutive weeks, even leading up to this hearing and we also posted the site in two locations, on 
Middleton and on Brookman. He said it’s a fairly large property and these were the two most logical 
places to post, Brad explained the specific areas of the posting. He said we contacted the School district 
to see whether or not they had issues with these properties coming in and they were involved in the 
planning of the 2009 Concept Plan and they did not express any concerns of the capacity at the school.  
 
He said can some of these properties be developed with multifamily structures, he referred to the 
presentation map and said the bright yellow ones could potentially be with multifamily residential, the tan 
colored ones are medium density residential low and in the medium density residential low, multifamily 
dwellings are not a permitted use. He said it’s a small portion of that site if they were to be developed 
multifamily, they could potentially be, but he is not sure of the acres of that area or what NCD’s they 
could get. He said with regards to Brookman Road and future development out there, Brookman would 
come in with this annexation to the City and would still be a County facility, but would be in at the City to 
allow City utilities to go down Brookman and it would have to be improved to meet County arterial 
standards, which at this point is a three land section, similar to what you might see at Day Break on 
Elwert. He said he thinks there are larger issues with Brookman, but annexation is not necessarily the 
time to address those, this is how City’s grow, you annex property in and as it gets developed, and you 
already have it concept planned, you know where utilities are coming from, you know your streets and 
know what your zoning will be and at the point where this comes in, there is a discussion of how the 
properties are developed and what improvements are required to serve those specific properties. Brad 
addressed the comments about plan expiration and said this is a 2009 adopted plan and this was 
brought in in 2002 to accommodate a projected 20 year land supply for the city, under the urban growth 
boundary amendment. He said we took seven years before we actually planned it and then five years, 
and it’s still within its twenty year plan horizon.  
 
Councilor Langer stated to confirm, this is all private property and all owners, with the exception of two 
that happen to be on a property where there are three owners, everybody with the exception of those 
two are requesting and signed for it. Brad confirmed this is correct and said the petitions and signatures 
were certified by Washington County. Brad provided additional right-of-way information indicating this 
was public.  
 
Councilor Langer confirmed the schools were involved in the decisions and did not have any capacity 
issues. Brad replied they were involved in the 2009 Concept Plan and did not raise any issues with 
capacity and he attempted to contact Heather Cordie, Superintendent on three different occasions and 
spoke with her Administrative Assistant and she said they had no comment.  
 
Councilor Langer asked the 2009 Plan you’re referring to is a 20 year plan. Brad replied he is not sure 
what the time horizon is, but an urban growth boundary expansion is intended to accommodate a 20 
year growth supply, so in 2002 when they made that they said over the next 20 years we expect this 
area to develop to urban density and the City came in 7 years later and went through the concept 
planning process to designate and comp plan that area.  

27



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 26 of 27 

 
Councilor Langer asked how much other similarly zoned properties in Sherwood are available for 
residential, the majority of this is medium density residential low, is there much other property of that 
zoning type sitting around the City. Brad replied he doesn’t know the exact numbers and there are 
probably properties along Elwert that would be eligible MDRL and the majority of other properties you 
might see developed are infill projects that are small, under 10 lots.  
 
Councilor Langer asked if the Brookman area is the next big growth spot for Sherwood. Brad replied it’s 
the area that has been designated for growth since 2002, and there are other areas you might recall, 
that were brought into the Urban Reserve Area, those are areas that might be considered and are 
currently under consideration under the appeal that is at the state level, as to whether or not they can be 
covered as Urban Reserves, potentially those areas could come into the Urban Growth Boundary and 
be developed prior to this.  
 
Councilor Langer asked if we approve it and let it go to the ballot tonight, this is obviously not the last 
step past the majority vote of the citizens of Sherwood. Brad confirmed it’s up to all of the Sherwood 
citizens and not up to the people within the area anymore, he clarified the people that are not part of this 
request will not get to vote on this request because they are outside of the City and their property is not 
being proposed to be annexed.  
 
Councilor Clark addressed the comments about piecemeal and asked if there is a problem with bringing 
the property owners in with respect to the Sherwood citizens approval, that want to be in and not 
including the properties that don’t want to be in. Brad replied not specifically related to, what they have 
assembled here are properties where it is conducive to serve with public utilities extended outside of the 
City. He said under ideal circumstances you would want the entire area to come in because that makes 
the most sense to work with all the property owners to bring in services. He said this is a large group of 
people and it’s like herding goats when you’re trying to assemble a bunch of property owners that have 
the same idea and we know from experience that not everybody in Brookman Road agrees that their 
property should be annexed, so I would highly suspect, unless again you went with a City initiated 
annexation to annex the entire area, it would have to pass muster again to come in much more than you 
see today. He said he thinks what you see is something referred to, development follows pipe and 
pavement, and suspects that once these properties adjacent out here have services available, they will 
be interested and might try and annex into the City. He said to be clear, nobody in this area is required 
to develop their property once they are annexed, that is still a property owner decision and when they do 
decide to develop they will be subject to our standards as opposed to the existing standards of 
Washington County.  
 
City Attorney Beery added she agrees with what Brad has said and from a legal standpoint there is no 
limitation other than that the boundary be reasonable and given that public services and facilities are 
those that have been considered with these, she is certain that the test will be met and this is the legal 
requirements.  
 
Tom Pessemier added we have studied this area for a long time since 2009 with a concept plan and the 
proposal is fairly logical when you talk about being able to serve it with utilities, if you were going to 
stage an annexation proposal, which would make sense in this area, this is the most likely way we 
would do it if the City were to propose it. He said we would tell you if we did not think it was readily 
serviceable, and the last thing we want to do is create issues that we will have to live with for a long time 

28



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 20, 2013 
Page 27 of 27 

and the Council would have to live with because people can’t logically develop their property, this 
particular configuration of property does make a lot of sense to city staff and the Engineering 
Department. 
 
Councilor Butterfield stated his vote tonight is going to be to send this to the voters. 
 
Attorney Beery asked Brad, he indicated that the cross-hatching was a mapping error and the legal 
description that was submitted doesn’t include the erroneous cross-hatched parcel. Brad replied this is 
correct. Ms. Beery confirmed the acreage calculation and everything else was done based on the 
correct area so that we have a correct ballot title in front of the Council. Brad replied it is correct based 
on 97.5 acres and 12 parcels. 
 
Mayor Middleton stated he agrees with Councilor Butterfield, that these people brought this to us and we 
are not out there trying to take their land.  
 
Mayor Middleton asked for a motion. 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR GRANT TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 2013-048, SECONDED BY 
COUNCILOR LANGER, MOTION PASSED 6:0, ALL PRESENT COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN 
FAVOR, (COUNCILOR FOLSOM WAS ABSENT). 

 
9. ADJOURN: 
 

Mayor Middleton adjourned at 10:05 pm to a URA Board of Directors meeting and due to the time, the 
Council did not address Citizen Comments, Council Announcements or the City Manager Report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
              
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder    Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 

29



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 22, 2013 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 

SHERWOOD CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
22560 SW Pine St., Sherwood, Or 

August 22, 2013 
 

 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING-Special Meeting 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Middleton called the meeting to order at 5:32 pm. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Middleton waived this formality. 
 
3. COUNCIL PRESENT:  Mayor Bill Middleton, Councilors Bill Butterfield, Matt Langer and Krisanna Clark. 

Councilor Dave Grant arrived at 5:34pm. Councilor Linda Henderson and Robyn Folsom were absent.  
 

4. STAFF PRESENT: Tom Pessemier Assistant City Manager, Julia Hajduk Community Development 
Director, Brad Kilby Planning Manager, Colleen Resch Administrative Assistant  and City Recorder Sylvia 
Murphy.  

 
5. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Resolution 2013-049 a Resolution repealing Resolution 2013-048 and calling an election on and 

approving a Ballot Title, Summary, and Explanatory Statement for the annexation of 12 tax lots 
comprising 97.5 acres of land in the Brookman Road Plan Area for the November 5, 2013 
Election 
 

Mayor Middleton referenced a new map provided by staff (see record, Exhibit A) and said this is the third 
map we received and asked Planning Manager Brad Kilby how comfortable he was with this and said it 
seems like we are moving very fast and there’s a lot of errors. Brad replied 120% confortable and said he 
verified the map with the applicant and went through it. Brad stated he is not a GIS guy and is not making 
excuses for GIS, and the person that created the map is not here and wasn’t here to make the corrections 
and he tried to make the corrections on his own and he is now 120% positive the map is correct.  
 
Mayor Middleton asked what about the rest of the packet. Brad replied the rest of the packet is correct, as 
well and there was some word-smithing that was recommended based on some of the testimony provided 
Tuesday night. Brad explained from the meeting held on Tuesday, there was one property that had three 
property owners and the resolution indicated we had 100% and it should have said the majority. 
 
Assistant City Manager Tom Pessemier added staff has spent the last day and a half going over this in 
detail and said we had issues with a ballot title that was done a year and a half ago and said they were 
minor issues, but minor issues are a big deal on ballot titles and explanatory statements. He said we have 
been through this 3 or 4 times as have the city’s attorney’s and Brad verified every single tax lot on the 
map and has spent a lot of time between Tuesday and tonight making sure it’s the best that it can be.  

30



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 22, 2013 
Page 2 of 3 

 
Mayor Middleton stated the little word of “majority” is a lot different than “all”, and we would have paid for 
that. Tom confirmed and said rather than trying to quantify it, we are meeting the state law requirement 
which indicates “majority”. Tom explained if the applicant wants to do something in the ballot indicting a 
percentage that is up to them, but we did not want to take responsibility for anything other than what we are 
required to do under state law.  
 
Mayor Middleton stated he does not want to rush anything through like this again. If we have time, we can 
always wait and do it right. 
 
Councilor Butterfield stated his contention was that we work hard and have everybody take a look at us 
and know that we are transparent and honest and this made us look, I felt, silly and that we were not 
prepared or did not have correct information and the audience took it as we were trying to pull something 
over on them. He said we need to avoid that at all costs and everybody knows why, we need to have that 
in the back of our heads, we shouldn’t have to worry about that, but it is a problem. 
 
Tom replied we couldn’t agree more and moving forward… we don’t do these very often and doesn’t think 
we have done this particular process exactly, we have done variations of it. He said he has heard a number 
of things that we as staff can take away from this; we probably need to be having these conversations a lot 
earlier, weeks before we near a deadline on a vote. We need to think about meeting all the requirements 
and we met the Metro and State requirements regarding notice, but we need to think about going beyond 
so we let people know in the area. He said there are a couple of issues we can learn as far as noticing and 
getting information to the Council and the public sooner. We will consider doing this as an internal policy or 
maybe come back with a resolution for Council to consider adopting, stating that we can go beyond the 
state requirements for annexations. 
 
Councilor Grant stated he agrees and it’s not fun to be up here and this is something that is new to us and 
said you see people out there rolling their eyes and we are perplexed as much as they are and they are 
thinking we are just trying to pull something.  
 
Councilor Grant said it was his understanding on the far right of the map, the southeastern piece was the 
piece that was causing the people to roll their eyes and this was the part that they didn’t say yes on. He 
said maybe he misunderstand that. He said he did understand the piece that had the three owners and 
only one signed and that was not that piece. He referred to the woman that came up and said no, I’m not 
on board and said it was his understanding that it was only the map that was hatched but the actual list did 
not include the far southeast corner. He asked if he understood this correctly.  
 
Brad replied, you’re correct, none of the spreadsheets have changed, and it’s still 12 parcels and 97.5 
acres. 
 
Councilor Grant stated this map appears to have changed a bit, it still has that piece crosshatched. Brad 
corrected and said it was the piece next to it that was crosshatched. Councilor Grant confirmed he 
understood the correction. 
 
Councilor Clark referred to the new crosshatched piece, oblong shaped and said her concern is that we are 
sending this to the voters and creating three islands, because the property below Brookman Road is all 
Sherwood property, is that correct. Brad replied, it’s not Sherwood property. She said so we did not create 

31



DRAFT 

City Council Minutes 
August 22, 2013 
Page 3 of 3 

an island. Brad replied, no, because we did not take in that right-of-way around….Councilor Clark said she 
knows there have been other cities that have had problems, Beaverton, Gresham, with creating islands 
that then have trouble with police contact and working with jurisdictions if there is a large crime in the area. 
She confirmed, those pieces enter into the large land that is not annexed. Brad confirmed this was correct. 
 
Councilor Langer said he read the paragraph indicating background/problem and said it makes sense to 
him. He said it’s a good catch and good corrections and said it would have been great to catch it on 
Tuesday night, there was a lot happening and a lot of drama that kind of distracted our focus on work. He 
said a lot of times Councilors or staff will catch it and amend something and there was a lot of activity that 
night and understands how we were distracted.  
 
Mayor Middleton addressed the Resolution 2013-049 under New Business and asked for a motion. 
 
Councilor Langer motioned to approve Resolution 2013-049, seconded by Councilor Grant. Brad Kilby 
indicated adoption of the resolution with the amended map. Councilor Langer confirmed. 
 
Tom Pessemier reminded the Council of the proper process of amending the resolution first by adding the 
map (Exhibit A) and doing a second motion to approve the resolution as amended. 
 
Councilor Langer withdrew his motion and Councilor Grant withdrew his second. Prior to Councilor Langer 
restated his motion, Councilor Clark asked about repealing Resolution 2013-048, the City Recorder 
indicated that by adopting this Resolution 2013-049, the title indicated 2013-048 is being repealed.  
 
The following motion was received.  
 
MOTION TO AMEND: FROM COUNCILOR LANGER TO AMEND RESOLUTION 2013-049 TO INCLUDE 
THE NEW REVISED MAP, SECONDED BY COUNCILOR GRANT, MOTION PASSED 5:0, ALL 
PRESENT COUNCIL MEMBERS VOTED IN FAVOR, (COUNCILOR HENDERSON AND FOLSOM 
WERE ABSENT). 
 
MOTION: FROM COUNCILOR LANGER TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 2013-049 AS AMENDED, 
SECONDED BY COUNCILOR BUTTERFIELD, MOTION PASSED 5:0, ALL PRESENT MEMBERS 
VOTED IN FAVOR, (COUNCILOR HENDERSON AND FOLSOM WERE ABSENT). 
 

6. ADJOURN: 
 

Mayor Middleton adjourned at 5:42 pm. 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
 
              
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder    Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 

32



 

Resolution 2013-050, Staff Report 
September 3, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

City Council Meeting Date: September 3, 2013 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Mark Daniel, Police Captain 
Through: Jeff Groth, Police Chief and Joseph Gall, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2013-050 authorizing the City Manager to renew the inter-

governmental agreement (IGA) with Washington County for 
participation in the Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI) 

 
 
Issue:  
Should the City Council authorize the City Manager to renew the existing inter-
governmental agreement (IGA) with Washington County, enabling the City of Sherwood to 
continue to participate in the Urban Area Security Initiative?  
 
Background:  
The City of Sherwood has become an equal partner in the security and safety/preparedness 
of the Portland Metropolitan Area (otherwise known as the Urban Area consisting of Clark, 
Clackamas, Multnomah and Washington Counties), increasing our ability to be prepared and 
equipped as a regional asset in preparedness. It is critical we maintain this partnership by 
signing the 2013 IGA. 
 
The Portland, Oregon Urban Area was awarded its first grant under the federal Urban Areas 
Security Initiative (UASI) program in 2003. Pursuant to the grant guidance, the urban area 
created a management team called the Urban Area Points of Contact (UAPOC) Group to 
guide and direct program implementation. Recognizing the need for highly specific, expert-
level assistance with program implementation, the UAPOC Group created regional discipline 
working groups.  
 
The Law Enforcement Working Group (LEWG), as one example, was formed by the UAPOC 
Group as one of these discipline working groups to increase the regional coordination of 
public information. Other working groups include Public Works and Communications.  
Membership is open to agencies from the six Portland UASI partners (Clackamas, Clark, 
Columbia, Multnomah and Washington Counties and the City of Portland), cities within 
those counties, states of Oregon and Washington, federal government, transit agencies, 
and port districts.  
 
Financials:  
There is no cost associated with this resolution. By signing, we remain an organization which 
may receive grant funding, and various assets which will be used by the City of Sherwood in 
order to keep our critical infrastructure and assets secure, while becoming a regional 
resource of qualified staff, with unique assets, which may be utilized as a regional asset, for 
use in the event of a significant event. 
 

33



 

Resolution 2013-050, Staff Report 
September 3, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

Recommendation:   
City Staff respectfully recommends that City Council approve this resolution authorizing 
signature of the 2013 IGA with Washington County for the purposes of participation in the 
Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI). 
 

34



 DRAFT 

Resolution 2013-050 
Page 1 of 1, with Exhibit A (34 pgs) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-050 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE 2013 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH WASHINGTON COUNTY  

FOR THE PURPOSES OF CONTINUED PARTICIPATION IN THE  
URBAN AREA SECURITY INITIATIVE (UASI) 

 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing body of the City of Sherwood, Oregon, having 
been presented with information about the need for enhanced public safety with regard 
to its involvement with the Urban Area Security Initiative (UASI); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood City Council hereby resolves that continuing the 
intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with Washington County meets the public safety 
needs of the citizens of the City of Sherwood and authorizes the City Manager to sign 
the 2013 IGA with Washington County for the purposes of participation in the Urban 
Area Security Initiative (UASI).   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The City Manager is authorized to sign the 2013 agreement with Washington 

County, attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage by the 

Council and signature by the Mayor. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 3rd day of September 2013. 
 
 
 
             
       Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

35



B c c- l3-Ò-77o

II{TERG O\IERI{MEI{TAL AGREEMENT

Between

wASHn{GTOt{ COU|{TY, OREGON

and

THE CITY OF SHERWOOD, OREGON

THIS IS an intergovernmental agreement (Agreement) between Washinglon County
(County) and the city of Sherwood (City) entered into pursuant to the authority granted in
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter 190 for the coordination of activities related to use of
the United States Department of Homeland Security's Urban Areas Security Initiative (UASD
grant program funds for addressing the unique planning, organization, equipment, training, and
exercise needs of high-threat, high-density urban areas to assist in building an enhanced and
sustainable capacity to prevent, protect against, respond to, and recoier from acts of terrorism.

Recitals

WHEREAS, the lJnited States Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) Grant Programs Directorate, provided UASI grant funding in the
amount of 52,157 ,259 in Fiscal Year 2012 to the state of Oregon (State) for distribution to the
Portland lJrban Area (PUA); and

WHEREAS, the State awarded UASI Grant #12-170 (CFDA #97.008) to the city of
Portland, Bureau of Emergency Management (PBEM), as subgrantee, for Fiscal Year 2012 in the
amount of $2,049,3 96, a copy of which is attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein as

Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, UASI Grant #I2-I70 is intended to increase the capabilities of the PUA,
which includes jurisdictions, agencies, and organizations in Multnomah, Clackamas, Columbia,
and Washington counties in Oregon and Clark County in Washington, to prevent, protect against,
respond to, and recover from threats and acts of terrorism; and

WHEREAS, a list of equipment, supplies, professional services, training, and exercises to
be funded by the grant has been developed through the application process and coordination with
the State; and

WHEREAS, PBEM, as Grant Administrator, is required to oversee and coordinate the
expenditure of the UASI grant funds and has developed procedures to guide the procurement,
delivery, and reimbursement processes; and

1

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 1 of 34

36



WHEREAS, PBEM, as Grant Administrator, is required to make periodic reports to the
State regarding the expenditure of the UASI grant firnds and has developed procedures to
coordinate the collection and submission of infonnation and documents needed to support the

reporting process; and

WHEREAS, the city of Portland and all other PUA jurisdictions, agencies, and

organizations that receive direct benefit from UASI grant purchases are required to comply with
all terms of the UASI Grant # l2-I70 award including, but not limited to, obligations regarding
reporting, access to records, f,rnancial tracking and procurement, and supplanting of funds; and

WHEREAS, the city of Portland has entered into an agreement with Washington County
to secure the County's commitment to follow the city of Portland-developed procurement,
delivery, reimbursement, and reporting procedures, to ensure its compliance with all terms of the
grant, and to obligate it to coordinate with and obtain similar assurances from directly benefiting
jurisdictions, agencies, and organizations within the County (sub-recipients).

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows

1. The County agrees:

a) To coordinate grant-related procurement, reimbursement, and reporting
activities with the City consistent with the processes developed by the city of
Portland to manage those activities.

b) To serve as the point of contact for all requests made by the City and to be
responsible for submitting all purchase requests to the city of Portland on
behalf of the City.

c) To maintain a sub-recipient monitoring plan in compliance with the
requirements set forth in the most recent versions of applicable federal
regulations and Offrce of Management and Budget (OMB) circulars.

d) To ensure the City maintains compliance with the terms of this Agreement
and UASI Grant #12-170.

2. The Cify agrees:

a) That it has read the award conditions and certifications for UASI GrarÍ#72-
IJ),that it understands and accepts those conditions and certifications, and
that it agrees to comply with all the obligations, and be bound by any
iimitations applicable to the city of Portland, as grantee, under those grant
documents.

b) To comply with all city of Portland and State financial management processes,
and to maintain accounting and financial records in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and f,inancial, administrative, and

2

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 2 of 34

37



audit requirements as set forth in the most recent versions of the Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) and OMB circulars. A nonexclusive list of
regulations commonly applicable to DHS grants includes:

i. Administrative Requirements: 44 CFR Part 13 (State and Local
Govemments) and 2 CFR Part2I5 Q.{on-Profit Organizations).

ii. Cost Principles: 2 CFR Part 225 (State, Local, and Tribal
Governments); Part 230 Qtron-Profit Organizations); and Federal
Acquisition Regulations (FAR) Part 31.2 (Contracts with Commercial
Organizations).

iii. Audit Requirements: OMB Circular A-133.

c) To comply with all city of Portland and State procurement requirements,
including competitive bid processes as outlined in Portland City Code (PCC)
and Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS). A nonexclusive list of code and statutes
commonly applicable to procurement include:

i. PCC Chapter 5.33 (Goods and Services) and PCC Chapter 5.68
(Professional, Technical and Expert Service Contracts).

ii. ORS 2794 (Public Contracting - General Provisions) and ORS 2798
(Public Contracting - Public Procurements).

d) That all equipment, supplies, and services provided by the city of Portland are
as described in the approved grant budget documents, which the City has seen.

e) That regardless of how it is procured, all equipment and supplies purchased
shall be owned by the City until disposition takes place. The City shall be
responsible for inventory tracking, maintenance and storage while in
possession of such equipment and supplies.

Ð That regardless of who the owner is, all equipment purchased with grant funds
will be made available to all eligible regional partners per 44 CFR 13.32(cX2).
All reasonable requests must be met when sufficient notice is given and no
reasonable conflict exists. Owners may not charge "rental" fees for
equipment, but may seek reimbursement for normal expendables (not already
covered by grant funds) such as fuel, vehicle damage, maintenance for wear
and tear, etc., when appropriate.

g) To comply with all property and equipment tracking and monitoring processes
required by the grants, this Agreement, the city of Portland, and the State, and
to treat all single items of equipment valued over $5,000 as fixed assets and to
provide the city of Portland with a list of such equipment. The list should
include, but is not limited to, status, asset number, funding source, date of
purchase, equipment description, serial number, and location where the
equipment is housed or stored. All requirements for the tracking and
monitoring of fixed assets are set forth in 44 CFR Part i3 and OMB Circuiar

J

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 3 of 34

38



A-133. An A-133 compliance suppiement on transfer and disposition
reporting can be found on the Whitehouse website:
http :i/www.whitehouse. gov/sites/default/fi 1es/omb/assets/OMB/circulars/a 1 3 3

hancel2}Il The City shall maintain and store all equipment
and supplies, provided or purchased, in the manner that will most prolong the
life and keep it in good working order at all times.

h) That any request or invoice it submits for reimbursement of costs is consistent
with the items identified in the approved grant budget documents.

Ð That it understands and accepts full financial responsibility and may not be
reimbursed for costs incurred which have not been approved by the city of
Portland, the State, and the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, FEMA
Grant Pro grams Directorate.

j) That it will not deviate from the items listed in the approved grant budget
documents without first securing written approval from the city of Portland.

k) That all publications created with fimding under this grant shall prominently
contain the following statement: "This document was prepared under a grant
from FEMA's Grant Programs Directorate, U.S. Department of Homeland
Security. Points of view or opinions expressed in this document are those of
the authors and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of
FEMA's Grant Programs Directorate or the iJ.S. Department of Homeland
Security."

l) That all financiai records, supporting documentation and all other records
pertinent to this grant or agreements under this grant shail be retained by the
City following termination, completion or expiration of this Agreement for
purposes of state of Oregon or federal examination and audit, as established
by federal, state or city of Portland retention schedules (whichever is longer).
Currently, the city of Portland's retention requirement for these documents is
10 years. A nonexclusive list of codes and statutes commonly applicable to
retention include:

i. City of Portland Retention Schedules, Section 4808
http ://www.portlandonline. com/auditor/index .cftn? c:21 I 83 &r7 9 49

ii. oAR 166-200-0050(17)
iii. 44 CFR Pafi 13.42

m) To obtain a copy of 44 CFR Part 13 and all appiicable OMB circulars, and to
apprise itself of all rules and regulations set forth.

n) Not to supplant its local funds with federal and to, instead, use the federal
funds to increase the amount of funds that, in the absence of federal aid,

4

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 4 of 34

39



would be made availabie to fund progmms within the UASI grant program
guidelines.

o) To comply with National Incident Management System G\IIMS) objectives
identified as requirements by the State and certify that the City is registered
with the State as being NIMS compliant.

p) To comply with all applicable federal, state, and local environmental and
historic preservation (EHP) requirements and provide information requested
to ensure compliance with applicable laws.

q) To comply with federal guidelines concerning exclusions for vendors by
veriS'ing that a vendor is not excluded from receiving federal funds prior to
any expenditure made and record of verification is maintained. Currently,
verification can be made at the System for Award Management site -
www.sam.gov.

r) To provide timely compliance with all reporting obligations required by the
grant's terms and the city of Portland.

s) To provide the city of Portland and the County with Performànce and Program
Reports, Financiai Reimbursement Reports, and Audit Reports when required
by the city of Portland and in the form required by the city of Portland.

Performance Reports and Asset Inventory Reports are due to the city
of Portland and the County biannually on June 15 and December i5
during the term of the grant agreement. Late Performance Reports
could result in the suspension and/or termination of the grant.

Results of the City's OMB Circular A-133 report are due to the city of
Portland and the County within six months of the City's receipt of the
report, along with a corrective action plan (if applicable).

Financial Reimbursement Reports are due no less frequently than
quarterly during the term of the grant agreement. Late Financial
Reimbursement Reports could result in suspension and,ior termination
of the grant.

IV Per UASI Grant #12-170, Part II, Section H.3.b., reimbursement for
expenses may be withheld if Performance Reports are not submitted
by the specified dates or are incomplete.

Ð To follow the travel expense and per diem guidelines as set forth by the U.S.
General Services Administration (GSA) as well as the guidelines of the city of
Portland and State. Per UASI Grant #I2-I10, Section H.3.c., reimbursement
rates for travel expenses shall not exceed those allowed by the state of

1.

11.

111.

Ã

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 5 of 34

40



a
_)

4

5

Oregon. Requests for reimbursement for travei must be supported with a

detailed statement identifying the person who traveled, the purpose of the
travel, the dates, times, and places of travel, and the actual expenses or
authorized rates incurred.

GSA per diem rates can be found on the GSA website
http ://www. gsa. gov/portall category 121287 .

The city of Portland's guidelines can be found on the Office of the City
Auditor's website:

BCP-FINI-6.13 Travel:
http ://www.portlandonline. com/auditor/index . cfrn? c:3 47 47 &,r 1 6021 I

BCP-FIN-6.14 Non-travel Meals, Light Refreshments and Related
Miscellaneous Expenses :

http :/iwww.portlandonline. com/auditor/index .cfm? &r\ 60283 &.c:3 47 47

u) To comply with all applicable law-s, regulations, program guidance and
guidelines of the state of Oregon, the Federal Government, and Oregon
Emergency Management (OEM) in the performance of this Agreement,
including but not limited to those listed in Grant #I2-I70, Part III. Subgrantee
Compliance and Certifications.

v) To comply with all of its obligations under this Agreement and any
applicable, inc orporated do cument or documents.

Effective Date and Duration. This Agreement shall be effective from the date
both parties have signed and shall be terminated upon the end date of the
agreement between the city of Portland and the State (Grant #I2-I70), unless
otherwise extended by the parties in writing or this IGA is terminated due to
failure of one of the parties to perform.

Amendment. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by the written
agreement of both parties but must remain consistent with the requirements of the
UASI program grant, the agreement between the State and the city of Portland,
and the city of Portland's UASI grant agreement with the County.

Termination. Either parly may terminate this Agreement in the event the other
fails to comply with its obligations wrder the Agreement. If the Agreement is
terminated due to the City's failure or inability to comply with the provisions of
the grant or the Agreement, the City will be liable to the city of Portland for the
full cost of any equipment, materials, or services provided by the city of Portland
to the City, and any penalties imposed by the State or Federal Government. Each
party willnotifu the other, in writing, of its intention to terminate this Agreement
and the reasons therefore. The other party shall have fourteen days, or such other

6

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 6 of 34

41



6.

time as the parties may agree, from the date of the notice in which to correct or
otherwise address the compliance failure which is the subject of the notice.

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State, without regard to principles of conflicts of
law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding that arises from or relates to this
Agreement shall be brought and conducted exclusively within the Circuit Court of
Washington County for the state of Oregon. In the event a claim is brought in a
federal forum, then it shall be brought and conducted solely and exclusively in the
United States District Court for the District of Oregon.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each
of which shall be an original, all of which shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

Survival. The terms, conditions, representations, and all warranties in this
Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

Force Majeure. Neither party shal1 be held responsible for delay or default
caused by fire, riot, acts of God, or war where such cause was beyond reasonable
control. Each party shall make all reasonable efforts to remove or eliminate such
a cause of delay or default and shall, upon cessation of the cause, diligentty
pursue performance of its obligations under this Agreement.

10. Indemnification.

a) Subject to the conditions and limitations of the Oregon Constitution and the
Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 through 30.300, the City shall
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the County, its commissioners,
employees, and agents from and against any and all liabiiity, claims, damages,
losses, and expenses, including but not limited to reasonable attorneys' fees
arising out of or resulting from the acts of the City, its officers, employees and
agents in the performance of this agreement. Subject to the conditions and
limitations of the Oregon Constitution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS
30.260 through 30.300, the County shall indemnifu, defend and hold harmless
the City from and against all liability, loss and costs arising out of or resulting
from the acts of the County, its officers, employees and agents in the
performance of this agreement.

b) The City shall take all reasonable steps to cause its contractor(s) or
subcontractor(s) that are not units of local government as defined in ORS
190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save, and hold harmless OEM and its
offrcers, employees, and agents ("Indemnitee") from and against any and all
claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including attorneys'
fees) arising from a tort (as now or hereafter defined in ORS 30.260) caused,
or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or

7

8.

9

7

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 7 of 34

42



11

12.

T3

1,4.

15

omissions of the City's contractor or any of the offrcers, agents, employees or
subcontractors of the contractor ("Claims"). It is the specihc intention of the
parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims arising
solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be
indemnified by the contractor from and against any and all Claims

c) The City shall require its contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) to obtain insurance
in amounts required by OEM, not to exceed OEM's limits of liability under
the Oregon Tort Claims Act, and shal1 provide that the state of Oregon, OEM,
and their officers, employees, and members are named as Additional Insureds,
but only with respect to the contractor's or subcontractor's services performed
under this grant.

Third Parfy Beneficiaries. The County and the City are the only parties to this
Agreement and are the only parties entitled to enforce its term, except as -,

specifically noted herein. Nothing in this Agreement gives, or is intended to
give, or shall be construed to give or provide any benefit or right, whether
directly, indirectly, or otherwise, to third persons unless such persons are
individually identified by name herein. City acknowledges and agrees that the
obligations City assumes under this agreement benef,rt, and may be enforced by,
the city of Portland, and the Oregon Office of Emergency Management.

Successors in Interest. The terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon the
successors and assigns ofeach party hereto.

Entire Agreement. The parties agree and acknowledge that this Agreement is a
complete, integrated agreement that supersedes any prior understandings related
to implementation of the FY-12 UASI program grant and that it is the entire
agreement between them relative to that grant.

'Worker's Compensation. Each party shall be responsible for providing
worker's compensation insurance in compliance \^/ith ORS 656.011, which
requires subject employers to provide Oregon workers' compensation coverage
for all their subject workers (contractors with one or more employees, unless
exempt wtder ORS 656.027). Neither party shall be required to provide or show
proof of any other insurance coverage.

Nondiscrimination. Each party shall comply with all requirements of federal
and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes and local non-discrimination
ordinances.

Human Trafficking (2 CFR Part 175). The City, employees, contractors and
sub-recipients under this Agreement and their respective employees may not:

Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of
the time the award is in effect:

Õ

16.

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 8 of 34

43



Procure a coûlmercial sex act during the period of time the award is in
effect; or

Use forced labor in the performance of the subgrant or subgrants under
the award.

The City must inform the city of Portland, the County, and OEM immediately of
any information the City receives from any source alleging a violation of any of
the above prohibitions in the terms of this IGA. OEM may terminate Grant#12-
170, without penalty, for vioiation of these provisions. OEM's right to terminate
Grant #I2-17D urulaterally, without penalty, is in addition to all other remedies
under Grant #I2-I70.

Access to Records. Each party shall maintain, and shall have access to the
books, documents, pape s, and other records of the other party which are related
to this Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts, and
transcripts. Copies of applicable records shall be made available upon request.
Access to records for OEM, the Oregon Secretary of State, the Office of the
Comptroller, the General Accounting Office (GAO), or any of their authorized
representatives, shall not be limited to the required retention period but sha1l last
as long as records are retained.

Subcontracts and Assignment. Neither party will subcontract or assign any
part of this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.
Notwithstanding County approval of a subcontractor, the City shall remain
obligated for full performance hereunder, and the County shall incur no
obligation other than its obligations to the City hereunder.

11.

iii.

T7

18

Washington County

zlzÅ
Sr. Deouly County Admin

fRod Ríce
Date 77 zz//3

.) ):

APPROVED AS TO FORM

ø'a 2'A 6, /8 206
Attornev

Date

,{FpxÌ{l v EÐ¡ WASI å I þ,lG'ì 0ì\l,i:Ù ¡-i i\ i' \i

BGARi' OF CÐMkillillí Ùl\ El{'r

M[NI.]TE ORDF,P" # 21
ÐATE

at EÞ:,'/-):l
BY

I

3O¿.iil)

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 9 of 34

44



City of Sherwood

APPROVED AS TO FORM

AtNoTney

CityFiscal Contact

Title

Telophone Nunrber

Address

DLINS#

Date

Date

Date

E-Mail Address

CAGE CODE#

h

10

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 10 of 34

45



I NTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

Between

THE CITY OF PORTLAND, OREGON

And

Washinqton Gountv

THIS lS an lntergovernmental Agreement (lGA) between the City of Portland ("City")
and Washington County ("Agency") entered into pursuant to the authority granted in
ORS Chapter 190 for the coordination of activities related to the use of the United
States Department of Homeland Security's Urban Areas Security lnitiative (UASI) grant
program funds for addressing the unique planning, organization, equipment, training,
and exercise needs of high-threat, high-density Urban Areas, to assist in building an
enhanced and sustainable capacity to prevent, protect against, respond to, and recover
from acts of terrorism.

Recitals

WHEREAS, the United States Department of Homeland Security (DHS), Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Grant Programs Directorate, provided UASI
grant funding in the amount of $2,049,396 in Fiscal Year 2012 to the State of Oregon
("State"), acting by and through the Oregon Military Department, Office of Emergency
Management (OEM) for distribution to the Portfand Urban Area (PUA); and

WHEREAS, the State awarded UASI Grant #12-170 to the City of Portland, Bureau of
Emergency Management (PBEM), as Grantee, for Fiscal Year 2012 in the amount of
$2,049,396, a copy of which is attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein as
Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, UASI Grant #12-170 is intended to increase the capabilities of the PUA,
which incfudes jurisdictions in Multnomah, Clackamas, Columbia and Washington
counties in Oregon and Clark County in Washington, as well as the Port of Portland and
TriMet, to build an enhanced and sustainable capacity to prevent, protect against,
respond to, and recover from acts of terrorism; and

WHEREAS, a list of equipment, supplies, professional services, training and exercise
events to be grant funded has been developed through the application process and
coordination with the State; and

S:\FINANCE & GRANT ADMINISTRATIOM CONTRACTS\IGA's\Working Folder for FY 2012 lGAW/ashington\IGA_Template.docx
I

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 11 of 34

46



WHEREAS, PBEM, as Grant Administrator, is required to oversee and coordinate the

expenditure of the UASI grant funds and has developed procedures to guide the
procurement, delivery, and reimbursement processes; and

WHEREAS, PBEM, as Grant Administrator, is required to make periodic reports to the
State regarding the expenditure of the UASI grant funds and has developed procedures

to coordinate the collection and submission of information and documents needed to

support the reporting Process; and

WHEREAS, the City and all other PUA jurisdictions that receive direct benefit from UASI
grant purchases are required to comply with allterms of the U,S. Department of
Homeland Security, UASI Grant CFDA # 97.008, Grant #12-170 award including, but

not limited to, obligations regarding reporting, access to records, financial tracking and
procurement, and supplanting of funds; and

WHEREAS, the City has entered into agreements with the PUA counties to secure their
commitment to follow the City-developed procurement, delivery, reimbursement, and

reporting procedures, to ensure their compliance with all terms of the grants, and to
obligate them to coordinate with and obtain similar assurances from directly benefiting
jurisd ictions (i. e., "su b-recipients") within the respective counties.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. The City agrees:

a) That it is authorized to purchase and distribute equipment, supplies and
services which have been approved by the State and, as appropriate, the
City may delegate this purchasing authority to the Agency. Such
authorization, however, does not guarantee payment for the Agency. The
State requires documentation invoicing by the Agency, to the City, and
compliance with the Agency's purchasing practices, the City's purchasing
practices and any applicable state and federal rules and regulations prior
to approval of payments.

b) Because there is no IGA between the City and the sub-recipients of the
Agency, the Agency will be the point of contact for all requests made by
their sub-recipients. The Agency will be responsible for submitting all
purchase requests on behalf of their sub-recipients to the City.

c) When the City has purchased goods or services for the Agency or the
Agency's sub-recipient arrangements for delivery will be made between
the parties and the Agency or the Agency's sub-recipient shall be the
Owner of said goods or services and shall be responsible for complying
with all applicable requírements as outlined in Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) and Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circulars.

S:\FINANCE & GRANT ADMIMSTRATION\ CONTRACTS\IGA's\Working Folder for FY 2012 IGA\Washington\IGA_Template.docx
2

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 12 of 34

47



2. The Agency agrees:

a) That it has read the award conditions and certifications for Grant #12-170,
that it understands and accepts those conditions and certifications, and
that ít agrees to comply with all the obligations, and be bound by any
limitations applicable to the City, as grantee, under those grant
documents.

b) To comply with all CÍty and State financial management processes, and to
maintain accounting and financial records in accordance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and financial, administrative, and
audit requirements as set forth in the most recent versions of the Code of
Federal Regulations and Office of Management and Budget Circulars. A
nonexclusive líst of regulations commonly applicable to DHS grants
includes:

ilt

Administrative Requirements: 44 CFR Part 13 (State and Local
Governments) and 2 CFR ParI215 (Non-Profit Organizations).

Cost Principles: 2 CFR Part.225 (State, Local, and Tribat
Governments); Part 230 (Non-Profit Organizations); and Federal
Acquisition Regulations (FAR) Part 31.2 (Contracts with
Commercial Organ izations).

Audit Requirements: OMB Circular A-1 33.

c) To comply with all City and State procurement requirements, including
competitive bid processes as outlined in Portland City Code (PCC) and
Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS). A nonexclusive list of code and statutes
commonly applicable to procurement include:

i. PCC Chapter 5.33 (Goods and Services) and PCC Chapter 5.68
(Professional, Technical and Expert Service Contracts).

ii. ORS 279A (Public Contracting - General Provisions) and ORS
2798 (Public Contracting - Public Procurements).

d) That alf equipment, supplies, and services provided by the City are as
described in the approved grant budget documents.

e) That regardless of how it is procured, all equipment and supplies
purchased shall be owned by the Agency or the Agency's sub-recipient
until disposition takes place. The Agency or the Agency's sub-recipient
shall be responsible for inventory tracking, maintenance and storage while
in possession of such equipment and supplies.

S:\FINANCE & GRANT ADMINISTRATION\_CONTRACTSUGA's\WoIking Folder for FY 2012 IGA\'ùr'ashington\IGA_Template docx
3

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 13 of 34

48



0 That regardless of who the Owner is, all equipment purchased with grant

funds will be made available to all eligible regional partners per 44 CFR

13.32(c)(2). All reasonable requests must be met when sufficient notice is

given and no reasonable conflict exists. Owners may not charge "rental"

fees for equipment, but may seek reimbursement for normal expendables
(not already covered by grant funds) such as fuel, vehicle damage,
maintenance for wear and tear, etc., when appropriate.

g) To comply with all properly and equipment tracking and monitoring
processes required by the grants, this Agreement, the City and the State.
To treat all single items of equipment valued over $5,000 as fixed assets
and to provide the City with a list of such equipment. The list should
include, but is not limited to, status, asset number, funding source,
date of purchase, equipment description, serial number, and location
where the equipment is housed or stored. All requirements for the
tracking and monitoring of fixed assets are set forth in 44 CFR Part 13 and
OMB Gircular A-133. An A-133 compliance supplement on transfer and

disposition reportíng can be found on the Whitehouse websíte:

33 compliancei20l I /pt3.pdf
The Agency or the Agency's sub-recipient shall maintain and store all
equipment and supplies, provided or purchased, in the manner that will
most prolong the life and keep it in good working order at all times.

h) That any request or invoíce it submits for reimbursement of costs is
consistent with the items identified in the approved grant budget
documents.

i) That it understands and accepts fullfinancial responsibility and may not be
reimbursed for costs incurred which have not been approved by the State
and the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, FEMA Grant Programs
Directorate.

j) That it will not deviate from the items listed in the approved grant budget
documents without first securing written approval from the City.

k) That all publications created with funding under this grant shall
prominently contairi the following statement: "This document was prepared
under a grant from FEMA's Grant Programs Directorate, U.S. Department
of Homeland Security. Points of view or opinions expressed in this
document are those of the authors and do not necessarily represent the
official position or policies of FEMA's Grant Programs Directorate or the
U.S. Department of Homeland Security."

D That all financial records, supporting documentation and all other records
pertinent to this grant or agreements under this grant shall be retained by

S:\FINANCE & GRANT ADMINISTRATIOII\_CONTRACTS\IGA's\Working Folder for FY 2012 IGA\WashingtonVGA_Template.docx
4

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 14 of 34

49



the Agency following termination, completion or expiration of this
Agreement for purposes of state of oregon or Federal examínation and
audit, as established by Federal, State or City retention schedules
(whÍchever is longer), Currentfy, the City of Portland's retention
requirement for these documents is 10 years. A nonexclusive list of code
and statutes commonly applicable to retention include:

i. City of Podland Retention Schedules, Section 4808
h tt p : i/www. p o rt I a n d o n I i n e. co m/a u d ito r/i n d ex. cfm ? c= 27 1 83 &a=7 I 49

ii, oAR 166-200-0050(17)

iii. 44 CFR Part 13.42

m) To obtain a copy of 44 CFR Paft 13 and all applicable OMB Circulars, and
to apprise itself of all rules and regulations set forth.

n) Not to supplant its local funds with federal funds but rather use the federal
funds to increase the amount of funds that, in the absence of federal aid,
would be made available to fund programs within the UASI grant program
guidelines.

o) To comply with National Incident Management System (NIMS) objectives
identified as requirements by the State and certify that the Agency and
any sub-recipients of the Agency are registered with the State as being
NIMS compliant.

p) To comply with all applicable federal, state, and local environmental and
historic preservation (EHP) requirements and provide information
requested to ensure compliance with applicable [aws.

q) To comply with federal guidelines concerning exclusions for vendors by
verifying that a vendor is not excluded from receiving federal funds prior to
any expenditure made and record of verification is maintained. Currently,
verification can be made at the System for Award Management site -
www.sam.gov.

0 To timely comply wíth all reporting obligations required by the Grant's
terms and the City.

s) To provide the City with Performance and Program Reports, Financial
Reimbursement Reports and Audit Reports when required by the City and
in the form required by the City.

Performance Reports and Asset lnventory Repods are due to the
City biannually on June 15th and December lSthduring the term of

S:\FINANCE & GRANT ADMINISTRATIONA_CONTRACTS\IGA's\Working Folder fo¡ FY 2012 lGA\Washington\IGA_Template docx
5

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 15 of 34

50



ill

the grant agreement. Late Pedormance Reports could result in the
suspension and/or termination of the grant.

Results of the Agency's OMB Circular A-133 report are due to the

City within six months of the Agency's receipt of the report, along

with a correct¡ve action plan (if applicable).

Financial Reimbursement Reports are due no less frequently than
quarterly during the term of the grant agreement. Late Financial
Reimbursement Reports could result in the suspension and/or
termination of the grant.

per uASl Grant #12-170, Part Il, Section H.3.b., reimbursement for
expenses may be withheld if Performance Reports are not
submitted by the specified dates or are incomplete.

IV

0 To follow the travel expense and per diem guidelines as set forth by the
U.S. General Services Administration (GSA) as well as the guidelines of
the City and State. Per UASI Grant #12-170, Section H.3.c.,

reimbursement rates for travel expenses shall not exceed those allowed
by the State of Oregon. Requests for reimbursement for travel must be

supported with a detailed statement identifying the person who travel-ed,

the purpose of the travel, the dates, times, and places of travel, and the
actual expenses or authorized rates incurred.

GSA per diem rates can be found on the GSA website:
http :i/www. q sa. q ov/p o rta l/categ o rv/2 1 2 87.

The City's guidelines can be found on the Office of the City Auditor's
website:

BCP-FIN-6.13 Travel:
uditor/i 60271

BCP-FlN-6.14 Non-travel Meals, Light Refreshments and Related
M iscellaneous Expenses:
http://www. portla ndonline. com/aud itor/index.cfm? &a=160283&c=347 47

u) To develop a sub-recipient monitoring plan that shall be in compliance
with the requirements set forth in the most recent versions of applicable
CFR and OMB Circulars.

v) To maintain a list of all sub-recipients of the Agency, and insure that the
entities on that list are in compliance with the terms of this Agreement, and
ExhibÍt A. The list of sub-recipients shall be made available to the City by
the Agency upon execution of this lGA, and the Agency shall alert the City
to any changes in the list within a reasonable amount of time.

S:\FINANCE & GRANT ADMINISTRATIOI{\_CONTRACTSUGAs\WoIking Folder for FY 2012 lGA\Washington\IGA_Template.docx
6

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 16 of 34

51



w) To comply with all applicable laws, regulations, program guidance and
guidelines of the state of oregon, the Federal Government and oEM in
the pefformance of this Agreement, including but not límited to those listed
in Grant #12-170, Part lll. Subgrantee Gompliance and Certifications.

x) To comply with all of its obligations under this Agreement and any
applicable, incorporated document or documents.

Effective Date and Duration. This Agreement shall be effective from the
date both padies have signed and shall be terminated upon the end date of
the agreement between the City and the State (Grant #12-170), unless
otherwise extended by the parfies in writing or this IGA is terminated due to
failure of one of the Parties to perform.

4. Amendment. This Agreement may be modified or amended only by the
written agreement of both parties but must remain consistent with the
requirements of the UASI program and the Agreement between the State and
the City.

Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement in the event the
other fails to comply with its obligations under the Agreement. lf the
Agreement is terminated due to the Agency's failure or inability to comply with
the provisions of the grants or the Agreement, the Agency will be liable to the
City for the full cost of any equipment, materials, or services provided by the
City to the Agency, and for any penalties imposed by the State or Federal
Government. Each party will notify the other, in writing, of Íts intention to
terminate this Agreement and the reasons therefore. The other party shall
have fourteen days, or such other time as the parties may agree, from the
date of the notice in which to correct or otherwise address the compliance
failure which is the subject of the notice.

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the state of Oregon, without regard to principles
of conflicts of law. Any claim, action, suit or proceeding that arises from or
relates to this Agreement shall be brought and conducted exclusively within
the Circuit Court of the state of Oregon for the county of Multnomah. ln the
event a claim is brought in a federal forum, then it shall be brought and
conducted solely and exclusively in the United States District Court for the
District of Oregon.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts,
each of which shall be an original, all of which shall constitute one and the
same instrument.

Survival. The terms, conditions, representations and all warranties in this
Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

S:\FINANCE & GRANT ADMINISTRATION\ CONTRACTS\lGA's\Worl<ing Folder for FY 2012 IGA\Washington\IGA_Template.docx
7

3

5.

6

7

I

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 17 of 34

52



Force Majeure. Neither party shall be held responsible for delay or default

caused by fire, riot, acts of God, or War where such cause was beyond

reasonable control. Each party shall make all reasonable efforts to remove or

eliminate such a cause of delay or default and shall, upon cessation of the

cause, diligently pursue performance of its obligations under this Agreement.

10. lndemnification

Subject to the conditions and limitations of the Oregon Constitutíon and

the óregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 through 30.300, the Agency
shall indêmnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its commissioners,

employees and agents from and against any and all liability, claims,

damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to

reasoñable attorneys fees arising out of or resulting from the acts of

the Agency, its officers, employees and agents in the performance of

this agreement. Subject to the conditions and limitations of the Oregon

Constltution and the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 through

30.300, the City shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Agency
from and against all liability, loss and costs arising out of or resulting

from the acts of the City, its officers, employees and agents in the
performance of this agreement.

The Agency shall take all reasonable steps to cause its contractor(s) or

subcontractor(s) that are not units of local government as defined in

ORS 190.003, if any, to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless
OEM and its officers, employees and agents ("lndemnitee") from and

against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or
expenses (including attorneys'fees) arising from a tort (as now or
hereafter defined in ORS 30.260) caused, or alleged to be caused, in

whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the
Agency's contractor or any of the officers, agents, employees or
subcontractors of the contractor ("Claims"). lt is the specific intention of
the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, except for Claims
arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the
lndemnitee, be indemnified by the contractor from and against any and
all Claims

c. The Agency shall require its contractor(s) or subcontractor(s) to obtain
insurance in amounts required by OEM, not to exceed OEM's limits of
liability under the Oregon Tort Claims Act, and shall provide that the
State of Oregon, OEM, and their officers, employees and members are
named as Additional lnsureds, but only with respect to the contractor's
or subcontractor's services peformed under this grant.

S:\FINANCE & GRANT ADMINISTRATION\_CONTRACTS\1GA's\Working Folder for FY 2012 IGA\Washington\IGA_Template-docx
8

9

a

b

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 18 of 34

53



11.

12.

13

14.

15.

16.

Third Party Beneficiaries. The city and the Agency are the only parties to
this Agreement and are the only parties entitled to enforce its terms. Nothing
in this Agreement gives, or is intended to give, or shalt be construed to give or
provide any benefit or right, whether directly, indirectly, or othenryise, to third
persons unless such persons are individually identified by name herein.

Successors in lnterest. The terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon
the successors and assigns of each party hereto.

Entire Agreement. The parties agree and acknowledge that this Agreement
is a complete, integrated agreement that supersedes any prior
understandings related to implementation of the FY-12 UASI program grant
and that it is the entire agreement between them relative to that grant.

Workers' Compensation. Each party shall be responsible for providing
worker's compensation insurance in compliance with ORS 656.017, which
requires subject employers to provide Oregon workers' compensation
coverage for all their subject workers (contractors with one or more
employees, unless exempt under ORS 656.027). Neither party shall be
required to provide or show proof of any other insurance coverage.

Nondiscrimination. Each pady shatl comply with all requirements of federal
and state civil rights and rehabilitation statutes and local non-discrimination
ordinances.

Human Trafficking (2 CFR Part 175). The Agency, employees, contractors
and sub-recipients under this Agreement and their respective employees may
not:

o Engage in severeforms of trafficking in persons during the period of the
time the award is in effect;

o Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time the award is in
eftect; or

o Use forced labor in the performance of the subgrant or subgrants under
the award.

The Agency must inform the City and OEM immediately of any information
the Agency receives from any source alleging a violation of any of the above
prohibitions in the terms of this lGA. OEM may terminate Grant#12-170,
without penalty, for violation of these provisions. OEM's right to termínate
Grant #12-170 unilaterally, without penalty, is in additíon to all other remedies
under Grant #12-170. The Agency must include these requirements in any
subgrant made to public or private entities.

17. Access to Records. Each party shall maíntain, and shall have access to the
books, documents, papers and other records of the other party which are

SiFINANCE & GRANT ADMINISTRATIOM CONTRACTS\IGA's\Working Folder for FY 2012 IGA\Washington\IGA_Template.docx
9

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 19 of 34

54



18.

related to this agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination,
excerpts, and transcripts. Copies of applicable records shall be made

availabte upon request. Access to records for Oregon Emergency
Management (OEM), Oregon Secretary of State, the Office of the

Compiroller, the General Accounting Office (GAO), or any of their authorized

representatives, shall not be limited to the required retention period but shall

last as long as records are retained.

Subcontracts and Assignment. Neither party will subcontract or assign any
part of this agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.

Notwithstanding City approval of a subcontractor, the Agency shall remain
obligated for full performance hereunder, and the City shall incur no obligation

other than its obligations to the Agency hereunder.

City of P and

Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Date
Attorney

Washinqton County

Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Date
Attorney

S:\FINANCE & GRANT ADMINISTRATION\ CONTRACTS\IGA's\Working Folder for FY 2012 IGA\Washinglon\lGA_Template.docx
10

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 20 of 34

55



OREGON MILITARY DEPARTMENT
OFFICE OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

URBANI AREA SECURITY INITIATIVE GRANT PROGRAM
CFDA # 97.008

GR.AATT AW'RD CONDITIONS AND CERTIFIC¡TIONS

PROGRAI\{ NAME: UASI W 201:2 GRANTNO: #1%fl0

SUBGRA}TTEE: City of Portland FEDERAIÀW¡{RD: $?n049,396

ADDRESS: 4lVLïúrrt'/WABu¡eau of Enetgency Manaçment AWÂRD PERIOD:
1001 SW 5û Ave., Suite 650
Potland" ORn204

Suhgnatrtee Ospy

TEI-EPHONE: (s03r823-2691

TELEPHONE: (503) 8æ-4187

PROGRAM CONT,{.CT: Catmen Metlo
carnco.acrlo@¡rordaadorcgor.gov

FISC.AL CONTACT: ShelliTompkins
ehdlltoopki@pordeadortgon-gov

BUDGET

Equipment
CBRNE Incideot Response Vehides
CBRNE Logistical Support
CBRNE Operational/Sea¡ch and Rescue
Infotrnetion Tecbnology
Interoperable Communications
O ther,tuthodzed Equipment
Person¿l Protective Equipment

F:ercises
Planning
Training (ODP-apptoved)
Âdministration

Toal

$111,000
$88,000

$598,476
ï27t,919

$42,000
$31,500
$25,000
$50,000

ï7ts2t6
$67,815

$10L470
ï2,049,396

Page I -City ofPortland

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 21 of 34

56



I.

GRÄNT AWARD AGREEMENT,AIVD PROVISIONS

P¡ovisions ofAward

A. Agreement Pa¡ties. This aad tbrougþ the Otçgon Military
Department, OfEce of E

B. Effe*ive Deæ. This Agteemeaf shell þ6çe¡¡s effective on ttre date this Agreement has beea fuIly ereerted by eo"ty
party. Agreeoeot te¡mioation shdl not extioguish ot preiudice OEMs dht to eofo¡ce this -Ago..oentwith iespeci
to any deåult by Subgnotee tìat has not been cu¡ed

C. Sqt¡æe-af.E¡sds. Paym.eot for rhis Program will be ftom the Fiscal Yea¡ 2072lJrhaa A¡a Seonity Initiative Graot
Program-

D. Merger Clause; Vaivet This Agreemeot and refereoced docr¡ments consdn¡te tbe entire Ageeoert betweeû tùe
patties oa the subject oatter he¡eof. There are no undersaodiogs, ag¡eemeûts, or represenatiors, oral ot wdtten,
ûot qrecified heteio regarding rhic ¿g¡6¿6snL No waiver, conseot, modificatioos or cbaoge ef ¡sfms 9f this
agteeocnt sball be bioding unless agreed to in writiog and signed by both the Subgrantee a¡d OEM Such waiver,
conseût, ndiEcatioo e¡ çha.ge, if made shall be effective only in the speciÉc iostance and fo¡ the specific purpose
givea.

E. +fuoryI4gloent The Subgmntee, þ signatrrre of is authorized represeoative, hercby acknowledges that he/she
has rcad tñis ag¡eeoent, understands ig and agees to be bound by iæ ætrrs and conditions faduding all refe¡ences
to othe¡ docr¡meots). Failure to comply with this agreement and with applicable state and fede¡al ruIes and
guidelines oay tesult in any o¡ all of the witbholdiog of æimbursemenÇ the te¡srioation or suspeosioo of the
agreeme4 dsnial 9f futurs grants, or d2m2g.s to OEM

TERMS AI{D CONDTTIONS

U. Conditions ofAwatd

A. The Subgrantee agrees tbat all dlocatioos aod use of funds uoder this ,{greement will be io accordance with the
FY2Ûlzl{qmelønd $scx¡rity Grant Progmm Fuodiog Oppolh¡Dity Aonouncement (FOA), the reçiremeos of
which are incorpo¡ated into this Ageemeot by this refereoce, and to expend funds in acco¡da¡ce vith the approved
budget rroless the Subgraotee ¡eceives pdor written approval by OEM to modify the program or budget OEM
may withhold funds for any or¡renditure oot within the ap¡lroved budget or io excess of anounts apgoved by
OElvf. Faift¡¡e of the Subgantee to ope¡ate the progømin accordance with the rminen agreed upon investment
jwtificatioo contained in the graot applicatior¡ oaærials and budget vill be grounds fo¡ im¡nediate nrqrension or
te¡mination of this ¡þsscren¿

B. The Subgranæe 4gfees to coo¡lerate with aoy assessmeûts, oatiooal evaluation effo¡ts, or informatioo or data
collection requess, iocluding but ¡ot limited to, the provision of aoy ioforanation required for the assessmeor or
evah:ation of anyactivities withio this Agreemeot

C. By accepti.g FY 2012 funds, the Subgtaoæe certifies that it bas Eet NIlvf^S coopliance activities oudined i¡ ttre
NIlvfS Iqrleoeotation lvfatrix for State, Tribal or LocaUurisdicions. Additional info¡matioo on achiwing
compliance is available ttuough the NIlvfS Resor¡¡ce Ceoter at http:/ /wwv.f*,gov/ eoeqgenc/dm"/-

D.

1. Administ¡ative Requirements. The Subgrantee agrees to comply with all finaocial management and
procureoent requirements (Section E), to maintain 

""66unring 
and Enancid ¡eco¡ds in accordance with

Generally,{ccqlted Accounting Principles (GA.{P) and financial, administrative, and audit requirements as set
fo¡th in the most ¡ecent vemions of the Code of Fede¡al Regulations (CFR), the Office of l\fanagemcnt and
Budget (Olrß) Citculars, Depa¡toeot of Homeland Security (DHS) program legislatioo, and ÐHS/Fede¡al
Eme¡ger¡cy lvfâ¡egement Agpncy (FEÀ4,{) regulations. ¿{ nonexclusive list of regulatioos commooly applicable
to DHS grans includes:

^. Administrative Requirements. 44 CFRPa¡t 13 $ate aod Local Govemmeots).
b. Cost P¡incþles. 2 CFRPart?2S $ate, Iod and T¡ibal Govemmene) ând ,18 CFR Fderâl Acquisition

Reguletioos (FAR) Part 31.2 (Contracæ with Comnercial O¡ganizations).
c. AuditRequiremens. OI\,ÍB CfuculârÂ-l33.

Page2 - City ofPordand

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 22 of 34

57



2. Retention of Records. All financiâl records, supportiag doq.¡r¡entation, and all othe¡ ¡ecords pertinent to this
g¡ant ot âgreeoeûts r¡sde¡ this grant shall be retained by the Subgrantee uatil the laæst of (a) six yean
followiog te-i."tioo, completioa or expiration of this Agser¡snt, þ) upon resolution of any litþtion or
other diÐutes ¡elated to tlis funeement, or (c) ao extended period as esÞblished uoder 4{ CFR 13.42. It is ùe
responsibility of the Subgrantee ¡q eþrai¡ ¿ copy of 44 CFR Pa¡t 13 and all applicable OÀÁB Circr¡lâ¡s, aod to
apprise itself of dl n¡les aod regulations set folth.

3. Access to Records. Subgraarce acknowledges and agtees, and Subgraoæe will require its subrecipieos,
cootracto¡s, successors, fansferees, and assþees to acknowledge aftd agee, to provide OElvt Otegon
Secreary of Satg OfÉce of Iospector Gene¡al (OIG), Departrnent of Homelaod Security (DHS), Federal

Eoeqeûcy Me¡ag€oent Agency (FElvfA), or any of their ¿uthorized ¡epresentatives, access to tecords,
acsounts, docuneos, informatior¡ facilities, and staff, Subgrantee and any subrecipieats must cooperate with
any coopliance reviw o¡ complaint investþtion by aoy of the above listed ageocies, providing theo access to
aod the jght to eramine ¿¡d copy recods, accounts, and other docr¡oens a¡d sou¡ces of info¡mation ¡elated

to the grant and p*it access to facilitieq personnel and other individuals and ioformatio¡ as may be
recessâfy. The tþt of access is not limited to the required ¡etentioa period but shell last as long as the
¡eco¡ds a¡e ¡eaioed.

4. Audits. If the Subgraaæe expeods $500,000 or more in Fede¡al frnds (from all sources) in its 6scd year, the
Subgrantee shall bave a siaglc organization-wide audit coaducted in acco¡da¡ce vith the provisions of OMB
Circu¡a¡A-133. Copies of dl audits must be submitted to OEMwithin 30 days of completion. If the
Subgraotee expeods less th^r $5@,000 in its Escal year in Fedeml fuods, the Subgrantee is exempt fron
Federal audit reguireoeots for tbat year. Reco¡ds must be available fo¡ reviery or audit by appropùte officials
as provided in Section ILD.3 he¡ein.

5. Audit Costs. ¿{udit costs fo¡ audits oot required io acco¡daoce with OMB Circulâ¡,t-133 a¡e r¡nallovable. If
ùe Subgraoæe did oot expeod $500,000 or more in Fede¡al fr¡¡rds in its fiscal year, but cootracæd with a
ce¡tified public accountant to perforrr an audit, costs for performânce of tbat audit sball oot be charged to the
grant

E. P¡oo¡¡ernerrt Requi¡ernents (44 CFR Part 13.3Q.

1. The Subgraotee shall use its own proorrernent procedures aod regulatioos, provided tlat the procu¡emeot
confoms to applicable Fede¡al a¡d Sarc law fncludiogwithout lioitation g¡¡¡i chapærs 279A,2798,2799.

2. t{ll procureoeot transactions, whether negotiated or coopetitively bid a¡d without regard to dolla¡ value, sh^ll
be conducted i¡ ¿ mø¡ner tbat eacourages fair aod opeo coopetitioo to the oaximr¡n practical exænt possible.
AII solÈsor¡rce ltrosu¡enento in excese of $lfi)rffiO muot ¡eceive prioreritæn appronal from OEM iû
additioo to aoy other approrzls required by law applicable to tbe Subgmatee. Justification fo¡ sole-sor¡¡ce
ptocurerneot in excess of $1(X),(þ0 should include a description of the progtam aod what is being contracted
for, ao orplanatioa of why itis ûecessâry to cootr¿ct noncompetitiveþ time constr¿ints and any other pertineot
informatio¡. Inærageocy agreernents betweeo r¡nits of governrnent a¡e excluded Êom tåis provision.

3. The Subgrantee sh¿ll be ale¡t to organizational co,r¡flicts of interest or noo-coopetitive practices aaolg
conEacþrs that øy restrict o¡ eliminate comçletition or otherwise ¡estraio t¡ade. Coûtr¿ctors that develop or
draft speciEcations, requireoeots, staterneots of wod or Rcquests for Proposals (RFP) for a proposed
procu¡eûeot shall be exduded ftom bidding or submitting a proposd to corDpete for the awa¡d of such
procureoeot Any request for ereoptioo must be submitæd ia writing to OEM.

4. The Subgraotee âgtees ù"q to the exteût it uses conüactors or subcontrecto¡s, such recipieos shall use small,
minodty, womeo-owned or disadrnnaçd busioess corcern¡i ¿nd cont¡acto¡s or subcont¡acto¡s to the exteot
practicable.

F"

1. Propcrty/Equipment lvfanager¡rent and Reco¡ds Control. The Subgrantee agrees to cooplywitb all
¡equir€oeots set fo¡th in 44 CFR Pa¡t 13 for tle ective t¡acl¡.g aod arcnitoring of property/equipmeor
P¡ocedr¡¡es fe¡ nan¡ging property/eçipmeaq whetåer acquired in whole or io part with g¡aof funas, uotil
disposition ckes place, wi[ at a úiñiñrxrL meet the following rcquireneos:

Page 3 -Cþ ofPo¡da¡d

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 23 of 34

58



^- All_plope*y/eqrripmtnt pr:rchassd uod6¡ rhis agreemeog whether by the Subgøoæe or a zubcontractor,
will be ¡eco¡ded a¡d oaintained in the Subgrantee's propefty/equipmeot inventory sysrerr.

b. The Subgraotee shall mainain poperty/equipment ¡ecords tlati¡clude: ¿ dss-¡Frioa of the
FoPelty/eSuiPmeoÇ tlte mroufactr¡¡e/s sedd oumber, model nu.ober, or othe¡ ideotificatioo-oumbeq the

the Catalog
the cost of of
use and condition of the propefiy/equipneng and any

ultimate disposition daa includiqg tle date of disposal and sale price of the propettyfequipment

c. A physical inventory of the property/equipmeot Eust be ukeo aod the ¡esulæ ¡econciled with the
plopefty/equipoeot records, at least once every two yea¡s.

d. A control system Eust be developed to ensu¡e adequate safcguatds to prevent loss, daoage, or tàeft of the
p¡operty/equipoeût Aoy loss, daûâge, or theft shall be investþted.

e. Adequarc oainteoaoce procedures must be developed to keep the plopecy/equipment in good condition.

f. If the Subgrantee is authorized to sell the propety/equipment, ploper sâles plocedrres must be
established to eos¡¡e the hþþest possible ¡etr¡¡n

g. Subgøotee agrces to comply with 44 CFR Pa¡t 13.32e whea oig¡'^l or rcplacemeot equipment acquired
r:oder a gtant or subgraotis no longec oeeded for the original ploiect otprogmn or fo¡ othe¡ activities
cuready or previor:sly supported by a Federal agency.

h. The Subgmoæe âgtees tbat, wheo ptacticable, any Foperty/equipûÊot purchased with grant ñrnding sball
be promiaeotly r¡a¡ked as follows: '?u¡chased with frrnds provided by the U.S. Department of Homele¡rd
Secudty''.

i' The Subgmotee ehall pass on property/equiprnent management requi¡esreots tåat meet or erceed the
requLemeos oudi¡ed above for all subcontractors, consultarrts, and the zubgantees who receive ¡rass-
tbrough frrnding from this Agteement.

2. Retention of P¡ope¡ty/F¡uipment Reco¡ds. Reco¡ds for pmperty/eçþmeot sball be reained for a pedod of
six years ftom the date of the disposition or replacemeot or'transfer at the disc¡etion of OEM Tide to dl
p¡operty/equÞmeot aod nrpplies purchased wiù ñ¡nds oade aøilable r¡ader the U¡ba¡ ¡l¡ea Seorrity
Ioitiative Gøot Plogram shall vest in tle Subgrantee ageocy tbat purcbased the property/equipoeot, if it
prcvides rvritteo ce¡tiEc¿tion to OEM tbat it v¡ill use the property/equipmcot for pr¡rposes coosisteot vith the
Urbao .A¡ea &curity Initiative Grant Prograo.

G. Eundingr

l. Matching Funds. This Grant does not require matching frmds.

' 2. Allor¡¡able Costs. The Subgrantee egnees that all dlocatio¡s and r¡se of fr¡ods uodet this Agreeoeot will be in
¿ccordaoce with the Fiscal Yea¡ 2012 Homeland Secruity Grarrt Prograo a¡d FOrt.

3. Supplanting. Ttre Subgraotee ce¡ti6es tbet fede¡al ñ¡nds will not be used to zupplant sate or local ñrnds, but
will be used to increase the amount of fuods thag in the abseoce of fedccal aid, would be oade available to the
Subgraatee to fund programs coosistent rpith U¡ban rl¡ea Secutity Initiative Graat Program guidelioes.

H. Reports. Faih¡¡e of the Subgrantee to submit the required program, financial, or audit repo¡6, or to ¡esoþe
prograo, finaacial o¡ audit iesueo nay reeult in the euspension of grant payments, or tetmination of this

orboth.

1. Perfomnnce Rqn'ts.

The Subgaotee agrees to suboit reports in a form accqrable to OEM on reporting on its progess in meeting
is agreed upoû st¡ategjc goals and objectives. The narrative repo¡ts will add¡ess speciñc ioformation rcgardiog
the activities ca¡ried out unde¡ the FY 2012 Urban A¡ea Seouity Initiative Grant Program aad how they
add¡ess identiEed p¡oicr¿¡ped6csuatçcic.gods-aodrbiecdcÊs.

Page4-CityofPortl¡¡d

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 24 of 34

59



Pedo-a¡ce reltorts a¡e due to OEM on the last day of each calenda¡ ye,¡r quarter.

.{ry Pedotmance Report that is sutorawling for mo¡e than one mouth past the due date may cause
the suspensio¡ 6¡ temin¡¡ion of the grant. The Subgraoæe oust ¡eceive pdor wtitteo app¡oval Êom OEM
to exteod a perfo*roce report requi¡eûent pastits due date.

2. Bi^onual .Snateg¡ Im¡lementatioq Relort.

The Subgraotee egrees to provide æpors to OEM in a foro accçable to OEM to eoable OEM to neet its
obþtion to provide to FEMA the Bianoual Stategy tmpleoeotatioo Rcport (BSIR) to show pr,ogress made
towa¡d meeti.g sF¿tegic goals aod obiectives. BSIR completion is due tveûty-one days after the eod of each

' BSIR reportiog period,July 21 for tàe reportiog periodJanr:ary 1 thrcughJuoe 30; andJanuary 20 for tüe
reporting pe¡iod ofJuly 1 tbrough Deceober 31.

3. Financial Reimbr¡¡sementReports.

â- Io order to ¡eceive ¡eimbu¡senent, the Subgantee âgrees to subrnit a qigned Request for Reimbr¡¡seoent
(RER), u"i'g a foro provided þ OEM tbat iodudes su¡ryorting docr¡meotation for all gtaot
er<pêDditures. RFRs may be subroitæd nonthly but no less Ëequeotly thqn qua¡te¡ly duriog the teto of
tlis Agreeocot d¡ ¿ minimrrm, RFRo mu6t be e¡¡bmítted ao l,oter rha¡ one month following the end
of each calenda¡ year quarter, and ¿ fin¡l f,fft muet be subnitted uo l¿ter than one nonth
following the ead of the graot period.

b. Reiobr¡¡seoeots for erpeoses will be withhetd if performaoce reports âre oot submitted by the specified
dates or are incompleæ.

c. Reimbr¡¡semeot¡ates for travel egenses sh^ll not exceed those dlowed by the Sate of Oreggn- Rcguests

for ¡eimbr¡¡seoer¡t fo¡ t¡avel mrlst be supported with a detailed stateoeot ideotifring the persoo who
taveled, the purpose of tÏe travet ùe dates, times, aod places of uavel and the actual ex¡rcoses or
autho¡Þed ¡ates incr¡¡¡ed.

d. Reimbr¡¡seoeots will only be made for actul expenses incr¡¡red dudog the grantperiod. The Subgraotee

agrees tbat no $aût fi¡lds may be used for erpensee inc¡¡¡¡ed bdore April t 20til or aftet May 3t
2ß14.

e. The Subgrantee shall be eccorntable for and shall repay to OEM any ovÊrpaymeog audit disallowa¡ces or
aay otàer breach of gønt that results in a debt owed to the Federal Goveromcnt. OEM sball apply

interesg peoalties, and adoinistrative cose to a delinquent debt owcd þ a debtor pursr:ant to ùe Fede¡al

Claios Collectioo Saada¡ds and OlvfB CircularA-129.

4. Audit Repors. The Subgrantee sball provide OEM copies of dl audit reporb perteioiûg to this .A,greeoent

obaioed by the Subgmntee, wbethec or ûot the audit is rcquired by OMB Circr¡ler A-133 (Seaioo IIÐ.+5).

L Centribution: Subcontracor Indemnity and Insr¡¡ance.

1. Ifaoy tàird party oakes any claim o¡ b'i.S aoy actioo, suit or proceediog ellegiog a tort âs nov ot hereaftet
defioed io ORS 30.260 ('Third Party Claim") against a pafiy (the "Notified Party') wittr respect to r¡¡hich the
other party ('Other Party") may have liability, the Notified Pa¡ry must prooptly ooti& tle Ottre¡ Pa¡ty io
wdtiog of tbe Tbird Party Claim and deliver to tle Othe¡ Party a copy of the claino, process, aod dl legal
pleadiogs with respect to the Tbi¡d Pa¡ty Claim. Either garty is eotided to parricþaæ io tbe dcfeose of a Thi¡d
Party Clair¡ and o defend a Thi¡d Party Clafuowith couasel of its owa choosiog. Receþt by the Otl¡e¡ Pany
of the notice aod copies required in this gamgraph and meaniqgñ:l opportuaity for the Othe¡ Party to
participaæ in the investþtioo, defeose aod setdement of ùe Thi¡d Pa¡tÍ ChiE with cor¡¡sel of its own
choosiog are conditio¡s precedent m the Othe¡ Part/s lrability witfr respect to the Tbi¡d Pany Claim"

Wirh respect to ¿ Thi¡d Pa¡ty Claim for which OEM is ioiatly lJable wíth the G¡aotee (or would be if ioined in
the Third Pa¡ty Clâio), QBld shall se¡tribuæ to the a.oouot of ex¡renses fncluding attorneys' fees),
judgoeoæ, Soes a¡d aoounts paid in setdeoeot actually and reasooably i¡cr¡¡red a¡d paid or payable by the
Gtanæe in such proportion as is appropriaæ to ¡eflect tùe ¡elative fault of OEM on tbe ooe ba¡d a¡d of the
G¡antee on the othe¡ band in coonection rpith the eveots which ¡esr¡lted in such expeoses, judgmeots,6oes or
settleoeota.mounts, as well as any other relevaat equitable cooside¡atioos. The ¡elative fauhof OEM on the
oae baod aod of the G¡antee on the other ha¡¡d shall be determioed by refereoce to, arnoog other rhings, the

Page5-CityofPordand

2.

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 25 of 34

60



parties' relative ioteog knowledge, access to info*^tion and opporooity to cotlect or preveût täe
circusstances resultiog in such enpenscs, judgments, 6¡¡es o¡ settlesrent amou¡ts. OEMs concibutioo zunount
io any instaace is capped to the same qrtent it would have beeo capped under Olegon I¿r¡¡ if OEM bad sole
liability in the proceediog.

Witl respect to a Third Pa¡ty Chirn fe¡s'¡¡.5 tl¡e G¡aotee is jointly liable with OEM (or would be if joined in
the Thi¡il Paay Ql¡irn), 1þs G¡antee shall cootibute to the asror¡nt of eryeoses (toduding anomeys' fees),

iudgncnts, fi¡es and amor¡ns paid in setderneot achrdly aad reasooably inortted aod paid or payable by OEM
in such proportioo as is appropriate to ¡eflect the ¡elative f¿ult of the Cr¡eatee oo tbe one baad a¡¡d of OEM
on the othe¡ band io connection with the eveos which ¡ezufted in zuú expeoses, judgments, fioes or
setdeoent a.oouts, as well as any other releraot eEriable considetatioos. The ¡elative år¡lt of the Grantee oo
tbe one hand aod of OEM oa the othe¡ hand sball be d¿temin¿d þ refeleoce to, a.ooqg othet tùings, the
Pa¡ties relative intent, knowledge, access to informatioo a¡d opportunity to cornect or prereat the
ci¡curnsta¡ces resulting io such expenses, judgments, fines or setdeoeot amourits, The Gtanæet contdbution
âmiur¡t ir¡ âûy instance is capped to the saoe extent it would bave beeo capped uodet Otqon law if it bad sole
liability io the proceediog.

Subgaotee shall take all reasonable steps to cause its contr¿cto!(s) or subcontractor(s) tbat are oot units oflocal
goTerooent as de6ned in ORS 190.003, if aoy, to indem.it, defend, save ¿¡d [std hamless OEM a¡rd its
of6ces, eoployees T{ "g""tt 

(lndemnitee') Éom aod against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, do,¡rges,
losses,- or ex¡renses Qoduding attorneys' fee$ arisiog Êom a tort (as oow or he¡ea.fter de6ned in OR.S 3O2{O)
caused, or alleged to be cawd io whole or in parg þ the negligeot or willfr:l acts o¡ omissioos of G¡aotee's
coottâctor or aly of the of6ce¡s, ageûts, employees or subcooücto¡s of the cootracto¡( "Claios'). It is the
speciEc_inteotion ofrhe parties tbat the Indeoniæe shdl, in dl iosønces, ercqrt for Cl^Ì-" arising solely from
the neglþnt or willful acts or omissions of the Indemoitee, be indemniûed by the contractor Ëoá aod'against
any and âll Clâirns

5. Srrbgranæe sball reqqe its cootractor(s) or (subcontractor(s) to obtain iosu¡aoce in aoor¡ne required by
OEl4 tot to exceed OEtvfs limits of liability r¡nde¡ rhe Orcgoa füt C1^imc Acq aod sball provide ttat theSate AdditioJ losureds, but onlywith grane

l- Tìme is of the Essence. The Subgraatee agrees tbat ti^e is of the esseoce uoder this Agreeoeot

I( Goveçning [-a* Venue: Consent toJu¡isdiction. This r{grecoeot shøll þg gpvem.d by aod cooscr¡ed in
accotda¡rce with the l¿ws of the State of Oregon without regard to pdncþles of coofliåts of law. .tny clairq action,
zuig or ptoceediog (collectivel¡ 'Clâin'J bctween OEM (or any other agency ot department of the öøte of

brougþt rg i.5t the Stete of Oreggn ooly to the €xteût

ment, hereþ conse!ü¡ o the In Pe¡¡on¡n
lurfudiction of said courte, waivee any obiectiòn to venug and waiveo auy claim that eucü forum is an
incomrenient fon¡m.

L. Naûcci. Excçt as otherrise gqressly ptovided in this Section, aoy coootrnicatioos betçeeo the parties he¡ero o¡
notice toöe giveo hereunder shall be givea in vriting by pesonal delivery, facsimile, or *ili.g the saoe by
registered or ceaiñed øait posaç prepaid to the Subgnntee or OEM at the edd¡ess or nr¡ob.-e¡ set forh än paç 1
of this Agæeoeot' ot to such othe¡ add¡esses o¡ numbers as either party may hereafur indicete puñiuânt to this-
Section Aay cornmr:oication ot notice so add¡essed and seot by registered o¡ ce¡tified m-il .¡¿i Ue deeoed
delivered upoo receipt ot refirsd of receipt Any communication or notice delivered by åcsimile sball be deeoed to
F e* *¡n receþt of the p'cÍcsiæ is generated by 1f,s r¡^¡sñiÉing machine. A¡y cooounicatioo or notice
by personal delivery sball bedeemed to be givea wheo actually delivered"- The garties also may coomunicate þ
telephone, rqgular oail o¡ other means, but such comrur¡oicatioos sball not be ãeeoed Notices r¡ade¡ this Section
uoless receþt by the ottrer party is expressþ ackoowledged io vtiting by the receiving party.

3.

4.

Page 6 -Cþ ofPortland

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 26 of 34

61



lvl Suçcçssprs and Assigns. This i{greemeot shatl þ biodiog upoo and inu¡e to the beoeEt of OEM the Subgrantee,
aod tteir respective successors and assigns, except thât the Subgrantee oay aot assþ o¡ ro.sfer its ¡ighs o¡
oblþtions hereunder or any interest herein without the prior consent in writing of OEM.

N. Sure''val. All provisioos ef this ¡þsrñmt set fo¡th io the followiog sectioos shall sr¡rvive te¡minâtioo of rh;s
Agreeoeat Sectioa TI-D (r{dministntive Requiæarents, Retention and Access to Records, and Audits); Section ILE
(Procureoeot Requirements); Section ILF (Property/Equipmeot lvfaoageoent aod Reco¡ds Control, and Reæntion
of Recods); Sectioo tr.H (Reports); and Section II.I (Contribution; Subcootractor Iodeøoity and Insurance).

O. Seve¡abiliry. If any term or provision of tìis Agreeoeot is dedared by a court of coopeæot jurisdiction to be illegal
o¡ io cooflict witü my law, the validity of the remaining terrns and provisions sball not be affected, and the rþhe
aod obþtioos of the parties 5hall þ constn¡ed a¡d eoforced ¿5if thiq dg¡seoent did not contai¡ the particular
term orprovisioo held to be iovalid.

P. Relationship of Pa¡ties. The parties agree aod ackoowledge ¡f,¿¡ thpi¡ ¡sþ¡ioaship is that of indepeadent contracting
parties aod neither party hereto sball be deeoed ao agetrt, pa¡tner, joiat venturer or related entity of the other by
reason of ùis.tgreemenc

UI. Subgtaaæe Compliance and Certifications

À Debarmenr Suspension. Ineligibiliv and Volunarl Exclusion. The Subgrantee certifies by acceptiog fuods uode¡
this Agreßú€ût that ræither it nor its principals are preseotly debarred, suspeaded, proposed for deharrreng
declared ioelþible, nor voh:ntarily erduded Êom participation in this transaction by any Fedenl departmeot or
agedcf (.14 CFR Patt 13.35). The Subgrantee sball establish procedr¡¡es to provide fo¡ effective use and
diss€oioatiod of the Ercluded Pa¡ties List (htç://www.epls.govl) to âssure tbat Èrei¡ coot¡actors e¡e oot io
violation of the oonpsocu¡eclert debarneût and suspeosion cooooo n¡le.

B. Sanda¡d Assu¡ances and Certifications Rege¡ding t obbying. The Subgtaotee is required ø cooply with 44 CFR
Pan 18, Ncv Rrriøìdíor on Lobþìa¿. The restrictioos oo lobbyi4g are enfo¡ceable via lárge civil p€úâlties, vith civil
fioes betseeo S10,000 and $1ü),üÐ per expeoditrre. The Subgraotee uode¡sa¡ds aod agrees t.bat ao funds
provided under tùis Agreeoent nay be expended in support of the eoactoent, repcat modification or adoption of
aoy law, regulatioo ol policy, at any leæl of govemnent. These lobbyingprohibitions ca¡ be found at 31 USC S
7352.

C. Compliance with Applicable I¿w. The Subgraatee âgrees to compþ with all applicable laws, regulations, progre-ûr

guidaace, aod guidelioes of the State of Oregoo, the Fede¡al Goverooeotaad OEMin the performance of tl'is

furecoeot, induding but not limited to:

l. ¡tdoioistrative Requireoeots set forth in 44 CFRPa¡t 13.

2- CostPrinciples set forth iû 2CF\.Pet225 aod 48 CFR Fede¡alAcquisition Regulatioo (F,{R) Part 312.

3. ,tudit Requir,eocots set fo¡th in OMB Ci¡cr¡larA-133.

4. The provisions set forth ia ,14 CFR Pa¡t 7; Part 9; Part 10; a¡d Fede¡al laws or regulatioos applicable to Fede¡al
assistance p¡ograûs.

5. The F¡eedom of Ioformation Act (FOIÀ), 5. USC S 552 with cooside¡ation of State and local laws and
regulations regardiog the release of ioforutioo and regulatioos goveming Seositive Security Ioformatioo (49

CFR Part 1520).

6. A¡o¡¡d Term for TrafEcking io Pe¡sons set fo¡th i¡ 2 CFR Pa¡t 175.

7 " RÊqpireneûts for Dnrg-Free Vorkplace set fortbiÁ 2 CFRPa¡t 3001.

8. A¡ioal Welfa¡e Act of 1966,as aroended, 7 USC $ 2131 et seq.

"9. CleaoAi¡Actof7970,asameoded,42USCS7401-7671,^îdCleanWaterÂctof7977,asameaded,33USCS
l?s7.

10. P¡otection of Humao Subjects, set fortLin 45 CFR Pa¡t 46.

11. Natironal Flood Insr¡¡a¡¡ce ,{ct of 1968, as amended, 42 USC $ 4O13, pursruat to ægulatioos set forth in 44
CFRPa¡t 63.

12. Flood Disaster P¡otestion Act of 1973, as aoeadd 42 USC S 4002.

13. Coastal Ve¡l¿¡fl5 planning Protection, aod Rcsto¡ation ,tct of 1990, as amendd 16 USC S 3951, pu¡suar¡t to
regulatioos set forth i¡ 44 CER Pa¡t 9.

14. USA Patiot,{ct of 2001, as ameodd I USC S 1105, 1182, 1189.

Page 7 -City ofPortla¡d

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 27 of 34

62



D.
Limited English P¡oEcient fl,EP) Persons.

l. Nondisctimination and Civil Rights Compliance. The Subgantee, aod dlis contr¿ctors aod subcootactors,
ã;su¡es coopliance with all applicable qe¡fi5crimiq¿tion hwS, indudiog but aot lir¡iæd to:

^. Trde VI of the Civil Rþhts Act of 1964 as aneaded, and ¡elated ooadiscrimination regulations in,l4 CER
Pa¡7.

b. Tide \IItr of the Civil Rþhts A,ct of 1968, as amended.

c. Tides I, II, and III of the Anericaos rpith Disabilities ,{ct of '199Q as a.meoded, 42 USC SS 12101 -
t2t89.

d. Aç Discrimioatioa Âct of 1975, as amende{ 42 USC S 6101.

e. Tide D( of the Education Ameodsrenrs of 1972, as amended, 20 USC S 1ó81 et seq.

f. section 504 of the Rebabiliation Âct of 1973, as amende4 29 usc $ 79d as amended-

If, d"'i g the past three years, the Subgrantee has been accr¡sed of dis*id.^tion oo the grounds of race, color,
national ofrF. @cluding limited tñglish prcE"i*.y), sex, age, disability, ælþioo, or familial srafi¡s, tbe
Subgrantee must provide a list of all such procssdings, pending or completed, iadu.ling outcone aad copies of

ubg¡âutee, or the Subgtantee settles a case ot E¿ûter ,[¿d"g
such discrimination, Subgraotee mræt forsa¡d a copy of the cooplainiand findiogs to tt¡e OElvf.

2. Eqr¡d FmPlov'nent 9¡¡po¡tr¡n;tÍ Program. The Subgrantee, and aoy of its coot¡actors aod subcontractors,
certifies that an equal .-Flolmer¡t oppornroity program will be in iffect on o¡ before the effective daæ of this
Agreerncrrt The Subgrantes ûrus¡ ñ^inþin a curreot copy on file.

3. Se¡v'ces to Limited English Proficient fl-EP) 
pe¡sons. The Subgrantee, and any of its contr?ctols âûd

ots of Execr¡tive Order 13166, impovingAccess to
oficieocy, aad resultiog ageacy guidance, oational oriþ and

tesultiog agency guidance, Datioaal origio disc'i-i.atíon i¡cludes dis"i-i-"tion on the basis of t¡p. lo
eosue compliance with Title VI, Subgnotee Eust ta&e ¡easo¡able steps to eûsu¡c tb¿tLEP ¡xrsoas have
meaniogfi.rl access to you¡ pr Meaningful access may entail providiog laDguege assisåoce services,
includingoralands¡ritteotranslâtion,where necessâ SubgraoteeË eo"onraged-to ðoaside¡ the aeed fo¡
Ieo$¡aSF services-QllEl persons served o¡ eocor¡ate¡ed both in developiog budges aod in cooducri.g
PlogTTs aod activities. For assisance additiooal ioformation regatding-LEP obþtions, please see
htp:/fww.þ.gpv.

E. Environmental and Histotic Preservation.

1' The Subgraotee shall conply with all applicable Fede'at, State, and local enviroooental aod historic
presenation (E¡IP) requfuengots an{ sball povide aoy information requesæd by FElvfA to eosure coopliance
with applicable envi¡oameatal and histotic pre tion laws includ¡ng Lú oor liroited to:

^- National Environmeotal Policy Act of 1969, as amended,42 USC 4321, and ¡etated EEIvIA rqulations, 44
CFRPa¡t 10.

b. Natiood Historic Presetwation Acq 16 USC 470 et seq.
c. Endangeæd Species Act, 16 USC 1531 et seq.
d. Executive O¡de¡s on Floodplains (11988), Wetlaods (11990) and Envi¡onoenalJustice (1?398).

Fail¡¡e of the SlbEanteg to meet Fede¡al, State, and local EHP requilemenæ a¡d obai. applicable petmits
oay jeopardize Federal ftûding.

The Subgrantee ehall aot underake aly ploiect witåout ptio¡ EHP approval þ FEMâ, inchrdürg but
not linited to comnrmicationa towe$, pþsicat eecruity enhancemente, Eew co[atn¡ction, and
modificatio¡c to buildinger otnrcûüea, and objecæ that a¡e 50 years old orgreater. The Subgtanæe must

to the approved
.If grcund

the Subgrantee d¡stensu¡eEooitodng of gror:od
disn¡rba¡ce and if any potential a¡cheological resoulces are discovered, the Subgtantee will irnmediately cease
coostn¡ctioû in that a¡ea and notify FEÀ,fi{, and the appropriate Sate Histodc P¡ese¡qation Office. Aay

P€eE-CityofPordand

2.

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 28 of 34

63



constuctioo activities tbat bave been initiated wiùout the necessary EHP review and approval will result in a
non<ompliaace finding and will not be elþible fo¡ FEMA fr¡ndi.g

3- Fot aoy of the Subgranæe's or its contracto¡s' o¡ subcoqtractors' existiqg prograús or activities that will be
fuoded by these grant ñrods, the Subgraotee, upoa specific rcquest froo the U.S. DHS, agrees to cooperâre
with the U.S. DHS in any preparation by the U.S. DHS of a national or progtam environmental assessmerit of
tbet fi¡oded progtao or activity.

F. Drug Ftee VodcFlace Rcquirernents (2 CFR Part 3001). The Subgrantee €rees to comply with the requireoents of
the Drug-Free Wodglace,{ct of 1988, as amended" (41 USC $ 701 et seq), which requires that all o¡ganizations
receiving grants (or zubgranæ) ftom aay Federal ageocy agree to g¡¡i¡t-i¡ 2 dn¡g-ftee worþlace. The Subgrantee
must aoti& this office if an e-Floyee of the Subgraotee is convicted of violating a cdminâl dn:g satute. Faihl¡e to
comply with these reçiremeos fr¡ey be car¡se for deba¡sren¿

G. Classified National Secr¡dty lnfonnation. No ñrndiag uode¡ this Agreemeot sball be used to support â contract,
zubgraat or other âgreemeût fot gpods o¡ se¡vices úatwill indude access to classified oational secr¡¡ity info*tion
if the ¿wa¡d ¡ecipient bas not been epploved for and bas access to such information. Cl¿ssiÊed natioaal secruity
i¡fo¡mation as defined in Executive Order (EO) 12958, as aoeaded, means i¡fo¡æation ttrat has beeo dete¡rained
pursuart to EO 1æ58 or any predecesso¡ order to require protection agaiost uoautho¡ized disdosr¡¡e a¡d is oa¡ted
to indicate its dassified satr¡s when in documenøry fo¡rn- See awa¡d ¡otification,

H. Human Trafficking (2 CFR Part 17Ð. The Subgrantee, eoployees, contractors aod subrecipients unde¡ rhis

Agreeoeot and theirrespective employees anay not:

1. Eogaç io seve¡e fors¡s of trafficking in perr¡ons druiog the period of the time the awa¡d is in effecq,

2. Procu¡e a oonmerciâl sa act duriog the period of time the awa¡d is io effecq, or
3. Use forced labor in the perfotruoce of the subgrant ot subgrants uade¡ the awa¡d.

The Subgrantee mì¡st iofon OEM irnmediately of any inforrnatioo the Subgraatee ¡eceives from aoy sor.uce

¿llegi.g a violatioa of aoy of the above prohibitioos in this ava¡d te¡rn OElvfs dght to æ¡oinaæ this fureeoeat
uoilaterall¡, without peoalty, is io additiooal to all othe¡ reoedies uoder tbis Ageemeoc The Subgraotee aust
ioclude these rcguiæoents iû aty subgrant made to public or private eotities.

F]y,{medca Act of 1974. The Subgra*ce agrees to comply with the requiremeots of the Preference for U.S. Flag

Ai¡ Ca¡rie¡s: Travel zupporæd by U.S. Govemoent fi.r¡ds requireoeoq which states prefereoce for the use of U.S'

flag eL ca¡de6 (air cârders holdiog certificates r¡ndet 49 USC S 41102) for intematiooal air traasporation ofpeople
a"d propecy to the crteot tlat such se¡vice is available, in acco¡daoce with the [¡tema¡i66¡l rti¡ Traosportatioo

Fair Competitive P¡actices ,lct of 1974, as amended (49 USC S 40118) asd the interpreative guideliaes issued by
the Cooptroller Geoe¡al of the United Sates in the lvfa¡ch 31, 1981, amendrnent to the Comptroller Geoe¡al

Decision 8138942.

Activities Conducæd Abroad. The Subgøntee agrees to comply with rhe requiremeots that proiect activities ca¡¡ied

oo outside ùe Unitcd Sates a¡e coo¡dioated as necessa¡ywith appropiate governmeot autho¡ities a¡d tbat
appropriate licenses, perrnits, or approvals a¡e obtained.

IC Acknowledgernent of Fcderal Funding ftom DHS. The Subgranæe âgrees to compþ with reguireraents to
acknowledge Fede¡al funding wheo iszuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid invitatioos, and

othe¡ docuoents describing proiecs or prograrns funded in whole or in part with Federal ñ¡nds.

L CopFigbt (,+a CFR Part 133a). The Subgrantee âgßees to cooply with requiremeots tbat publicatioos or otbe¡
exercise of copyright for any work first produced r¡nde¡ Fede¡al F-^'cial assista¡rce awa¡ds hereto ¡elated uoless the
çork indudes any infomation that is otherwise cootrolled by the Govemæent (e.R, "lossified info¡øation or other
informatirco subieæ to oatioaal secudty or erlrort control laws or regulations). For aoy scieotific, tecbnical or othe¡
copyrþht wotk based oo or coaaioiog daa 6rst produced under this Ageerneog including those wo¡ks published
io academic, tecboiczl or professiooal joumals, sym,¡losia proceedings, or sisrila¡ worts, the Subgraotee gmots tbe
Gove¡ameot a royalty-Êee, ooaexclusive and i¡¡evocable lice¡se to rqrroduce, dþlan distibute copies, perfo-,
di5geminate, or prqre¡e de¡ivative rrorks, and to authorize othe¡s to do so, for Government purposes in all such

cop¡þhted works. The Subgraotee shdl afEx the applicable copyrþht notices of 17 USC S 401 or 402 aod an
acknowledgeoent of Govemment sponsorship (nduding Subgrant numbet) to aoy wotk 6rst produced unde¡ ao
awa¡d.

lvf" Use of DHS Sed, T -go and Flags. Subgrantee agre€s to 6þ¡ain þH$'5 approval prior to using tlre DIIS seal(s),

logps, cests or rqroductions of f,"gq o¡ likcr¡esses of DHS agency officials, including use of the Uoited States

Coast Guard sd lqgo, crests oÍ repÍoductions of f,ags or li.kenesses of Coast Gua¡d of6cials.

I.

J.

Page 9 -City ofPordand

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 29 of 34

64



w. Suspension or Tetmination of Fundirg

OEtrvf rnay suspead fundiog in whole or in parg terminate ñ¡ndine or impose aoother saoctioo on an Urba¡ .¡l¡ea
Seauity Ioitiative Graat Program recipieot fot any of the following ¡easons:

A. FaiL¡¡e to comply subsøntially with the sanror¡ a¡d administrative requircmeats or obiectives of ùe Urbao A¡ea
Seouity Initiative Gmnt Progtarn, wiù tle Prog¡ao guidelioes, orwith othe¡ applicable fede¡al or state lews and
regulatioos,

B. Faih¡e to oake satisfactory plogress tova¡d the goals and objectives set fo¡th in the approved InvestEoeot
Justificatioos.

C. Failure to adhe¡e to the requireoeots 6f this Agseûrsnt eûd stâ¡da¡d or special conditioos.

D. Propo.ir¡g or implementing substaatial plan d¡eûges to the exteot that, if originally suboitæ4 would oot have beea
fi¡nded-

E. Before imposiog saactioos, OEM will provide ¡easooable notice to the Subgaotee of is intent to irrrFose sanctioos
andwill atteopt to resolve the plobleminformally.

V. Jsrmín¿tienofAgfeement
A. OEM may unilaterally termiøte dl or part of this Âg¡ees¡ent or rnay reduce is scope of work if the¡e is

7- Â reducion in federal funds vhich a¡e the basis for this Agreemenr

2. A rnaterial misrepteseûtatiorl e¡ror, or ioaccnracy in Subgtantee's application

3. Â cbaoge, oodiÊcation or inte¡preation of Stae or Fe OEM
of autìority to ptovide grant funds fot the ptograo or

4. ,t failure by oEM ¡e eþr-in sufficieot fuodio& app or other expenditure
authrcdty to allow oElvf, in tùe exercise of ib ¡easo meetits parftenr
obþtions under this Ageemenr

B. OEM oay teroioate this ÂgreemenÇ -
OEM may esablish in zuch ooticg if S

obþtion or certification under this Agreemenl In its
tbe brcach, defeuh or faih¡¡e in zuch time and on such terms as OEM oay specit in such ootice.

Page l0-City ofPordand

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 30 of 34

65



VI. Subgtantee Reptesentatíons and \9ananties

The SubgranæeæpescaS aadwârraots to Of¡nf'." follonrs:

lL Exisæncc end Powcr. The Subgaoæe is a political zubdivisioo of tbe Statc of Oægon. The Subgraotec bes fttl
power aad auùority b t¡a¡sact tàe br¡sioess io vhich it is eogaged aod full powcq authoriç aod þd riglt to
cxecttcaad dcliærøisrfgecocûtand incr¡¡aodperformis oblþtions heteuode¡.

B. Äuthotiq. No Contravention. '¡¡s *Lì-b a¡d perforoaoec by Êre Suþraatcc of ùß furccoeot.(a) bave beea
duly authorizcd þ dl oecessary actioo of thc Subgnoæg þ) do aot aod will aot violae aoy ptovisioo of aoy
applicable lav, dc, or regulation or oliler of eny court, rqulaæry coomissioo, boa¡d 6¡ 6¡S6¡ ¿dmi¡ict-¡tive
egcûcy otaûf provisioo of t[e Suþraatce's artidcs of iocoqporatioo ot bybws ard (c) do aotaod willoot æsr¡ltin
tbe breach oT or coostih¡tc a deåult orreçire a¡f cooseot r¡ode¡ aay other agecocot otinstn¡EÊrrt owhich the
Suþnoæc ls a party or by wbicb tåc Subgraotcc or ary of iæ pr,opc¡tics a¡e bor¡nd o¡ afrected.

C. BindiqgObligation ThisÂgecoeothasb€ãdulyauthorized,exeortedaadde.livcredonbehalfoftheSubgaotec
¡od coostin*es the þal walid, and bindiog oblþtioa of the Suþantcc, eofo¡ceable in acco¡daoce çitb its teos.

D. .Approy¿ls" No authorizatioa, coos€ot, liceosE appoval o[, 6liqg or regist¡atioo witb, ot notiEcatioo b, eI
gt errrocotatbodyorrqulatoryorsupervisoryauùorityisrequiredfo¡rtee¡ccr¡tioo,delivctyotperfooanceþ
the Subgnoæc of this Agreeoeoc

Pauliu Leyton, Mtþtion and Recovery Section DLecto¡
Orqon Mlinary Dçartmeot
Offce of F--e¡gr-cy tøoageocot
POBox14370
Sleo, OR97309-5062

Signât¡¡e of .¡tutho¡ized

ufl
Name/Trtle

APPRO\IED AS TO FOR.M

cmY

.Approved for Lcgal Sufrciengr:

ByIGith L Kutlerbye-matr lvfa¡ch 28. 2013
r{ssistantÂttoracy Geoctat Date

Page ll -CþofPo¡üa¡d

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 31 of 34

66



T

ll Åv
Dt ¡-, ¡ 20i3

E
J

Ðr,''c^- F¡-:^:- r -.-:' ; :,r:r-.,---n-,.i

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 32 of 34

67



2.

3.

ORDINANCENO. 1.85990
tAccept and appropriate a grant in the amoudt of $2,049,396 from the Department of Homeland
Securiqt, FY 2012 Urban Areas Security lnítiative Grant Program for the purpose of enhancing
emergency preparedness through planning, haining and equipping emergenoy responders.
(Ordinance)

The City of Portland ordains:

Seotion l. The Council Finds:

The Department of Homeland Seourity provides financial assistance to selected urban
areas through the FY 2012 Urban Arcas Security Initiative (UASI). The City of Portland,
in cooperation with regional partners (triMeg Port of Portland, Multnomah, Clackamas,
Washinglon and Columbia Counties of Oregon and Clark County, Washington) applied
for financial assistance to address the unique equipment, training, planning, exercise and
operational needs oflarge u¡ban areas.

The Department ofHomeland Security has designated Portland, Oregon as the co¡e urban
area in the State of Oregon. The City of Portland will be elÍgible for a portion of the
$2,049,396 available to our regional metropolitan area

Funds provided under the UASI Grant Program will be granted directly to the States with
no less than 807o of the total award going to selected urban areas. Funds will be used and
dedicated for equipment, training, planning and exeroises. The Portland Urban Area has
completed a regional sbategy to guide the use of federal homeland security grant firnds.
The City of Portland Bureau of Emergency Management (PBEM) will administer the
Grant for the region.

4. There arre no financial match requirements for this Grant.

NOW THEREFORE, the Council Directs:

The Mayor and Portland Bureau of Emergency Management are authorized to accept the
grant from the Deparbnent of Homeland Security. in the amount of $4049,396.

The Mayor is authorized to provide such information and assurances as are required for
the grant period.

The FY 20nn0ß budget is hereby amended as follows:

GRANTS FI'ND
Fund -217
Business Area - EM00
Bureau Program Expenses - $500,000

a.

b.

o.

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 33 of 34

68



I

I .-i :{
.-t ,l ,,+tll

185e90

()#ü ij6r
Office;Tsd- theO.lvfF GlsnF suiF¡brfz¡dï6 admin f SuatiV.e rûåtters ii¡ relatibn to

.reque$s.. f,or æ!.r.q bu rEgnre¡t. from
dÇp. smpn-ts olr.tb g Mafor.ts: behaü!.,

,.' i 3i ( r,, ä;1.r 1 ; ir , 'i: I

e. fhçDirei¡ttidöi,p3elrf:is:qurhorlæd;, tU.iræept tin beh¡dlf ofr.tb:e' of:P.ordland,

Ses.¡¡rlú

ti,y Gty

,,.8Y

Fòitlànö's
'1.. . I

IvfayoiGharlte HdlÉß
Prepared by¡ Valeutìæ Hellmau
D" ¡!ç Prep.sr-d! 4ß!W1L !i..r.ì s, j-t:,rì

,' 11 ' , ..t.ri :

I .r ¡.: ¡.'. i

" . ìi.¡ É! ¡

-\ :.

1

.,i

.J

Resolution 2013-050, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 34 of 34

69



Resolution 2013-051, Staff Report 
September 3, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

City Council Meeting Date: September 3, 2013 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
 

TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Jeff Groth, Police Chief 
Through: Joseph Gall, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution 2013-051 authorizing the City Manager to sign an 

Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Washington County Health 
and Human Services for the purposes of supporting the Sherwood 
Youth Substance Abuse Team (YSAT) 

 
 
Issue:  
Should the City Council authorize the City Manager to sign an intergovernmental 
agreement (IGA) with Washington County Health & Human Services, enabling the 
Sherwood Youth Substance Abuse Team to receive assistance in addressing drug and 
alcohol use by youth and young adults in Sherwood?  
 
Background:  
On March 5, 2013, City Council held a Work Session regarding the Sherwood Youth 
Substance Abuse Team (YSAT). The Sherwood YSAT continues to work to address the 
problem of youth substance abuse in Sherwood. Additionally, the Sherwood Police have 
been active in enforcing the laws dealing with the possession of alcohol by minors and 
furnishing alcohol to minors.  
 
Recently, and in support of both efforts, the Sherwood Police Department has partnered 
with Washington County Health & Human Services, and has the opportunity to enter into 
an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) that will help build local capacity to address both 
issues. 
 
The IGA will provide assistance and financial support to: 

 Establish a drug and alcohol free coalition 
 Complete a community needs assessment 
 Develop a strategic plan 
 Promote the use of environmental strategies to decrease drug and alcohol use by 

youth and young adults residing in Sherwood 
 
Financials:  
There is no cost associated with this resolution. The IGA will provide for the reimbursement of 
funds in support of current efforts. 
 
Recommendation:   
City Staff respectfully recommends that City Council approve this resolution authorizing 
signature of the IGA with Washington County Health & Human Services in support of YSAT. 

70



 DRAFT 

Resolution 2013-051 
September 3, 2013 
Page 1 of 1, with Exhibit A (5 pgs) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-051 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) WITH WASHINGTON COUNTY HEALTH 
AND HUMAN SERVICES FOR THE PURPOSES OF SUPPORTING THE SHERWOOD 

YOUTH SUBSTANCE ABUSE TEAM (YSAT) 
 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing body of the City of Sherwood, Oregon, having been 
presented with information about the opportunity to partner with Washington County Health 
and Human Services in support of the Sherwood Youth Substance Abuse Team; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Sherwood City Council hereby resolves that the intergovernmental agreement 
(IGA) with Washington County Health and Human Services meets the public safety needs of 
the citizens of the City of Sherwood and authorizes the City Manager to sign the 
Intergovernmental Agreement with Washington County Health and Human Services for the 
purposes of supporting the Sherwood Youth Substance Abuse Team (YSAT). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.   The City Manager is authorized to sign the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) 

with Washington County Health and Human Services, attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage by the Council and 

signature by the Mayor. 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 3rd day of September 2013. 
 
 
             
       Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder 

71



PAGE 1 OF 2  -  INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  Rev. 4/14/10 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement is entered into, by and between Washington County, a political subdivision of the State of 

Oregon, and City of Sherwood. 

WHEREAS ORS 190.010 authorizes the parties to enter into this Agreement for the performance of any or 
all functions and activities that a party to the Agreement has authority to perform. 
 
Now, therefore, the parties agree as follows:  
 
1) The effective date is: 7/1/13, or upon final signature, whichever is later. 
 
 The expiration date is: 6/30/14; unless otherwise amended. 
 
2) The parties agree to the terms and conditions set forth in Attachment A, which is incorporated 

herein, and describes the responsibilities of the parties, including compensation, if any. 
 
3) Each party shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws; and rules and regulations on 

non-discrimination in employment because of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, 
marital status, age, medical condition or handicap. 

 
4) To the extent applicable, the provisions of ORS 279B.220 through ORS 279B.235 and ORS 

279C.500 through 279C.870 are incorporated by this reference as though fully set forth. 
 
5) Each party is an independent contractor with regard to each other party(s) and agrees that the 

performing party has no control over the work and the manner in which it is performed.  No party is 
an agent or employee of any other. 

 
6) No party or its employees is entitled to participate in a pension plan, insurance, bonus, or similar 

benefits provided by any other party. 
 
7) This Agreement may be terminated, with or without cause and at any time, by a party by providing 
       (30 if not otherwise marked) days written notice of intent to the other party(s). 
 
8) Modifications to this Agreement are valid only if made in writing and signed by all parties. 
 
9) Subject to the limitations of liability for public bodies set forth in the Oregon Tort Claims Act, ORS 

30.260 to 30.300, and the Oregon Constitution, each party agrees to hold harmless, defend, and 
indemnify each other, including its officers, agents, and employees, against all claims, demands, 
actions and suits (including all attorney fees and costs) arising from the indemnitor’s performance 
of this Agreement where the loss or claim is attributable to the negligent acts or omissions of that 
party. 

 
10) Each party shall give the other immediate written notice of any action or suit filed or any claim 

made against that party that may result in litigation in any way related to this Agreement. 

Resolution 2013-051, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 1 of 5

72



PAGE 2 OF 2  -  INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  Rev. 4/14/10 

11) Each party agrees to maintain insurance levels or self-insurance in accordance with ORS 30.282, 
for the duration of this Agreement at levels necessary to protect against public body liability as 
specified in ORS 30.269 through 30.274. 

 
12) Each party agrees to comply with all local, state and federal ordinances, statutes, laws and 

regulations that are applicable to the services provided under this Agreement. 
 
13) This Agreement is expressly subject to the debt limitation of Oregon Counties set forth in Article 

XI, Section 10 of the Oregon Constitution, and is contingent upon funds being appropriated 
therefore. 

 
14) This writing is intended both as the final expression of the Agreement between the parties with 

respect to the included terms and as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the 
Agreement. 

 
WHEREAS, all the aforementioned is hereby agreed upon by the parties and executed by the duly 
authorized signatures below. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Jurisdiction 
 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Signature      Date 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Printed Name      Title 
 
Address:  __________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
WASHINGTON COUNTY:   
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Signature      Date 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Printed Name      Title 
 
Address: 
 
155 N First Ave. 
Mail Stop # 6 
Hillsboro, OR  97124 
 

Resolution 2013-051, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 2 of 5

73



Shenruood Police Department
Washington County Strategic Prevention Framework State lncentive Grant (SPF SIG)
7t1t13

ATTACHMENT A PART I

Goal: To promote a safe and healthy community in Sherwood by reducing youth and
young adult drug and alcohol problems.

Objectives:
1. The Washington County Department of Health and Human Services, in partnership

with the Sherwood Police Department and the Youth Substance Abuse Team seeks
to build local capacity to address drug and alcohol use by youth and young adults
residing in Shen¡rood by:

EstablÍshing a drug and alcoholfree coalition. Sherwood Police Department will
increase community representation on the Youth Substance Abuse Team to
include diverse sectors of the community, such as Parents, Law enforcement,
Schools, Businesses, Media, Youth-serving organizations, Religious and
fraternal organizations, Civic and volunteer groups, Healthcare professionals,
and State, local, and tribal agencies with expertise in substance abuse.

o

a

a

Completing a community needs assessment. Sherwood Police Department will
provide and assist in gathering relevant data to inform this process, such as
youth and young adult arrest rates, juvenile referrals, substance use rates, youth
and community perceptions (some included in the Student Wellness and Oregon
Healthy Teens Surveys), and environmental factors.

Developing a strategic plan, which will include evidence-based environmental
strategies to address findings from community based needs assessment.

2.The Washington County Department of Health and Human Services, in partnership
with the Sherwood Police Department and Youth Substance Abuse Team seeks to
promote the use of environmental strategies to decrease drug and alcohol use by
youth and young adults residing in Sherwood by:

. Enhancing law enforcement strategies.

. lncreasing positive community norms and community awareness of criminal and
civil consequences related to drug and alcohol use.

o Providing information to law enforcement officers' on substance abuse
prevention strategies.

. Participating in the development and implementation of a county-wide approach
to collecting and reporting data regarding alcohol related criminal behavior
among the 18 to 25 year old population.

. Participating in the quarterly Countywide Dangerous Drinking Deterrence Council
to coordinate planning, implementation and evaluation of strategies to reduce
high risk drinking among young adults.

Resolution 2013-051, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 3 of 5

74



Outcomes.
. Additional representatives will be recruited to become active members on the

Youth Substance Abuse Team.
. The Youth Substance Abuse Team will complete the needs assessment by

December of 2013.
. The Youth Substance Abuse Team will identify and prioritize risk and protective

factors for the target population.
o The Youth Substance Abuse Team will identify 3 effective strategies (aligned

with risk and protective factor priorities) for reducing high risk drinking and drug
use, with a focus on envíronmental strategies.

o The Sherwood Police Department will conduct a minimum of 3 minor decoy /
compliance check operations targeting all establishments in partnership with
Oregon Liquor Control Commission (each complíance check should be foltowed
with a press release).

o The Sherwood Police Department will participate in underage possession
(alcohol) and furnishing (minor and adult) enforcement operations, using portable
breathalyzers when appropriate; resulting in a 10% increase in Adult Minor in
Possession citations and a 10% increase in arrests for furnishing alcohol to a
minor.

. 600/o of Sherwood police officers exposed to relevant trainings and educational
materials will report an increase in knowledge regarding high-risk drinking
prevention, alcohol impairment and/or enforcement techniques.

. One to two Sherwood police officers will participate in the quarterly Countywide
Dangerous Drinking Deterrence Council, as the oversight body to the SPF SIG
project.

Reporting:
Contractor will meet quarterly with SPF SIG Coordinator and submit a Program
Summary and Financial reports that include cumulative data regarding progress
towards all goals, objectives and outcomes listed in Attachment A. (Approximatety
Septemberl3, December 13, March 14, and June 6). All reports should follow the
County format.

Resolution 2013-051, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 4 of 5

75



Sherwood Police Department
Washíngton County Strategic Prevention Framework State lncentive Grant (SPF SIG)
711t13

ATTACHMENT A PART II

During the 2013-14 fiscal year, Washington County will reímburse Contractor for true

and verifiable expenses up to four thousand dollars and no/cents ($4,000.00) for the

satisfactory delivery of services defined in the Strategic Prevention Framework State

lncentive Grant and described in Attachment A of this contract.

Contractor will submit an invoice to request reimbursement for true and verifiable
expenses of the previous month. In June 2014, at the time Contractor submits final
monitoring and fiscal reports, Contractor shall reimburse County any advanced funds
which were not expended.

Except where specific exceptions are defined in Attachment A, mandatory utilization,
performance, outcome and fiscal monitoring reports are due from Contractor by the 15th
of the months following the end of each quarter (October, January, AprÍ1, and July).
Following demonstration of satisfactory utilization, performance, and outcomes, County
will continue to reimburse monthly invoices. lf contractor is less than g0% utilized at
each fiscal quarter (full utilization is defined as 25o/o by September 30, 50o/o by
December 31,75o/o by March 31 , and 100o/o by June 30 unless defined otherwise in
Attachment A), the County reserves the right to modify payment of County funds to
reflect actual utilization levels. Similarly, the County reserves the right to modify or
terminate the contract if agency performance and/or outcomes are less than 85% of the
levels detailed in Attachment A.

Delay in receipt of complete monitoring reports or monthly reimbursement invoices will
result in a delay in the disbursement of contract funds and may result in a penalty up to
and including a 10 percent reduction in funds allocated in the next monthly check.

All contract payments are subject to the availab,ility of funds and will be paid subsequent
to County receipt of payments from the State Mental Health and Developmental
Disability Services Division.

$4,000

sPF-Stc 70601 5-704037 1

Resolution 2013-051, Exhibit A 
September 3, 2013, Page 5 of 5

76



 

Ordinance 2013-003, Staff Report 
September 3, 2013 
Page 1 of 2 

       Council Meeting Date: September 3, 2013 
 

        Agenda Item: Public Hearing  
TO:  Sherwood City Council 
 
FROM: Michelle Miller, AICP, Senior Planner 
THROUGH: Brad Kilby, AICP, Planning Manager, and Joseph Gall, City Manager   
   
SUBJECT:    Ordinance 2013-003 to Amend Section 16.12 Of The Zoning And 

Community Development Code Relating To Property Zoned Very Low 
Density Residential 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
This proposed ordinance will amend the Zoning and Development Code to change the minimum 
lot size and density requirements for properties zoned very low density residential, when 
developed as a planned unit development. 
 

Previous Council Actions:  
City Council held a public hearing on May 21, 2013, closed the record and began deliberations. 
They continued the hearing in order to review the testimony presented at the hearing. 
 
Background/Problem Discussion:   
The City of Sherwood received a land use application from a property owner within the VLDR 
zone proposing to amend the Development Code for all properties in the VLDR zone. The 
applicant proposed to allow an increase in density from two units per acre to four units per acre 
if developed as a Planned Unit Development (PUD). The applicant recently proposed to allow a 
minimum lot size for the PUD of 8,500 for single-family homes.  
 
The Sherwood Planning Commission held multiple hearings on the proposed amendments and 
received testimony from residents and property owners in the area. During deliberations, the 
Commission discussed the multiple issues concerning the challenges of developing the property 
within the VLDR zone and at the same time preserving the character of the existing and abutting 
neighborhoods. In the end, the Planning Commission found the 10,000 minimum lot size and 
four units per acre persuasive and recommended approval of the amendment reflecting these 
changes. 
 
At the hearing on May 21, 2013, the City Council heard testimony from property owners in the 
area concerning the text amendment, the SE Sherwood Master Plan, the environmental issues 
as well as the contaminated soil found on some of the properties under consideration for the 
text amendment.    Staff provided the attached memo that discusses those issues in detail.  Due 
to the time that has elapsed since the last hearing date, staff sent out additional notice to all 
owners of property within the VLDR zone on August 17, 2013. 
 
Alternatives:  
The City Council could adopt, amend or deny the proposed Ordinance 2013-003.  
 
 

77



 

Ordinance 2013-003, Staff Report 
September 3, 2013 
Page 2 of 2 

Financial Implications:  
N/A     
 
Recommendation:  
City staff respectfully recommends that the City Council adopt the attached Ordinance 2013-003 
which reflects the Sherwood Planning Commission’s recommendation.   
 
Attachment: 
Staff Memo dated August 23, 2013  

78



City of Sherwood 
22560 SW Pine St. 
Sherwood, OR 97140 
Tel 503-625-5522 
Fax 503-625-5524 
www.sherwoodoregon.gov 
 
Mayor 
Bill Middleton 
 
Council President 
Linda Henderson 
 
Councilors 
Dave Grant 
Linda Henderson 
Robyn Folsom 
Bill Butterfield 
Matt Langer 
Krisanna Clark 
 
 
City Manager  
Joseph Gall  ICMA-CM 

 
  
 
2009 Top Ten Selection 
 

 
  
 
2007 18th Best Place to 
Live 
 
 

 

 
Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge 

 

 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

  
  
  

 

DATE: August 23, 2013 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Michelle Miller, AICP, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT: Very Low Density Residential Text Amendment (PA 13-01)   
 
The Sherwood City Council held a public hearing on the text amendment on May 
21, 2013. At the hearing, the applicant, property owners and other interested 
citizens testified concerning the text amendment. Council then closed the record 
and began their deliberations. Due to the amount and complexity of testimony 
received, the Council decided to continue the hearing to consider and review the 
information in detail. Council has since received additional information in the 
form of emails concerning the text amendment, but the documents have not 
been added to the record. Council could decide to reopen the record and add 
this form of written testimony to the record. If Council decides to reopen the 
record at the upcoming hearing, it would then allow others an opportunity to 
provide additional testimony, and not only the emails received by Council since 
the last hearing.  
 
Since a few months have elapsed since the May 21, 2013 hearing, your packet 
contains some of the same information you originally received in May, written 
testimony received at the hearing and information you have received since the 
first hearing. In your September 3rd council packet, staff included the following 
information: 

 Staff Report and this memo dated August 23, 2013 
 Proposed Ordinance 13-03 
 Exhibit 1: Planning Commission Recommendation 
 Exhibit 1A- Recommended Code language 
 Exhibit 1B-Q, Attachments to the Planning Commission 

Recommendation 
 Written testimony referenced as Exhibit C-G received at the May 21, 

2013 hearing 
 Emails with attachments from John and Judy Carter and Kurt Kristensen, 

received on May 30, 2013 and August 9 and 26, 2013 
 

Ordinance 2013-003, Memo to Staff Report 
September 3, 2013, Page 1 of 5

79



 

  
  
  
 

To review, the Sherwood Planning Commission recommendation for the text amendment 
maintains the current minimum lot size at ten thousand square feet and allows four lots per 
net acre, if developed as a planned unit development in the very low-density residential 
(VLDR) zone.  If a developer elects to apply these new standards, there would be 
additional criteria to reflect elements from the Southeast Sherwood Master Plan in the 
design, location, and areas of open space within the proposed planned unit development 
(PUD).  The Planning Commission noted it was the best overall compromise of the 
differing viewpoints and used elements of the SE Sherwood Master Plan to achieve a 
greater housing density than the current PUD standards. It also compared favorably to the 
existing development of Sherwood View Estates PUD, located south of the developable 
properties, with the same minimum lot size as well as a similar density of 3.6 units per 
acre.  
 
At the hearing on May 21, 2013, the testimony focused on four main issues that will be 
addressed in this memo:  

 Minimum lot size 
 Maximum allowed density per acre 
 SE Sherwood Master Plan  
 Ken Foster Farm DEQ contaminated site area and environmental considerations 

 
Minimum Lot Size 
The City has five residential zoning districts that support ranges of densities varying from 
high-density (16.8-24 dwelling units per acre) to very low-density (0.7 – 1 dwelling unit per 
acre). The minimum lot size for a single family home is 5,000 square feet in all zones 
except two. The minimum lot size within the VLDR zone is 40,000 sq. ft. The minimum lot 
size for a single-family residence in the Low Density Residential (LDR) zone is 7,000 sq. ft. 
There is a special exception for PUDs in the VLDR that allows for lots that are 10,000 sq. 
ft. in size if developed as a PUD.  The City Council considers approval of each PUD 
subdivision after a recommendation by the Planning Commission. While the applicant 
proposed 8,500 square foot minimum lots when part of a PUD, the Commission 
recommended keeping the lot size at 10,000 square feet. 
 
At the May 21st City Council hearing, the applicant proposed that Council consider 8,500 
square foot minimum lot size instead of 10,000 sq. ft. because the larger lots would not 
achieve the maximum density due to environmental constraints, constructing the roads, 
and  adding 15% of the site for open space that is required for PUDs. According to the 
applicant and other interested property owners, the expense of constructing the required 
infrastructure for 10,000 sq. ft. lots would make residential development financially 
infeasible, unless the lot size could be reduced to a minimum size 8,500 square feet. 
 
Maximum Density per acre 
Each zoning designation has a range of density that the proposed subdivision must fall in 
between in order to be compliant with the current development code. The area east of SW 

Ordinance 2013-003, Memo to Staff Report 
September 3, 2013, Page 2 of 5

80



 

  
  
  
 

Murdock Road is zoned VLDR. The VLDR zoning district provides for low density, larger lot 
single-family housing with a density of 0.7 to 1 dwelling unit per acre. If developed through 
the PUD process, and if all floodplain, wetlands, and other natural resource areas are 
dedicated or remain in common open space, the permitted density of 1.4 to two (2) 
dwelling units per acre may be allowed. 
 
The applicant agreed with the four dwelling units per net buildable acre.  The Planning 
Commission recommendation allows an additional density allowance of up to four dwelling 
units per net buildable acre, if the PUD proposal meets some additional criteria that 
support the SE Sherwood Master Plan.  
 
SE Sherwood Master Plan 
The SE Sherwood Master Plan was a grant-funded planning effort that brought together 
developers, property owners and residents within the area west of SW Murdock Road to 
develop a master plan for the eastern area of Sherwood. The recommended master plan 
was a hybrid of several alternatives that were developed through well-attended open 
house workshops. Through the planning phase, the developers emphasized the need for 
providing sufficient density to pay for the necessary infrastructure while the citizens 
emphasized a preference for larger lots to preserve the wildlife habitat. This resulted in the 
development of a hybrid plan that provided for a mix of lot sizes that would allow smaller 
lots in portions of the plan area while ensuring lots were 15,000 square feet in size abutting 
the southern portion of the site. The gross density, under the preferred option would be 2.2 
units per gross acre or a net density of 4.43 units per net acre. Sherwood’s Code defines a 
net buildable acre as, “an area measuring 43,560 square feet after excluding present and 
future rights-of-way, environmentally constrained areas, public parks and other public 
uses. When environmentally sensitive areas also exist on a property and said property is 
within the Metro urban growth boundary on or before January 1, 2002, these areas may 
also be removed from the net buildable area provided the sensitive areas are clearly 
delineated in accordance with this Code and the environmentally sensitive areas are 
protected via tract or restricted easement.” 
 
City Council never adopted the SE Sherwood Master Plan but the Planning Commission 
recognized the effort and indicated that developers should be encouraged to use the plan 
as a guide for future development proposals. The Planning Commission recognized that 
the area and residents have changed over time, but the land remained undeveloped. Since 
City Council did not formally recognize the Master Plan, there was no clear direction as to 
what or how the community wanted to plan for that area in the future. The Planning 
Commission noted that many of the same challenges that brought the area to the forefront 
of a planning effort in 2006 still remain today, and that the area is still undeveloped.   
Based on public and Planning Commission feedback, it appears that there may be a desire 
to have the City Council adopt the SE Sherwood Master Plan or revisit the plan and adopt 
an updated plan before approving any new amendments that implement the SE Sherwood 
Master Plan.  If the City were to revisit the plan, it would require additional staff and 

Ordinance 2013-003, Memo to Staff Report 
September 3, 2013, Page 3 of 5

81



 

  
  
  
 

consultant time that is not currently funded or included in the Planning Department’s work 
plan. 
 
Ken Foster Farm DEQ contaminated site area 
Several challenges exist for site development in this area including the Tonquin Scablands, 
a rocky terrain sculpted from ancient glacial flooding. There are two high points: one point 
in the center of the area and one in the southern portion of the site with sloping terrain in 
between. This results in challenges to the street and pedestrian circulation network and 
added costs to develop and design the infrastructure. 
 
The area is part of the former Ken Foster Farm (KFF) site, a forty-acre tract used as 
pastureland found to contain contaminated soil in 2006. It includes the area between the 
Moser property to the north (22900 SW Murdock) and Sherwood View Estates to the 
south.  The Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) information indicates that from 
1962-1971, tannery wastes from Frontier Leather Tannery were applied as a soil 
amendment. The waste contained chromium concentrations most of which are present in 
trivalent form. However, “the more toxic and mobile hexavalent form chromium is also 
present at the KFF site, likely resulting from trivalent chromium’s oxidation over time.1”    
“Hexavalent chromium could represent a potential health threat for on-site residents 
through direct contact, incidental ingestion, vapor or dust inhalation, or ingestion or contact 
with potentially contaminated groundwater, surface water, or freshwater sediments. Tri-
valent chromium is the primary form of chromium present and it is non-toxic to humans.”2 
In 2011, DEQ updated its risk-based concentrations for hexavalent chromium based on 
new EPA toxicity data causing DEQ to reevaluate the earlier findings.  
 
Oregon DEQ conducted an additional investigation this past summer and developed a 
work plan to address the contamination at these revised concentration levels.3  They plan 
further field investigations to acquire data for assessing potential health risks to current and 
future residents, and assessing surface runoff to the wetland areas in the southeast portion 
of the KFF site.  
 
Phase I of this plan will focus on 23120 SW Murdock Road (Yuzons) which is the largest 
and generally most impacted residential property at the KFF site. For the Phase II 
investigation, DEQ will develop a remediation plan based on the results compiled during 
the initial phase, but has not determined how long the field investigation will take.  
 
Residents testified at the last City Council hearing on this topic and via e-mail that 
decisions on the proposed text amendment should be tabled until more is known about the 

                                            
1 Remedial Investigation Work Plan, Former Ken Foster Farms, Prepared for Oregon DEQ by 
Kennedy/Jenks Consultants on July 23, 2013. 
2 http://www.deq.state.or.us/lq/ecsi/ecsidetail.asp?seqnbr=2516 
 
3 Id. 

Ordinance 2013-003, Memo to Staff Report 
September 3, 2013, Page 4 of 5

82

http://www.deq.state.or.us/lq/ecsi/ecsidetail.asp?seqnbr=2516


 

  
  
  
 

contamination from DEQ.  Mark Pugh, Project Manager for the KFF project, is currently 
conducting fieldwork on the site to determine where the contamination is most prevalent, 
taking samples in the more high use developed areas near existing homes and yards. He 
indicated that they would be using  the assumption of one unit per acre to develop the 
sampling pattern and intensity of the field investigation based on the existing development 
pattern. 
 
If City Council determines that future PUD developments could have a greater density, 
DEQ would require that each property meet their remediation criteria for clean up within a 
“high use” area or residential area. Any properties that would be developed at a greater 
density in the future beyond the standard one unit per acre would be responsible for safely 
cleaning up the area to the approved corresponding level of density. DEQ would continue 
to monitor and determine the appropriate remediation for each specific site area and 
ensure compliance with the standards that they have put in place for this area. The City 
would require through the land use decisions that the development would need to comply 
with DEQ. 
 
Conclusion 
As the Planning Commission discussed during their hearings, this area is not without 
challenges for developers, property owners and residents.  During deliberations, the 
Planning Commission discussed these same issues concerning the challenges of 
developing the property within the VLDR zone and at the same time preserving the 
character of the existing and abutting neighborhoods. In the end the Planning Commission, 
found the 10,000 minimum lot size and four units per acre persuasive and recommended 
approval of the text amendment reflecting these changes.   
 
Attachments: 
1. Written testimony referenced as Exhibit C-G received at the May 21, 2013 hearing 
2. Emails with attachments from John and Judy Carter and Kurt Kristensen, received on May 30, 2013 and 
August 9 and 26, 2013 

Ordinance 2013-003, Memo to Staff Report 
September 3, 2013, Page 5 of 5

83



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2013-003 
September 3, 2013 
Page 1 of 2, with Exhibit 1, Planning Commission Recommendation (8 pages), Exhibit 1- A, Recommended Code 
Language (2 pages) 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE 2013-003 
 

TO AMEND SECTION 16.12 OF THE ZONING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CODE 
RELATING TO PROPERTY ZONED VERY LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL 

 

WHEREAS, the City received an application for a text amendment to the Sherwood Zoning and 
Development Code amending the provisions of Chapter § 16.12 Residential Land Uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant proposed to increase the density and minimum lot size allowed for single 
family homes in the very low density residential zone (VLDR) if developed under the planned unit 
development standards; and 
   
WHEREAS, after testimony from the public, staff and the applicant, the Sherwood Planning 
Commission, recommended modifying the proposed language to increase the minimum density 
allowed to four units per acre, with a minimum lot size of 10,000 square feet if developed under the 
Planned Unit Development standards; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendments were reviewed for compliance and consistency with the 
Comprehensive Plan, regional and state regulations and found to be fully compliant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed amendments were subject to full and proper notice and review and 
public hearings were held before the Planning Commission on January 8, 2013,  February 26, 
2013 and April 9, 2013; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission voted to forward a recommendation to the City Council for 
the proposed Development Code modifications to Chapter 16.12; and  
  
WHEREAS, the analysis and findings to support the Planning Commission recommendation are 
identified in the attached Exhibit 1; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on May 21, 2013 and continued the business to 
September 3, 2013, and determined that the proposed changes to the Development Code met the 
applicable Comprehensive Plan criteria and continued to be consistent with regional and state 
standards. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF SHERWOOD ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1. Findings.  After full and due consideration of the application, the Planning Commission 
recommendation, the record, findings, and evidence presented at the public hearing, the City 
Council adopts the findings of fact contained in the Planning Commission recommendation 
attached as Exhibit 1 finding that the text of the SZCDC shall be amended as documented in 
Exhibit 1-A.  
 

84



DRAFT 

Ordinance 2013-003 
September 3, 2013 
Page 2 of 2, with Exhibit 1, Planning Commission Recommendation (8 pages), Exhibit 1- A, Recommended Code 
Language (2 pages) 
 

Section 2. Approval.  The proposed amendments for Plan Text Amendment (PA) 12-04 identified in 
Exhibits 1-A are hereby APPROVED. 
 
Section 3 - Manager Authorized.  The Planning Department is hereby directed to take such action 
as may be necessary to document this amendment, including notice of adoption to DLCD and 
necessary updates to Chapter 16 of the Municipal Code in accordance with City ordinances and 
regulations. 
 
Section 4 - Applicability.  The amendments to the City of Sherwood Zoning and Community 
Development Code by Sections 1 to 3 of this Ordinance apply to all land use applications 
submitted after the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 5 - Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective the 30th day after its enactment 
by the City Council and approval of the Mayor. 
 
 
Duly passed by the City Council this 3rd day of September 2013. 
 
  
 
        _________________________ 
        Bill Middleton, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:   
 
 
      
Sylvia Murphy, MMC, City Recorder     
 
                AYE  NAY 
         Clark       ____  ____ 
         Langer       ____  ____ 
         Butterfield  ____  ____ 
         Folsom       ____ ____ 
         Grant   ____ ____ 
         Henderson      ____  ____ 
         Middleton  ____  ____ 

85



 

Ordinance 2013-003 Exhibit 1, Planning Commission Recommendation  
May 21, 2013 
Page 1 of 8   

 
City of Sherwood                       April 2, 2013 
Planning Commission Recommendation to City Council 
 
PA 12-04 Very Low Density Residential Text Amendment 
 
Recommendation: 
The Planning Commission held hearings on January 8, 2013, and February 26, 2013 on proposed 
amendments to the Sherwood Zoning and Development Code pertaining to § 16.12.020 Very Low Density 
Residential zone. The Planning Commission heard and received written testimony from the applicant, staff and 
property owners within the area.  
 
After receiving direction from the Commission at the first hearing on January 8, 2013, staff presented 
amendments to the initial applicant’s text amendments that incorporated basic elements from the SE 
Sherwood Master Plan with a minimum lot size of 8,500 square feet and a maximum residential density of four 
units per acre if developed as a plan unit development. The applicant was in favor of these amendments and 
the Commission heard testimony on those amendments on February 26, 2013. At that hearing, Lisa and Roger 
Walker presented alternative language to staff’s amendments that increased the minimum lot size to 10,000 
square feet but kept the density at four units per net acre. The Commission found their amendments 
concerning minimum lot size persuasive. (Exhibit M) During their deliberations on the amendments, the 
Planning Commission weighed three alternatives for Council to consider. 
 
Alternative 1 - The Planning Commission discussed the merits of conducting a new or revised SE Sherwood 
Master planning effort for the area and requested Council’s guidance on this policy decision. They noted that 
many of the same challenges that brought the area to the forefront of a planning effort in 2006 still existed and 
that the area remained relatively undeveloped. The Commission continued to be concerned about how this 
area might develop in piecemeal fashion and recognized the SE Sherwood Master Plan attempted to ensure 
that this area developed in a more comprehensive manner.  They recognized that the SE Sherwood Master 
Plan was not formerly adopted via ordinance by Council or incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan, which 
would generally be the conclusion of an approved master planning effort.  
 
The Commissioners who had participated in the SE Master Plan noted that the actual plan did not reach a 
formal consensus from the participants. However, of the three alternatives developed through the master 
planning process, one alternative layout was the most agreeable to all parties and one concept layout matched 
most closely with the idea and vision of the participants for the area. The 2006 Planning Commission opted to 
agree to a resolution that recognized the planning efforts of the SE Sherwood Master Plan and encourage 
future development that reflected the objectives identified in the plan. In the end, the Commissioners noted that 
the grant funds for the master planning process in 2006 had been exhausted as well as the time allotted for the 
planning process for the group to continue developing a plan that they could wholeheartedly endorse.  
 
The Commission discussed either starting the process anew with the new landowners and other property 
owners within the zone that would include new information on the site constraints and environmental 
contamination or in the alternative, to take the existing information found within the 2006 plan and revise the 
outcomes reached with the earlier plan. The Commission wanted Council to evaluate whether there was merit 
in developing an updated SE Sherwood Master Plan to reflect the changes within that zoning designation. This 
option would require Council to deny the requested text amendment.  It would also include the 
recommendation that Council direct staff to budget funds and time to update the SE Sherwood Master Plan. 
 
Alternative 2 - The Commission discussed the historical problems with the designation of the subject area to 
be zoned very low density residential (VLDR). The existing zoning was up to one single-family home per acre 
with 40,000 square foot lot minimums. If developed as a Planned Unit Development, the density could be up to 

86



 

Ordinance 2013-003 Exhibit 1, Planning Commission Recommendation  
May 21, 2013 
Page 2 of 8   

two units per acre and the minimum lot size was 10,000 square feet. The Commission considered whether 
VLDR continued to be an appropriate zoning designation for this costly, environmentally constrained area. Due 
to the constraints, the Commission concluded that it would likely continue to be difficult to develop under large 
lot zoning in an urbanized manner despite its location within the City limits.  
 
The Commission noted that the surrounding property owners that resided in the area also had an expectation 
that the area would maintain its existing character of larger lot single-family homes. The Commission felt that 
these issues would continue to be unresolved under current circumstances. This option would require Council 
to deny the requested text amendment and wait for the contaminated soil issue to be resolved and consensus 
be reached.  
 
Alternative 3: In this alternative, the Planning Commission recommended that Council consider the alternative 
amendment originally developed by staff and revised by Lisa and Roger Walker. (Exhibit O, Proposed 
Amendments) The amendments call for 10,000 square foot lot size minimum along with four units per net 
buildable acre if developed as a planned unit development. They noted it was the best compromise and used 
elements of the SE Sherwood Master Plan to achieve a greater density. It also most closely resembled the 
existing developments of Sherwood View Estates reflecting the same minimum lot size as well as a similar 
density of 3.6 units per acre within the Sherwood View Estates development. This option would require Council 
to adopt the proposed text amendment as revised. 
 
Proposal: The applicant proposes to amend the § 16.12 Residential Uses section of the Sherwood Zoning and 
Development Code, (SZDC), specifically the § 16.12.020 Very Low Density Residential Zone.  The proposed 
changes are attached as Exhibit M.   
 
I. BACKGROUND 
 

A. Applicant: John Satterberg/Community Financial 
 

 P.O. Box 1969 
Lake Oswego, OR 97035 

B. Applicant’s Representative: Kirsten Van Loo, Emerio Design 

C. Location:  The proposed amendment is to the text of the development code and specifically applies 
to the properties zoned Very Low Density Residential (VLDR).   

 
C. Review Type: The proposed text amendment requires a Type V review, which involves public 

hearings before the Planning Commission and City Council.  The Planning Commission will make a 
recommendation to the City Council who will make the final decision.  Any appeal of the City 
Council decision would go directly to the Oregon Land Use Board of Appeals. 
 

D. Public Notice and Hearing:  Notice of the January 8, 2013 Planning Commission hearing on the 
proposed amendment was published in The Gazette on January 1, 2013 and The Times on 
December 20, 2012.  Staff posted notice in five public locations around town and on the web site on 
December 19, 2012. Regular updates were provided in the City newsletter.   

 
While this does not apply citywide, it may affect the value of property located within the very low 
density residential zone; therefore Measure 56 notice was sent on December 19, 2012 informing 
property owners within that zoning designation. DLCD notice was provided on December 4, 2012. 

 
E. Review Criteria:  

The required findings for the Plan Amendment are identified in Section 16.80.030 of the Sherwood 
Zoning and Community Development Code (SZCDC). Applicable Statewide Planning Goals: Goal 1 

87



 

Ordinance 2013-003 Exhibit 1, Planning Commission Recommendation  
May 21, 2013 
Page 3 of 8   

Citizen Involvement, Goal 2 Land Use Planning, Goal 5 Natural Resources, Scenic and Historic Areas 
and Open Space, and Goal 12 Transportation. 
 

F.   Background: 
 
The area east of SW Murdock Road is zoned very low density residential, (VLDR). The VLDR 
zoning district provides for low density, larger lot single-family housing and other related uses in 
natural resource and environmentally sensitive areas warranting preservation, but otherwise 
deemed suitable for limited development, with a density of 0.7 to 1 dwelling unit per acre.  
 
If developed through the Planned Unit Development (PUD) process, and if all floodplain, wetlands, 
and other natural resource areas are dedicated or remain in common open space, the permitted 
density of 1.4 to two (2) dwelling units per acre may be allowed.  
 
There are two existing planned unit developments within this VLDR zoning designation: Fair Oaks, 
and Sherwood View Estates. The remaining properties, approximately fifty-five acres, consists of 11 
parcels zoned VLDR and nine single-family homes. The area includes a 2.25-acre wetland located 
in the southeast corner of the site with standing water most of the year. Areas are included in 
Metro’s natural resource Goal 5 inventory including Class A wildlife habitat, with groves of woodland 
habitat and mature trees.  
 
Several challenges exist for site design including the Tonquin Scablands, a rocky terrain sculpted 
from ancient glacial flooding. There are two high points: one point in the center of the area and one 
in the southern portion of the site with sloping terrain in between. This results in challenges to the 
street and pedestrian circulation network and added costs to develop and design. 
 
Another challenge to the area is due to the presence of soil contamination identified by the 
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ). The VLDR site area was part of the “Ken Foster Farm” 
site, originally about 40 acres and was used for farming. Portions of the larger Ken Foster Farm site 
had been used for discarding animal hides and carcasses that were remnants from the local 
tannery operation in the city. As part of the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 
investigation of the Tannery site located on SW Oregon Street, it was discovered that the soil on the 
Ken Foster Farm site was also contaminated. The property to the northeast of the undeveloped 
area, Ironwood Subdivision, was in development when the issue arose which required significant 
soil removal and oversight from the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ).  
 
DEQ entered the Ken Foster Farm site into the Environmental Cleanup Site Information Database 
in 2000, and completed a Preliminary Assessment (PA) in 2004, funded by cooperative grant funds 
from the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Region 10. (DEQ Technical Memorandum) The 
results of the soil sampling completed for this site listed concentrations of antimony, chromium, lead 
and mercury above expected background concentrations. In addition, sediment samples from the 
wetland areas on the site were found to contain elevated concentrations of chromium copper, 
mercury and zinc.  
 
They found that the human health risk based upon the soil results from the EPA Impervious Area 
results and data from property-owner site investigations on two of the properties within the former 
farm acreage was relatively low, according to the report. Since valid soil sample tests of the subject 
site indicate that hexavalent chromium was not present in soils, and that the prevalent form of 
chromium in soils is trivalent chromium. The other concentrations do not present an unacceptable 
human health risk on an individual contaminant basis. The DEQ concluded that the chance of 
significant exposure to residents living around these areas is low under current conditions.  
 

88



 

Ordinance 2013-003 Exhibit 1, Planning Commission Recommendation  
May 21, 2013 
Page 4 of 8   

In 2005, the City received a grant to develop the Southeast Sherwood Master Plan (Exhibit D), a 
master plan for the area to serve as a guide to coordinating the potential separate land use actions 
and infrastructure investments of property owners, developers, and the City in order to create a 
cohesive, livable neighborhood that could develop over time.  The SE Sherwood Master Plan was 
prepared with the input of property owners, developers, neighbors and City representatives. Three 
open houses were held in order to develop a preferred alternative for development of this area. The 
purpose was to identify a more efficient way to develop the area and to try to get property owners in 
the area to work collaboratively when considering developments. The plan did not result in 
amendments to the Comprehensive Plan or Zoning map but was accepted by the Planning 
Commission via Resolution 2006-01(Exhibit E). 

 
The recommended master plan was a hybrid of several alternatives that were developed through 
the open house workshops. Through the planning phase, the developers emphasized the need for 
providing sufficient density to pay for the necessary infrastructure while the citizens emphasized a 
preference for larger lots to preserve the wildlife habitat. This resulted in the development of a 
hybrid plan that provided for a mix of lot sizes with a range of increased density in the center of the 
plan area to 15,000 square feet lot sizes abutting the southern portion of the site. The gross density, 
under the preferred option would be 2.2 units per gross acre and a net density of 4.43 units per net 
acre. 
 
The Planning Commission approved the SE Sherwood Master Plan in concept in 2006. Although 
not formally adopted and incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan nor adopted by the City 
Council, it does provide guidance for development and the intention of the community and 
surrounding property owners for the area. The applicant’s proposal applies some of the 
recommendations for development as adopted by resolution to the SZDC regarding the density 
requirements and proposes a minimum lot size to achieve the resulting net density if developed 
through a planned unit development process.  
 
The applicant, the property owner of tax lot 2S133CB01000, just north of the Sherwood View 
Estates had previously applied for a Planned Unit Development in 2011 for an eight-lot subdivision 
(Denali PUD 2011-01). The City Council approved via Ordinance 2012-004, a six-lot subdivision 
and Planned Unit Development known as Denali Planned Unit Development including application of 
a Planned Unit Development Overlay on the Comprehensive Plan and Zone Map.  
 
The applicant has not submitted a final development plan for the planned unit development and 
elected to pursue a text amendment in order to achieve the greater density that would have been 
allowed under the SE Sherwood Master Plan. 
 

II. AFFECTED AGENCY, PUBLIC NOTICE, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 

Agencies: 
The City sent a request for comments to the standard agency notification list on December 5, 2012.  
The City received one comment as discussed below. The City has received either no response or no 
comment on the proposal from the other agencies.  
 
Engineering Department: After review of the proposal, the proposed amendment will not have a 
significant impact on the infrastructure and services are available to accommodate this increased 
density. 
 
Public:  
Kurt Kristensen 22520 SW Fairoaks Ct. Sherwood, OR 97140 submitted comments via email that 
are attached as Exhibit C. 

89



 

Ordinance 2013-003 Exhibit 1, Planning Commission Recommendation  
May 21, 2013 
Page 5 of 8   

Mr. Kristensen is opposed to the text amendment as written as it does not incorporate the entire SE 
Sherwood Master Plan and some of the elements of the plan may not be implemented if the Planning 
Commission recommends adoption of the text amendment as proposed by the applicant. He requests 
that the Planning Commission recommend to Council the SE Sherwood Master Plan so it can be 
implemented in its entirety. Mr. Kristensen is also concerned about the environmental impacts that the 
entire site area presents.  
 
Response: Not all of the recommendations within SE Sherwood Master Plan are incorporated with this 
proposed text amendment. The text amendment standards will apply only to properties developed as a 
planned unit development. This gives the Planning Commission and City Council another level of 
review where they could impose the unique conditions that would not be available to them if developed 
as a standard subdivision or partition such as the open space areas and pedestrian connections that 
are part of the SE Sherwood Master Plan. They could incorporate the elements of the SE Sherwood 
Master Plan within each proposed development so long as the standards are not contrary to the Code. 
 
The density standards and minimum lot size developed under the SE Sherwood Master Plan were not 
compatible with existing VLDR PUD standards and therefore the applicant submitted this proposal.  
The particular text amendment provisions are not contrary to the SE Sherwood Master Plan as a whole. 
The Commission could chose to move the plan forward to Council later and this text amendment does 
not prohibit this. 
 
No other comments have been received as of the date of this staff report.  

 
III. REQUIRED FINDINGS FOR A PLAN TEXT AMENDMENT 
The applicable Plan Text Amendment review criteria are 16.80.030.1 and 3. 
 
16.80.030.1 - Text Amendment Review 

An amendment to the text of the Comprehensive Plan shall be based upon the need for such an 
amendment as identified by the Council or the Commission.  Such an amendment shall be 
consistent with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan, and with all other provisions of the Plan 
and Code, and with any applicable State or City statutes and regulations. 

 
Need Identified: 
The applicant identified the need for the proposed text amendment in response to the Planning 
Commission Resolution 2006-01. The Planning Commission resolution accepted the SE Sherwood 
Master Plan report and approved the process to implement the plan. The Resolution advised that the 
Planning Commission would consider development proposals from an applicant that is consistent with the 
principals and goals listed in the master plan. Alternative B/C from the master plan became the 
recommended layout with a net density of 4.43 units per buildable acre. Although not formally adopted 
and incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan nor adopted by the City Council, the plan provides 
guidance for development and the intention of the community and surrounding property owners for the 
area. Had it been formally adopted by the Council, it would have then required amendments to the SZDC 
regarding the density requirements in this particular zone as the density shown in the plan is much higher 
than the existing special density allowance currently allowed in the VLDR. 
 
The Planning Commission did not forward a recommendation to the Council to adopt the specific 
changes to the density, minimum lot size and changes to the minimum parcel size to develop a planned 
unit development that the applicant is now proposing. Nor were any of the Code amendments outlined in 
the plan adopted by the Council. The Commission resolved that they would review applications applying 
the standards developed through the master planning process.  
 
One could advance the idea that because the Planning Commission adopted via resolution the master 
plan that the Commission would subsequently find the need to adopt text amendments that would 

90



 

Ordinance 2013-003 Exhibit 1, Planning Commission Recommendation  
May 21, 2013 
Page 6 of 8   

support the outcomes and the density achieved in the plan that was approved through the master 
planning process.  
 
FINDING: The Planning Commission must review the proposed changes to the Code that the applicant 
has brought forward to determine if it does indeed achieve the result of the master plan and whether they 
satisfy the need within the zoning designation for these amendments. 
 
Comprehensive Plan: 

 Chapter 3. Growth Management  
 Policy 1: To adopt and implement a growth management policy, which will accommodate growth 

consistent with growth limits, desired population densities, land carrying capacity, environmental quality 
and livability. 

 The property is located within the City limits and within the urban growth boundary. Most of the area has 
not been partitioned and the density is well below the 1 dwelling unit per acre minimum. Several of the 
properties do not currently have urban facilities such as adequate roadways, water, sanitary sewer and 
pedestrian connections. Development could improve the level of services occurring in this area and 
would provide improved connection and infrastructure within our City boundaries. Additionally, the 
properties will have direct access to SW Murdock Road, an arterial.  

 
 The applicant proposes a maximum density of four units per acre and a minimum lot size of 8,000 square 

feet if developed as a planned unit development. Planned unit developments are only allowed in this 
zone, if it can be demonstrated that the natural areas can be preserved. Each applicant within this zone 
will have to comply with this standard when applying for a PUD. This is consistent with the policy. 

 
 FINDING: Based on the above discussion, the proposed text amendment is consistent with the growth 

management policy objective.  
 

Chapter 4. Land Use 
 
Policy 6 The City will create, designate and administer five residential zones specifying the purpose and 
standards of each consistent with the need for a balance in housing densities, styles, prices and tenures. 
 
 Very Low Density Residential Minimum Site Standards: 
  1 DU/Acre, 1 acre minimum lot size 
  This designation is intended to provide for single-family homes on larger lots and in PUD’s in the  
  following general areas: 
   Where natural features such as topography, soil conditions or natural hazards make development  
  to higher densities undesirable. This zone is appropriate for the Tonquin Scabland Natural Area. 
 
   Along the fringe of expanding urban development where the  transition from rural to urban densities 
  is occurring. 
 
   Where a full range of urban services may not be available but where a minimum of urban sewer  
  and water service is available or can be provided in conjunction with urban development. 
 
The applicant identified several changes to the Planned Unit Development (PUD)  standards within the 
VLDR zone. The minimum lot size is still considered a large lot for an urbanized area as it will remain the 
largest minimum lot size in the City if developed as a PUD. The zone is located on the fringe of the 
urbanized area and compatible with the surrounding properties already developed as planned unit 
developments under the VLDR standards to the north and south of the subject area as the larger lots will still 
contain single family dwelling units. 
 

91



 

Ordinance 2013-003 Exhibit 1, Planning Commission Recommendation  
May 21, 2013 
Page 7 of 8   

FINDING: Based on the above discussion, the proposed amendments are consistent with the land use 
policy objective. 
 
Consistency with Statewide Planning Goals   
Goal 1- “Citizen Involvement” 
The purpose statement of Goal 1 is “to develop a citizen involvement program that insures the opportunity 
for citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process.”  

 
The proposed code changes do not include changes to the City’s citizen involvement program, which 
complies with Goal 1; however, the process to develop the proposed changes was fully compliant with this 
Goal.   The City provided notice to property owners zoned VLDR, published notice in the paper and posted 
notice around the City.  
 
In 2005, over 120 people participated and provided input through the various open houses in the SE 
Sherwood Master Plan process to develop the recommended plan. There were multiple work sessions with 
the Planning Commission and two public hearings were held on March 28 and April 4, 2006 to provide the 
public an opportunity to be heard. 
 
Goal 2- “Land Use Planning” 
The purpose statement of Goal 2 is “to establish a land use planning process and policy framework as a 
basis for all decision and actions related to use of land and to ensure an adequate factual base for such 
decisions and actions”. 
 
The proposed code changes affect the land use process when utilizing the planned unit development 
standards. The City’s land use planning process and policy framework, which are in compliance with Goal 2, 
will not change as result of this action. 
 
FINDING: As discussed above in the analysis, the applicant identified a need for the 
proposed amendments to reflect the Planning Commission approval of the SE Sherwood Master 
Plan and the density, lot size and amendments when a planned unit development was sought. 
The amendments are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and applicable City, regional and 
State regulations and policies. 
 

        16.80.030.2 – Transportation Planning Rule Consistency 
A. Review of plan and text amendment applications for effect on transportation facilities. 
Proposals shall be reviewed to determine whether it significantly affects a transportation facility, 
in accordance with OAR 660-12-0060 (the TPR). Review is required when a development 
application includes a proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan or changes to land use 
regulations. 
 
The transportation analysis conducted during the SE Sherwood Master Plan process concluded that the 
street system could accommodate an increased density to the level proposed by the applicant. The 
analysis considered the trip generation increases for net densities ranging from 3.35 to 5.03 units per 
acre.  

   
FINDING: The amendments will not result in a change of uses otherwise permitted and will not 
have a significant impact on the amount of traffic on the transportation system; therefore, this policy is not 
applicable to the proposed amendment.  

 
IV. RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the above findings of fact, and the conclusion of law based on the applicable criteria, 
the Planning Commission has provided three viable alternatives for the City Council to consider.  

92



 

Ordinance 2013-003 Exhibit 1, Planning Commission Recommendation  
May 21, 2013 
Page 8 of 8   

The Commission, recommends Alternative 3, however respects that ultimately this is a legislative 
decision to be made by Council.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
V. EXHIBITS   
 
A. Proposed development code changes--with “track changes” submitted by the applicant 
B.  Applicant’s materials submitted on October 16, 2012 
C. Comments from Kurt Kristensen, submitted via email on December 26, 2012 
D.  SE Sherwood Master Plan dated February 26, 2006 
E.  Planning Commission Resolution 2006-01 dated, May 9, 2006 
F.  Patrick Huske Comments 
G.  Lisa and Roger Walker Comments 
H. Jean Simson Comments 
I. Mary and Richard Reid Comments 
J. Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Barclay Comments 
K. John and Judith Carter Comments 
L. Proposed VLDR Text Amendment-SE Sherwood Master Planned Unit Development 
M. Walker additional proposed language with written  comments 
N.  Kurt Kristensen additional testimony 
O. Final Proposed Amendments—with “track changes” after hearings 

93



Recommended Development Code Language 
April 2, 2013 

 

 1 

Please Note:  Proposed Additions are underlined in blue 

  Proposed Deletions are crossed out in red 

Chapter 16.12 Residential Land Uses 

16.12.010. - Purpose and Density Requirements 

A. Very Low Density Residential (VLDR) 

1.  Standard Density 

The VLDR zoning district provides for low density, larger lot single-family housing and other related uses 

in natural resource and environmentally sensitive areas that warranting preservation, but are otherwise 

deemed suitable for limited development.  Standard density in the VLDR zone is , with a density of 0.7 to 

1 dwelling unit per acre.  

2. VLDR Planned Unit Development Density Standards 

IfProperty in the VLDR zone that is developed through the Planned Unit Development (PUD) process, as 

under per Chapter 16.40, and if  all floodplain, wetlands, and other natural resource areas are dedicated 

or remain in common open space, the permitted may develop to a density of 1.4 to 2.0two (2) dwelling 

units per net buildable acre may be allowed under the following conditions. :  

Minor land partitions shall be exempt from the minimum density requirement.  

a.  The Housing densities up to two (2) units per net buildable acre, and minimum lot sizes of is not 

 less than 10,000 square feet;, may be allowed in the VLDR zone.  

b.  The following areas are dedicated to the public or preserved as common open space: 

 floodplains, as per under Section 16.134.020 (Special Resource Zones); natural resources areas  

 as shown on , per the  Natural Resources and Recreation Plan Map, attached as Appendix C, or 

 as specified in Chapter  5 of the Community Development Plan,; and wetlands defined and 

 regulated as per under current  Federal regulation and Division VIII of this Code; and  

c.  The Review Authority determines that the higher density development would will better 

preserve natural resources as compared to one (1) unit per acre design.  

3.  Southeast Sherwood Master Planned Unit Development 

a.  Property in the VLDR zone that is developed through the Planned Unit Development process 

 under Chapter 16.40 and is based on, and generally conforms to the concepts, goals and 

 objectives of the SE Sherwood Master Plan may develop to a maximum density of 4.0 dwelling 

 units per net buildable acre.  

 

Exhibit 1-A, Recommeded Code Language 
May 21, 2013 
Page 1 of 2

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibit 1-A 
September 3, 2013, Page 1 of 2

94



Recommended Development Code Language 
April 2, 2013 

 2 

b.  Development under Section 16.12.010.A.3 must generally follow the development pattern 

 shown as Alternative B/C in the SE Sherwood Master Plan (2006) and address the following 

 factors: 

(1)  Varied lot sizes are allowed with a minimum lot area of 10,000 square feet if it can be shown 
that adequate buffering exists adjacent to developed properties with screening, landscaping, 
roadways or open space.  
 

 (2) The open space areas as required by Chapter 16.40 (Planned Unit Development), where 

 feasible, should include parks and pathways that are located within the general vicinity of

 Alternative B/C in the SE Sherwood Master Plan.  

 (3) There is a pedestrian friendly transportation system that links the site with nearby 

 residential developments, schools, parks, commercial areas and other destinations.   

 (4) The unique environmental opportunities and constraints identified in the SE Sherwood 

 Master Plan. 

 (5) The  view corridors identified in the SE Sherwood Master Plan. 

 (6) Housing design types that are compatible with both surrounding and existing development. 

c.  A density transfer under Chapter 16.40.050 C. 2. is not permitted for development under this 

 Section 16.12.010.A.3. 

d. The Planning Commission will consider the specific housing design types identified and the

 preservation of the identified view corridors at the time of final development review to ensure 

 compatibility with the existing and surrounding development. 

 

Exhibit 1-A, Recommeded Code Language 
May 21, 2013 
Page 2 of 2

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibit 1-A 
September 3, 2013, Page 2 of 2

95



Exhibit B

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 1 of 122

96



Page 1 of 8 
 

Proposal:  The application proposes to amend the development code standards of the Very 
Low Density Residential (VLDR) zoning district to include specific elements of the SE 
Sherwood Master Plan so that plan can be implemented relative to new development density.  
The proposed code text amendment language changes the allowable density to 4 dwelling 
units per net buildable acre if developed through a planned unit development.   

Background:  In 2005 the City Council authorized the SE Sherwood Master Plan process and 
participation in the Oregon Transportation and Growth Management Quick Response program 
to fund the study and master plan process.  Numerous public meetings and workshops with 
property owners were held, and in 2006 the Planning Commission passed a resolution to 
accept the SE Sherwood Master Plan and approve a process to implement the plan. The entire 
SESMP area is zoned Very Low Density Residential and contains approximately 55 acres.  At 
this time, these are the only lands inside the City that are zoned VLDR. 

Several design/development alternatives were presented during the master plan process, 
Alternative B/C became the ‘recommended plan’, with a net density of 4.43 units per buildable 
acre. 

 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 2 of 122

97



Page 2 of 8 
 

Affected Property:  There are four parcels in the City of Sherwood with VLDR zoning that 
could be developed under the VLDR standards currently in place, using the PUD standards. 
Those four parcels are: 

1. Moser – 2S1 33 BC TL 1700, 11.63 acres 
2. Miller – 2S1 33 CB TL 200, 5.37 acres 
3. Yuzon – 2S1 33 CB TL 100, 10.36 acres 
4. First Community – 2S1 33 CB TL 1000, 3.71 acres 

These four parcels total approximately 31 acres.  Assuming a loss of 20% of the total acreage 
for streets, an estimated TOTAL development density under the current development 
standards would result in 45-49 units (at the currently allowable density of 2 units/net acre 
through the PUD approval process), or a gross density of approximately 1.6 dwellings/gross 
acre. 

 
With the adoption of the recommended text amendments, as supported by the SESMP, a total 
of six parcels could be developed, as follows: 

1. Moser – 2S1 33 BC TL 1700, 11.63 acres 
2. Miller – 2S1 33 CB TL 200, 5.37 acres 
3. Yuzon – 2S1 33 CB TL 100, 10.36 acres 
4. First Community – 2S1 33 CB TL 1000, 3.71 acres 
5. Huske – 2S1 33 CB TL 300, 4.88 acres 
6. Chinn – 2S1 33 CB TL 600, 3.01 acres 
7. Walker – 2S1 33 CB TL 700, 3.06 acres (while this parcel is large enough to be 

redeveloped under the proposed text changes, it is doubtful that more than one 
additional dwelling unit could be added to the site due to the existing development) 

 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 3 of 122

98



Page 3 of 8 
 

The Chinn property was included in the original SESMP, and is included in these calculations, 
however, access to that property is limited and little interest in development was expressed by 
that property owner @ the time of the SESMP public outreach.  It is likely that the Chinn parcel 
will someday develop as a 3 parcel Minor Partition with 1 acre lots. 
 
The Huske parcel adjacent to Murdock Road was included in the SESMP designs and was 
anticipated to be redeveloped; however, without the proposed text amendments that site does 
not qualify for review under the current PUD standards and currently can ONLY be 
redeveloped with 1 acre lots.      
 
 These six parcels total approximately 39 acres. Assuming 20% of the property is used for 
public streets, the resulting developable land totals approximately 31 acres.  With 15% of that 
remaining acreage in open space (per the PUD requirements) and 10% set aside for water 
quality tract(s) – the resulting developable land totals 23+ net buildable acres.  When additional 
land is subtracted for a wooded open space on the Moser property as anticipated in the 
SESMP (4 acres +/-) there actually only 19 net buildable acres available (at a maximum) for 
development of single family homes.    
 
The Technical Memo from Julia Hajduk to Kevin Cronin included as an appendix item (#5) in 
the SESMP details the history of the zoning designations for the area, and clarifies the 
“downzoning” of the property as it was annexed into the City.  The process employed 
throughout the SESMP evaluation provided an opportunity for citizens to “get involved” with 
development of a new plan for the area.  This text amendment request carries the work 
completed for the SESMP to its culmination. 
 
If the recommended text changes are approved by the Planning Commission and City Council 
there is opportunity for development of 70 + single family lots in this section of the city.  The 
potential resulting density is similar to that anticipated by the SESMP. 
  

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 4 of 122

99



Page 4 of 8 
 

Excerpted purpose statement from the SESMP 

 
 

Excerpted Alternatives Comparison from the SESMP 

 
 

Excerpted Density Question from SESMP 

 

  

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 5 of 122

100



Page 5 of 8 
 

Chapter 16.80 - PLAN AMENDMENTS 

16.80.010 - Initiation of Amendments 
An amendment to the City Zoning Map or text of the Comprehensive Plan may be initiated by the 
Council, Commission, or an owner of property within the City.  
Response:  The amendment is being initiated by a property owner.   
 
16.80.020 – Amendment Procedures 
 
Zoning Map or Text Amendment  
A. Application - An application for a Zoning Map or text amendment shall be on forms provided by 
the City and shall be accompanied by a fee pursuant to Section 16.74.010  
Response:  The proposed text amendment application is considered a legislative action and 
is requested on the general land use application form, accompanied by the required 
application fee. 
 
B. Public Notice - Public notice shall be given pursuant to Chapter 16.72  
Response:  As a Type V legislative action application - Chapter 16.72.020 requires public 
notice for the required hearings to be both in the newspaper and posted in several locations 
throughout the city.  Mailed notice to property owners is not required because this application 
is for a text amendment that is not specific to any single parcel of land.  The application fee 
paid to the City includes monies to cover the public notice costs for the proposed text 
amendment. 
 
C. Commission Review - The Commission shall conduct a public hearing on the proposed 
amendment and provide a report and recommendation to the Council. The decision of the Commission 
shall include findings as required in Section 16.80.030  
Response:  The proposed text amendment application will be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission at a public hearing. 
 
D. Council Review - Upon receipt of a report and recommendation from the Commission, the 
Council shall conduct a public hearing. The Council's decision shall include findings as required in 
Section 16.80.030. Approval of the request shall be in the form of an ordinance.  
Response:  The proposed text amendment application will be reviewed by the City Council at 
a public hearing. 
 
16.80.030 - Review Criteria 
A. Text Amendment 

An amendment to the text of the Comprehensive Plan shall be based upon a need for such an 
amendment as identified by the Council or the Commission. Such an amendment shall be 
consistent with the intent of the adopted Sherwood Comprehensive Plan, and with all other 
provisions of the Plan, the Transportation System Plan and this Code, and with any applicable 
State or City statutes and regulations, including this Section.  

Response:  The proposed text amendment is in response to PC Resolution 2006-001.  The 
Planning Commission accepted the SE Sherwood Master Plan Report and approved a process 
to implement the plan.  The PC resolved to consider development proposals that are 
consistent with the principals and goals listed in the SE Sherwood Master Plan.  The specific 
amendments to the text are contained in Exhibit ‘A’.    

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 6 of 122

101

http://library.municode.com/HTML/16625/level3/TIT16ZOCODECO_DIVIIIADPR_CH16.74APFE.html#TIT16ZOCODECO_DIVIIIADPR_CH16.74APFE_16.74.010FE
http://library.municode.com/HTML/16625/level3/TIT16ZOCODECO_DIVIIIADPR_CH16.72PRPRDEPE.html#TIT16ZOCODECO_DIVIIIADPR_CH16.72PRPRDEPE
http://library.municode.com/HTML/16625/level3/TIT16ZOCODECO_DIVIVPLPR_CH16.80PLAM.html#TIT16ZOCODECO_DIVIVPLPR_CH16.80PLAM_16.80.030RECR
http://library.municode.com/HTML/16625/level3/TIT16ZOCODECO_DIVIVPLPR_CH16.80PLAM.html#TIT16ZOCODECO_DIVIVPLPR_CH16.80PLAM_16.80.030RECR


Page 6 of 8 
 

 
 
Comprehensive Plan 

 
Response:  The proposed text amendment does not include changes to the text of the 
Comprehensive Plan, but amends language of the development code, which implements the 
Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed amendment continues to implement the Land Use goals 
and policies as they apply to Very Low Density Residential zoned lands.     

 
 

Applicable Statewide Planning Goals 
 

Goal 1:  Citizen Involvement 
Response:  The purpose of Goal 1 is “to develop a citizen involvement program that insures 
the opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process”.  The proposal 
is to amend the code to implement the elements of the SE Sherwood Master Plan that was 
accepted by the City and does not include changes to the citizen involvement program.  There 
was extensive citizen involvement in the development of the SE Sherwood Master Plan, 
including several public workshops, meetings with property owners and planning commission 
meetings.  This application process includes additional opportunities for public input as well.  
Citizens will be notified of the proposed text amendment changes as required by Section 16.72 
and will have an opportunity to participate in the public hearings held before the Planning 
Commission and the City Council.      
 

Goal 2:  Land Use Planning 
Response:  The purpose of Goal 2 is “to establish a land use planning process and policy 
framework as a basis for all decision and actions related to use of land and to assure an 
adequate factual base for such decisions and actions”.  The proposal is to amend the code to 
incorporate criteria developed through the master plan process into the development code so 
that the SE Sherwood Master Plan can be implemented as accepted by the Planning 
Commission.  The proposal does not include changes to the planning process.     
 

Goal 5:  Natural Resources, Scenic and Historic Areas, and Open Spaces 
Response:  The purpose of Goal 5 is “to protect natural resources and conserve scenic and 
historic areas and open spaces”.  The area within the boundaries of the SE Sherwood Master 
Plan includes steep slopes, wetlands and woodlands.  The proposed plan amendment is to 
incorporate elements of the SE Sherwood Master Plan into the development code so that the 
plan can be implemented as accepted by the Planning Commission.  The PC resolution 
includes specific performance targets for open space to conserve natural resources within the 
plan area.  The proposed text amendment allows for increased net density in the VLDR zone 
and retains the 15% open space requirement if developed through a Planned Unit 
Development.  Existing resource protections remain intact.   

 
Goal 12:  Transportation 

Response:  The purpose of Goal 12 is “to provide and encourage a safe, convenient and 
economic transportation system”.  The proposal is to amend the development code to increase 
density on Very Low Density Residential lands to 4 units per net buildable acre, if processed 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 7 of 122

102



Page 7 of 8 
 

through a PUD.  Allowing opportunities for increased density in the area of the SE Sherwood 
Master Plan will help make it economically feasible for development to pay for infrastructure.  
The proposed text amendment will not promote any changes to the adopted Transportation 
Systems Master Plan for the City of Sherwood.  
 
B. Map Amendment 

An amendment to the City Zoning Map may be granted, provided that the proposal satisfies all 
applicable requirements of the adopted Sherwood Comprehensive Plan……. 

Response:  A map amendment is not proposed. 
 
C. Transportation Planning Rule Consistency 

1. Review of plan and text amendment applications for effect on transportation facilities. 
Proposals shall be reviewed to determine whether it significantly affects a transportation 
facility, in accordance with OAR 660-12-0060 (the TPR). Review is required when a 
development application includes a proposed amendment to the Comprehensive Plan or 
changes to land use regulations.  

 
2. "Significant" means that the transportation facility would change the functional 

classification of an existing or planned transportation facility, change the standards 
implementing a functional classification, allow types of land use, allow types or levels of 
land use that would result in levels of travel or access that are inconsistent with the 
functional classification of a transportation facility, or would reduce the level of service of 
the facility below the minimum level identified on the Transportation System Plan.  

 
3. Per OAR 660-12-0060, Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan or changes to land use 

regulations which significantly affect a transportation facility shall assure that allowed 
land uses are consistent with the function, capacity, and level of service of the facility 
identified in the Transportation System Plan. This shall be accomplished by one of the 
following:  
a. Limiting allowed uses to be consistent with the planned function of the 

transportation facility. 
b. Amending the Transportation System Plan to ensure that existing, improved, or 

new transportation facilities are adequate to support the proposed land uses.  
c. Altering land use designations, densities or design requirements to reduce 

demand for automobile travel and meet travel needs through other modes.  
Response:  The proposal is to incorporate elements of the SE Sherwood Master Plan into the 
development code so that the plan can be implemented.  Transportation analysis conducted 
during the SE Sherwood Master Plan process concluded that the street system serving the 
area is planned to have adequate capacity to accommodate the alternatives presented.  The 
analysis considered trip generation increases for net densities ranging from 3.35 to 5.03 units 
per acre.  The proposed text amendment is for a change in net density on VLDR lands to 4 
units per net buildable acre if developed through the PUD process.  This change reflects the 
net density of the ‘recommended plan’ in the SE Sherwood Master Plan that was accepted by 
the Planning Commission.  Topography and geology of the area present infrastructure 
challenges and approval of the amendments will make it feasible for transportation facilities 
planned for by the City to be completed.   
 
The functional classification of all public streets within and adjacent to the VLDR-zoned parcels 
has been evaluated with the conclusions of the SESMP in mind.  Development of the few 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 8 of 122

103



Page 8 of 8 
 

remaining vacant parcels of land within the VLDR district under the proposed densities 
envisioned with this text amendment will not result in levels of travel or access that is 
inconsistent with the existing functional classification of the identified streets.  
 
While not an approval criteria, it is critical to understand that the City of Sherwood 
Transportation Systems Plan – adopted in 2005 – requires connectivity as illustrated in the 
excerpt below. 
 
 

 
This connectivity was considered in the SESMP, and was reflected in each of the design scenarios.  
Furthermore – commentary in the SESMP reflected the need for development at densities that could 
support the construction of the desired infrastructure.  The proposed text amendment facilitates 
development at a density that can provide the necessary transportation system elements. 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 9 of 122

104



Southeast SherwoodSoutheast Sherwood
Master PlanMaster Plan

Prepared for the: 
City of Sherwood
Oregon Transportation and Growth Management Program

A joint program of the Department of Transportation and 
the Department of Land Conservation and Development

February 20, 2006February 20, 2006

In association with 
DKS Associates

Exhibit C

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 10 of 122

105



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 11 of 122

106



Funding
Th e Southeast Sherwood Master Plan was prepared with funding from the State of Oregon through the Transportation and Growth Management 
(TGM) Program, a joint program of the Department of Transportation and the Department of Land Conservation and Development.

Th e TGM program supports community eff orts to expand transportation choices for people. By linking land use and transportation planning, 
TGM works in partnership with local governments to create vibrant, livable places in which people can walk, bike, take transit or drive where they 
want to go.  

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 12 of 122

107



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 13 of 122

108



Acknowledgements

City of Sherwood Planning Commission
Adrian Emery - Chair
Patrick Allen - Vice Chair
Jean Lafayette
Dan Balza
Matt Nolan
Russell Griffi  n
Todd Skelton

City of Sherwood Planning Department
Kevin Cronin - Planning Supervisor
Julia Hajduk - Senior Planner
Cynthia Butler - Administrative Assistant

Consultant Team
Joe Dills - Project Manager, Otak
Michelle Stephens - Planner, Otak
Benvenuto “Ben” Bortolazzo - Architect & Urban Designer, Otak
Anne Samuel - Landscape Architect, Otak
Carl D. Springer - Senior Transportation Planner, DKS Associates
Chris Maciejewski - Transportation  Engineer, DKS Associates

Oregon Transportation and Growth Management Program
Matthew Crall, TGM Project Manager

Special thanks is extended to Patrick Allen, Jean Lafayette, and Matt 
Nolan for their dedication to this project.  

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 14 of 122

109



Table of Contents

I. Background
 Introduction
 Purpose
 Process

II. Opportunities and Constraints

III. Alternatives
 Alternative A
 Alternative B
 Alternative C
 Alternatives Comparison

IV. Recommended Plan
 Description of Recommended Plan
 Rationale for the Recommended Plan

9
9
10
11

12

15
16
17
18
19

20
20
26

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 15 of 122

110



List of Figures

1. Vicinity Map

2.  Study Area & Property Ownership

3. Opportunities and Constraints Map

4.  “Create Your Own Alternative” - Example

5. Alternative A - Plan View

6. Alternative B - Plan View

7. Alternative C - Plan View

8. Alternative Hybrid B/C Plan View

9. Recommended Plan with Existing Homes and Lot Lines

10. Transect Diagram

11. Local Green Street with Parking 

12. Local Green Street without Parking

13 Murdock Green Street Design - Cross Section

14. Murdock Green Street Design - Plan View

15. Alternative B/C Plan View

16. Alternative B/C Perspective View

17. Alternative B/C Illustrated View of Park

9

10

13

15

16

17

18

20

21

21

23

23

24

24

27

28

29

Appendix

Sherwood City Council Resolution 2005-059

Open House #1 Materials and Feedback
2-a) Open House #1 Feedback Form
2-b) Summary of Public Comment Received
2-c) Open House # 1 Frequently Asked Questions
2-d) Baseline Transportation Memorandum, DKS  
   Associates
2-e) Opportunities and Constraints Memorandum

Open House #2 Materials and Feedback
3-a) Open House #2 Feedback Form
3-b) Summary of Public Comment Received
3-c) Alternatives Transportation Analysis Memorandum,  
  DKS Associates 

Open House #3 Materials and Feedback
4-a) Open House #3 Feedback Form
4-b) Summary of Public Comment Received
4-c) Open House # 3 Frequently Asked Questions
4-d) “Create Your Own Alternative” Station Results
4-e) AKS Engineering Plan
4-f) Raindrops to Refuge Position Statement

Southeast Sherwood Study Area Technical Memo, 
September 27, 2005

Site Photographs

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

31

32
32
33
37
39

42

50
50
51
56

60
60
62
67
68
72
73

74

78

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 16 of 122

111



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  8

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 17 of 122

112



Page  9Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

I. Background
Introduction
Th e SE Sherwood Master Plan is a guide for the transition of a 55-
acre area in Sherwood, Oregon into a new, walkable neighborhood.  
Th e plan is intended to coordinate the separate land use actions and 
infrastructure investments of property owners, developers, and the 
City of Sherwood to create a cohesive, livable neighborhood.

Figure 1  - Vicinity Map

Th e study area is located east of Murdock Road and extends to the 
eastern limits of the City and urban growth boundary (UGB) (see 
fi gure 1). Th e study area consists of  11 parcels, zoned Very Low 
Density Residential (VLDR), and nine existing homes. 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 18 of 122

113



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  10

Purpose
Th e purpose of the master plan is for the City of Sherwood to be 
proactive in coordinating future development of the site.  Making 
good use of the City’s urban land supply is consistent with smart 
growth principles to use land resources effi  ciently and take advantage 
of existing urban services.  It is also consistent with Sherwood’s 
Comprehensive Plan policies regarding the integration of land use, 
transportation, open space, natural resource conservation, and 
preservation of historic resources.    

Prior to initiating the study, the City held two informal neighborhood 
meetings to discuss issues and potential solutions, pre-application 
meetings for two subdivisions, and heard interest in development 
proposals from other owners.  Based on the potential for piecemeal 
development, the City concluded that there was a need for a master 
plan to guide the transition of the area.   

Th e Sherwood City Council agreed with the need for a master plan 
study and adopted Resolution 2005-059 on September 6, 2005 
(see appendix 1).  Primary goals include developing solutions to the 
problems of piecemeal development, exploring options to provide 
better urban levels of service, emergency response, transportation, tree 
preservation, open space for fi sh and wildlife habitat, and recreation 
opportunities such as walking trails.  

Th e City applied for and received a grant from the Oregon 
Transportation and Growth Management Program to conduct the 
master plan process.  As stated in the grant’s statement of work, which 
was endorsed by the City Council, the goals of the study were to 
plan:

A. A pedestrian friendly transportation system that will link the site 
with nearby  residential developments, parks, schools, commercial sites, 
and other destinations;

B. An increase in residential densities;

C. A land use plan that provides for a mix of housing types that is 
compatible with adjacent uses;

D. Conceptual plans for public facilities (roads, paths, water, sewer 
and storm drainage) needed to support the land use plan;

E. Implementing strategies including map and text amendments for 
the City to adopt (to be prepared by the City); and

F.  A high level of neighborhood and citizen involvement.

Figure 2 - Study Area and Property Ownership, September 2005

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 19 of 122

114



Page  11Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Process
Th e master plan was prepared with the input of property owners, 
developer representatives, neighbors, and City representatives.  A 
series of three open houses were held between October, 2005 and 
January, 2006.  Please see appendix 2, 3, and 4 for the materials 
and meeting summaries from the open houses.  Th e City developed 
a project webpage, which was used along with electronic meeting 
notices and postcards, to provide ongoing information about the 
project.  Th e process, in summary, included the following steps.
 
September 21, 2005 – Pre-application conference with property 
owners and developers.

September 21 – October 13, 2005 – Th ree site visits by the project 
team, with mapping of existing conditions.

October 6 and 12, 2005 – Interviews with property owners.

October 26, 2005 – Open House No 1.  In this workshop, thirty-
two participants viewed background materials regarding existing 
conditions, opportunities and constraints, transportation issues, 
frequently asked questions, and smart growth principles.  An exit 
questionnaire was used to obtain feedback.  Th e meeting was held at 
the Sherwood Police Facility.

November 30, 2005 – Open House No 2.  In this workshop, 
following the open house portion, three working alternative plans 
were presented.  Th irty-nine participants attended the meeting.  Th e 
meeting was held at the Sherwood YMCA.

January 18, 2006 – Open House No. 3.  Th is workshop was 
originally planned to present a “preferred” alternative.  Based on 
feedback from the November open house, the meeting was redesigned 
to continue the development and evaluation of the alternatives.  Th e 
meeting was held at the new Sherwood Civic Center in Old Town.

Th e following information was reviewed by the community at the 
third open house:

Th e three previous alternatives from November (Alternatives A, B, 
and C);

A new hybrid alternative (Alternative B/C) that responded to 
issues raised in November;

Perspective images of the alternatives using the master plans 
overlaid on Google Earth imagery;

An illustration of a proposed public park on the property; and

Information about smart development practices, green streets, 
and low impact development practices.

In addition to the above, a “Design Your Own Alternative” station 
was included, where citizens worked with one of Otak’s designers 
to discuss and create additional ideas.  Th e results from that station 
are included in appendix 4-d of this report.  AKS Engineering, who 
represents several property owners, brought their own alternative 
master plans to the workshop.  Th ey set up a station and discussed 
their ideas with participants.   Forty-one people attended the third 
Open House.  Seventeen people fi lled out exit questionnaires and/or 
submitted letters and e-mail comments.

•

•

•

•

•

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 20 of 122

115



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  12

II. Opportunities and Constraints
Th e site has multiple environmental constraints which can also 
be viewed as potential opportunities.  Th ese opportunities and 
constraints are illustrated in fi gure 3, as well as described in detail in 
the opportunities and constraints memorandum included in appendix 
2-e.  

A 2.25-acre wetland is located in the southeast corner of the site.  
According to neighbors, this wetland has standing water except in the 
driest summer months.  Th e wetland is an opportunity for the future 
neighborhood to have passive open space, wildlife habitat, and a 
natural stormwater area.  Neighbors expressed concern about impacts 
to the wetland area including pesticide runoff , groundwater recharge, 
and the importance of the wetland as wildlife habitat.  

Th e northern portion of the site has a 12-acre mixed woodland.  
It includes a variety of secondary growth mature trees, including 
Madrone, Douglas Fir, and others.  Metro’s natural resource (Goal 
5) inventory describes this area as Class A (highest-value) wildlife 
habitat.  According to a long-term resident, the area provides habitat 
for many species of mammals and birds.  Wildlife moving through 
the Tonquin lowlands also travel though this portion of the site.

Small tree groves and isolated large trees extend from the northwest to 
the southeast portion of the site.  Th ese trees are a defi ning feature of 
the landscape in the interior portion of the site.

Th e wooded areas and trees are an opportunity to provide visual and 
open space amenities for the neighborhood.  Th ey also provide a 
challenge for site design.  Th is site is marked by channels, depressions, 
and bedrock knolls that are part of the broader Tonquin Scablands 
Geological Area sculpted by ancient glacial fl ooding.  Th ere are 
two high points, one in the center of the property (elevation 315 
feet) and one on the south (elevation 360 feet), with sloping terrain 
between them.  Th ese hilltops have great views, including a view of 
Mount Hood to the east.  Th e unique terrain of this site provides 
an opportunity for very appealing home sites, but also provides 
a challenge to a connected circulation network and cohesive 
neighborhood design.

Preserving the natural environment of the site (including wildlife 
habitat, wetlands, steep slopes, endangered species, Tonquin 
Scablands, and mature vegetation) was mentioned in the majority of 
the comments received from the fi rst open house.  At least one of the 
above issues was raised by every respondent.

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 21 of 122

116



Page  13Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Figure 3 - Opportunities and Constraints MapAdjacent land uses are summarized as follows:

North: Fair Oaks Subdivision, large lots (1-acre or larger) single 
family detached homes; 

South: Sherwood View Estates, medium lots (approximately 12,000 
square feet) single family detached homes;

West: Across Murdock Road, small lots (approximately 6,000 square 
feet) single family detached homes; and

East: Open space and Resource Land.

Of the comments received from the fi rst open house, the second 
major concern was the desire of some of the residents within and 
most adjacent to the project area to maintain the existing Very Low 
Density Residential (VLDR) zoning of the site. However, some 
respondents were willing to consider additional density if the existing 
rural character of the neighborhood was maintained, and proposed 
lots that were smaller than one acre were placed in the center of the 
project, buff ered from the existing lots. 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 22 of 122

117



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  14

Transportation conditions and issues are described in the Baseline 
Conditions Transportation Memorandum, prepared by DKS 
Associates (see appendix 2-d).  Transportation conditions, 
opportunities and constraints include the following:

Southwest Murdock Road is classifi ed as an arterial and has a 
posted speed limit of 35 miles per hour.  Th e average daily traffi  c 
(ADT) on the road is approximately 6,000 vehicles.  A sidewalk 
only exists on the east side of the street for approximately half the 
distance between Division Street and Oregon Street.  Bike lanes 
are not provided.

Southeast Roy Street is classifi ed as a neighborhood street and has 
a posted speed limit of 25 miles per hour.  Th e two-lane street 
has sidewalks along both sides and a trail which leads to Murdock 
Park on the south side of the street.  Bike lanes are not provided.

West Sunset Boulevard  is classifi ed as an arterial and has a 
posted speed limit of 35 miles per hour.  Th e two-lane roadway 
has sidewalks along both sides and serves approximately 6,000 
vehicles per day.  Bike lanes are not provided.

•

•

•

Intersection Traffi c 
Control

Level of 
Service

Average 
Delay

Volume to 
Capacity

SW Murdock 
Road/Oregon 
Street

Roundabout A 7.3 0.68

SW Murdock 
Road/SE 
Willamette 
Street

2-Way Stop A/C -- --

SW Murdock 
Road/W 
Sunset 
Boulevard

All-Way Stop B 10.4 0.44

Existing PM Peak Hour Intersection Performance

Th e Sherwood Transportation System Plan requires local street 
connections to Denali Lane and Roy Street when the area 
develops.

•

Th e following table lists performance level of each of the three 
study intersections.  Th e three intersections in the study area are 
all operating at level-of-service (LOS) C or better, which meets 
the City of Sherwood LOS standard of LOS D.

•

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 23 of 122

118



Page  15Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

III. Alternatives
Th e Southeast Sherwood Master Plan was prepared through a process 
of preparing and refi ning alternatives.  Otak prepared four alternatives 
over the course of Open Houses 2 and 3, as follows:

Open House 2 – Alternatives A, B, and C were presented and 
discussed with attendees.  Comments on the plans were submitted 
during and following the Open House.  Comments received from 
this open house are summarized in appendix 3-b.  Th ese alternatives 
are described on the following pages.

Open House 3 – Following Open House 2, the City directed Otak 
to prepare a hybrid plan using: (1) the best features from Alternatives 
A, B, and C;  (2)  input received at Open House 2;  and, (3) an 
evaluation of how the plan could be refi ned to follow ownership 
boundaries as much as possible.  Alternative B/C emerged from this 
direction.  Alternative B/C is described in this report in Section IV, 
Recommended Plan.

In addition to the four alternatives prepared by Otak, fi ve other plans 
were created during the process.  Th ey include:

Citizen Alternatives – During Open House 3, a “Create Your Own 
Alternative” station was provided.  Th is station allowed attendees 
to analyze the site, discuss options, and draw their own alternative.  
Th is was a lively and creative session that resulted in the four plans 
included in appendix 4-d.

AKS Alternative – AKS Engineering, representing several of the 
property owners who desire to potentially develop their property, 
prepared an alternative.  Th is plan was brought to Open House 3, 
where AKS set up their own station and discussed the plan with 
attendees.  Th e AKS alternative is included in appendix 4-e. Figure 4 - “Create Your Own Alternative” - Example

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 24 of 122

119



Page  16

Alternative A
Alternative A was presented at both the second and third open 
houses.  Th e image shown to the right is the revised drawing, 
as shown at the third open house.  Highlights of Alternative A 
include:

54 new lots (+ 11 existing = 65 Total)

14 acres of open space

6.5 acres of local streets and alleys

Two main areas of open space:  a fi ve acre area located at the 
northern woodland and an eight acre corridor that connects 
and preserves treed areas to the wetland.

Retention of the Historic Murdock Barn as an open space 
tract.

A looping street pattern that follows the topography.  

Connections to existing streets are made at Denali Lane, 
Roy Street, and Ironwood Lane (south-bound left turn 
prohibited).

A pathway network connects all of the open spaces.  A mid-
block pedestrian crossing is provided on Murdock Road.

Lots ranging from 5,000 square feet to 1-acre.  

A gross density of 1.5 units/acre and a net density (net of 
existing lots) of 3.4 units/acre.

Th e layout of new lots does not conform to existing 
ownership boundaries – cooperation between property 
owners would be needed to process land use approvals.

Th is alternative could be developed under current zoning 
with a planned unit development (PUD) overlay.

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Figure 5 - Alternative A Plan View

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 25 of 122

120



Page  17

Alternative B
Highlights of Alternative B include:

83 new lots (+ 11 existing = 94 Total)

13 acres of open space

7.1 acres of local streets and alleys

Th ree main areas of open space:  a fi ve acre area located 
at the northern woodland, a one acre neighborhood park, 
and a six acre corridor that connects treed areas to the 
wetland.

Retention of the Historic Murdock Barn as an open space 
tract.

A looping street pattern that follows the topography and 
provides an edge to the park.  

Connections to existing streets are made at Denali Lane, 
Roy Street, and Ironwood Lane.  A fourth connection to 
Murdock Road is made at the north property line.

A pathway network connects all of the open spaces.  A 
mid-block pedestrian crossing is provided on Murdock 
Road.

Lots ranging from 5,000 square feet to 1-acre, with many 
lots in the 7,000 – 10,000 square foot range.  

A gross density of 2.3 units/acre and a net density (net of 
existing lots) of 5 units/acre.

Th e layout of new lots does not conform to existing 
ownership boundaries – cooperation between property 
owners would be needed to process land use approvals.

Th is alternative would require a text amendment to the 
VLDR zone district.

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Figure 6 - Alternative B Plan View

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 26 of 122

121



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  18

Alternative C
Highlights of Alternative C include:

80 new lots (+ 11 existing = 91 Total)

9 acres of open space

9.4 acres of local streets and alleys

Open spaces as follows:  a three acre area located at the 
northern woodland, two open space corridors, and a view 
point in the center of the site.

Retention of the Historic Murdock Barn as an open space 
tract.

A looping street pattern that follows the topography.  All 
new streets are double-loaded with lots.  

Connections to existing streets are made at Denali Lane, 
Roy Street, and Ironwood Lane.  An alley connection to 
Murdock Road is made at the north property line.

A pathway network connects all of the open spaces.  A 
mid-block pedestrian crossing is provided on Murdock 
Road.

Lots ranging from 5,600 square feet to 0.5-acre, with 
many lots in the 10,000 – 15,000 square foot range.  

A gross density of 2.2 units/acre and a net density (net of 
existing lots) of 4.4 units/acre.

Th e layout of new lots does not conform to existing 
ownership boundaries – cooperation between property 
owners would be needed to process land use approvals.

Th is alternative would require a text amendment to the 
VLDR zoning district.

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

• Figure 7 - Alternative C Plan View

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 27 of 122

122



Page  19Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Alternatives Comparison

Alternative A B C B/C
Total # of proposed lots 1 54 83 80 82
Acres of right-of-ways & alleys 6.5 7.1 9.4 7.1
Acres of open space 14 13 9 11
Gross Density 2 1.5 2.3 2.2 2.2
Net Density 3 3.35 5.03 4.39 4.43

Proposed lots - does not include 11 “existing” 1-acre lots.

Gross Density is equal to number of new lots divided by total acres of developable land.  Total acres of 
developed land does not include “existing” lots.  Roads, alleys, and open space have not been subtracted 
from total developable land.  Total developable land equals 36.6 acres.  

Net Density is equal to number of new lots divided by net acres of developable land (roads, alleys, and 
open space have been subtracted from total developable land area).  

1.

2.

3.

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 28 of 122

123



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  20

IV. Recommended Plan
Overall Character
Th e recommended plan (Alternative B/C) is a 55-acre 
neighborhood characterized by a mix of large- and medium-
lot homes, a variety of open spaces, and a network of streets 
and paths.  It is designed as a walkable neighborhood.  Th e 
design strikes a balance between compatibility with adjacent 
uses and densities that are characteristic of Sherwood’s low 
density neighborhoods.  Th e layout generally follows the 
existing ownership boundaries in order to facilitate future 
land use approvals.

Residential Density
Th e 82 new lots on this plan have an approximate gross 
density of 2.2 units per acre, not including existing lots.  Th e 
approximate net density is 4.4 units per acre, when streets 
and open space are not included.  Development of this 
plan would require a text change to the Sherwood Zoning 
and Development Code Very Low Density Residential 
(VLDR) zoning district to allow approval as a Planned Unit 
Development.  

Coordination with Existing Ownerships
Th e design of the neighborhood conforms very closely to the 
pattern of existing ownerships.  Wherever possible, existing 
parcel lines have been used as the boundary for streets or lots.  
Th is will enable separate land use approvals that, together, will 
knit into a cohesive neighborhood plan.  Some refi nements to 
the plan will be required during implementation.

Figure 8 - Alternative  B/C Plan View

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 29 of 122

124



Page  21Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Th e plan also has 11 lots on existing or future one acre parcels.  Th ese 
include the southwest corner and the four lots comprising Ironwood 
Estates, a subdivision approved in May 2004. Th e property owners 
in the southwest corner of the site do not want further subdivision of 
their properties.

Th e overall transition of lot sizes is a “transect” of increasing density 
from 1-acre lots in the southwest corner, to approximately 15,000 
square-foot new lots in the south and middle areas, to 8,000 – 10,000 
square feet in the north.  Th is method of design provides a buff er to 
the existing homes and intensifi es towards the center of the plan area, 
away from the existing neighborhood.  

Housing Variety
Th e plan includes 82 “new” lots, i.e. the colored lots illustrated on 
Figure 8.  Th ese comprise the undeveloped portions of the site.  Th e 
plan assumes that four existing homes would be redeveloped.  Two 
of these redeveloped homes (tax lots 2S 1 33 CB 200 and 300, see 
fi gure 2) are consistent with input received from property owners.  
With small refi nements, all four of these homes could be easily 
incorporated into the recommended plan.   

Figure 9 - Recommended Plan with existing homes and lot lines highlighted.

Figure 10 - Transect Diagram.
Th is diagram illustrates a complete application of transect design, from central city 
to rural edge.  Courtesy of Duany Plater - Zyberk & Company.

RURAL.....................................................TRANSECT..........................................URBAN

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 30 of 122

125



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  22

Murdock Road 2005 - looking south

Wetland in southeast corner of the site

Open Space
Th e plan includes 11 acres of open space that is woven throughout 
the neighborhood.  Th e main open space is 4.5 acres clustered in the 
northern wooded area.  Th is space is connected to Murdock Road 
by a green 25-50 foot-wide linear buff er of open space and walking 
path along the north edge of the site.  A one acre neighborhood park 
is located in the center of the neighborhood at the high point of the 
site.  Th is prominent location provides views (including an eastward 
view to Mt. Hood) and serves to organize the pattern of streets and 
lots around it.  Th e park is visually and physically connected to two 
open space tracts extending to the south and west.  

A grove of trees is preserved at the newly formed intersection of Roy 
Street and Murdock Road.  Th is location may also accommodate 
stormwater facilities.  Th e Murdock Barn is preserved and allows a 
subdivision of the parent parcel.  

Th e wetland area at the south end of Ironwood Estates is key open 
space.  It is a delineated wetland that is part of the lots recorded on 
the Ironwood Estates plat.  One of the off -road pedestrian paths 
extends along its west edge. 

Circulation
Th e streets form a connected system of blocks that follow the 
topography of the site.  Connections are made at Roy Street and 
Denali Lane, as required by the Sherwood Transportation System 
Plan.  A new connection to Murdock Road is proposed at the north 
end of the site.   Th e existing access to Murdock Road, Ironwood 
Lane, is illustrated with a prohibited south-bound left turn due 
to sight distance.  More site specifi c mapping is recommended to 
determine the degree of the sight distance problem.  It is likely that 
modifi cations to Murdock Road could improve the sight distance to 
allow for left turns from the site onto Murdock Road.  Th is is further 
described in the DKS Alternatives Transportation Analysis (appendix 
3-c).  Th ere are 7.1 acres of land dedicated to local streets and alleys.  

Th e street circulation is supplemented by a network of off -road 
pedestrian paths.  Th e paths form a walking loop around the north 
half of the site that connect all of the northern open spaces.  A path 
extends south from the neighborhood park to the wetlands and 
connects to the cul-de-sac at the north end of Robson Road.

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 31 of 122

126



Page  23Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Figure 12 - Local Green Street without ParkingFigure 11 - Local Green Street with Parking
28 feet wide with parking on one side
32 feet wide with parking on both sides

•
•

Green Streets
As part of a larger strategy for low impact infrastructure and 
development practices, green streets should be considered for 
Murdock Road and the local circulation within the Southeast 
Sherwood Master Plan area.  

Issues to be considered include accommodation of adequate 
parking on residential streets, the feasibility of soils and drainage 
characteristics, maintenance of green streets, and how green street 
storm water conveyance will work with other water quality facilities.  
Th ree green street cross sections (two local streets to use within 
the plan area and one for Murdock Road) have been prepared and 
are illustrated below. For additional information, the Metro Green 
Streets Handbook is available at http://www.metro-region.org/article.
cfm?ArticleID=262.

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 32 of 122

127



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  24

Figure 13 - Murdock Road Green Street Design, Cross- Section

Figure 14 - Murdock Road Green Street Design, Plan View

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 33 of 122

128



Page  25Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Green Street in Seattle Washington - Courtesy of Seattle’s pilot Street Edge Alternatives Project (SEA Streets)

Figure Courtesy of Green Streets - Innovative Solutions for Stormwater and Stream Crossings, METRO. 2002

Figure Courtesy of Green Streets - 
Innovative Solutions for Stormwater and 
Stream Crossings, METRO 2002.

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 34 of 122

129



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  26

Rationale for Recommended Plan
Th e recommended master plan is Alternative B/C as illustrated  
in Figure 15.  As described in previous sections of this report, 
this alternative grew out of the consideration of all of the other 
alternatives, plus commentary from participants in the process.  Th e 
following describes the reasons why Alternative B/C is recommended, 
using the project goals (in italics) as organizing criteria.

A. A pedestrian friendly transportation system that will link the 
site with nearby residential developments, parks, schools, commercial 
sites and other destinations.

All of the alternatives provide pedestrian friendly transportation 
systems to a strong degree.

Alternative B/C has the best balance of “public realm” circulation 
because of the connected and logical pattern of streets and alleys.

Alternative B/C also has an off -road path network that responds 
to site opportunities.

B. An increase in residential densities.

Developer and City representatives emphasized the need for 
providing suffi  cient density to feasibly pay for infrastructure.  
Alternative B/C provides an 82-lot design that also has signifi cant 
open space amenities.  Th is is less than the developer preferred 
plan (AKS plan - appendix 4-e) of 121 lots with far less open 
space. 

•

•

•

•

Citizen input emphasized a preference for larger lots.  Many 
citizens expressed a preference for the VLDR 1-acre zoning 
pattern.  In the third workshop, some citizens who previously 
supported 1-acre zoning stated they were open to a variation 
of Alternative A.  Alternative A is not recommended because 
it: (1) does not follow existing ownership lines, which 
makes coordinated land use approvals diffi  cult; (2) has a 
disproportionate amount of open space on a few properties; and 
(3) may not have enough density to pay for infrastructure.  

Alternative B/C incorporates a “transect” of lot sizes from 1-acre 
lots in the southwest corner, to approximately 15,000 square-foot 
new lots in the south and middle areas, and to 8,000 – 10,000 
square feet in the north.  Alternative B/C also incorporates varied 
open space amenities throughout the neighborhood – this is an 
essential design feature to enhance neighborhood livability. 

Alternative B/C includes similar lots sizes across streets and in 
sub-areas of the plan.  It also does not include 5,000 – 7,000 
square foot lot sizes.  Th ese elements are responsive to comments 
received in the workshops.

Alternative B/C provides 24 lots on the 12-acre Moser property at 
the north end of the site, while retaining a 4.5 acre open space in 
that location.  Th is design maintains base density available under 
a planned unit development approval procedure, while preserving 
an important open space and wildlife habitat area.

Alternative B/C follows existing lot lines as closely as the overall 
layout would allow.

•

•

•

•

•

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 35 of 122

130



Page  27Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Figure 15 - Alternative B/C Plan View

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 36 of 122

131



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  28

C. A land use plan that provides for a mix of housing types and is 
compatible with adjacent uses.

Alternative B/C achieves a mix of lots sizes, without very small 
lots (5,000 square foot lots) and without too much variation in 
sub-areas of the plan.  All lots are single-family detached, which is 
responsive to comments received at the fi rst workshop.  Accessory 
dwelling units would still be allowed.

At the south end of the site, the 15,000 square foot lot pattern is 
compatible with the 12,000 square foot lot pattern to the south.  
Th e height and specifi c location of buildings along the Denali 
Lane extension will be important.  Th e further east, and the lower 
in height, these homes are constructed, the less they will block 
eastward views from the adjacent home to the west.

At the north end of the site, a 25-50 foot buff er with trail has 
been included to increase compatibility with the 1-acre homes 
and mature vegetation of Fair Oaks Subdivision.  Th e large 
open space in this area is a key feature of Alternative B/C and 
ensures compatibility between the existing subdivision and new 
development.

Along Murdock Road, the lot arrangements will provide a 
friendly neighborhood character that is much more open and 
green than the existing character of the west side of the street, 
which is dominated by rear yard fences. 

•

•

•

•

D. Conceptual plans for public facilities (roads, paths, water, 
sewer and storm drainage) needed to support the land use plan.

As noted above, Alternative B/C provides an 82-lot density (in 
balance with open space) to enhance the feasibility of paying for 
infrastructure.

It provides a connected and clear pattern of public streets.

Engineering of stormwater facilities was not part of the scope 
for this neighborhood design process.  One or two lots within 
Alternative B/C may be needed for stormwater facilities.  Green 
streets and low impact development practices are recommended 
in order to reduce water-related impacts and the land area 
required for detention basins.

•

•

•

Figure 16 - Alternative B/C Perspective View

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 37 of 122

132



Page  29Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

F. A high level of neighborhood and citizen involvement.

Th is project included signifi cant involvement from project area 
owners and neighbors.  Well over 120 individuals attended all 
three workshops.   Further description of neighborhood and 
citizen involvement is described in Sections I and III of this report 
as well as in appendixes 2, 3, and 4.  

At the outset of the project, it was hoped that the large public 
involvement eff ort would result in a consensus plan with 
widespread support.  However, generally speaking, neighbors and 
citizens did not support Alternative B/C.  And although there 
was some neighborhood support for Alternative A, this alternative 
did not achieve the project goals.  Conversely, the AKS Plan is 
not supported by the City or neighbors.  Th e recommended plan 
responds to as many of the comments as possible and strikes a 
carefully considered balance between Alternative A and the AKS 
Plan.   

•

•

As noted in the transportation analysis, the City’s requirements 
for sight distance are not achieved at the intersection of the 
proposed southern access and Murdock Road.  However, the 
relocation of this intersection (as shown in Alternative B) was 
strongly opposed by all participants.  More site specifi c mapping 
is recommended to determine the degree of the sight distance 
problem.  It is likely that modifi cations to the alignment of 
Murdock Road will be needed, as described in the DKS report 
(appendix 2-d).

Alternative B/C includes a  1-acre hilltop park.  Th e park is 
recommended because of its unique location and value as a shared 
amenity for the neighborhood.  It is relatively close to Murdock 
Park to the west, but would provide passive park use and an 
alternative to having to cross Murdock Road to visit a local park.  
Th is park needs to be coordinated with the City’s Park Master 
Plan.  An alternative (not recommended) would be to reduce the 
space to about 0.25 acre and design it as a small viewpoint. 

E. Implementing strategies including map and text amendments 
for the City to adopt.

Implementing land use procedures and standards will be prepared 
by the City.

Alternative B/C follows existing ownership boundaries as closely 
as the overall layout would allow.  Th is increases the potential for 
the individual properties to be phased in over time and have the 
neighborhood “knit together” according to the plan.

•

•

•

•

Figure 17 - Alternative B/C Illustrated View of Park

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 38 of 122

133



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  30

Appendix

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 39 of 122

134



Page  31Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 1

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 40 of 122

135



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  32

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-a

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 41 of 122

136



Page  33Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

So
ut

he
as

t S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

M
as

te
r P

la
n

O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 #
 1

 - 
Ex

it 
Su

rv
ey

 R
es

po
ns

es
 

Ex
ist

in
g 

C
on

di
tio

ns
:

C
on

di
tio

ns
 in

 st
ud

y 
ar

ea
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 g
oo

d.
M

or
e 

un
its

/a
cr

e 
ha

s n
o 

op
tio

n 
fo

r s
pa

ce
 to

 d
o 

an
yt

hi
ng

 e
xc

ep
t e

xi
st.

  P
eo

pl
e 

w
al

k 
in

 o
ur

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
be

ca
us

e 
it 

is 
ki

nd
 o

f o
pe

n.
  W

he
n 

w
e 

w
er

e 
el

se
w

he
re

 w
e 

w
al

ke
d 

in
 th

e 
le

ss
 d

en
se

ly
 b

ui
lt 

ar
ea

s. 
 W

e 
ne

ed
 m

or
e 

op
en

 sp
ac

e,
 

H
O

W
EV

ER
 w

e 
m

us
t b

e 
w

ill
in

g 
to

 a
cq

ui
re

d 
it 

– 
bu

y, 
gi

ft,
 w

ill
 o

r s
om

e 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
.

JC
 R

ee
ve

s D
ev

. R
oa

d 
pr

op
os

al
 to

 g
o 

th
ro

ug
h 

D
en

al
i L

an
e 

N
or

th
 h

as
 a

 h
ug

e 
iss

ue
 d

ue
 to

 st
ee

p 
slo

pe
s (

ar
ou

nd
 

25
%

). 
 A

lte
rn

at
e 

pr
op

os
al

 to
 g

o 
th

ro
ug

h 
Ro

bs
on

 is
 u

nr
ea

lis
tic

 d
ue

 to
 w

et
la

nd
 (c

he
ck

 1
00

 y
ea

r fl
 o

od
 p

la
in

 –
 it

’s 
m

uc
h 

br
oa

de
r t

ha
n 

m
ap

 a
t m

ee
tin

g 
sh

ow
s)

.

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n:
I w

ou
ld

 p
re

fe
r m

os
t t

ra
ns

po
rt

at
io

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 to

 b
e 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

tr
affi

  c
 fl 

ow
 o

n 
Tu

al
at

in
 –

 S
he

rw
oo

d 
ro

ad
.  

Th 
at

 is
 th

e 
gr

ea
te

st 
pr

ob
le

m
 re

la
te

d 
to

 g
ro

w
th

 in
 m

y 
es

tim
at

io
n/

pe
rs

pe
ct

iv
e.

W
e’l

l n
ee

d 
so

m
e 

pu
bl

ic
 tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 m
or

e 
pa

rk
 a

nd
 ri

de
 sp

ac
e.

To
 p

ut
 ro

ad
 in

 th
ro

ug
h 

D
en

al
i L

an
e 

w
ill

 re
qu

ire
 m

aj
or

 re
ta

in
in

g 
w

al
ls 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 g

ra
de

 sl
op

e 
fo

r r
oa

d.
  I

n 
th

e 
en

d,
 it

 w
ou

ld
 re

se
m

bl
e 

a 
tu

nn
el

 m
in

us
 th

e 
ro

of
.  

Is
 th

at
 g

oi
ng

 to
 b

e 
co

st-
eff

 e
ct

iv
e?

Fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 A

sk
ed

 Q
ue

sti
on

s:
Yo

u 
ha

ve
 su

ch
 a

 B
IG

 lo
t –

 a
re

 th
er

e 
an

y 
m

or
e 

ar
ou

nd
 h

er
e?

 is
 o

ne
 q

ue
sti

on
.  

An
ot

he
r f

ru
str

at
ed

 re
m

ar
k 

is 
– 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 o
ne

-s
to

ry
 h

ou
se

s t
o 

be
 fo

un
d 

an
yw

he
re

!
W

he
n 

W
oo

dh
av

en
 w

as
 d

ev
el

op
ed

, t
he

 a
re

a 
w

as
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

w
ith

 g
re

en
 sp

ac
es

, w
al

ki
ng

 tr
ai

ls 
an

d 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l a
re

a/
pa

rk
s. 

 H
ow

 c
om

e 
JC

 R
ee

ve
s d

id
n’t

 h
av

e 
to

 p
ut

 a
ny

th
in

g 
in

to
 h

is 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
ha

t w
ou

ld
 b

e 
fo

r t
he

 b
en

efi
 t 

of
 

th
e 

en
tir

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

?

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
D

es
ig

n:
Th 

is 
stu

dy
 a

re
a 

ne
ed

s l
ar

ge
 lo

ts 
an

d 
lo

w
 d

en
sit

y 
du

e 
to

 it
s u

ni
qu

e 
te

rr
ai

n.
  W

ha
te

ve
r i

s d
ec

id
ed

 in
 th

e 
en

d,
 b

e 
su

re
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 th
e 

fo
re

ste
d 

ar
ea

s i
n 

th
is 

stu
dy

 a
re

a.
A 

m
ix

 o
f a

pt
/c

on
do

, l
ar

ge
 2

 st
or

y 
ho

m
es

, o
ne

 st
or

y, 
so

m
e 

la
rg

er
 lo

ts.
  S

un
se

t P
ar

k 
is 

gr
ea

t b
ut

 a
 tr

ee
 fi 

lle
d 

pa
rk

 
th

at
 o

ff e
rs

 su
m

m
er

 sh
ad

e 
an

d 
pi

cn
ic

 p
os

sib
ili

tie
s f

or
 a

pt
/c

on
do

 d
w

el
le

rs
 a

nd
 w

al
ki

ng
/r

un
ni

ng
 p

at
hs

 is
 p

ar
t o

f a
 

“n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d.
” 

 S
om

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 w

en
t i

nt
o 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f L
ak

e 
O

sw
eg

o 
– 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
lo

ts 
of

 tr
ee

s a
nd

 sp
ac

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ho

us
es

.  
I d

on
’t 

fe
el

 th
at

 I 
ne

ed
 to

 “
ke

ep
 m

y 
el

bo
w

s i
n”

 a
s I

’m
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 to
 h

er
e.

I b
el

ie
ve

 JC
 R

ee
ve

s s
ho

ul
d 

co
ns

id
er

 se
lli

ng
 b

ac
k 

th
at

 p
or

tio
n 

(3
.7

 a
cr

es
) n

or
th

 o
f e

xi
sti

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

 C
ity

 
sh

ou
ld

 c
on

sid
er

 w
al

ki
ng

 tr
ai

ls/
pa

rk
 (n

at
ur

e)
 to

 “c
on

ne
ct

” 
ar

ea
s r

at
he

r t
ha

n 
a 

ro
ad

.  
Bu

ild
in

g 
m

or
e 

ho
us

es
 d

ire
ct

ly
 

ab
ou

t (
w

es
t) 

of
 w

et
la

nd
, a

s J
C

 R
ee

ve
s i

nt
en

ds
, w

ill
 d

es
tro

y 
w

et
la

nd
 d

ue
 to

 fe
rt

ili
ze

rs
/p

es
tic

id
es

 ru
n-

off
  f

ro
m

 
la

w
ns

.  
Th 

is 
is 

an
 e

xt
re

m
el

y 
vi

ab
le

 w
et

la
nd

.  
Th 

e 
“p

on
d”

 is
 h

om
e 

to
 m

an
y 

di
ff e

re
nt

 v
ar

ie
tie

s o
f b

ird
s d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
w

in
te

r a
nd

 sp
rin

g 
m

on
th

s. 
 D

ee
r a

nd
 c

oy
ot

es
 a

s w
el

l a
s o

th
er

 w
ild

lif
e,

 fr
eq

ue
nt

 th
is 

ar
ea

.

O
th

er
:

Th 
is 

op
en

 h
ou

se
 w

as
 a

 g
oo

d 
id

ea
 to

 o
pe

n 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
fl o

w.
C

on
ce

rn
 w

ith
 a

ny
 h

ig
h 

de
ns

ity
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

ap
ar

tm
en

ts 
to

w
n 

ho
us

es
, e

tc
.

Al
so

, t
he

 w
et

la
nd

s a
nd

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
be

tw
ee

n 
To

nq
ui

n 
an

d 
th

e 
w

es
t e

dg
e 

of
 M

et
ro

 B
ou

nd
ar

y.
M

aj
or

 C
on

ce
rn

 –
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

w
et

la
nd

s i
f l

an
d 

be
co

m
es

 su
bd

iv
isi

on
 w

ith
 h

ig
h 

de
ns

ity
 –

 m
us

t p
ro

te
ct

 th
e 

w
ild

lif
e 

an
d 

w
et

la
nd

s.
W

e 
do

n’t
 w

an
t t

o 
lo

os
e 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 o
ur

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 n
ei

gh
bo

rs
 o

r t
re

es
.

Al
m

os
t e

ve
ry

th
in

g 
be

in
g 

bu
ilt

 fo
r t

he
 “y

ou
ng

er
” 

se
t –

 tw
o 

or
 m

or
e 

sto
ry

 p
la

ce
s, 

et
c.

Th 
e 

ar
ea

 in
 q

ue
sti

on
 sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 h

ou
se

 p
er

 a
cr

es
.  

Pe
op

le
 in

 F
ai

ro
ak

s’ 
an

d 
Ir

on
w

oo
d’

s 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts 
cu

sto
m

-b
ui

lt 
ho

m
es

 th
er

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

th
at

 it
 w

as
 zo

ne
d 

as
 su

ch
.  

It 
w

ou
ld

n’t
 b

e 
et

hi
ca

l t
o 

re
-z

on
e 

sin
ce

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f t

ho
se

 p
eo

pl
e 

do
n’t

 w
an

t i
t r

ez
on

ed
 (2

 d
ev

el
op

er
s o

w
ni

ng
 8

5%
 o

f t
he

 la
nd

 k
no

w
in

g 
it 

w
as

 zo
ne

d 
as

 su
ch

). 
 In

 fa
ct

 P.
 H

us
ke

 b
ui

lt 
ho

m
es

 fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
us

in
g 

th
at

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

in
 h

is 
fa

vo
r t

o 
en

tic
e 

pe
op

le
 

to
 b

uy
 in

to
 h

is 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-b

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 42 of 122

137



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  34

So
ut

he
as

t S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

M
as

te
r P

la
n

O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 #
1 

W
rit

te
n 

C
om

m
en

ts 
Re

ce
iv

ed

C
ur

t P
et

er
so

n
C

on
ce

rn
ed

 a
bo

ut
 u

ni
qu

e 
ge

ol
og

ic
 fe

at
ur

es
 –

 T
on

qu
in

 S
ca

bl
an

ds
.

C
on

ce
rn

ed
 a

bo
ut

 w
ild

lif
e 

ha
bi

ta
t a

nd
 m

ig
ra

tio
n.

W
ou

ld
 p

re
fe

r V
LD

R
 D

en
sit

y 
re

ta
in

ed
.

N
ot

 e
no

ug
h 

te
ch

ni
ca

l k
no

w
le

dg
e 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
cr

ea
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

m
as

te
r p

la
n 

(i.
e.

 n
ee

ds
 m

or
e 

ge
ol

og
ic

 
stu

di
es

, e
tc

). 
 

C
ar

ol
yn

 P
et

er
so

n
Th 

e 
ov

er
al

l p
la

n 
th

em
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
Lo

w
 Im

pa
ct

 to
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t c
iti

ze
ns

 o
f S

he
rw

oo
d 

an
d 

lo
w

 d
en

sit
y 

zo
ni

ng
 sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

pr
es

er
ve

d.
  

D
ue

 to
 th

e 
un

us
ua

l n
at

ur
al

 la
nd

sc
ap

e 
an

d 
w

oo
dl

an
ds

, a
ny

 p
la

n 
sh

ou
ld

 o
nl

y 
al

lo
w

 n
at

ur
al

 la
nd

sc
ap

in
g 

an
d 

na
tiv

e 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n.

  T
ra

di
tio

na
l l

aw
ns

 a
nd

 n
on

-n
at

iv
e 

pl
an

ts 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
in

im
ize

d.
  

C
ut

 a
nd

 fi 
lli

ng
 o

f t
op

og
ra

ph
y 

m
us

t b
e 

m
in

im
ize

d.
  

Fe
nc

in
g 

th
at

 in
hi

bi
ts 

m
ov

em
en

t o
f w

ild
lif

e 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

.  
Th 

es
e 

ty
pe

s o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

s w
ill

 le
ss

en
 p

ol
lu

tio
n 

to
 th

e 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 T

on
qu

in
 w

et
la

nd
s a

nd
 g

ro
un

dw
at

er
.

Th 
er

e 
is 

no
 n

ee
d 

fo
r a

n 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
ne

ct
ed

 ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k 
th

at
 in

hi
bi

ts 
th

e 
m

ov
em

en
t o

f w
ild

lif
e 

an
d 

di
sc

ou
ra

ge
s p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
.  

Bi
ke

 a
nd

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

tr
ia

ls 
ca

n 
in

te
rc

on
ne

ct
 th

e 
ar

ea
s. 

 Th
 e

se
s s

am
e 

tr
ai

ls 
ca

n 
be

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 a
llo

w
 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
ac

ce
ss

.
Th 

e 
pl

an
 to

 tu
rn

 M
ur

do
ck

 R
oa

d 
in

to
 a

no
th

er
 th

re
e 

la
nd

 D
ay

 R
oa

d 
is 

a 
hi

gh
 p

ric
e 

fo
r t

he
 c

iti
ze

ns
 o

f 
Sh

er
w

oo
d 

to
 p

ay
 fo

r c
on

tin
ue

d 
un

re
str

ai
ne

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
Be

 a
 le

ad
er

 fo
r l

ow
 im

pa
ct

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

M
et

ro
 a

re
a.

K
ur

t K
ris

te
ns

en
Se

t a
sid

e 
m

as
te

r p
la

n 
un

til
 U

G
B 

ex
te

nd
ed

 to
 w

et
la

nd
 h

ig
h 

m
ar

k 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

bl
uff

  p
ar

al
le

l w
ith

 R
oc

k 
C

re
ek

 (w
ith

 M
et

ro
 c

ol
la

bo
ra

tio
n)

.
H

av
e 

m
or

e 
co

lla
bo

ra
tiv

e 
pr

oc
es

s i
nc

lu
di

ng
: M

et
ro

, F
ed

er
al

 W
ild

lif
e 

Re
fu

ge
, N

ei
gh

bo
rs

 a
nd

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f b

lu
ff  

pr
op

er
ty

, W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

co
m

m
iss

io
ne

rs
.  

Ar
ea

 is
 to

o 
se

ns
iti

ve
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
t h

ig
he

r d
en

sit
y 

th
an

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 zo

ne
d.

C
ity

 fa
vo

rs
 d

ev
el

op
er

s o
ve

r r
es

id
en

ts.
M

ur
do

ck
 R

oa
d 

do
es

 n
ot

 n
ee

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts.

Ro
ge

r a
nd

 L
isa

 W
al

ke
r

C
on

ce
rn

ed
 a

bo
ut

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
pe

de
str

ia
n 

an
d 

ve
hi

cu
la

r t
ra

ffi  
c

C
on

ce
rn

ed
 a

bo
ut

 lo
ss

 o
f w

ild
lif

e,
 v

ie
w,

 a
nd

 n
at

ur
al

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.

W
ou

ld
 li

ke
 C

ity
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
di

ve
rs

e 
lo

t s
ize

s b
y 

re
ta

in
in

g 
la

rg
e 

lo
t z

on
in

g 
in

 th
is 

ar
ea

 (m
in

im
um

 1
 

un
it/

ac
re

).
N

on
-r

es
id

en
t l

an
d 

ow
ne

rs
 a

re
 p

us
hi

ng
 th

e 
ne

ed
 fo

r a
 re

zo
ne

.
D

o 
no

t m
ak

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts 
to

 M
ur

do
ck

 R
oa

d 
th

at
 w

ou
ld

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 it

s u
se

 a
s a

 b
yp

as
s r

oa
d 

to
 

Tu
al

at
in

-S
he

rw
oo

d 
Ro

ad
.

Bu
ff e

r e
xi

sti
ng

 h
om

es
 w

ith
 la

rg
e 

ne
w

 h
om

es
, p

ar
ks

, o
r w

et
la

nd
s.

Re
qu

ire
 h

ei
gh

t a
nd

 se
tb

ac
ks

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 e

xi
sti

ng
 h

om
es

 a
nd

 v
ie

w
s.

Av
oi

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
on

 st
ee

p 
pr

op
er

ty
.

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-b

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 43 of 122

138



Page  35Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

So
ut

he
as

t S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

M
as

te
r P

la
n

O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 #
1 

W
rit

te
n 

C
om

m
en

ts 
Re

ce
iv

ed
 - 

C
on

tin
ue

d

Ru
fa

un
a 

C
ra

ig
m

ile
s (

Ro
ni

)
Th 

e 
M

et
ro

 L
on

g-
R

an
ge

 G
ro

w
th

 P
la

n 
of

 2
04

0 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 d
iv

er
sit

y 
of

 h
ou

sin
g 

an
d 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
of

 n
at

ur
al

 
ar

ea
s k

ey
 is

su
es

.
To

 m
y 

kn
ow

le
dg

e,
 th

e 
co

m
pa

ra
tiv

el
y 

sm
al

l a
re

a 
of

 v
er

y 
lo

w
-d

en
sit

y 
zo

ni
ng

 th
at

 e
xi

sts
 e

as
t o

f M
ur

do
ck

 
re

pr
es

en
ts 

th
e 

on
ly

 o
ne

-a
cr

e 
lo

ts 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r h

om
es

 in
 th

e 
Sh

er
w

oo
d 

ci
ty

 b
ou

nd
ar

y. 
If 

th
is 

is 
tr

ue
, w

e 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

ou
r l

as
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 th
em

. Th
 e

 a
re

a 
un

de
r c

on
sid

er
at

io
n 

fo
r r

ez
on

in
g 

is 
pa

rt
ia

lly
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
w

ith
 h

om
es

 o
n 

ac
re

 o
r l

ar
ge

r l
ot

s.
M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 th

e 
in

te
gr

ity
 o

f t
he

 e
xi

sti
ng

 h
om

es
 is

 im
po

rt
an

t. 
An

y 
fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 

do
ne

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

es
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 o
w

ne
rs

 a
s w

el
l a

s t
o 

ad
dr

es
s c

on
ce

rn
s o

ve
r t

he
 w

ild
lif

e,
 w

et
la

nd
s a

nd
 

ve
ge

ta
tio

n 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

. Z
on

in
g 

to
 a

llo
w

 le
ss

 th
an

 a
cr

e 
lo

ts 
w

ou
ld

 d
es

tro
y 

th
e 

la
st 

ch
an

ce
 to

 o
ff e

r 
Sh

er
w

oo
d 

th
is 

le
ve

l o
f d

iv
er

sit
y 

an
d 

w
ou

ld
 h

ar
m

 th
e 

na
tu

ra
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t.
M

ur
do

ck
 R

oa
d 

ne
ed

s s
om

e 
at

te
nt

io
n 

w
ith

ou
t q

ue
sti

on
. R

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
 a

nd
 m

ay
be

 a
 le

ft 
ha

nd
 tu

rn
 la

ne
 

fo
r s

af
et

y 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ni
ce

.  
I w

ou
ld

 n
ot

, h
ow

ev
er

, l
ik

e 
to

 se
e 

it 
tu

rn
ed

 in
to

 a
 th

or
ou

gh
fa

re
 c

on
ne

ct
in

g 
Tu

al
at

in
 S

he
rw

oo
d 

H
ig

hw
ay

 a
nd

 S
un

se
t. 

Th 
is 

co
ul

d 
ea

sil
y 

be
co

m
e 

a 
by

-p
as

s f
ro

m
 O

re
go

n 
to

 9
9W

 a
nd

 
cr

ea
te

 a
 tr

affi
  c

 R
uf

au
na

 C
ra

ig
m

ile
s (

Ro
ni

)
Fe

ed
ba

ck
 F

or
m

 F
or

m
at

Th 
e 

M
et

ro
 L

on
g-

R
an

ge
 G

ro
w

th
 P

la
n 

of
 2

04
0 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 d

iv
er

sit
y 

of
 h

ou
sin

g 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

of
 n

at
ur

al
 

ar
ea

s k
ey

 is
su

es
.

To
 m

y 
kn

ow
le

dg
e,

 th
e 

co
m

pa
ra

tiv
el

y 
sm

al
l a

re
a 

of
 v

er
y 

lo
w

-d
en

sit
y 

zo
ni

ng
 th

at
 e

xi
sts

 e
as

t o
f M

ur
do

ck
 

re
pr

es
en

ts 
th

e 
on

ly
 o

ne
-a

cr
e 

lo
ts 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r h
om

es
 in

 th
e 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
ci

ty
 b

ou
nd

ar
y. 

If 
th

is 
is 

tr
ue

, w
e 

m
ay

 h
av

e 
ou

r l
as

t o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

em
. Th

 e
 a

re
a 

un
de

r c
on

sid
er

at
io

n 
fo

r r
ez

on
in

g 
is 

pa
rt

ia
lly

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

w
ith

 h
om

es
 o

n 
ac

re
 o

r l
ar

ge
r l

ot
s.

M
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 th
e 

in
te

gr
ity

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
sti

ng
 h

om
es

 is
 im

po
rt

an
t. 

An
y 

fu
tu

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
do

ne
 to

 p
ro

te
ct

 th
es

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

w
ne

rs
 a

s w
el

l a
s t

o 
ad

dr
es

s c
on

ce
rn

s o
ve

r t
he

 w
ild

lif
e,

 w
et

la
nd

s a
nd

 
ve

ge
ta

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
. Z

on
in

g 
to

 a
llo

w
 le

ss
 th

an
 a

cr
e 

lo
ts 

w
ou

ld
 d

es
tro

y 
th

e 
la

st 
ch

an
ce

 to
 o

ff e
r 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
th

is 
le

ve
l o

f d
iv

er
sit

y 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 h
ar

m
 th

e 
na

tu
ra

l e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.

M
ur

do
ck

 R
oa

d 
ne

ed
s s

om
e 

at
te

nt
io

n 
w

ith
ou

t q
ue

sti
on

. R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

 a
nd

 m
ay

be
 a

 le
ft 

ha
nd

 tu
rn

 la
ne

 
fo

r s
af

et
y 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ni

ce
.  

I w
ou

ld
 n

ot
, h

ow
ev

er
, l

ik
e 

to
 se

e 
it 

tu
rn

ed
 in

to
 a

 th
or

ou
gh

fa
re

 c
on

ne
ct

in
g 

Tu
al

at
in

 S
he

rw
oo

d 
H

ig
hw

ay
 a

nd
 S

un
se

t. 
Th 

is 
co

ul
d 

ea
sil

y 
be

co
m

e 
a 

by
-p

as
s f

ro
m

 O
re

go
n 

to
 9

9W
 a

nd
 

cr
ea

te
 a

 tr
affi

  c
 n

ig
ht

m
ar

e 
fo

r l
oc

al
 re

sid
en

ts.
 If

 fu
tu

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ar

ea
 w

er
e 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 p

re
se

nt
 

zo
ni

ng
 re

str
ic

tio
ns

, t
he

 p
re

se
nt

 st
re

et
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 w
ith

 g
en

er
al

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

.
Bu

ff e
r e

xi
sti

ng
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s w
ith

 p
ar

ks
 a

nd
 w

et
la

nd
s. 

C
ha

ng
e 

sit
in

g 
of

 D
en

al
i t

o 
th

e 
ea

st 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 
ex

ist
in

g 
w

et
la

nd
s.

Re
qu

ire
 se

tb
ac

ks
 a

nd
 h

ei
gh

t r
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 in
 c

on
sid

er
at

io
n 

of
 e

xi
sti

ng
 h

ou
se

s a
nd

 v
ie

w
 p

ro
pe

rt
y.

Av
oi

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
on

 st
ee

p 
pr

op
er

ty
. S

lid
es

 a
nd

 e
ro

sio
n 

po
te

nt
ia

l c
ou

ld
 b

e 
ha

rm
fu

l t
o 

th
e 

ar
ea

 in
 g

en
er

al
. 

U
se

 th
is 

pr
op

er
ty

 fo
r g

re
en

 sp
ac

es
.

G
ar

y 
H

un
tin

gt
on

M
in

im
um

 1
 u

ni
t/a

cr
e 

zo
ni

ng
, e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 o
n 

ex
ist

in
g 

3 
ac

re
s b

et
w

ee
n 

Ir
on

w
oo

d 
H

om
es

 a
nd

 S
he

rw
oo

d 
V

ie
w

 E
sta

te
s (

C
hi

nn
 P

ro
pe

rt
y)

.  
If 

hi
gh

er
 d

en
sit

y 
al

lo
w

ed
, i

t s
ho

ul
d 

be
 p

la
ce

d 
in

 c
en

te
r o

f p
ro

pe
rt

y. 
 

H
om

es
 sh

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

m
in

im
um

 si
ze

 to
 b

e 
co

ns
ist

en
t w

ith
 e

xi
sti

ng
 h

om
es

 in
 su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
su

bd
iv

isi
on

s. 
 

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-b

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 44 of 122

139



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  36

So
ut

he
as

t S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

M
as

te
r P

la
n

O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 #
1 

W
rit

te
n 

C
om

m
en

ts 
Re

ce
iv

ed
 - 

C
on

tin
ue

d

 M
ar

tin
 J.

 G
av

in
Su

pp
or

ts 
m

in
im

um
 o

ne
 a

cr
e 

zo
ni

ng
.

M
ur

do
ck

 R
oa

d 
tr

affi
  c

 h
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
gr

ea
tly

 o
ve

r l
as

t 1
0 

ye
ar

s a
nd

 n
ew

 re
sid

en
tia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 a
dd

 
to

 th
e 

tr
affi

  c
 re

su
lti

ng
 in

 ri
gh

t o
f w

ay
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts 
th

at
 m

ay
 e

nc
ro

ac
h 

up
on

 th
ei

r p
ro

pe
rt

y.
Va

lu
es

 h
ea

vi
ly

 w
oo

de
d 

ar
ea

 o
n 

no
rt

h 
en

d 
of

 si
te

.  
C

on
ce

rn
ed

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t w
ill

 h
av

e 
on

 w
ild

lif
e.

W
hy

 is
 th

er
e 

a 
fo

cu
s o

n 
So

ut
he

as
t S

he
rw

oo
d 

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 o
n 

ot
he

r a
re

as
 o

f t
ow

n 
th

at
 

ne
ed

 p
la

nn
in

g?
W

hy
 is

 S
he

rw
oo

d 
no

t f
oc

us
in

g 
on

 a
 g

re
at

er
 m

ix
 o

f u
se

s o
ve

ra
ll 

(jo
bs

/r
es

id
en

tia
l/c

om
m

er
ci

al
)?

Th 
e 

C
ity

 sh
ou

ld
 p

la
ce

 a
 h

ig
he

r p
rio

rit
y 

on
 su

sta
in

ab
le

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
an

d 
re

ne
w

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

 a
nd

 
be

 a
n 

ex
am

pl
e 

fo
r o

th
er

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

.  
Th 

e 
C

ity
 sh

ou
ld

 p
re

se
rv

e 
th

is 
la

nd
.  

N
an

cy
 a

nd
 M

ar
k 

Ba
tz

Th 
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

 o
f a

ny
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t m

us
t b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 th

is 
ex

tre
m

el
y 

se
ns

iti
ve

 a
re

a.
  

C
on

ce
rn

ed
 th

at
 lo

w
 d

en
sit

y 
re

sid
en

tia
l i

s n
ot

 b
ei

ng
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 a
s p

ar
t o

f t
he

 m
as

te
r p

la
nn

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s. 

 

Je
an

 L
af

ay
et

te
 –

 P
la

nn
in

g 
C

om
m

iss
io

ne
r

Su
m

m
ar

y 
of

 c
om

m
en

ts 
he

ar
d 

at
 o

pe
n 

ho
us

e:
Jo

hn
 M

cK
in

ne
y 

w
an

ts 
to

 k
ee

p 
la

rg
e 

lo
ts.

  N
o 

le
ss

 th
an

 1
/4

 o
f a

n 
ac

re
.

G
ai

l T
oi

en
 re

qu
es

te
d 

m
or

e 
ad

ul
t o

rie
nt

ed
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

pa
rk

s.
D

an
 Ja

m
im

es
on

, S
ch

oo
l D

ist
ric

t S
up

er
., 

ex
pr

es
se

d 
co

nc
er

ns
 o

n 
sid

ew
al

k 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 o

n 
Su

ns
et

 n
ea

r t
he

 sc
ho

ol
.

W
ha

t’s
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t r
ig

ht
 o

f w
ay

?  
H

ow
 m

uc
h 

w
ill

 th
e 

ci
ty

 ta
ke

 a
nd

 fr
om

 w
hi

ch
 si

de
 o

f t
he

 ro
ad

?
W

hy
 is

 th
is 

a 
ci

ty
 p

rio
rit

y?
  Th

 e
re

 a
re

 m
an

y 
ot

he
r t

hi
ng

s t
ha

t n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d.
Fu

tu
re

 n
ot

ic
es

.  
Pl

ea
se

 c
on

fi r
m

 th
at

 if
 th

ey
 si

gn
ed

 in
 fu

tu
re

 n
ot

ic
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ai

le
d 

di
re

ct
ly

 to
 th

em
.

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

t e
xi

sti
ng

 o
w

ne
rs

.  
Bo

ug
ht

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
V

LD
R

 a
dj

ac
en

t.
Th 

is 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ke
pt

 V
LD

R
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 d
iv

er
sit

y. 
 Th

 e
 o

nl
y 

on
e 

ac
re

 lo
ts 

in
 th

e 
ci

ty
.

D
on

’t 
ch

an
ge

 zo
ne

 to
 b

ui
ld

.
N

ee
d 

to
 c

on
sid

er
 w

ild
lif

e 
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

.  
Th 

is 
is 

ne
ar

 (n
ex

t t
o?

) a
re

as
 th

at
 th

e T
ua

la
tin

 W
ild

lif
e 

Re
fu

ge
 is

 
in

te
re

ste
d 

in
 p

ro
te

ct
in

g.
W

e 
di

sc
us

se
d 

pr
ot

ec
tin

g 
ex

ist
in

g 
ho

m
e 

ow
ne

rs
 b

y 
sm

ar
t p

la
nn

in
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t d

en
sit

y 
in

 th
e 

ce
nt

er
 

of
 th

e 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 th

e 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 la
rg

er
 lo

ts.
 

Th 
er

e 
w

as
 a

lso
 c

on
ce

rn
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

ci
ty

’s 
go

al
 fo

r d
ev

el
op

in
g 

th
is 

at
 a

 h
ig

he
r d

en
sit

y 
th

an
 it

s c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

zo
ne

d.
  “

W
ha

t’s
 th

e 
ci

ty
 g

et
tin

g 
ou

t o
f t

hi
s?

”

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-b

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 45 of 122

140



Page  37Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-c

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 46 of 122

141



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  38

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-c

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 47 of 122

142



Page  39Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
Ap

pe
nd

ix
 2

-d

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 48 of 122

143



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  40

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-d

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 49 of 122

144



Page  41Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-d

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 50 of 122

145



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  42

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-e

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 51 of 122

146



Page  43Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-e

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 52 of 122

147



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  44

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-e

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 53 of 122

148



Page  45Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-e

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 54 of 122

149



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  46

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-e

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 55 of 122

150



Page  47Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-e

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 56 of 122

151



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  48

Appendix 2-e

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 57 of 122

152



Page  49Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 2
-e

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 58 of 122

153



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  50

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
-a

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 59 of 122

154



Page  51Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

So
ut

he
as

t S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

M
as

te
r P

la
n

O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 #
2 

– 
Su

rv
ey

 R
es

po
ns

e

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

A 
(o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 lo

t s
ize

, t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

ne
tw

or
k,

 e
tc

.):
To

o 
m

uc
h 

lo
t s

ize
 v

ar
ia

tio
n 

– 
to

o 
m

uc
h 

ho
us

e 
siz

e 
va

ria
tio

n 
w

ou
ld

 re
su

lt.
  

D
on

’t 
lik

e 
th

e 
tin

y 
lo

t c
irc

le
s i

f y
ou

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
at

, l
ik

e 
op

en
 sp

ac
e 

ne
ar

 U
G

B.
D

on
’t 

lik
e 

al
le

ys
.

M
ak

e 
th

es
e 

lo
ts 

fe
w

er
 a

nd
 b

ig
ge

r.
N

ot
hi

ng
 <

 1
0,

00
0’

 lo
ts.

I l
ik

e 
th

is 
pl

an
 th

e 
be

st.
  

O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e 

ex
ce

ss
iv

e.
N

ot
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e.
 

Th 
is 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

do
es

 n
ot

 ta
ke

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 th
e 

in
pu

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
m

aj
or

ity
 o

f t
he

 w
or

ks
ho

p 
pa

rt
ic

ip
an

ts 
to

 le
av

e 
th

is 
ar

ea
 a

s i
t, 

or
 a

t t
he

 m
in

im
um

 su
bd

iv
id

in
g 

it 
in

to
 o

ne
 a

cr
e 

lo
ts 

w
ith

 5
0%

 fo
r o

pe
n/

na
tu

ra
l 

sp
ac

e.
M

in
im

um
 lo

t s
ize

 1
0K

 to
 1

2K
 sf

.
D

en
al

i s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

ul
-d

e-
sa

c 
to

 p
re

se
rv

e 
Sh

er
w

oo
d 

V
ie

w
 E

sta
te

s a
s w

as
 o

rig
in

al
ly

 p
la

nn
ed

 w
he

n 
re

sid
en

ts 
bo

ug
ht

 p
ro

pe
rt

y.

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

B 
(o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 lo

t s
ize

, t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

ne
tw

or
k,

 e
tc

.):
To

o 
m

an
y 

sm
al

l l
ot

s.
D

on
’t 

lik
e 

al
le

ys
.

D
on

’t 
lik

e 
th

e 
m

ix
 o

f l
ot

 si
ze

s.
N

ot
hi

ng
 le

ss
 th

an
 1

0,
00

0’
 lo

ts.
Re

je
ct

.
H

av
in

g 
no

 le
ft 

tu
rn

 a
llo

w
ed

 o
nt

o 
M

ur
do

ck
 fr

om
 th

e 
SE

 S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

(n
ea

r t
he

 M
ur

do
ck

 
ba

rn
) w

ill
 c

au
se

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
tr

affi
  c

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
V

ie
w

 E
sta

te
s n

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d.

  Th
 a

t i
s a

 b
ig

 
co

nc
er

n.
O

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
ex

ce
ss

iv
e.

Ro
ad

 a
t e

nt
ra

nc
e 

ru
ns

 th
ru

 w
et

la
nd

s.
Be

st 
pl

an
 fo

r v
ie

w
 lo

ts.
N

ot
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e.
Su

bd
iv

id
in

g 
th

is 
ar

ea
 in

to
 9

1 
lo

ts 
w

ou
ld

 to
ta

lly
 d

es
tro

y 
th

e 
na

tu
ra

l b
ea

ut
y. 

 Th
 i

s a
re

 is
 u

ni
qu

e 
an

d 
sh

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
in

 th
is 

m
an

ne
r. 

 C
ha

ng
in

g 
th

e 
zo

ni
ng

 w
ou

ld
 g

o 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 p
ub

lic
 in

pu
t a

nd
 

th
e 

be
st 

in
te

re
st 

of
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l S
he

rw
oo

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

.
To

o 
m

an
y 

sm
al

l l
ot

s –
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

di
ffi  

cu
lt 

to
 g

et
 b

uy
er

s f
or

 la
rg

er
 lo

ts 
w

he
n 

su
ch

 c
lo

se
 q

ua
rt

er
s a

re
 “n

ex
t 

do
or

” 
– 

re
m

in
ds

 y
ou

 o
f  

 (c
ou

ld
 n

ot
 re

ad
, b

ut
 lo

ok
s l

ik
e 

Al
ot

to
) –

 n
ot

 a
 g

oo
d 

th
in

g 
(w

he
re

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
a 

ni
ce

 h
ou

se
 a

nd
 so

m
eo

ne
 p

ut
s u

p 
a 

di
ff e

re
nt

 “t
yp

e”
)

M
in

im
um

 lo
t s

ize
 s/

b 
10

K
 to

 1
2K

K
ee

p 
D

en
al

i a
 c

ul
-d

e-
sa

c.
 • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
-b

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 60 of 122

155



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  52

So
ut

he
as

t S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

M
as

te
r P

la
n

O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 #
2 

– 
Su

rv
ey

 R
es

po
ns

e 
- C

on
tin

ue
d

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

C
 (o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 lo

t s
ize

, t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

ne
tw

or
k,

 e
tc

.):
To

o 
m

an
y 

sm
al

l l
ot

s.
D

on
’t 

lik
e 

al
le

ys
.

N
ot

hi
ng

 le
ss

 th
an

 1
0,

00
0’

 lo
ts.

Re
je

ct
.

H
av

in
g 

no
 le

ft 
tu

rn
 a

llo
w

ed
 o

nt
o 

M
ur

do
ck

 fr
om

 th
e 

SE
 S

he
rw

oo
d 

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
(n

ea
r t

he
 M

ur
do

ck
 

ba
rn

) w
ill

 c
au

se
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

tr
affi

  c
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
Sh

er
w

oo
d 

V
ie

w
 E

sta
te

s n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d.
  Th

 a
t i

s a
 b

ig
 

co
nc

er
n.

50
00

 sq
. f

oo
t l

ot
s a

re
 u

nr
ea

so
na

bl
e 

fo
r t

hi
s a

re
a.

  Th
 e

 p
la

nn
er

s a
re

 k
id

di
ng

 th
em

se
lv

es
 if

 th
ey

 th
in

k 
so

m
eo

ne
 w

ith
 o

f 1
5.

5k
 lo

t w
ou

ld
 w

an
t a

 h
om

e 
on

 5
00

0 
sq

. f
t. 

di
re

ct
ly

 a
cr

os
s t

he
 st

re
et

.
N

ot
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e.
Th 

is 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
in

 e
ve

n 
le

ss
 o

f a
 d

es
ira

bl
e 

pl
an

 th
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

“B
”.

  I
t h

as
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

iss
ue

s r
el

at
in

g 
to

 
th

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
pl

an
t a

nd
 a

ni
m

al
 h

ab
ita

t, 
as

 w
el

l b
ei

ng
 a

n 
ov

er
w

he
lm

in
g 

ch
an

ge
 to

 th
e 

ar
ea

 a
s i

t e
xi

sts
 

to
da

y. 
 Th

 e
re

 is
 n

o 
pu

bl
ic

 su
pp

or
t f

or
 th

is 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e.
Sa

m
e 

as
 fo

r A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

B.
 T

oo
 m

an
y 

sm
al

l l
ot

s –
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

di
ffi  

cu
lt 

to
 g

et
 b

uy
er

s f
or

 la
rg

er
 lo

ts 
w

he
n 

su
ch

 c
lo

se
 q

ua
rt

er
s a

re
 “n

ex
t d

oo
r”

 –
 re

m
in

ds
 y

ou
 o

f  
 (c

ou
ld

 n
ot

 re
ad

, b
ut

 lo
ok

s l
ik

e 
Al

ot
to

) 
– 

no
t a

 g
oo

d 
th

in
g 

(w
he

re
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

a 
ni

ce
 h

ou
se

 a
nd

 so
m

eo
ne

 p
ut

s u
p 

a 
di

ff e
re

nt
 “t

yp
e”

). 
 M

in
im

um
 

lo
t s

ize
 s/

b 
10

K
 to

 1
2K

.  
K

ee
p 

D
en

al
i a

 c
ul

-d
e-

sa
c.

G
et

 ri
d 

of
 a

lle
ys

 –
 th

is 
is 

no
t t

he
 B

ro
nx

!

O
ve

ra
ll 

C
rit

iq
ue

/O
th

er
:  

Pl
ea

se
 tr

y 
an

 o
pt

io
n 

D
 w

ith
 le

ss
 #

 h
ou

se
s t

ha
n 

B 
an

d 
C

, a
nd

 m
or

e 
lo

t s
ize

 u
ni

fo
rm

ity
 th

an
 A

.  
W

hy
 is

 th
e 

zo
ni

ng
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

in
 th

e 
fi r

st 
pl

ac
e?

  W
e 

al
l m

ov
ed

 in
 b

el
ie

vi
ng

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t z

on
in

g.
  I

t 
fe

el
s l

ik
e 

w
e 

go
t a

 b
ai

t a
nd

 sw
itc

h,
 ru

g 
pu

lle
d 

ou
t f

ro
m

 u
nd

er
 u

s t
hi

ng
.  

W
hy

 h
av

e 
zo

ni
ng

 if
 it

 m
ea

ns
 

no
th

in
g 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 c

an
’t 

co
un

t o
n 

it?
It’

s e
xt

re
m

el
y 

di
stu

rb
in

g 
ho

w
 in

 e
ac

h 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

pl
an

s f
or

 e
ig

ht
 h

om
es

 d
ire

ct
ly

 a
bo

ve
 th

e 
de

lin
ea

te
d 

w
et

la
nd

 p
on

d.
  H

ow
 w

ill
 th

os
e 

ho
m

es
 w

ith
 fe

rt
ili

ze
rs

, p
es

tic
id

es
, e

tc
. u

se
d 

on
 th

e 
la

w
ns

 
pr

ev
en

t h
ar

m
in

g 
th

e 
po

nd
 a

nd
 th

e 
va

rio
us

 w
ild

lif
e 

th
at

 u
se

s i
t?

H
ow

 d
o 

yo
u 

m
ak

e 
it 

eq
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r e
ac

h 
ow

ne
r?

  W
ho

 w
ill

 p
ay

 fo
r o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e?
  O

ve
ra

ll,
 th

is 
pr

oc
es

s 
is 

tu
rn

in
g 

ou
t t

o 
be

 a
 d

isa
pp

oi
nt

m
en

t. 
 Th

 e
re

 is
 a

 c
or

e 
of

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 a
re

 n
ot

 o
pe

n-
m

in
de

d 
ab

ou
t 

th
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 p
re

se
nt

ed
.  

Th 
ey

 a
re

 ju
st 

us
in

g 
th

is 
as

 a
 fo

ru
m

 to
 sa

y 
th

at
 th

ey
 w

an
t n

o 
ch

an
ge

 a
nd

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ve
ry

 h
ap

py
 if

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

no
t f

ur
th

er
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

 O
f c

ou
rs

e,
 th

ey
 w

ou
ld

 –
 th

ey
 a

re
 n

ot
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

w
ne

rs
.  

Ev
er

yo
ne

 w
an

ts 
to

 b
e 

th
e 

la
st 

pe
rs

on
 in

 th
e 

C
ity

!
I a

m
 st

ill
 lo

ok
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 a
n 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

“D
” 

fro
m

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f S

he
rw

oo
d 

w
hi

ch
 le

av
es

 th
e 

ar
ea

 a
s 

it 
is 

w
ith

ou
t a

dd
iti

on
al

 re
sid

en
tia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
 I 

am
 p

er
so

na
lly

 a
ga

in
st 

th
e 

ab
ov

e 
th

re
e 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 to

 a
lre

ad
y 

cr
ow

de
d 

sc
ho

ol
, i

nc
re

as
ed

 tr
affi

  c
 o

n 
M

ur
do

ck
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

th
e 

na
tu

ra
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t o
f t

hi
s u

ni
qu

e 
ar

ea
.

I r
ec

om
m

en
d 

th
at

 th
e 

de
ci

sio
n 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 th

is 
ar

ea
 o

r l
ea

ve
 a

s i
s b

e 
le

ft 
up

 to
 a

 v
ot

e 
by

 a
ll 

re
sid

en
ts 

of
 

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f S

he
rw

oo
d.

  A
 b

al
lo

t m
ea

su
re

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
se

tu
p 

to
 a

llo
w

 th
is 

ar
ea

 to
 b

e 
pr

es
er

ve
d 

fo
r f

ut
ur

e 
na

tu
ra

l p
ar

k 
la

nd
, o

r t
o 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
s a

 re
sid

en
tia

l s
ub

di
vi

sio
n.

  I
f a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 th

e 
m

ea
su

re
 fo

r 
fu

tu
re

 n
at

ur
al

 p
ar

k 
la

nd
, a

 b
on

d 
m

ea
su

re
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

es
ta

bl
ish

ed
 fo

r f
un

di
ng

 la
nd

 a
cq

ui
sit

io
n 

an
d 

pa
rk

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
N

ee
d 

an
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
sh

ow
in

g 
or

ig
in

al
 zo

ni
ng

.
Al

so
, a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
ne

ed
 w

ith
 1

0K
 to

 1
2K

 lo
ts.

K
ee

p 
gr

ee
n 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
bu

ff e
r z

on
e 

fo
r f

ra
gi

le
 w

ild
lif

e 
an

d 
w

et
la

nd
 a

re
as

.

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
-b

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 61 of 122

156



Page  53Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

So
ut

he
as

t S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

M
as

te
r P

la
n

O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 #
2 

W
rit

te
n 

C
om

m
en

ts 
Re

ce
iv

ed

K
ur

t K
ris

te
ns

en
D

oe
s n

ot
 b

el
ie

ve
 th

er
e 

is 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
.

C
os

t o
f d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

n 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l a

nd
 sc

ho
ol

 sy
ste

m
 to

o 
hi

gh
.  

W
ou

ld
 b

e 
be

tte
r t

o 
no

t a
llo

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

n 
la

nd
 u

nt
il 

sc
ho

ol
 sy

ste
m

 c
at

ch
es

 u
p

C
ity

 d
id

 n
ot

 h
on

or
 w

or
ks

ho
p 

#1
 c

om
m

en
ts.

  
U

pg
ra

de
s t

o 
M

ur
do

ck
 R

oa
d 

sh
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 w
ith

 th
is 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t a

s t
he

 n
ee

d 
fo

r t
he

 ro
ad

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts 
ar

e 
re

la
te

d 
to

 th
e 

en
tir

e 
C

ity
, n

ot
 ju

st 
th

is 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.
Tr

affi
  c

 o
n 

M
ur

do
ck

 R
oa

d 
is 

a 
co

nc
er

n.
Ro

un
da

bo
ut

s s
ho

ul
d 

be
 c

on
sid

er
ed

.  
In

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
 p

ro
po

se
d 

w
ill

 c
au

se
 ro

ad
 to

 b
ec

om
e 

un
sa

fe
 a

nd
 

ca
us

e 
tr

affi
  c

 c
on

ge
sti

on
 in

 F
ai

ro
ak

s S
ub

di
vi

sio
n.

Th 
is 

pr
oj

ec
t n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 w

ith
 M

et
ro

 a
nd

 W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

C
ou

nt
y 

to
 lo

ok
 a

t e
nt

ire
 b

lu
ff  

ar
ea

 a
nd

 
w

et
la

nd
s. 

 M
ak

e 
w

ild
lif

e 
re

fu
ge

 a
 re

gi
on

al
 a

ttr
ac

tio
n.

Bu
ild

 a
 S

tre
et

 o
f D

re
am

s.
Pr

ot
ec

t a
re

as
 w

ith
 lo

w
er

 d
en

sit
y.

Pr
op

os
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l w
or

ks
ho

p 
be

fo
re

 fi 
na

l r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
n.

  
Be

lie
ve

s p
la

ns
 a

re
 d

ev
el

op
er

 d
riv

en
.

St
ev

e 
K

le
in

Pr
ef

er
re

d 
Al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
A 

to
 th

e 
ot

he
r p

la
ns

, b
ut

 n
on

e 
w

er
e 

to
 h

is 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n.
  I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts 

to
 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

A 
in

cl
ud

e 
re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f l

ot
s, 

cr
ea

tin
g 

a 
m

in
im

um
 lo

t s
ize

s o
f 7

,5
00

 sq
ua

re
 fe

et
, 

bu
t k

ee
p 

av
er

ag
e 

lo
t s

ize
 a

ro
un

d 
20

,0
00

 sq
ua

re
 fe

et
.  

In
cr

ea
se

 lo
t s

ize
s e

ve
n 

if 
it 

m
ea

ns
 re

du
ci

ng
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e.
  

D
oe

s n
ot

 se
e 

ne
ed

 fo
r a

ny
 fo

rm
al

 p
ar

ks
 w

ith
in

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
 A

re
a 

al
re

ad
y 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
M

ur
do

ck
 a

nd
 

Su
ns

et
 P

ar
ks

.  
Ac

ce
ss

 o
nt

o 
M

ur
do

ck
 R

oa
d 

a 
la

rg
e 

co
nc

er
n 

(d
oe

sn
’t 

sa
y 

w
hy

). 
 C

om
bi

ne
 p

riv
at

e 
ac

ce
ss

es
 in

to
 o

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
ne

w
 a

cc
es

s r
oa

ds
.

Li
sa

 W
al

ke
r

Th 
er

e 
is 

a 
ne

ed
 fo

r a
t l

ea
st 

on
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l m
ee

tin
g.

  A
t l

ea
st 

on
e 

pl
an

 n
ee

ds
 to

 re
fl e

ct
 m

in
im

um
 1

 a
cr

e

Bo
b 

D
av

id
so

n
Al

th
ou

gh
 h

e 
w

ou
ld

 p
re

fe
r n

o 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t –
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f l
ot

s w
ith

in
 th

e 
12

,0
00

 to
 1

5,
00

0 
sq

ua
re

 
fo

ot
 ra

ng
e 

or
 la

rg
er

 a
re

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e.

  S
im

ila
r t

o 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
n 

Sh
er

w
oo

d 
V

ie
w

 E
sta

te
s. 

 
N

ot
 in

 fa
vo

r o
f s

m
al

le
r l

ot
 si

ze
s m

ix
ed

 w
ith

 la
rg

er
 lo

t s
ize

s. 
 

Ev
y 

K
ris

te
ns

en
W

or
rie

d 
th

at
 a

 zo
ne

 c
ha

ng
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

lik
e 

“o
pe

ni
ng

 a
 c

an
 o

f w
or

m
s.”

  P
re

fe
rs

 to
 k

ee
p 

1 
ac

re
 zo

ni
ng

.  
C

on
ce

rn
ed

 a
bo

ut
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

sc
ho

ol
s a

nd
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t. 
 

W
an

ts 
to

 p
re

se
rv

e 
la

st 
fo

re
st 

in
 S

he
rw

oo
d.

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
-b

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 62 of 122

157



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  54

So
ut

he
as

t S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

M
as

te
r P

la
n

O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 #
2 

W
rit

te
n 

C
om

m
en

ts 
Re

ce
iv

ed
 - 

C
on

tin
ue

d

D
ea

n 
G

lo
ve

r
W

an
ts 

to
 se

e 
a 

1 
ac

re
 p

la
n/

op
tio

n.
  

M
os

er
 fo

re
st 

al
on

g 
no

rt
h 

pr
op

er
ty

 li
ne

 n
ee

ds
 to

 b
e 

sa
ve

d 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

te
d.

  N
o 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t p

er
m

itt
ed

.  
H

ow
 is

 th
is 

ar
ea

 b
ei

ng
 p

ro
te

ct
ed

?
Al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
A 

is 
th

e 
pr

ef
er

re
d 

ou
t o

f t
he

 3
 p

re
se

nt
ed

.  
Al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
C

 is
 th

e 
le

as
t p

re
fe

rr
ed

 –
 lo

ts 
ar

e 
to

o 
sm

al
l. 

 
Be

lie
ve

s a
lle

ys
 g

iv
e 

th
e 

im
pr

es
sio

n 
th

at
 to

o 
m

an
y 

ho
m

es
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 sq
ue

ez
ed

 in
to

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
re

a 
w

ith
ou

t 
ad

eq
ua

te
 a

cc
es

s. 
 

Ac
ce

ss
 to

 M
ur

do
ck

 a
pp

ea
rs

 to
 b

e 
da

ng
er

ou
s. 

 
C

on
ce

rn
ed

 a
bo

ut
 2

0 
fo

ot
 e

as
em

en
t o

n 
no

rt
h 

pr
op

er
ty

 li
ne

.  
If 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
w

ou
ld

 li
ke

 1
0 

fo
ot

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 

ba
ck

 to
 F

ai
ro

ak
s S

ub
di

vi
sio

n.
  

Be
lie

ve
s p

ro
ce

ss
 is

 m
ov

in
g 

to
o 

fa
st.

  
W

ou
ld

 li
ke

 m
or

e 
C

ity
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rs

on
ne

l a
t o

pe
n 

ho
us

es
 to

 h
ea

r f
ee

db
ac

k 
an

d 
to

 h
av

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
 

re
co

rd
ed

.

G
ar

y 
D

e 
Bo

er
Al

lo
w

 c
on

str
uc

tio
n 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 D
en

al
i w

ith
 c

ul
-d

e-
sa

c.
  

O
nl

y 
pr

ov
id

e 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

ac
ce

ss
 th

ro
ug

h 
ex

ist
in

g 
su

bd
iv

isi
on

 ra
th

er
 th

an
 a

llo
w

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 b

y 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

hr
ou

gh
 e

xi
sti

ng
 su

bd
iv

isi
on

.  
N

ot
 in

 fa
vo

r o
f a

ny
 o

f t
he

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
.  

W
ou

ld
 p

re
fe

r l
ow

 d
en

sit
y 

pl
an

.
D

oe
s n

ot
 li

ke
 a

lle
ys

.
C

on
ce

rn
ed

 a
bo

ut
 M

ur
do

ck
 R

oa
d 

ac
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 “n
o 

le
ft 

tu
rn

” 
pr

op
os

al
.  

W
ou

ld
 fo

rc
e 

tr
affi

  c
 th

ro
ug

h 
ex

ist
in

g 
su

bd
iv

isi
on

s. 
 

W
or

rie
d 

ab
ou

t s
ch

oo
l c

on
ge

sti
on

.
C

re
at

e 
a 

“s
tre

et
 o

f d
re

am
s.”

  

C
ar

ol
yn

 a
nd

 C
ur

t P
et

er
so

n
Li

ke
s t

he
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 a

nd
 a

lle
ys

 o
n 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

A.
Al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
B 

is 
le

ss
 d

es
ira

bl
e 

th
an

 A
, a

nd
 C

 is
 th

e 
le

as
t d

es
ira

bl
e 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f p

ro
po

se
d 

op
en

 
sp

ac
e.

  
D

isl
ik

es
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 fl 

ag
 lo

ts,
 d

ue
 to

 a
cc

es
s t

hr
ou

gh
 e

xi
sti

ng
 lo

ts.
  

C
on

ce
rn

ed
 a

bo
ut

 a
cc

es
s t

hr
ou

gh
 e

xi
sti

ng
 (w

es
te

rn
) w

et
la

nd
.

So
ut

he
as

t w
et

la
nd

 n
ee

ds
 la

rg
er

 b
uff

 e
r. 

 
C

on
ce

rn
ed

 th
at

 a
llo

w
in

g 
sm

al
le

r l
ot

 si
ze

s i
s o

nl
y 

a 
w

ay
 to

 a
llo

w
 fu

tu
re

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f h

un
dr

ed
s o

f 
ho

us
es

 o
n 

th
is 

sit
e.

  
Ex

te
nd

in
g 

D
en

al
i S

tre
et

 re
su

lts
 in

 u
nf

ai
r t

ra
ffi  

c 
bu

rd
en

 o
n 

re
sid

en
ts 

of
 F

ai
rv

ie
w

 E
sta

te
s. 

 
Pr

ef
er

s m
in

im
um

 1
 a

cr
e 

zo
ni

ng
, s

im
ila

r t
o 

Fa
iro

ak
s s

ub
di

vi
sio

n.
  

W
or

rie
d 

ab
ou

t s
ch

oo
l c

on
ge

sti
on

.  
C

ity
 sh

ou
ld

 p
ar

tn
er

 w
ith

 M
et

ro
 (o

r fi
 n

d 
ot

he
r f

un
di

ng
 so

ur
ce

) t
o 

pr
ot

ec
t s

en
sit

iv
e 

la
nd

s/
fo

re
sts

.  
  

Sa
fe

gu
ar

ds
 sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
s w

ild
lif

e/
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
rie

nd
ly.

  
N

ot
 in

 fa
vo

r o
f a

 th
re

e 
la

ne
 M

ur
do

ck
 R

oa
d.

  
W

an
ts 

C
ity

 to
 b

e 
a 

le
ad

er
 fo

r l
ow

 im
pa

ct
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
-b

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 63 of 122

158



Page  55Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

So
ut

he
as

t S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

M
as

te
r P

la
n

O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 #
2 

W
rit

te
n 

C
om

m
en

ts 
Re

ce
iv

ed
 - 

C
on

tin
ue

d

M
ar

k 
an

d 
M

eg
an

 R
ow

la
nd

s
K

ee
p 

cu
rr

en
t 1

 a
cr

e 
zo

ni
ng

.  
W

ou
ld

 li
ke

 a
no

th
er

 m
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 4
th

 o
pt

io
n 

pr
es

en
te

d.
  

C
on

sid
er

 d
oi

ng
 a

 “
St

re
et

 o
f D

re
am

s.”
  

Ta
ke

 m
or

e 
tim

e 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 sm
ar

t g
ro

w
th

 p
la

n.
  

AK
S 

– 
M

on
tg

om
er

y 
H

ur
le

y
M

as
te

r p
la

ns
 d

o 
no

t r
ec

og
ni

ze
 e

xi
sti

ng
 h

om
es

 a
nd

/o
r p

ro
pe

rt
y 

lin
es

.
St

re
et

s a
nd

 lo
t l

ay
ou

ts 
on

 th
re

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 a

re
 ir

re
gu

la
r. 

 
Pr

op
os

ed
 la

yo
ut

s/
lo

t s
ize

s/
str

ee
ts 

do
 n

ot
 a

pp
ea

r t
o 

m
ee

t C
ity

 c
od

e 
or

 re
qu

ire
 P

U
D

 o
ve

rla
y 

to
 

ac
co

m
pl

ish
.

Pl
an

s d
o 

no
t s

ee
m

 to
 a

dd
 m

uc
h 

de
ns

ity
 o

ve
r w

ha
t i

s c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

llo
w

ed
.

N
ot

 in
 fa

vo
r o

f a
lle

ys
.

W
an

ts 
m

or
e 

de
ta

ils
 o

n 
ow

ne
rs

hi
p 

of
 a

lle
ys

 a
nd

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e.

W
ou

ld
 li

ke
 sp

ec
ifi 

cs
 o

n 
pl

an
s (

se
tb

ac
ks

, s
to

rm
w

at
er

, a
nd

 le
ng

th
 o

f d
riv

ew
ay

s)
.

Pl
an

 re
qu

ire
s e

xc
es

siv
e 

le
ng

th
s o

f d
riv

ew
ay

s a
nd

 a
w

kw
ar

d 
ho

m
e 

co
nfi

 g
ur

at
io

ns
.  

W
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 se
e 

an
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 p
ub

lic
 o

pe
n 

ho
us

e.
  

Pa
ul

a 
Yu

zo
n

En
co

ur
ag

es
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

n 
its

 p
at

h 
of

 th
in

ki
ng

 fo
r t

he
 e

nt
ire

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 re

gi
on

 (p
re

ve
nt

 sp
ra

w
l, 

de
ve

lo
p 

co
m

pa
ct

 u
rb

an
 fo

rm
).

D
on

’t 
be

 sw
ay

ed
 b

y 
N

IM
BY

’s,
 b

ut
 li

ste
n 

to
 th

ei
r c

om
m

en
ts.

Lo
ri 

St
ea

rn
s

O
w

ns
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

w
ith

in
 p

la
n 

ar
ea

.  
D

oe
s n

ot
 w

an
t s

al
e/

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f h
er

 la
nd

 a
tta

ch
ed

 to
 a

 M
as

te
r 

Pl
an

 –
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

co
nt

ro
lle

d 
by

 n
ei

gh
bo

rs
.  

C
on

ce
rn

ed
 w

ith
 a

ll 
th

re
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

:
N

ot
 d

en
se

 e
no

ug
h 

lo
t s

ize
s. 

 
N

on
e 

of
 th

e 
th

re
e 

pl
an

s w
er

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

.  
Be

lie
ve

s t
ru

e 
pa

rc
el

 li
ne

s a
nd

 re
co

rd
ed

 p
la

ts 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

re
pr

es
en

te
d 

on
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
.  

La
yo

ut
 d

oe
s n

ot
 c

on
sid

er
 e

xi
sti

ng
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

lin
es

To
o 

m
uc

h 
op

en
/g

re
en

 sp
ac

e 
sh

ow
n 

on
 h

er
 p

ro
pe

rt
y

C
on

ce
rn

ed
 w

ith
 sa

fe
ty

 o
f n

at
ur

e 
tr

ai
ls 

– 
D

oe
sn

’t 
th

e 
C

ity
 a

lre
ad

y 
ha

ve
 e

no
ug

h 
tr

ai
ls

W
hy

 is
 th

er
e 

a 
fo

rm
al

 p
ar

k?
  

M
or

e 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

be
en

 g
iv

en
 to

 o
th

er
 c

lu
ste

rs
 o

f m
at

ur
e 

tre
es

 o
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
lo

ts 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

pl
an

 a
re

a.
D

oe
sn

’t 
lik

e 
M

ur
do

ck
 w

ith
 a

 m
ed

ia
n.

  T
oo

 e
xp

en
siv

e,
 w

hy
 n

ot
 ju

st 
us

e 
tu

rn
 la

ne
s. 

 
Fe

el
s h

er
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

is 
ta

ki
ng

 u
nf

ai
r s

ha
re

 o
f b

ur
de

n 
of

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e.

  

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
• • • • • • • •

• •

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
-b

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 64 of 122

159



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  56

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
-c

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 65 of 122

160



Page  57Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
-c

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 66 of 122

161



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  58

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
-c

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 67 of 122

162



Page  59Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 3
-c

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 68 of 122

163



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  60

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
-a

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 69 of 122

164



Page  61Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
-a

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 70 of 122

165



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  62

Appendix 4-b

Th e entries in the above columns (numbered 1 - 13) represent the 13 feedback forms returned with the “survey” portion completed from Open 
House #3.  Th e numbers within the columns are the priority ranking from each respondent to each of the issues on the left (one through fi ve - with 
fi ve as the most important).  Th e Mean column is the average rank of each master plan issue, followed with the highest  (Max) and lowest (Min) 
ranking for each issue.  

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 71 of 122

166



Page  63Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

So
ut

he
as

t S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

Pl
an

Al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 #
3 

– 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
18

, 2
00

6 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

A 
(o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 lo

t s
ize

, t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

ne
tw

or
k,

 e
tc

.)
I w

ou
ld

, o
f c

ou
rs

e,
 p

re
fe

r e
ve

n 
le

ss
 h

ou
se

s –
 b

ut
 a

pp
re

ci
at

e 
th

e 
tr

ai
ls 

– 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

to
 o

pe
n 

pa
rk

 a
nd

 
na

tu
re

 sp
ac

es
.  

Th 
e 

lo
t s

ize
s a

re
 m

or
e 

ge
ne

ro
us

 th
an

 m
os

t –
 th

at
’s 

a 
pl

us
.

El
im

in
at

e 
lo

t w
es

t o
f M

ur
do

ck
 B

ar
n 

so
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

op
en

 sp
ac

e 
on

 M
ur

do
ck

 R
oa

d 
an

d 
pr

es
er

ve
 th

e 
lo

ok
 

of
 M

ur
do

ck
 B

ar
n.

I l
ik

e 
th

e 
tr

ai
ls,

 p
re

se
rv

in
g 

th
e 

tre
e 

ar
ea

.
Be

st 
Al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
– 

m
os

t s
pa

ce
 n

ew
 in

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

“f
ul

l s
er

vi
ce

” 
le

ft 
an

d 
rig

ht
 tu

rn
s. 

 T
o 

no
t d

o 
so

 w
ou

ld
 ro

ut
e 

m
uc

h 
m

or
e 

tr
affi

  c
 th

ru
 e

xi
sti

ng
 n

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

of
 S

he
rw

oo
d 

V
ie

w
 E

sta
te

s. 
Ye

s –
 p

re
se

rv
e 

as
 m

uc
h 

as
 p

os
sib

le
 o

f t
he

 M
os

er
 N

at
ur

al
 A

re
a 

– 
Sh

er
w

oo
d’

s l
as

t o
rig

in
al

 fo
re

st.
Li

ke
 M

os
er

 n
at

ur
al

 a
re

a 
a 

lo
t. 

 L
ik

e 
th

e 
M

ur
do

ck
 “e

xi
sti

ng
 lo

ok
 a

nd
 fe

el”
 p

re
se

rv
at

io
n.

  M
uc

h 
pr

ef
er

 
th

is 
pl

an
 to

 a
ll 

ot
he

rs
.  

Ex
ce

pt
:  

Pl
ea

se
 m

ak
e 

th
e 

“n
o 

le
ft 

tu
rn

” 
in

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
on

 M
ur

do
ck

 a
 fu

ll 
rig

ht
 a

nd
 

le
ft 

tu
rn

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
n!

  Th
 e

 b
ac

kfl
 o

w
 in

to
 S

he
rw

oo
d 

vi
ew

 w
ill

 c
au

se
 m

uc
h 

di
sr

up
tio

n 
as

 p
eo

pl
e 

go
 th

at
 

w
ay

 to
 g

et
 to

 S
un

se
t. 

 W
e 

th
ou

gh
t w

e 
ha

d 
a 

de
ad

-e
nd

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d,
 a

nd
 n

ow
 I 

ge
t h

ow
 m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 

dr
iv

in
g 

by
 m

y 
ho

us
e 

ev
er

yd
ay

?
Be

st 
pl

an
 p

re
se

nt
ed

.  
Le

av
es

 n
ic

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f g

re
en

 sp
ac

e 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 b
es

t c
om

pl
em

en
t e

xi
sti

ng
 h

om
es

 
an

d 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
s.

Th 
is 

is 
th

e 
le

as
t w

or
st 

of
 th

e 
tw

o 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
.  

Le
ss

 h
om

es
 p

er
 a

cr
e 

th
an

 B
/C

.  
R

ap
id

 g
ro

w
th

 is
 n

ot
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

ily
 g

oo
d.

  D
en

se
 h

ou
sin

g 
is 

ba
d.

D
oe

s n
ot

 m
ee

t o
ve

ra
ll 

go
al

s o
f t

he
 M

as
te

r P
la

n 
fo

r b
es

t u
se

 o
f t

he
 la

nd
 w

ith
in

 c
ity

 b
ou

nd
ar

ie
s.

It 
do

es
 n

ot
 re

fl e
ct

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
w

ne
r’s

 w
ish

es
 fo

r h
ig

he
r d

en
sit

y.
It 

do
es

 n
ot

 re
fl e

ct
 a

cc
ur

at
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s f
or

 th
e 

re
gi

on
, b

ot
h 

fo
r p

la
tte

d 
lo

ts;
 i.

e.
 Ir

on
w

oo
d 

Ac
re

s a
nd

 a
 

tr
ai

l s
ys

te
m

 a
lo

ng
 it

s e
as

te
rn

 b
ou

nd
ar

y.
Th 

e 
pl

an
 sh

ow
s a

 g
re

en
 c

or
rid

or
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ce

nt
er

 o
f t

he
 p

la
n,

 th
e 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 p
la

n 
su

cc
es

s m
ay

 h
av

e 
a 

pr
ob

le
m

 se
ns

e 
th

e 
he

al
th

 o
f t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 tr

ee
s a

re
 p

oo
r, 

so
m

e 
ar

e 
de

ad
 o

r d
yi

ng
.  

Th 
e 

pl
an

 a
lso

 d
ep

ic
ts 

se
ve

ra
l l

ar
ge

 tr
ee

s i
n 

th
is 

ar
ea

 th
at

 d
on

’t 
ex

ist
.

Th 
is 

pl
an

 d
oe

s n
ot

 a
llo

w
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

cc
es

s i
n 

or
 o

ut
 in

 a
ll 

di
re

ct
io

ns
 o

nt
o 

M
ur

do
ck

 R
oa

d.
  

Th 
at

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
ha

za
rd

ou
s i

n 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

sit
ua

tio
ns

.
I d

isa
gr

ee
 w

ith
 tr

ai
ls 

ru
nn

in
g 

do
w

n 
th

e 
ce

nt
er

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t t

ha
t b

en
efi

 t 
ve

ry
 fe

w
 c

iti
ze

ns
 a

nd
 

pe
ts.

Th 
er

e 
ar

e 
to

o 
fe

w
 lo

ts 
to

 su
pp

or
t t

he
 c

os
t o

f t
he

 in
fra

str
uc

tu
re

.
O

ff e
rs

 a
 b

et
te

r c
om

pr
om

ise
 a

nd
 a

 h
ig

he
r d

eg
re

e 
of

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

an
d 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
or

 C
ity

 
pa

rk
 c

on
ne

ct
s a

nd
 tr

ai
ls.

  
Th 

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

 M
ET

RO
, W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
C

ou
nt

y, 
an

d 
Fi

sh
 a

nd
 W

ild
lif

e 
to

 
ac

co
m

pl
ish

 A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

A 
an

d 
pr

ot
ec

t a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
cc

es
s t

o 
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
w

et
la

nd
s, 

an
d 

po
ss

ib
ly,

 w
ith

 
M

ET
RO

 O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
es

 lo
ok

 a
t a

 sy
ste

m
 o

f e
le

va
te

d 
tr

ai
ls 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
pe

rim
et

er
 o

f t
he

 w
et

la
nd

s –
 w

ith
 

ac
ce

ss
 fr

om
 th

e 
gr

ee
n 

be
lt 

co
rr

id
or

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Sh

er
w

oo
d 

Fa
iro

ak
s a

nd
 S

E 
Sh

er
w

oo
d.

  
It 

is 
im

pe
ra

tiv
e 

th
at

 P
la

nn
er

s a
nd

 fo
cu

s g
ro

up
s t

ha
t a

re
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
Sh

er
w

oo
d’

s 2
0 

ye
ar

 p
ar

ks
 p

la
n 

re
vi

ew
 A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
A 

an
d 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

tr
ai

ls 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

.  
In

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 th

ey
 sh

ou
ld

 v
isi

t W
ils

on
vi

lle
’s 

R
iv

er
 P

ar
k 

an
d 

ta
ke

 n
ot

e 
of

 th
e 

w
ild

 tr
ai

ls 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

; t
hi

s t
yp

e 
of

 sy
ste

m
 w

ou
ld

 fi 
t t

he
 

ar
ea

 th
at

 is
 to

 b
e 

pr
es

er
ve

d 
as

 S
he

rw
oo

d’
s L

as
t F

or
es

t o
n 

th
e 

M
os

er
 P

ro
pe

rt
y.

Th 
e 

C
ity

, a
tto

rn
ey

s f
or

 d
ev

el
op

er
s a

nd
 n

ei
gh

bo
rs

 sh
ou

ld
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 st
at

e,
 W

as
hi

ng
to

n 
co

un
ty

 a
nd

 
M

et
ro

 to
 a

ss
ur

e 
th

at
 o

nc
e 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

A 
is 

ad
op

te
d 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is 

a 
le

ga
l g

ua
ra

nt
ee

 th
at

 th
e 

op
en

 sp
ac

e 
co

nc
ep

ts 
an

d 
ar

ea
s s

ho
w

n 
w

ill
, i

n 
fa

ct
, b

e 
pr

es
er

ve
d.

 E
ith

er
 w

ith
 M

ET
RO

 O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
e 

Bo
nd

s o
r C

ity
 

Pa
rk

s F
un

ds
.

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
-b

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 72 of 122

167



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  64

So
ut

he
as

t S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

Pl
an

Al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 #
3 

– 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
18

, 2
00

6 
- C

on
tin

ue
d

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

B/
C

 H
yb

rid
 (o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 lo

t s
ize

, t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

ne
tw

or
k,

 e
tc

.)
Lo

ok
s b

es
t.

To
o 

m
an

y 
ho

us
es

, t
oo

 m
an

y 
str

ee
ts,

 to
o 

lit
tle

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
es

.
Li

ke
 th

is 
be

ca
us

e 
ap

pa
re

nt
ly

 w
ill

 b
e 

ea
sie

r t
o 

do
 w

ith
 le

ss
 o

w
ne

r c
oo

pe
ra

tio
n.

  
Li

ke
 to

 h
av

e 
al

l e
xi

ts 
fro

m
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t b

ot
h 

le
ft 

an
d 

rig
ht

 tu
rn

.
Al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
“B

” 
is 

de
ns

er
 b

ut
 le

av
e 

m
or

e 
of

 n
at

ur
al

 a
re

a 
th

an
 “

B/
C

”
M

os
t s

pa
ce

 n
ew

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
“f

ul
l s

er
vi

ce
” 

le
ft 

an
d 

rig
ht

 tu
rn

s. 
 T

o 
no

t d
o 

so
 w

ou
ld

 ro
ut

e 
m

uc
h 

m
or

e 
tr

affi
  c

 th
ru

 e
xi

sti
ng

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
of

 S
he

rw
oo

d 
V

ie
w

 E
sta

te
s. 

Li
ke

 M
os

er
 n

at
ur

al
 a

re
a 

a 
lo

t. 
 L

et
’s 

ke
ep

 it
 a

s S
he

rw
oo

d’
s l

as
t f

or
es

t.
Pl

ea
se

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
“n

o 
le

ft 
tu

rn
” 

in
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

on
 M

ur
do

ck
 a

 fu
ll 

rig
ht

 a
nd

 le
ft 

tu
rn

 in
te

rs
ec

tio
n!

  Th
 e

 
ba

ck
fl o

w
 in

to
 S

he
rw

oo
d 

vi
ew

 w
ill

 c
au

se
 m

uc
h 

di
sr

up
tio

n 
as

 p
eo

pl
e 

go
 th

at
 w

ay
 to

 g
et

 to
 S

un
se

t. 
 W

e 
th

ou
gh

t w
e 

ha
d 

a 
de

ad
-e

nd
 n

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d,

 a
nd

 n
ow

 I 
ge

t h
ow

 m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 d
riv

in
g 

by
 m

y 
ho

us
e 

ev
er

yd
ay

?  
Th 

is 
w

as
 m

y 
sa

m
e 

co
m

m
en

t i
n 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

A,
 I 

ca
n’t

 st
re

ss
 th

is 
en

ou
gh

.  
Pl

ea
se

 st
ra

ig
ht

en
 

M
ur

do
ck

 so
 th

at
 th

e 
sig

ht
lin

e 
is 

en
ou

gh
 to

 a
llo

w
 le

ft 
tu

rn
s. 

 P
le

as
e 

do
 n

ot
 b

ur
de

n 
us

 in
 S

he
rw

oo
d 

V
ie

w
 

w
ith

 th
e 

ba
ck

fl o
w

 o
f c

ar
s c

om
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 g
et

 th
e 

Su
ns

et
 a

nd
 M

ur
do

ck
 

in
te

rs
ec

tio
n.

  O
ur

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
ne

ve
r p

la
nn

ed
 o

n 
th

is 
tr

affi
  c

 th
ro

ug
h 

it.
  I

’m
 c

ou
nt

in
g 

on
 y

ou
, P

at
!!!

Lo
ts 

to
o 

sm
al

l, 
to

o 
m

an
y 

pe
op

le
, c

ar
s, 

et
c.

  D
oe

s n
ot

 m
ea

su
re

 u
p 

to
 e

xi
sti

ng
 a

dj
ac

en
t h

om
es

 a
nd

 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
s.

Th 
ro

w
 th

is 
op

tio
n 

ou
t.

Lo
t s

ize
s a

re
 a

cc
ep

ta
bl

e,
 if

 a
 lo

w
er

 d
en

sit
y 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

 w
as

 w
an

te
d.

C
lo

se
r t

o 
an

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

pl
an

, i
f a

 lo
w

er
 d

en
sit

y 
pl

an
 w

as
 w

an
te

d.
 

It 
ha

s g
re

en
 sp

ac
e 

th
at

 d
oe

s n
ot

 d
om

in
at

e 
on

e 
pr

op
er

ty
.

It 
re

co
gn

ize
s p

ro
pe

rt
y 

lin
es

.
It 

re
co

gn
ize

s e
xi

sti
ng

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 fo

r p
la

tte
d 

lo
ts 

an
d 

tre
e 

su
rv

ey
.

I d
isa

gr
ee

 w
ith

 th
e 

ex
ac

t p
la

ce
m

en
t o

f a
 fe

w
 p

riv
at

e 
str

ee
ts.

  Th
 e

y 
do

 n
ot

 fl 
ow

 w
el

l w
ith

 th
e 

to
po

gr
ap

hy
 

an
d 

m
ar

ke
ta

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

re
gi

on
.

I l
ik

e 
th

e 
tr

ai
l s

ys
te

m
 b

ut
 st

ill
 th

in
k 

fl e
xi

bi
lit

y 
fo

r t
he

 tr
ai

l s
ys

te
m

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 is
 n

ee
de

d.
  

I a
gr

ee
 th

at
 th

er
e 

co
ul

d 
be

 a
 sm

al
l p

ub
lic

 sp
ac

e,
 b

ut
 I 

do
n’t

 th
in

k 
it 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
an

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

pa
rk

 o
n 

to
p 

of
 th

e 
hi

ll 
(v

ie
w

 w
ill

 b
e 

bl
oc

ke
d)

.  
Th 

er
e 

is 
al

re
ad

y 
a 

pa
rk

 fo
r f

re
e 

pl
ay

 a
 h

al
f b

lo
ck

 d
ow

n 
th

e 
str

ee
t. 

 
Pe

rh
ap

s a
 q

ui
et

 sp
ac

e 
w

ith
 a

 fe
w

 b
en

ch
es

 in
 a

 se
rin

e 
se

tti
ng

 li
ke

 th
e 

ed
ge

 o
f t

he
 w

et
la

nd
 o

r t
he

 ti
m

be
r 

se
tti

ng
 w

ou
ld

 b
et

te
r s

ui
t t

he
 n

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
?

AK
S 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e

H
as

 m
et

 a
ll 

go
al

s o
f t

he
 M

as
te

r P
la

n 
ag

re
em

en
t #

24
24

8 
#1

 fo
r t

he
 S

E 
Sh

er
w

oo
d 

co
nt

ra
ct

.
Re

fl e
ct

s r
ea

lis
tic

 d
en

sit
ie

s f
or

 la
nd

 w
ith

in
 u

rb
an

 g
ro

w
th

 b
ou

nd
ar

y.
D

es
ig

ne
d 

w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t c
od

es
, e

as
ily

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

D
es

ig
ne

d 
w

ith
 a

cc
ur

at
e 

in
fra

str
uc

tu
re

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s a
nd

 to
po

gr
ap

hy
.

Li
be

ra
l u

se
 o

f t
ra

il 
sy

ste
m

 a
nd

 g
re

en
 sp

ac
e 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 p

la
n.

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
-b

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 73 of 122

168



Page  65Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

So
ut

he
as

t S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

Pl
an

Al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 #
3 

– 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
18

, 2
00

6 
- C

on
tin

ue
d

C
om

m
en

ts
PL

EA
SE

 st
ra

ig
ht

en
 M

ur
do

ck
 so

 c
ar

s c
an

 m
ak

e 
le

ft-
ha

nd
 tu

rn
s a

nd
 d

riv
e 

sa
fe

ly.
D

ev
el

op
 th

e 
co

op
er

at
io

n 
an

d 
fi n

d 
th

e 
tim

e 
to

 c
ol

la
bo

ra
tiv

el
y 

cr
ea

te
 w

ay
s t

o 
pr

ot
ec

t h
ig

h-
va

lu
e 

ha
bi

ta
t 

an
d 

ru
no

ff  
to

 w
et

la
nd

s.
Pl

an
, p

la
n,

 a
nd

 p
la

n 
fo

r f
ut

ur
e 

tr
affi

  c
 c

on
ge

sti
on

.  
D

on
’t 

w
an

t t
o 

be
 in

 g
rid

lo
ck

.
I w

ou
ld

 p
re

fe
r n

ot
hi

ng
 to

 e
ve

r b
e 

bu
ilt

 th
er

e.
  O

f t
he

 o
pt

io
ns

 I 
lik

e 
Al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
A.

C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
ea

se
m

en
t.

Li
ke

 to
 se

e 
m

or
e 

ev
en

ly
 sp

ac
ed

 lo
ts 

an
d 

pa
rk

.  
I t

hi
nk

 if
 a

ll 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

w
ne

rs
 a

re
 p

la
nn

ed
 w

ith
 a

 ra
tio

 
of

 lo
ts 

an
d 

pa
rk

 y
ou

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

m
or

e 
co

ns
en

su
s. 

 W
e 

ne
ed

 p
ar

ks
 th

ey
 c

an
 b

e 
de

sig
ne

d 
in

 a
 w

ay
 th

at
 

co
ns

id
er

s e
ac

h 
ow

ne
rs

 la
nd

.
Li

ke
 th

e 
AK

S 
Ve

rs
io

ns
 a

nd
 B

/C
 H

yb
rid

.
I l

ik
e 

Li
sa

 W
al

ke
r’s

 p
la

n,
 a

n 
al

so
 th

e 
pl

an
 d

ra
w

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 to

p 
of

 it
.  

“P
la

n 
D

”.
Th 

an
ks

 fo
r l

ist
en

in
g 

to
 in

pu
ts 

at
 th

e 
la

st 
op

en
 h

ou
se

.  
It 

lo
ok

s l
ik

e 
yo

u 
to

ok
 in

pu
ts 

in
to

 c
on

sid
er

at
io

n.
  

Pl
ea

se
 k

ee
p 

it 
up

!  
Th 

an
ks

.
W

e 
lik

e 
pl

an
 4

 A
K

S,
 it

 is
 b

et
te

r f
or

 e
ve

ry
on

e,
 a

ll 
ar

e 
tre

at
ed

 th
e 

sa
m

e.
  W

e 
al

l g
et

 w
ha

t w
e 

w
an

t.
I d

on
’t 

be
lie

ve
 th

at
 th

e 
M

os
er

’s 
pr

op
er

ty
 sh

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
to

 g
iv

e 
up

 h
al

f o
f t

he
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
fo

r t
hi

s p
la

n.
  

I t
hi

nk
 th

e 
op

en
 sp

ac
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f e
ac

h 
ow

ne
r’s

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
– 

I a
lso

 fe
el

 th
at

 sm
al

le
r l

ot
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 h
av

e 
m

or
e 

am
en

iti
es

 p
er

 d
ev

el
op

er
’s 

as
 it

 w
ou

ld
 m

ak
e 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 le

ss
 c

os
tly

.
U

nl
es

s a
 le

ft 
tu

rn
 is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
at

 b
ot

h 
str

ee
ts 

co
nn

ec
tin

g 
to

 M
ur

do
ck

, D
en

al
i, 

W
hi

tn
ey

 a
nd

 M
cK

in
le

y 
w

ill
 se

e 
an

 u
na

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 tr
affi

  c
.  

Th 
es

e 
str

ee
ts 

sh
ou

ld
 re

m
ai

n 
lo

w
 tr

affi
  c

, q
ui

et
 re

sid
en

tia
l 

str
ee

ts 
as

 th
ey

 w
er

e 
w

he
n 

th
e 

ho
m

eo
w

ne
rs

 b
ou

gh
t t

he
ir 

pr
op

er
tie

s. 
 

Si
nc

e 
yo

u 
ar

e 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
 m

as
te

r p
la

n,
 d

ev
el

op
er

s s
ho

ul
d 

be
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 fo
llo

w
 it

, o
r t

he
 p

la
n 

is 
us

el
es

s.
Sh

er
w

oo
d 

ha
s a

 p
ro

bl
em

 w
ith

 o
ve

r c
ro

w
de

d 
sc

ho
ol

s n
ow

.  
Br

in
gi

ng
 in

 a
 la

rg
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ill
 

on
ly

 m
ak

e 
th

e 
sit

ua
tio

n 
w

or
se

.  
In

ste
ad

 o
f f

oc
us

in
g 

on
 g

ro
w

th
, t

he
 C

ity
 o

f S
he

rw
oo

d 
sh

ou
ld

 fo
cu

s o
n 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
ex

ist
in

g 
co

nd
iti

on
s. 

 T
ua

la
tin

-S
he

rw
oo

d 
ro

ad
 n

ee
ds

 to
 b

e 
fo

ur
 la

ne
s. 

 M
ur

do
ck

 a
nd

 S
un

se
t 

Bl
vd

. n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

re
pa

ve
d 

no
w

 w
ith

 a
 su

rfa
ce

 th
at

 c
an

 h
an

dl
e 

th
e 

he
av

y 
tr

uc
ks

 th
at

 u
se

 th
em

.  
N

ot
e:

 
H

ea
vy

 tr
uc

ks
 d

o 
us

e 
Su

ns
et

.  
M

or
e 

cl
as

sr
oo

m
s a

nd
 m

or
e 

te
ac

he
rs

 a
re

 re
qu

ire
d.

  S
he

rw
oo

d 
sh

ou
ld

 g
ro

w
 o

nl
y 

w
he

n 
it 

is 
ca

pa
bl

e 
of

 
ha

nd
lin

g 
gr

ow
th

.
Th 

an
k 

yo
u 

fo
r y

ou
r t

im
e 

an
d 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n.
  I

 h
op

e 
th

at
 m

ov
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
lit

tle
 fl 

ex
ib

ili
ty

 
w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t l

ay
ou

t.
As

 a
 h

om
eo

w
ne

r, 
a 

m
aj

or
ity

 la
nd

ow
ne

r a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

er
/b

ui
ld

er
 in

 th
is 

re
gi

on
 it

 w
as

 d
iffi 

 c
ul

t t
o 

sit
 o

n 
th

e 
sid

el
in

es
 a

nd
 n

ot
 b

e 
an

 in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 d

es
ig

n 
ph

as
e.

  A
s o

ne
 fi 

na
l r

eq
ue

st,
 I 

as
k 

th
at

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

pr
oc

es
s w

ill
 a

llo
w

 fl 
ex

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r f
ut

ur
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t l

ay
ou

ts 
ba

se
 o

n 
th

e 
gu

id
el

in
es

 th
at

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

ou
tli

ne
d 

in
 th

is 
pr

oc
es

s.
C

on
ce

rn
ed

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
tr

affi
  c

 d
es

ig
ns

 a
lo

ng
 M

ur
do

ck
 a

nd
 fo

re
ca

st 
ac

ci
de

nt
s a

nd
 ro

ad
 ra

ge
 a

s t
ra

ffi  
c 

in
cr

ea
se

s. 
O

ur
 tr

affi
  c

 c
irc

le
s h

av
e 

pr
ov

en
 th

em
se

lv
es

 a
nd

 I 
su

gg
es

t t
ha

t l
on

g-
te

rm
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ill
 b

e 
be

tte
r 

pr
ov

id
ed

 fo
r b

y 
co

m
pa

ct
 tr

affi
  c

 c
irc

le
s a

t: 
1.

 M
ur

do
ck

 a
nd

 D
en

al
i, 

M
ur

do
ck

 a
nd

 U
pp

er
 R

oy
 a

nd
 3

. A
t 

Fa
iro

ak
s a

nd
 M

ur
do

ck
. Th

 e
re

’s 
a 

un
iq

ue
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 g
et

 a
he

ad
, r

at
he

r t
ha

n 
se

rv
e 

ne
ar

 te
rm

 n
ee

ds
. 

M
y 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

ts 
sh

ow
 th

at
 th

er
e 

is 
ad

eq
ua

te
 sp

ac
e 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 ti

gh
t t

ra
ffi  

c 
ci

rc
le

s a
t a

ll 
in

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
, 

an
d 

th
es

e 
ci

rc
le

s w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 fl 
ow

 a
s w

el
l a

s s
lo

w
 d

ow
n 

sp
ee

de
rs

; l
on

g-
te

rm
, r

eg
ar

dl
es

s o
f v

ol
um

e 
th

is 
w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
w

ith
 sa

fe
r p

er
im

et
er

s. 
Th 

er
e 

ne
ed

s t
o 

be
 a

 li
gh

te
d 

an
d 

gu
ar

de
d 

cr
os

sin
g 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
at

 se
ve

ra
l p

la
ce

s.

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
-b

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 74 of 122

169



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  66

So
ut

he
as

t S
he

rw
oo

d 
N

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d 

Pl
an

Al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 O
pe

n 
H

ou
se

 #
3 

– 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
18

, 2
00

6 
- C

on
tin

ue
d

Th 
er

e 
is 

a 
50

%
 c

ha
nc

e 
th

at
 th

e 
I-

5/
99

 in
te

rc
on

ne
ct

 w
ill

 ru
n 

1-
2 

m
ile

s s
ou

th
 o

f S
un

se
t, 

an
d 

th
at

 
M

ur
do

ck
 w

ill
 b

ec
om

e 
a 

pr
im

ar
y 

fe
ed

er
; I

 su
gg

es
t t

ha
t, 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
ad

jo
in

in
g 

ne
ig

hb
or

ho
od

s, 
w

e 
ne

ed
 

th
os

e 
tr

affi
  c

 c
irc

le
s. 

 If
 th

at
 is

 n
ot

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

4 
w

ay
 li

gh
ts 

at
 a

ll 
in

te
rs

ec
tio

ns
 a

re
 n

ee
de

d.
I a

gr
ee

 w
ith

 P
at

 F
le

m
in

g 
th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

re
gi

on
al

 a
dv

an
ta

ge
s t

o 
co

nn
ec

tin
g 

th
e 

ar
ea

 N
or

th
 o

f F
ai

ro
ak

s 
in

to
 th

e 
pa

rk
s, 

tr
ai

ls 
an

d 
w

et
 la

nd
 a

cc
es

s s
ys

te
m

 b
ei

ng
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 fo
r S

E 
Sh

er
w

oo
d.

 W
ith

 M
et

ro
’s 

O
pe

n 
Sp

ac
es

 B
on

d 
th

e 
C

ity
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 c

re
at

e 
a 

W
at

er
Sc

ap
e 

in
 th

e 
th

re
e 

pa
rc

el
 a

re
a 

in
 fr

on
t o

f F
ai

ro
ak

s 
an

d,
 w

ith
 F

ish
 a

nd
 W

et
la

nd
s p

eo
pl

e 
cr

ea
te

 a
n 

ac
ce

ss
 p

la
tfo

rm
 fo

r r
eg

io
na

l v
isi

to
rs

 th
at

 w
ou

ld
 w

an
t t

o 
w

al
k 

th
e 

vi
su

al
ize

d 
el

ev
at

ed
 tr

ai
ls 

- s
im

ila
r t

o 
St

el
la

r O
lso

n 
Pa

rk
.

Th 
e 

tr
affi

  c
 m

as
te

r p
la

n 
ca

n 
be

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

ed
 w

ith
 a

 sa
fe

ty
 la

ne
 a

cc
es

s t
ha

t i
s g

at
ed

 a
t D

en
al

i r
at

he
r t

ha
n 

a 
fu

ll 
fl e

dg
ed

 tr
affi

  c
 a

rt
er

y. 
If 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 c
om

m
iss

io
n 

co
ul

d 
ac

ce
pt

 th
at

 I 
pr

ed
ic

t a
 h

ug
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
op

po
sit

io
n 

w
ou

ld
 m

el
t.

As
 c

iti
ze

ns
 a

nd
 ta

x 
pa

ye
rs

 o
f S

he
rw

oo
d,

 w
e 

ar
e 

gr
ea

tly
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f S
E 

Sh
er

w
oo

d.
  W

e 
re

sid
e 

in
 S

he
rw

oo
d 

V
ie

w
 E

sta
te

s a
nd

 w
he

n 
w

e 
bo

ug
ht

 o
ur

 lo
t a

nd
 b

ui
lt 

ou
r h

om
e 

it 
w

as
 

ou
r u

nd
er

sta
nd

in
g 

th
at

 D
en

al
i L

an
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
en

di
ng

 in
 a

 c
ul

-d
e-

sa
c 

an
d 

th
at

 w
as

 a
 se

lli
ng

 p
oi

nt
.  

Th 
is 

is 
ou

r r
et

ire
m

en
t h

om
e 

sin
ce

 w
e 

do
 n

ot
 p

la
n 

on
 le

av
in

g 
Sh

er
w

oo
d 

un
til

 w
e 

ha
ve

 n
o 

co
nt

ro
l (

“f
ee

t fi
 rs

t”
). 

 
Su

pp
or

te
rs

 o
f t

he
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l b
on

d 
iss

ue
s e

ve
n 

th
ou

gh
 w

e 
do

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
or

 e
ve

n 
gr

an
d 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 th

e 
sy

ste
m

 –
 b

ut
 w

e 
fe

el
 th

at
 is

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 –

 th
e 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ch
ild

re
n.

  A
ll 

th
is 

le
ad

s t
o 

ou
r 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
bo

ut
 w

ha
t t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ill
 c

re
at

e:
  

In
cr

ea
se

d 
stu

de
nt

 lo
ad

 o
n 

an
 a

lre
ad

y 
ov

er
 c

ap
ac

ity
 sc

ho
ol

 sy
ste

m
.  

Th 
e 

ad
di

tio
n 

of
 6

5 
to

 9
1 

ho
us

es
 in

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
re

a 
w

ou
ld

 e
ve

n 
fu

rt
he

r o
ve

rlo
ad

 th
e 

sy
ste

m
.  

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

fra
gi

le
 w

et
 la

nd
s d

ire
ct

ly
 a

dj
oi

ni
ng

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
re

a.
  E

ve
n 

w
ith

 st
or

m
 d

ra
in

s t
he

 ru
n-

off
  w

ill
 st

ill
 im

pa
ct

 th
e 

ar
ea

 d
ow

n 
hi

ll 
– 

in
 o

th
er

 w
or

ds
 –

 th
e 

w
et

 la
nd

s.
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fra

gi
le

 w
ild

 li
fe

 re
fu

ge
 w

hi
ch

 a
lso

 d
ire

ct
ly

 a
dj

oi
ns

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
re

a.
  D

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ill
 a

ff e
ct

 th
e 

m
ig

ra
to

ry
 p

at
te

rn
s o

f t
he

 w
ild

lif
e 

ev
en

 m
or

e 
th

an
 w

e 
al

re
ad

y 
ha

ve
, f

or
ci

ng
 th

em
 in

to
 a

n 
ev

er
 d

ec
re

as
in

g 
ha

bi
ta

t. 
  I

t w
ill

 a
lso

 a
ff e

ct
 th

ei
r f

oo
d 

su
pp

ly
 a

nd
 

w
at

er
 su

pp
ly

 n
ot

 to
 m

en
tio

n 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 e

nc
ro

ac
hm

en
t o

f s
o 

m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 o
n 

th
ei

r e
ve

r s
hr

in
ki

ng
 

ha
bi

ta
t. 

 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

tr
affi

  c
 a

nd
 d

ec
re

as
ed

 sa
fe

ty
 fo

r r
es

id
en

ts 
– 

th
er

e 
is 

al
re

ad
y 

a 
pr

ob
le

m
 a

t t
he

 S
un

se
t-M

ur
do

ck
 

in
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

fro
m

 p
eo

pl
e 

no
t s

to
pp

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 st

op
 si

gn
.  

Th 
e 

th
re

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 o

ff e
re

d 
di

d 
no

t 
ad

dr
es

s t
he

 is
su

e 
of

 e
ith

er
 a

no
th

er
 ro

un
d-

ab
ou

t o
r t

ra
ffi  

c 
lig

ht
 fo

r p
eo

pl
e 

tr
yi

ng
 to

 e
xi

t t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 tu
rn

in
g 

le
ft.

   
Th 

e 
“p

un
ch

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h”

 o
f D

en
al

i w
ou

ld
 c

ha
nn

el
 tr

affi
  c

 th
ro

ug
h 

D
en

al
i a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
Sh

er
w

oo
d 

V
ie

w
 

– 
w

hi
ch

 w
as

 n
ev

er
 su

pp
os

ed
 to

 h
an

dl
e 

su
ch

 a
 lo

ad
.  

Th 
is 

is 
a 

sa
fe

ty
 is

su
e 

w
hi

ch
 h

as
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

pr
op

er
ly

 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

  W
e 

ha
ve

 h
ea

rd
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ity
 n

ee
ds

 to
 h

av
e 

an
ot

he
r a

cc
es

s r
ou

te
 to

 S
he

rw
oo

d 
V

ie
w,

 h
ow

ev
er

, 
it 

ap
pe

ar
s t

ha
t i

ns
te

ad
 o

f s
ol

vi
ng

 th
at

 C
ity

 c
on

ce
rn

, i
t w

ill
 in

ste
ad

 c
re

at
e 

m
or

e 
da

ng
er

ou
s c

on
ce

rn
s f

or
 

th
e 

re
sid

en
ts 

– 
tr

affi
  c

 a
nd

 c
rim

e 
(m

or
e 

ac
ce

ss
/e

xi
t f

or
 p

er
pe

tr
at

or
s)

.  
It 

w
as

 e
xt

re
m

el
y 

di
sa

pp
oi

nt
in

g 
to

 fi 
nd

 th
at

 o
nl

y 
th

re
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 w
er

e 
be

in
g 

off
 e

re
d 

fo
r t

hi
s 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t –

 e
ve

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

lre
ad

y 
vo

ic
ed

 b
y 

pa
rt

ic
ip

an
ts 

in
 th

e 
th

re
e 

op
en

 m
ee

tin
gs

.  
It 

w
as

 
ev

en
 m

or
e 

di
sa

pp
oi

nt
in

g 
to

 fi 
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

ar
ea

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
cr

os
s 9

9W
 a

t E
lw

er
t w

as
 c

on
sid

er
ed

 o
ve

r 
a 

ye
ar

 a
nd

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

FI
V

E 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 p

ro
po

se
d,

 a
lo

ng
 w

ith
 a

n 
es

ta
bl

ish
ed

 c
iti

ze
n’s

 a
dv

iso
ry

 c
om

m
itt

ee
.  

W
hy

 w
er

e 
th

e 
ci

tiz
en

s o
f t

he
 S

E 
Sh

er
w

oo
d 

ar
ea

 n
ot

 g
iv

en
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
, b

ut
 w

er
e 

gi
ve

n 
on

ly
 

th
re

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
, l

es
s t

ha
n 

six
 m

on
th

s t
im

e,
 n

o 
ci

tiz
en

 a
dv

iso
ry

 c
om

m
itt

ee
, a

nd
 o

nl
y 

th
re

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
?  

It 
ap

pe
ar

s i
np

ut
 fr

om
 ta

x 
pa

ye
rs

 fo
r t

hi
s p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
re

a 
do

es
n’t

 c
ar

ry
 v

er
y 

m
uc

h 
w

ei
gh

t 
– 

w
hi

ch
 m

ak
es

 u
s w

on
de

r j
us

t w
hy

!! 
  W

as
 o

ur
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
 ju

st 
an

 e
xe

rc
ise

 in
 fu

til
ity

 
an

d 
th

e 
de

ci
sio

n 
ha

d 
al

re
ad

y 
be

en
 m

ad
e 

as
 to

 w
ha

t w
ou

ld
 b

e 
do

ne
?  

 It
 is

 h
op

ed
 th

e 
ta

x 
pa

ye
rs’

 a
nd

 
vo

te
rs’

 o
pi

ni
on

s w
ou

ld
 c

ou
nt

 in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s –
 p

le
as

e 
co

ns
id

er
 th

is.
  

• • • • • • • • • • •

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
-b

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 75 of 122

170



Page  67Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
-c

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 76 of 122

171



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  68

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
-d

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 77 of 122

172



Page  69Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
-d

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 78 of 122

173



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  70

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
-d

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 79 of 122

174



Page  71Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
-d

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 80 of 122

175



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  72

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
-e

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 81 of 122

176



Page  73Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 4
-f

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 82 of 122

177



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  74

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 83 of 122

178



Page  75Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 84 of 122

179



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  76

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 85 of 122

180



Page  77Southeast  Sherwood Master  P lan

Ap
pe

nd
ix

 5

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 86 of 122

181



Ci ty  o f  SherwoodPage  78

Appendix 6

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 87 of 122

182



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 88 of 122

183



Exhibit D

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 89 of 122

184



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 90 of 122

185



Exhibit E

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 91 of 122

186



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 92 of 122

187



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 93 of 122

188



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 94 of 122

189



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 95 of 122

190



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 96 of 122

191



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 97 of 122

192



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 98 of 122

193



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 99 of 122

194



Patrick Huske 
23352 SW Murdock Rd 
Sherwood, Or 97140 

January 8, 2013 

Ms. Michelle Miller, Associate Planner 
Mr. Allen and Members of the Planning Commission 
Planning Department, City of Sherwood 

RE: PA 12-04 Very Low Density Residential Text Amendment 

Dear Ms. Miller, Mr. Allen and Members of the Planning Commission 

I own several properties within the VLDR. They are located at 23352 SW Murdock 
Rd (personal home), 23000 SW Murdock Rd (4.88 undeveloped acres), and my 
Company Ironwood Homes, Inc. owns two remaining lots within Ironwood Acres. 

I support the Text Amendment for the following reasons: 

#lit will assist in bringing undeveloped land into productive use. 

#2 It will also benefit the public, with the future development of 
streets, sidewalks, trails, and parks. 

Please consider the positive aspects of the text amendment. 
If the lots seem too small for the region, please continue your discussion 
regarding lot size prior to your vote. 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 100 of 122

195



TO: Sherwood Planning Commission 

FROM: Lisa & Roger Walker 
23500 SW Murdock Rd 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

RE: PA 12-04 VLDR. Text Amendment 

Dear Commissioners: 

January 8, 2013 

As members of the Planning Commission you are asked to review many projects. Often they 

involve minor issues and/or few people are affected by a particular decision. However, before 

you tonight is one of the larger issues you are likely to be responsible for. A few decisions 

have needed a lot more time, effort and research to really analyze their impacts and this is one 

of them. Because this is a legislative action you are not required or encouraged to move 

things through the process quickly. 

A lot of time was spent on 'Code Clean Up' over the past 2 + years and since this involves a 

major change to the code and affects the future of the look of Sherwood, it needs to have even 

more due diligence invested in its review. 

This is kind of a continuation of the SE Sherwood Master Plan discussion that began 7 years 

ago in 2005. I say discussion because that was really all it ended up amounting to. It has 

been confirmed by staff and others involved, the PC Resolution# 2006-001 really resolved 

nothing and has no real legislative power. I know Chair Allen was there for those discussions 

as was I, and some of the other members of the audience tonight. That project was a huge 

endeavor for those involved and yet no consensus was reached. It is for that reason we are 

asking that great attention is given to all the citizen testimony you receive and additional time is 

allowed for further citizen involvement beyond tonight. There are many thoughts and issues to 

bring up that cannot adequately be explored in the 5 minutes we have for testimony tonight. 

I am going to try and review as many specific points as I can tonight but want to request further 

opportunities to provide additional information to you. 

PC letter text amendment 1-8-13.docx 1 of4 1/8/2013 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 101 of 122

196



At the very least we want to consider adding additional language to any final text amendment 

and not just have to accept it as proposed. Perhaps it could include provision for the concerns 

of the property owners and the citizens. Again this will take more time. 

See Staff report - page 24 

16.80.030.1 - Text Amendment Review 

The applicant claims the need for the proposed text amendment is found in within the PC 

Resolution 2001-01. 

Reasons why the proposal does not meet this criteria: 

1 . The applicant is relying on a resolution that was not adopted because: 

a. No consensus was reached 

b. Staff had to 'move onto other projects and grant funds were diminished causing 

the project to be kind of dropped where it was. 

2. The PC has never before, nor since, used the Resolution process. 

a. Ther-efore a Resolution by nature has no 'teeth' to enforce 

3. This resolution was done 7 years ago and changes have occurred making it prudent to 

look further into its intent and determine its current validity and not accept its intent on 

face value. 

4. The fact that the Resolution supported a plan that could not be legally done supports 

the position that the process was stopped prematurely and prior to all due diligence 

being completed. 

5. The proposed amendment does not satisfy all issues identified in the SESMP. 

a. Hilltop viewpoint 

b. Density buffering 

PC letter text amendment 1-8-13.docx 2 of4 1/8/2013 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 102 of 122

197



Consistency with Statewide Planning Goals: 

Goal 1: "Citizen Involvement" (page 25) 

While the process to develop the proposed changes was compliant with this goal the use of 

the data collected in the SESMP process from 7 years ago is not valid as it does not consider 

the current property owners and residents nor the changes to the current landscape. 

PA 12-04 Facts to Highlight: 

• This is a legislative not quasi-judicial action so it does not have any timelines built into it 

nor does it require any action at all. 

• Criteria 16.80.030.1 -may not have been met. 

SESMP Facts to keep in mind: 

• In your packets on pages 83, 88-92 & 99-103, are citizen comments received 

during the SESMP discussions. I am sure your briefly reviewed them and got the 

gist of them but further time should be spent to review and obtain new comments 

collected in a similar manner. 

• 120+ residents weighed in during 5 + months of discussion 

• No consensus was reached 

• Plan 8/C was 'accepted' only because it was the least bad plan that was brought forth 

before the grant funds ran out and staff had to move onto other projects 

• Staff had to 'move onto other projects and grant funds were diminished causing the 

project to be kind of dropped where it was. 

• The PC has never before, nor since, used the Resolution process. 

• Citizens were essentially worn down over titne and pushed to feel they had to 

accept it as inevitable. 

PC letter text amendment 1-8-13.docx 3 of4 1/8/2013 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 103 of 122

198



• Citizens were not well counseled on their options - these are complex issues and 

I for one did not understand the difference between gross and buildable density. 

I thought the B/C plan was 2.2 homes per acre not 4.3. 

• Resolution endorsed a hilltop view point park to include in the open space 

• Tree removal on the Moser property measurable changes all concept plan versions 

PC letter text amendment 1-8-13.docx 4of4 1/8/2013 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 104 of 122

199



Jean Simson, 22466 SW Nottingham Ct., Sherwood, OR 

PA 12-04- VLDR PUD Text Amendment 

On page 27, Section 16.12.010 A.2- minor land partitions shall be exempt from minimum density requirement. What is 

the purpose of this? What impact would this have? Would partitions be subject to minimum lot sizes? 

As someone who participated in the 2006 SE Sherwood Master Plan process, I am a proponent of updating the code; 

however, I am concerned that just increasing the density will have a negative impact on the area. So, I am here to ask 

the commission to pursue implementing the master plan or incorporating the intent of it within the PUD section. The 

applicant relies on the Master Plan in proposing the changes for the text amendment; it seems reasonable to add 

language in the text that requires consistency with its principals and goals. 

As mentioned in your packet, the SE Sherwood Master Plan was the result of a study by the consulting firm Otak, 

multiple public meetings, work sessions, and public hearings. Many factors were considered and integrated into this 

comprehensive plan. The final preferred alternative B/C provided for an 82-lot design with significant open space 

amenities including a neighborhood park and pedestrian paths. Consideration was made for preserving the natural 

environment of the site . The plan also incorporated a buffer to existing neighborhoods. Larger lots were planned for 

the southwest area and smaller lots located to the north. 

As you know, the proposed text amendment will keep VLDR as one (1) unit per acre but allow a PUD four (4) dwelling 

units per net buildable acre. This is twice the density without any of the safeguards provided in the master plan. 

Staff report page 22 (Page 2 of 6) 

55 acres 

Add'l units 

VLDR old PUD 

55 

165 

110 

new PUD 

220 

Applicant submittal page 32 (Page 3 of 8) 

39 acres 

Add'l units 

VLDR old PUD new PUD 

39 78 156 

117 

The final 05/09/2006 Planning Commission Resolution 2006-001 (Pages 116-117) was for 72 new lots with a Gross 

Density of 2.2 units per acre, not including 11 existing 1-acre lots, with an approximate net density of 4.4 units per acre 

after removing existing lots, streets, and 12.5 acres of open space. 

Again, I encourage the Planning Commission to move the actual master plan document forward to the council or, at a 

minimum, reference the purpose and intent of the plan into the PUD text language as suggested in the staff report at 

the top of Page 24 (Page 4 of 6). 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 105 of 122

200



Michelle Miller 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Julia Hajduk 
Monday, January 14, 2013 4:50 PM 
Michelle Miller 
FW: Denali - Zoning changes from VLDR 

From: Mary Reid [mailto:maryl.reid@comcast.netl 
Sent: Monday, January 14, 2013 1:21PM 
To: PlanningCommission 
Subject: Denali - Zoning changes from VLDR 

Attn: Michelle Miller 

The proposed change from very low density to four units per net acre is very disturbing. Not only is the proposal going 
to increase traffic along Murdoch but the proposed "punching through" of Denali will send traffic through an established 
neighborhood with streets not originally planned to handle outside traffic. When we (and I am sure others on Denali) 
purchased our lot and built 13+ years ago the plan was to have Denali end in a cui de sac. This has helped keep not only 
traffic down but crime, etc. too. Other citizens use Sherwood View to not only walk, bike and run, but also to bring their 
children and dogs for exercise knowing they are safe. The proposal to change the zoning to high density will also strain 
the City's ability to provide the services required- water, sewer, garbage, streets, fire and police protection- not to 
mention additional stress on schools and parks with the increased population. 

We strongly request the zoning change to four units per net acre be disallowed. 

Mary and Richard Reid 
23580 SW Denali Ln 
Sherwood, OR 97140 

5093-625-9104 

1 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 106 of 122

201



Planning Commission 

Sherwood City Hall 

22560 SW Pine Street 

Sherwood, OR 97140 

Dear Commissioner: 

23584 SW Robson Terrace 

Sherwood, OR 97140 

January 16, 2013 

503-610-1389 

We are homeowners residing in the immediate vicinity of the area on Denali for 
which potential changes to the existing VLDR zoning are under consideration. The 
purpose of this letter is to express our serious concems and strong opposition to any 
zoning changes that would result in smaller VLDR lot sizes. 

One of the main reasons we decided to purchase a home in Sherwood View 
Estates was the fact that existing zoning ordinances ensured that any new home being 
constructed would be of essentially the same size and value. Protecting property 
values is an extremely important consideration for us; particularly since the current 
market value of our home is substantially less than what we paid for it. Pennitting 
smaller lot sizes will potentially change the "character" of our development and 
adversely affect property values in the entire area. 

The Planning Commission was very farsighted in adopting the SE Sherwood Master 
Plan. It is extremely difficult to understand changing a portion of existing VLDR 
zoning at the request of a Lake Oswego bank to the detriment of current property 
owners; with no apparent benefit to the City of Sherwood. 

Both Mrs. Barclay and I appreciate the opportunity to convey our 
personal views regarding this matter to the Planning Commission and we respectfully 
urge the Commission to deny the requested zoning change. 

Sincerely, 

~t.~~~15~ 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 107 of 122

202



Planning Commission 

Sherwood City Hall 

22560 S.W. Pine Street 

Sherwood,OR 97140 

RE!CEIVED 

JAN 1 4 13 

BY M L.JV\. 
PLANNING DEPT. 

January 14, 2013 

This letter concerns the proposed Denali PUD change from VLDR to a higher density. This is the last low density area for 

development in Sherwood. We think this unique parcel of land should remain as planned. 

We understand the applicant would like to increase density to possibly enable them to make a greater financial gain, 

however, homes have been and currently are being built in this area at the existing density. 

My wife and I moved to Sherwood within the past year after living in a high density area on Bull Mountain. Our home 

was 1,000 Sq. feet larger than our present home and because of the small lot size there was no place for children to play 

in our yard. High density promotes more cars on the streets contributing to congestion. 

We were willing to make the move to Sherwood and to pay $3,000 in additional property taxes in order to enjoy more 

space. This was not an easy decision for two retired people. 

The future of our neighborhood should be determined by the wishes of the residents and not by the profit motive. At 

the meeting on Jan 2 the applicant, disparagingly used the term NIMBY when referring to the residents living in this 

area. Well, our backyard in Sherwood View Estates has been VLDR from the beginning and that is why people bought 

there. We love Sherwood and Sherwood View Estates for the sense of community and are glad we made the move. 

When making your decision about increasing the density, please take into consideration the wishes of the existing 

residents and the uniqueness of the area. Cutting through Denali in combination with higher density would put a burden 

on traffic through Sherwood View Estates. 

Many neighborhoods already exist in Sherwood with high density. This is a chance to offer future residents another 

choice in housing. 

Please keep these thoughts in mind as you discuss this matter. 

John W. Carter 

"0 S.W. Mcloughlin Ct., Sherwood, OR 

Sherwood, OR 97140 Sherwood, OR 97140 

Exhibit K

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 108 of 122

203



 

 1 

Please Note:  Proposed Additions are underlined in blue 

  Proposed Deletions are crossed out in red 

Chapter 16.12 Residential Land Uses 

16.12.010. - Purpose and Density Requirements 

A. Very Low Density Residential (VLDR) 

1.  Standard Density 

The VLDR zoning district provides for low density, larger lot single-family housing and other related uses 

in natural resource and environmentally sensitive areas warranting preservation, but otherwise deemed 

suitable for limited development, with a density of 0.7 to 1 dwelling unit per acre.  

2. VLDR Planned Unit Development Density Standards 

If developed through the Planned Unit Development (PUD) process, as per Chapter 16.40, and if  all 

floodplain, wetlands, and other natural resource areas are dedicated or remain in common open space, 

the permitted density of 1.4 to two (2) dwelling units per net buildable acre may be allowed under the 

following conditions. :  

Minor land partitions shall be exempt from the minimum density requirement.  

a.  Special Density Allowances 

 Housing densities up to two (2) units per net buildable acre, and minimum lot sizes of 10,000 

 square feet, may be allowed in the VLDR zone. when:  

b.  The following areas are dedicated to the public or preserved as common open space: 

 floodplains, as per Section 16.134.020 (Special Resource Zones); natural resources areas, per the 

 Natural Resources and Recreation Plan Map, attached as Appendix C, or as specified in Chapter 

 5 of the Community Development Plan, and wetlands defined and regulated as per current 

 Federal regulation and Division VIII of this Code; and  

c.  The Review Authority determines that the higher density development would better preserve 

 natural resources as compared to one (1) unit per acre design.  

3.  Southeast Sherwood Master Planned Unit Development 

The applicant may apply the following standards if developed as a planned unit development under 

Chapter 16.40 (Planned Unit Development) based in part on the concepts goals and objectives of the SE 

Sherwood Master Planning effort as a third alternative within this zone.  

 

Exhibit L

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 109 of 122

204



 

 2 

a.   Residential Density

 Housing density up to four (4) units per net buildable acre area maximum is allowed. 

b.   The applicant will generally follow the development pattern of the recommended 

 Alternative B/C found in the SE Sherwood Master Plan (2006) that includes the following 

 considerations: 

(1)  Varied lot sizes are allowed with a minimum lot area of 8,500 sq. ft. if it can be shown that 
adequate buffering exists adjacent to developed properties with screening, landscaping, 
roadways or open space.  
 

 (2) The Open Space areas as required by Chapter 16.40 (Planned Unit Development), where 

 feasible should include parks and pathways that are located within the general vicinity of the 

 recommended Alternative B/C found in the SE Sherwood Master Plan.  

 (3) There is a pedestrian friendly transportation system that links the site with nearby 

 residential developments, schools, parks, commercial areas and other destinations.   

 (4) The Review Authority will consider the unique environmental opportunities and constraints  

 identified through the SE Sherwood Master planning process. 

 (5) The Review Authority will consider the view corridors identified in the SE Sherwood Master 

 Plan when approving the final development plans. 

 (6) The Review Authority will consider housing design type based on compatibility with 

 surrounding and existing development at the time of final development review. 

c.  Density Transfers per Chapter 16.40.050 C. 2. are not permitted if utilizing the SE Sherwood 

 Master Plan density allowance. 

 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 110 of 122

205



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 111 of 122

206



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 112 of 122

207



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 113 of 122

208



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 114 of 122

209



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 115 of 122

210



Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 116 of 122

211



Recommended Development Code Language 
April 2, 2013 

Exhibit O 

 1 

Please Note:  Proposed Additions are underlined in blue 

  Proposed Deletions are crossed out in red 

Chapter 16.12 Residential Land Uses 

16.12.010. - Purpose and Density Requirements 

A. Very Low Density Residential (VLDR) 

1.  Standard Density 

The VLDR zoning district provides for low density, larger lot single-family housing and other related uses 

in natural resource and environmentally sensitive areas that warranting preservation, but are otherwise 

deemed suitable for limited development.  Standard density in the VLDR zone is , with a density of 0.7 to 

1 dwelling unit per acre.  

2. VLDR Planned Unit Development Density Standards 

IfProperty in the VLDR zone that is developed through the Planned Unit Development (PUD) process, as 

under per Chapter 16.40, and if  all floodplain, wetlands, and other natural resource areas are dedicated 

or remain in common open space, the permitted may develop to a density of 1.4 to 2.0two (2) dwelling 

units per net buildable acre may be allowed under the following conditions. :  

Minor land partitions shall be exempt from the minimum density requirement.  

a.  The Housing densities up to two (2) units per net buildable acre, and minimum lot sizes of is not 

 less than 10,000 square feet;, may be allowed in the VLDR zone.  

b.  The following areas are dedicated to the public or preserved as common open space: 

 floodplains, as per under Section 16.134.020 (Special Resource Zones); natural resources areas  

 as shown on , per the  Natural Resources and Recreation Plan Map, attached as Appendix C, or 

 as specified in Chapter  5 of the Community Development Plan,; and wetlands defined and 

 regulated as per under current  Federal regulation and Division VIII of this Code; and  

c.  The Review Authority determines that the higher density development would will better 

preserve natural resources as compared to one (1) unit per acre design.  

3.  Southeast Sherwood Master Planned Unit Development 

a.  Property in the VLDR zone that is developed through the Planned Unit Development process 

 under Chapter 16.40 and is based on, and generally conforms to the concepts, goals and 

 objectives of the SE Sherwood Master Plan may develop to a maximum density of 4.0 dwelling 

 units per net buildable acre.  

 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 117 of 122

212



Recommended Development Code Language 
April 2, 2013 

Exhibit O 

 2 

b.  Development under Section 16.12.010.A.3 must generally follow the development pattern 

 shown as Alternative B/C in the SE Sherwood Master Plan (2006) and address the following 

 factors: 

(1)  Varied lot sizes are allowed with a minimum lot area of 10,000 square feet if it can be shown 
that adequate buffering exists adjacent to developed properties with screening, landscaping, 
roadways or open space.  
 

 (2) The open space areas as required by Chapter 16.40 (Planned Unit Development), where 

 feasible, should include parks and pathways that are located within the general vicinity of

 Alternative B/C in the SE Sherwood Master Plan.  

 (3) There is a pedestrian friendly transportation system that links the site with nearby 

 residential developments, schools, parks, commercial areas and other destinations.   

 (4) The unique environmental opportunities and constraints identified in the SE Sherwood 

 Master Plan. 

 (5) The  view corridors identified in the SE Sherwood Master Plan. 

 (6) Housing design types that are compatible with both surrounding and existing development. 

c.  A density transfer under Chapter 16.40.050 C. 2. is not permitted for development under this 

 Section 16.12.010.A.3. 

d. The Planning Commission will consider the specific housing design types identified and the

 preservation of the identified view corridors at the time of final development review to ensure 

 compatibility with the existing and surrounding development. 

 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 118 of 122

213



City of Sherwood 
22560 SW Pine St. 
Sherwood, OR 97140 
Tel 503-625-5522 
Fax 503-625-5524 
www.sherwoodoregon.gov 
 
Mayor 
Bill Middleton 
 
Council President 
Linda Henderson 
 
Councilors 
Dave Grant 
Robyn Folsom 
Bill Butterfield 
Matt Langer 
Krisanna Clark 
 
 
City Manager  
Joseph Gall, ICMA-CM 
 
Assistant City Manager 
Tom Pessemier, P.E. 
 
 

 
 
2009 Top Ten Selection 
 
 

 
 
2007 18th Best Place to Live 
 
 

 

      MEMORANDUM 
Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge 

 

                                                   

To:  Planning Commission 
 
From:  Michelle Miller, AICP Associate Planner 
 
RE:  Very Low Density Planned Unit Development Text Amendment (PA 12-04) 
 
Date:  February 19, 2013 
 
At the hearing on January 8 2013, the Planning Commission heard a proposal for a 
text amendment amending the Very Low Density Residential (VLDR) zone. The 
amended language would allow higher densities for properties that are developed as 
planned unit developments. The Planning Commission heard from staff, the 
applicant, and the public. The applicant, a property owner within the VLDR area 
proposed to reduce the minimum lot size from 10,000 to 8,000 square feet and 
increase density from two units to a maximum four units per net buildable acre when 
developed under planned unit development standards. 
 
The Planning Commission held a hearing on January 8, 2013 and heard from the 
applicant, staff and citizens. The Commission then closed the record and began 
deliberating. During deliberations, the Planning Commission wished to continue the 
hearing to February 12, 2013 in order to modify the proposed language and 
incorporate more elements of the SE Sherwood Master Plan into the proposed VLDR 
Text Amendment. Staff has attached the proposed new Code language to this memo 
along with an additional citizen comment received to date. 
 
The applicant was unable to participate at the scheduled hearing on February 12, 
2013 and requested a continuance.  At the Planning Commission hearing on February 
12, 2013, the Planning Commission granted the continuance and left the record open 
until the hearing on February 26, 2013. 
 
To highlight the changes, a third alternative density calculation is added, the 
“Southeast Sherwood Master Planned Unit Development” which allows for a 
maximum housing density of four units per acre. Applications will be reviewed in the 
same manner as typical Planned Unit Developments, so applications will include a 
review by the Planning Commission and City Council.  Once approved by the City 
Council, Final Development Plans are approved by the Planning Commission. 
 

Exhibit P

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 119 of 122

214



 

 Page 2 of 3 
  
  
 

Along with achieving the density envisioned in that planning effort, the applicant must follow the 
density pattern identified in the SE Sherwood Master Plan and include the following elements:  

 Varying lot size no smaller than 8,500 sq. ft. so long as there is buffering with existing 
development 

 PUD requirements of open space (15%) that follow the Master Plan 

 Pedestrian friendly connections 

 Consideration of the environmental opportunities and constraints 

 Consideration of the view corridors during final development approval 

 Consideration of the housing design type based on compatibility with   
 existing development during final development approval 

 
 
Attachments: 
Exhibit K, John and Judith Carter comments 
Exhibit L, Proposed VLDR Text Amendment-SE Sherwood Master Planned Unit Development 
.   

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 120 of 122

215



City of Sherwood 
22560 SW Pine St. 
Sherwood, OR 97140 
Tel 503-625-5522 
Fax 503-625-5524 
www.sherwoodoregon.gov 
 
Mayor 
Keith Mays 
 
Council President 
Dave Grant  
 
Councilors 
Linda Henderson 
Robyn Folsom 
Bill Butterfield 
Matt Langer 
Krisanna Clark 
 
 
City Manager Pro Tem 
Tom Pessemier 
 

 
  
 
2009 Top Ten Selection 
 

 
  
 
2007 18th Best Place to 
Live 
 
 

 

 
Home of the Tualatin River National Wildlife Refuge 

 

 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

  
  
  

 

DATE: 
April  2, 2013 

TO: 
Planning Commission 

FROM: 
Michelle Miller, AICP, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT: 
VLDR Lot Size Minimum Comparison 

 
 

At the February 26, 2013 hearing on the VLDR text amendment, the 
Planning Commission requested further information concerning the 

ability of a subdivision development with a zoning designation of 
10,000 square foot minimum lot size to achieve the density of four 
units per acre. I reviewed the Denali PUD (PUD 11-01) application 

from 2011 to see if the applicant’s proposal was achievable with these 
calculations in mind. 

 
Generally, Sherwood planning staff calculates density based on the 
definition section of the Sherwood Zoning and Development Code. The 

SZDC § 16.10 defines density as “(t)he intensity of residential land 
uses per acre, stated as the number of dwelling units per net buildable 

acre. Net acre means an area measuring 43,560 square feet after 
excluding present and future rights-of-way, environmentally 
constrained areas, public parks and other public uses.” The definition 

of environmentally constrained areas is also found in § 16.10: 
“Any portion of land located within the floodway, 100 year floodplain, 

wetlands and/or vegetated corridor as defined by Clean Water 
Services.”  
 

This proposal includes several areas of public right of way, constrained 
areas as well as public use areas, which may be typical to this area 

along with the amount of right of way that would be needed for these 
sites. The Denali PUD Table below identifies the five tracts located on 

Name of Tract Size of Tract Purpose of Tract 

Tract A 17,932 sq. ft. Public use, not buildable and row for 
SW Ironwood 

Tract B 2360 sq. ft. Water quality bio-swale-
environmentally constrained-CWS 

Tract C 5148 sq. ft. Steep slope and vegetated buffer-
environmentally constrained-CWS 

Tract D 15,864 sq. ft. Open Space-public space 

Tract E 8365 sq. ft. Sanitary sewer easement-public use 
and not buildable 

Exhibit Q

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 121 of 122

216



C:\Users\millerm\Desktop\April 2 memo.docx Page 2 of 2 
Author:    
Created on 5/10/2013  
 

site and the rationale for subtracting those tracts from the calculation. 
 

The total site area is 3.71 acres or 161,607.6 square feet. In the case of 
Denali, there are approximately 1.99 net buildable acres remaining because of 

environmentally constrained lands, right of way, as well as the open space 
area. Calculating net density under the SE Sherwood Master Plan unit 
Development density of four units per acre provides for nearly eight units (1.99 

net acres x 4 units). Staff reached this calculation by subtracting all of the 
tracts and the right of way from the gross area as the definition requires. This 

would achieve eight lots.  
 
It is difficult to anticipate the percentage of land that would be excluded 

because of right of way or environmental constraints for the density calculation 
without shadow platting the entire area. In the case of Denali PUD over 46 % 

of the site was not considered buildable. 
 
Another example would be if there is a 5-acre site that wanted to develop 

under the SE Sherwood Master Planned Unit Development. The general rule of 
thumb subtracts 25 % of the five-acre site or 1.25 acres for right of way or 

other easments, leaving 3.75 acres developable acreage. With a PUD, 15% of 
the net developable site is required for open space, which in this case subtracts 

an additional .56 acres from the total, leaving the remainder left for single-
family lots. In this scenario, you may reach thirteen lots with a 10,000-lot size 
minimum. However, the maximum density in this case, would be 15 units 

(3.75 x 4). As this example shows, the maximum density cannot be met with a 
10,000 lot minimum.  

 
 

Ordinance 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q 
September 3, 2013, Page 122 of 122

217



Dennis and Paula Yuzon
23120 SW Mtudock Road
Sherwood, OR 97140
(so3) 62s-7e09

Dennis and Paula Yuzon

RBCEIVÊD

lrrl0tl
t ìL l¡\

City of Sherwood

MAY | 6 20t3

Recorder's Office
6Y
put¡ntnc Dret

Ma¡ch 14,2013

To: Sherwood City Council
Attn: Michelle Miller, AICP Senior Pla¡ner

Re: File No. PA I2-04,VLDR Text Amendment

Dear Sir:

Vy'e are o\ñrners of tax lot 100 on Murdock Road, a 10 acre parcel located on the Ken
Foster site.

We fully support the changes to the Sherwood Zonngand Development Code as

described in the above VLDR Text Amendment. The future development of our properby

would be impossible with ttre current zoning requirements. Since we have difficult
environmental issues on the property, it would benefit the city, the neighborhood and us

if we were able to develop the property sometime in the future.

Thank you for your consideration,

/*^ 72*-

Ar
+ Powta \vzor'r 218



May 19,2013

To: Sherwood Planning Department
City Hall 22560 SW Pine Street
Sherwood, OR 97140

RECEIVEO

MAY 2 0 2013

City of Sherwood

MAY 2 0 20t3

Recorde/s Office
3'l,t

BY

Subject: PA12-04 Very Low Densig Residential Text Amendment

Hello Michelle. Thank you for including me on the distribution of the proposed changes to the
zoning and development code. After reading the recommended development code language I

am not sure if it clarifies and simplifies the code or makes it more convoluted and difficult to
administer.

I understand that there are a limited amount of properties left in the City that are zoned VLDR,
and it seems that a lot of effort is being made by the Planning Department, members of the
community, other citizens, and eventually by the Gity Council over this matter, and sometimes it
is just better to leave well enough alone and focus on the more important matters of the day and
time.

Before I can determine my position on this I will need for the City to clarify and/or provide the
following information:

General:
Please confirm, is the current code for Chapter 16J2 Residential Land Uses exactly as written
in Exhibit O, other than the proposed additions and proposed deletions? lt is not clear to me if
what has been provided for public review is the current code, or some version of the code with
modified language.

1. Standard Densitv:
eteãse clartfy oinãrelated uses", does standard density relate to anything otherthan single-
family housing?

Please clarify "0.7 to 1 dwelling unii per acre", does 0.7 indicate that there can be less than one
dwelling unit per acre? Please provide a definition for "dwelling unit".

2. VLDR Planned Unit Development Densitv Standards:
Please provide a copy of the referenced Chapter 16.40 so that I can review the PUD process
and how it impacts the proposed Text Amendment.

Please clarify "may develop to a density of 1.4 to 2.0 dwelling units per acre", what is the
purpose of this proposed language? Why 1.4to2.O instead of two (2)?

2.a. lt seems the intent of the current code is to address housing densities in quantity per acre
And the proposed code is attempting to address minimum lot sizes. lf the proposed code was
adopted, this would increase the allowable housing density by a factor of 2 (potentially 4 per
acre instead of 2). ls this correct?

2.b. This section references code sections for special resource zones, natural resource areas,
and an attached Appendix G, the Community Development Plan, and Federal Regulation and
Division Vlll, Please provide a copy of these referenced sections so that they can be reviewed
as part of the proposed Text Amendment.

hcu¿ zl2at3 Ci'tg Coqncì I

Date Gov. Body

219



2,c. Please provide an example of when higher density development will better preserve natural
resources as compered to (1) unit per acre.

3. Sogthwest Sherwood Master Planned Unit Develooment:
a. lt is my understanding that the SE Sherwood Master Plan was never adopted as part of the
Zoning and Development Code of the City. ls this conect? lf yes, how can it be used as to
establish conformance to concepts, goals and objectives. This could be very problematic and
contestable if it is not official code. Please clarify, and provide the legal position of the City on
this.

b. Please describe Alternative B/C in the SE Sherwood Master Plan. ls Alternative B/C included
in the official Zoning and Development Code of the City? ls it specific to VLDR?

b. (1) Please define "adequate buffering", is this specifically for visual barriers? Does it specify
the height or density of the buffer? Does it include space constraints with specific physical
dimensions? Does it include specifications for green belts? Does the requirement for
"adequate buffering" vary based on the actual lot size? What happens if the lot size is 20,000
sf, 30,000 sf, or something other than 10,000 sf. A decision approving or denying what
constitutes "adequate bufferÍng" could be very subjective and potentially lead to dispute.

b. (2) Please define'þhere feasible" and "generalvicinity", are there any specific specifications
for when a park or pathway is required to be included in a PUD? A decision approving or
denying what constitt¡tes'\ivhere feasible' and'þeneral vicinity", and when it would or would not
be required could be very subjective and potentially lead to dispute.

b. (3) ls there any dimensional specifications for the "friendly transportation system"? I assume
this is meant to be a sidewalk, walking path or trail, but is the language clear that this does not
mean that a "friendly transportation system" needs to be constructed from the boundary of the
PUD to any school, park or commercial area or other destination? A decision approving or
denying what constitutes a'tiendly transportation system", and when it would or would not be
required could be very subjec'tive and potentially lead to dispute.

b. (4) lt is difficult to comprehend what "unique opportunities and constraints" that apparently
are included in the SE Shenrood Master Plan consist of. Why doesn't the Text Amendment just
list the "unique opportunities and constraints" that one must generally follow?

b. (5) Please define'!iew conidor", is this a defined term in the SE Shenrood Master Plan?

b. (6) When referencing "compatible", does this mean size, exterior finishes, architectural
elements, setbacks, orientation, sidewalks, fire & life safety systems? Are there any specific
specífications such as cedar shake roofing, underground electrical utilities or locations for fire
hydrants?

c. Please clarify density transfer. Does this mean that once a PUD is approved and permitted
that the density cannot be changed, either increased or decreased?

d. Willthe Planning Gommission only consider the specific housing design types and the
preservation of the view corridors, or approve or deny?

220



ln summary, it seems the Text Amendment as proposed leaves a lot to be interpreted by both
the party applying for a development or residence, and the Gity plan reviewer. From my
perspective I am stilltrying to understand why the City would want to spend planning, legal and
administrative efforts and associated costs for reviewing and approving this Text Amendment
when the City is apparently curently dealing with budget constraints.

I realize that the Gity needs to serve its residents when they come forward wíth a request for
services, but is reviewing and approving this Text Amendment for the betterment of a majority of
the Shenvood community or only for a ferr with a special interest?

ls it feasíble that the applicant be charged for the planning, legal and administrative costs that
are being and going to be expended as part of this review and decision making process?

I look forward to your response and thank you for serving the City of Sherwood community.

Sincerely,

¡d¡f¡¡

Martin Gavin
14490 SW Fairoaks Drive
Sherwood, OR 97140

221



I(uu't Ifuistensen - M. Ed.

22520 SW Fairoaks Ct.

Slrerwood, OR 91140

503-625-2340

ni{ay 22,2013

Mr. Middleton and Members of the City Courcil
Ms. Michelle Miller, Associate Planner'
Planning Depaúment, City of Sherwood

PA 12-04 Very Low Density Residential Text Amendment

According to City of Sherwood website (https://www.sherwoodoregon.gov/vldr-pud-text-
anrendnrent-pa-12-04), ofhcial mailings fi'om Planning Depaltment and a public solicitation
nrailing fi'om Emelio Design (http://emeriodesign.com/), the latter f,trn has applied to the City of
Sherwood to double the density reqnirements for the last renaining acreage (VLDR) within the
City of Sherwood fÌom two (2) per developabie acre to four (4)per developable acre.

Emerio Design recerfly appeared in fi'ont of the City Council on behalf of a client to get

approval for a PUD (Denali PUD) undel the current VLDR limitations of two units per zrcre. City
council approved a very feasible plan fol an extremely challenged building site; it was accepted
by council ancl most members of the public present.

The PA-12-04 application appears to be a clirect confrontation with City Courcil and the pLrblic

in order to push the density for not just the Denali PIID Subdivision, but the entile remaitring
acreage zonecl VLDR within the City of Sherwood (Per ploposal document, p. 1 of 8).

The pioponerlt refers to the 2005 City Council authorizecl SE Sherwood Master Plan ¡rrocess and

the subsequent 2006 City of Sherwoocl Planning Commission apptoval of the SE Shelwood
Master Plan, Alternative B/C with a net density of 4.43 per buildable acre, following the
connectivity, and Palks and Recreation lay-out.

According to the proposal four property owners hold parcels ranging from 1 1.63 actes to tlie
3.71 acres held by clients of applicants (First Community/Emerio Design), totalling 3l acres

Accolding to the proposal a doubling of the VLRM autholizing text allowing four units pet

builclable acre the list of property owners wiro would beneht increases to 7 (Ploposal document,
p.2 o18), with Mr. Huske, Chinn family and planning commission member Walker aclcled and
palcel sizes langing fi'om 11.63 to 3.06 acles.

The ploposal refels to a technical memo from Ms. Hajduc to Ml. Cronin, but document is not
available to public in foot notes to city website notice for PA 12-04

V\o^aLl,Ltt3 f .'*! Cu..ncil
Date

?wblicII eaÈ,

Gov. Body

ttJ E
Agonda ltcm

ô e,Ð Lþ tt "où3
E¡rhlþit # (u*t ¡¿^. lrnt*" 222



Under the compromise adoption by the Plannning Commission in 2006 the City Cotmcil was
¿rsked to adopt the B/C recommendation calling for a 4.43 Lurits per buildable lot (Pr:oposal, p.4
of 8).

Applicant states that

( I ) Allowing oppoftunities for increased density in the area of the SE Sherwood Master Plan will
help make it economically feasible for development to pay for infrastructure. The proposed text
amendment will not promote any changes to the adopted Transportation Systems Master Plan
for the City of Sherwood.
(2). The proposal is to incorporate elements of the SE Sherwood Master Plan into the
development code so that the plan can be implemented. (Proposal, p. 7 of 8).

The current Planning Commission BiC SE Sherwood Master plan document show
approximately 76 building units (Proposal, p. 1 of 8).

The proposal states that after the proposed doubling of the VLRM density allowance

These six parcels total approximately 39 acres. Assuming 20% of the property is used for public
streets, the resulting developable land totals approximately 31 acres. With 15% of that
remaining acreage in open space (per the PUD requirements) and 10% set aside for water
quality tract(s) the resulting developable land totals 23+ net buildable acres. When additional
land is subtracted for a wooded open space on the Moser property as anticipated in the SESMP
(4 acres +i-) there actually only 19 net buildable acres available (at a maximum) for
development of single family homes (Proposal, p. 3 of 8). Thus the proposal calls for
approximately the same total acreage authorization as the already adopted master plan
(4 x 19=76).

It appears, however, that the beneficiaries are primarily 1-3 property owners.

The concerns that the City council should carefully consider are:

1. ls it necessary since City Council and the public already have demonstrated adequate
flexibility under current rules to provide for optimal building within the geological and
environmenta I constraints.

2. ls there a chance that the SE Sherwood Master Plan design for additional city park and hiking
paths will disappear within the small PUD approvals; the Denali PUD recently approved for
applicant has already subsumed public access with vague assurance that open space will be
maintained by homeowners.

3. Are there adequate City of Sherwood Planning constraints to enforce lay-outs of SE
Sherwood Master plan B/C proposal for parks, hiking and environmental protection? The area is
still in litigation with State of Oregon DEQ and property owners, and there are increasing
environmental concerns about City's ability to require installation of and maintenance of an
adequate area-wide SE Sherwood storm sewer system to protect adjacent wetlands and
exisiting property owners in Fairoaks Subdivision (The entire area is mostly solid rock below
12").
conduct an environmental impact assessment if further modifications are proposed.

223



4. The Development of the current Planning Commission Master Plan B/C for SE Sherwood
took over three years to develop with multiple public meetings; the City of Shen¡¿ood City
Council has, perhaps, violated the intent of the hearing process by not even placing it on a
subsequent City Council Agenda between 2006-2013. lt's possible that anvthinq short of a City
Council 2013 adoption of the current SE Sherwood Master Plan alreadv adopted bv the Citv's
Planninq Commission in 2006 mav provid e an ooenino for contestino a modification

My analysis and historical involvement as a community representative for SE Sherwood and a
property owner downstream from the proposed development acreage indicates that this text
amendment is premature, and, perhaps unnecessary. There is a possibility it may introduce a
harmful and shorl-sighted legal factor.

I recommend

1. City Council reject this application for doubling the density of all VLDR acreage, or table
the application until all environmental lawsuits and testing have been completed. There
is no compelling urgency for the council to rush this application..

2. The Mayor and the council set a hearing date for adopting planning commission
resolution 2006-oo1

3. The Mayor appoint a 2013 SE Sherwood committee to consider sound and equitable
community development guidelines for all acreage east of the Murdock Rd., from Sunset io
Oregon St.

Respectfully,

I(urt I(r-istensen

cc. SE Sherwoocl residents
References:
(r ) DEQ
h tlp://public.health.oleeon.sov/FlealthyEnvilonments/TrackingAssessment/Environmentall{ealth

lt ltp:/ipr¡blic.heaith.oregon.gov/IlealthyEnvironments/TraclcingAssessment/Environrnentalllealth
A s s c s sment/D o cu m ents/PH¡\ KFF Ernal_Q2_13_Q_8+df

(2) Litigation

httrr://arcr,vetr.sos.state.or.us/pases/rules/bLrlletin/0711 bulletin/0711 othnotices butletin.htLll

Bluce Gillis cornmunicationg-21-2012 stating: "The settlement is before the Oregon Court o1'

Appeals as the plaintiff appealed the distrjct conrt's apploval and entry of the settlernent. We
lrope this process is resolvedby spling 2013..." Additionally, Bluce Gillis stated on 5-18-13 that
Cood rlonrirrg I(ur1.

224



My apologies for not responding sooner. This is a very busy period for me with legislative bills
involving the Cleanup and Emergency Response Programs.

Conceming the settlement and the lelated litigation filed by Pacific III challenging the settlement
because they did not get a chuck of the available insurance money, we ale awaiting the hearing
of the appeal in State Appeals Court. DEQ prevailed on the initial trial in distlict court, rvhich
Pacific III appealed in early 2012. A hearing date of Augrst29,2013 was scheduled by the
couft last week so hopefully resolution of the litigation is near.

Pacific III has taken their dispute to the legislature and has pursued efforts to amend the Cleanup
statute goverling settlements with the State. Wlile we have spent considerable time trying to
implove the statute without compromising the utility the statute provides to get lesponsible
parties to perfonl or pay for cleanup, our efforts to resolve the litigation with Pacific III remain
unr-esolved.

With respect to DEQ actions in lieu of having settlement funds to proceed with cleanup, rve have
allocated other funcls to complete furlher testing at the Foster Farms site using DEQ contractols.
A lcey element of that work is to address uncertainties resulting fi'orn the changed cleanup critelia
for hexavalent cluomium. That work will begin later this sulr.Írer. Mark Pugh will manage that
wolk. I(evin Pallett is his supervising manageT.

225



Itaæ {t}eÍxhtin Rlw l,i¿bqlvyrufiß MIc

fón.rolution 2006-00f

A RESOLIMON ACCEPTING THT'. 6'SE, SIIERWOOD MASTER PLAT\T
REPORT'' AIïI) APPROYING A PROCESS TO IMPLEMENT THE PLAII

WHEREAS, the City of Sherwood has a Very Low Density Residential CVLDR)
Zone inthe Sherwood Plan and 7-oneMap that requires a minimum 1 acre per loi; and

WHEREAST the City has approved recent zubdivisions and partitions in the
proposed study areawithorÍ fult public facility improvoments because the Cþ cannot
require urban levcls of service in proportion to the impacts of the projects; arrd 

\ ú

WHEREAS, thc City expects ftture private development in the ìmm6{iate future
and a master plan for the neighborhood would provide a guide for better services for
cunent and future propeÉy owncrs, neighbors, and the City; and

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted Resolution 2005-059 that authorized the
SE Sherwood Master Plan process and participation in the Oregon Transportation and
Growth Management Quick Response program to fund the study and masterplan; and

' 
\ryIIEREAS, the City has held numerous public involvement opportunities

including three meetings with the property owneri and tbree public woiÈshops; and.

WIIEREAS, the Planning Commission has held awork session on February 28,
2006 to consider the findings aud recommendations of the report and held opcn publio
mee+ings ïr/ith a comñent period on March 2g and April 4, Z0OO; and

WHEREAST the Planning Commission has discussed the recommendations from
staff and the consultant and deliberated on May 9,2006to endorse the benefits of a
coordinated master plan for efficient land use, multi-modal transportatiorq recreation
trails, and share.d open space; and

NO\ry' TIIEREFORE' TIIE CITY Otr'SHERWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION
RESOLIIES AS X'OLLOWS:

Section 1. The SE SherwoodMasterPlanReport (ÞùibitA) dated February 20,
2006 is hereby accepted and the concept plans contained in the report meet the project
objectives.

PC-Resotution 2006401
May9,2006
Page I of2

226



City of Sherwood

JO8 NUUBTR

910

60F7
sNtil

ç

^),

I

SE mtr

0u5t

IRONWOOD ACRES
ENGINEERED SOIL CELL

OF SHERWOOD ORrcON

. ,t -_.1

10m:

o
!

o

..rAX L0 .100

-!5- 
.\ \

FREPAREÐ FOR
P0 mx 981

u* ]m*"m il-6

-.,* l* isrcno

","r n "u 1".**.n.

\

/

ENGINÉERING PLÀNIIG SIRWTilG FMESNY
ûcMtNm,MtÀ(

IJ91O SW CALBRÊAfr DRW, SUItr 1OO

5HERmæ 0F 9140

PHoN¿ (ÐJl 925-879 fe (St 94-&æ

EHOSION CONTROL,
AND

ENGINEIRT¡ GRADING NO'IES
I PRoEÍ CmNG UùilS S4L 0t f[Hrñ l¡E PruEo s moP$Ì &hùfr ú[6
orHÉRwts sMN N phs ilo cÞûM 9w * cdMEo t! vFÆ m 0E
tNRq[n&Y {6[ffi Mæ NS ÆMD d IIC ¡ru@ 6M M SptOn4Ly
slfr{ N tÆ pmm M

ADDIIIOML NO'IES ISIIE SPEONC)

r &ME 0t6t 8il0 ru st 4tr0ÙÐ r0 vtRrft D^r rt! Rtc@MtNDED RÉulM
MfM[ 6 &NIMD PRÙM COXPM RóUTß IO FI IMdER dO OTilEF FAtrD

scMS sru Ë IPMÐ ñ C0W0l5 qPN

SOII COMPACTION dJIDELNES
fN ML 3t CMRCÞ N t rf,s

l

l.
le

ALt IXISTNG TRETS SHALL Bt PFTSIRVED

Recorde/s Office
2 ûE tDtflf,qnfr oR Rm{ tr NUf€É uTma sul 4 mrÊ iln Nrratñ
MH ffÊ PNÙÊd M6fi ND NIR

J Èilm aD offit 0F u orurc 00/il N0tts[ ME¡ß, NLUN ntrs,
9ÈMPS, nmß Si6H, ND 0N fi Srcf À Wû tO rF U fftqM @Ut#
0t sE osP& s[ æ ñ D@r@ fr Bt pRoúct Eñôm d¡0 mt8

4 SDCkÊrú 9L mIBtr d-m N 
^ 

ERil 6 S8oril 0N PW m Æ ùRfcrao h ù¡
PruEI TMIEß N MA
5 F NU, t[ C0M0R ilt PrclLCt U ]R6 [0ì SP¿Cn4t $0h] l0 Bt

5 GruE nÉ 5Ít r0 r8E W l0f5 sM d tHa mvn6 w sÉ Écffi
À&uflM þ [coilomE w ÊúsÆs 6 ftcrFEo wE fúm P vtD ffis PR Èt
NS D sUmM EW ¡0ß Mr f U ÆCff@E lì@ Nt W dD PÀUilC

r trñfr @ß sutr 0t 0(m ¡ilsH ôw uD/oR nrg cNM uilEs ffi
u¡6 mÊME rcÐ FilSÍ C@ Mt r0 0N ß NMlto d frÉ MS i0U63
milG sru 3E f{BHÐ t Uü 

'rD 
WNC l0 iSo@Y SfoolH øDUnS mß Cffi

I U il 0¡ n[ aæ6 ru 3E ffNmD Ài i0 trFtN N m (2) f0ñ¡0il1tr l0
ür (r) trf,e dÉs oTHEME ffi N ÆPeM0 tuÉ

D 0rcNEÊÐ F6 Sru ¡É CÊmf,O Ù BÉ PRÙECIS Ctot{& tÑllttR

I1 M dMrcR S@ BE RTSPOffi8TI FOR WIG BT NEcs MüilôTITÑ FOF

wP[toN EilG NO M SPLfm nt ñLß f0 ft tulo trc@
15 cú N u slm ru 3E PRoECm @ ER6Ð 5æl MIrcL MY CoNSltr 0t
WRAì€ RfwAMN OR OE* æCg& ¡N ù¡O TOM ffiþil UIROI
u6uRÉ sru e n @ PÈok lo wllffi d sm snPqro

16 ùT NIfr ru ffiMtr üfr É PMCI flg€R ND tr Pmtrfrs
60Em tilo[ER fm üQRD WEoIN 

^l 
ßt ÊotrfrM lÀ06 6 CNWooN

tr l[sl@ tr Sm SPÞIE, Bf Piffi n ¡ r MIENI lroSil CNmt MæÚffi
9W SF il ÞUCÊ Ár fi6 ¡G

B il 4P^üIþ[ f ñ mil$8uífr ru8 D ilt æÙÉú

C MPWTENIf trNfuYMOS@ÍIU

II PruÚ @NC !Iß Sru Dt ißN üE PruEÍs PñOPÑ MW N/W 5ñF
Rßfr-6-Mt UilÉS ontMÊ SfM 0r PWS ñ0 C@M Sru 3t CdDfED N
tuos m ofra NÐilE[uY ssglE das uNÉ$ @m F E pPUWf
MO6 AD SPEC@I $M ñ frT fMO W
t3 f,il*D otut Noß sHffr Æ pmoxilfÉ ñML (ìlW É8ÁÌñ5 Mt
oE toot+ Bt mÊcf dûN@ úY ù61 ¡ilstD M 6 RÐuEo MIC CoNfiUd&
NMSEO ñDE NU6 MruY RFßTSI @ Of PAtrUW IÍ PA!Ð Mæ, IOP f
c0Mm N 9DMr Áß M lilS4D rut fioP f Ct SUffi{E m @ 0f SUOUR{
¡u&mef6
]9 F SPRI6 OR MMAER Æ ilC@MÐ ruRN COISNUM E @MR¡C]fi ru
NOnil ilt PMtds dmdNN flor@ d0 PtEcT tmil8 f nt cMoils tJrc

^[0 
Muìt ut ¡mEs { a WNER luf ru Àúl nE Í0 Ptos nÉ m^Ìfr ¡N0

PRTPffi A PW D MP&f I[&IE I[ f,ATR TMUNERID

20 u ùt ilD f,tr MN Sru { f,mO 6 9D dD ote û-s6rutu Nntr
(DgH ro E oftililro ft frt PioÉcls Gt@cM ilo[ÉR)

[cw frN t€ ?où 0rEN¡M tuúile coE (læ) Æ ffiÞ w fli Í^E 0¡
Ñd ND hN ft flCTNOilS M ÐM ilOtrD NEiEN frMWfltrD Ftr OsCWERTD

DUß|C CO[SmUCrc[ SHM a! MUEo ry FE moJtq3 dmCUEtr trdNER 0R Rto@
PROR t0 tMiNAO ntr PUmf

I ftoR to cNrMoff tr c('Wü mPt NfR PR0Ú flúNtÚ PRo¡f,s
G¡OtrCHNtC[ flGtER UO tmRdúlflA Co[sUtlNS Sú È{¡ A mM

SW ROY (
'iAX 

LOT 'l 700

AX L0ï t-100

AX LUT ]l,4O{')

i IAX Lfl I lrJlJU

t¡J

2
ul

=l
=I
UI

liDA
g

TA)r LOT r05!0
O AR6 D Etr NU Uru UT gI PTPfrÐ fr RilNM U O@E dO
úEuilff Um6 

^ilD 
mf UM ElW 6 ¡tSRÐ d M f{tÉ lE Nm

NUID sÆ ACE6 5 HoÂrM[ þ r BfW gtÉHN6 ru ff lt ÆMNÉ @
PidECI GTOEHN4 ÉXGN@'S NTCOXilMW UERtr IN Sfl Sß ilDN PrcPÉO
¡uN, p¡vÐ 6 sñu Æ ru [ M0 r0 rE É4 R@RÐ (Æ OEmo t
frr m&r mñm 0À ûa PFMm tr0Ec|il6tr Nñm) rc mÉ a ¡R! foudDfn
MD sru 4 RtMo m SUIÆ ffiÙ ¡G dt ]0 8l CdSR@ | ffir¿om{ w5
ilO¡ D MED ¡ ilM LØf XNiÉ

ro fHE ffirc[ tr siwruru nús N/oR eÀqm[s 5N tr l[ M0oRM @
ùt PFOECTS CtoEHe Ðß[E

I! dPÀMù E6 AD R'POR]S ML E CONOUftD d il¡ ffiD trÍil6 I@IORI
Er FRtOUt[t S& E 4R ]É noEf É[C@ m lE PmrcrS eom|N& sNte
ETrc D æWEICE Ifr Ntr MM AO Æ À MNilU!, * IF Htr BI IMIil M ffi
ru CUST JÆ PWÐ OR ? EÍ trM4 WONM 6 ME
t2 t Ml æslþ6 ttrf nt PERIm sru fPtY À ùE sPill f vaE 0Í 1[
SURIM I0 Com( frt @sr ac6M ÍAE ru ñT æ PtoED; freÉN N0 Mff
SN 3E CTIÉAru

rAX r0T 10600

I

¡l Lu I l0 i 0(.)
r¡r rrP ¿5 r iiu 20 PU&(Ì {rro

I.TGEND

fifNe Gi)uñ0 coil(ñ lj m

rì$K cRouN0 aDmouÞ þ il)

(

*- /

I

N$tD CRÀDE COÀrcuR I Í)

I

'LKI

rAX L0l 10800

r-AX Lt|T r11900

LCIT 1 r 000

/IAX,01 1t 0

q.
IAX LOI 2¡I

m 20Í- rliæ

!m50t coillRù (NcÉ

IMON COITRtr frNCT

P?nraroN fxc¡ (4 Hif oFAÀÍ'

cßvt_ rÛrSrMrFN añn¡Nc¿

r Ti\X

SCALEI - 50FEET

ffi
fAX tOT r12c0

LOl I 1 100¡ IAX

LOl 1

'st 8aM (ErcNÉ&Ð 9L cu=e) sPÉcleÌols
w $@t trN s{krv
comRmw^¡E[nE^cHtM
C0VP@il-91¡ PR A5l0 l-99
(MIilW Cwlftx=85: PA M0 LS)
cillm M PÆ JUE-MfrilC 0t ¡H lV t[ 5t@5
PA00uüsHFt,{Dsw
8t @Ð 6 9t0FÐ 0N sffi 5

úqE sÞrcx
22md*m&t 

I
I

I
MRm sru tu oRMc t0F9r (EPû s D1)
ilO RARæ rcf S Iæ ø & PRþR ]O UOLÚ
(NO mæ6 S@ SE PæÐ 0 90t SoftS)

I
I

I

INOTE

UNM qm ßm dJ, ûN ßc 5w GRw l[ iltH uÑl MNû

?[ìv sDa aæ6 nt wM ffin 6 fPRoluEY EW 299 Wfr

lm fr s ÐDtM @l ÉoR A lfrÁ f ô@ d l8 uÉN)

Lo

AS-BUILI DISCLAIMTR FOfi EICIIIffiTD SOf CAT:

ÀS-BUILT INFORI¡ATON IS BÀSED ON A COMBINA]ION OF FIEI.O SURVEY,

SPOT INSPICTION. CII^/-PROVìDED INFORIIATON, AND

CONTRACTOR-PFOVIDED INFORI¡ATION IHE ENGNEER ONLY CTRIIFLES

INFOfiMATION tvHICH COULD BE FITLD-VERIFIEO AFrtR CONSTRUCTION

lÌÁs co¡rPtrrED

227



Oregon Department of Environmental
Quatity

Oregon DEQ: Land Quality - Environmental Cleanup - Ken Foster Farm

Environmental Cleanup Site Information Number (ECSI): 2516
County: V/ashington
City: Sherwood
Region: Northwest

Contact Information

Project Manager: Mark Pugh
Phone: 503-229-5587
E-mail: Mark Pugh

Site SummalT

The former Ken Foster Farm is a 40-aqe site in southeast Sherwood where waste from the
nearby Frontier Leather Company tannery was applied to the ground surface in the 1960s and
early 1970s. The site was farm and pasture land for many years, but has more recently been
developed for residential housing. In2006 EPA conducted a site inspection sampling
investigation that found elevated concentrations of chromium, lead, and manganese on the site.
In July 2007, DEQ completed a Screening Level Human Health Risk Assessment using EPA's
site data. At that time, DEQ concluded that metals in soil, including chromium, posed no
unacceptable human health risk. However, inNovember 2011, DEQ updated its risk-based
concentrations for hexavalent chromium based on new EPA toxicity data. A better understanding
of the extent of hexavalent chromium is needed to complete an updated risk assessment. Oregon
DEQ is planning additional investigation in summer 2013. DEQ will use the Investigation results
to complete a revised risk assessment and identift appropriate actions to protect human health
and the environment.

Current I)ocuments and Supporting Information

. Former Ken Foster Farm Fact Sheet PDF

. Aerial Map Photo #l JPG

. Aerial Map Photo #2 JPG

228



OPEN SPACE.

LOTS

WQF

GROSS DENSITY
NET DENSITY

263,042FT
180,000 FT,(4.13 AC)

.32,750 F12

,.5,000 FT2

.6 ACRES
,3 UNIT/AC
.3.6 UN|T/AC

(.75 Ac)
(.12 Ac)

5

'10

1

10,000 sF

52

11 l2

")

x3

4

14

5

x5

6

'!fi

,,

'17

I

'1fr

I

üpen
Space

öpen
S6lace

WT

'¿v

Wfr

3

þat4zt,Utl C ilg Ca""C' I

229



263,042F12
18o,ooo FT, (4.13 AC)
.45,292 FT' (1 AC)

LOTS ...............

oPEN SPACE............,,.... ...........32,7 50 FT' (.75 AC)
WQF
GROSS SITE

.5,ooo FT, (.12 AC)
.6 ACRES

GROSS DENStTY......,...,............ "3.33 U NIT/AC
NET DENSITY ..,......4 UNIT/AC

3

1 5

11

1

9000 sF

-I 

¿-

52',

12

2 3

't3 14,

4 5

't5 1ô

6 7

'tv x8

I

'ts

I 10

20
0¡:en
$pace

0perr
Spaoe

VVC

WE

230



May 20 2013

The city is proposing 10;000 square foot lots and fow lots per acre .

What we are asking for is 8;500.00 square foot lots ,With out the 8;500 sq lot size we can not
Put four homes per acre .Per my conversations with some of you agreed that you assumed

the property would be developed some day and you do not mind the building of nice homes.

I am asking you to sign this VLDR for the S.W. Master Plan.

Ourproperly isat22900 S.W. MwdockRoad Sherwood, OR97140
There are other properly ownen¡ involved but I don't have there address.

When some of you bought you homes you were fine with your chose and us as neighbors did
not tell the builder or property owner oh no we tell you what you can or can not do with your

own properly. Had we as neighbors did that you would not be living where you are to day.

So please think of others as if it were you trying to make a life long change for your children

and grand children WE bought this property many years ago with the idea being able to have

an income for our farnily. Thank all of you for you help.

Thank you to the City Council and the Planning commission

Sincerely

Delores Moser And Family.
: DEE:

VM2þt3 C;*q

bøD.ZÞr3'ÐDz
0elov¿å ßoöel2-

231



We, the undersigned persons, support the proposed Text Amendment PA 12-04 (VLDR District Text Amendment) that provides the opportunity

for property o\ffners of VLDR-zoned land to develop @ a maximum density of 4 unitVacre using a PUD process.

,5Ò3 Ø2t 5658

5rr-138-&1(2

5*t -.11ì'21*c

,M¡.,

ryc
5cz -6N-1'7/L

91 ttl l"LL¿'i

Phone or e-mail

5o3-4 E-l -7 ¿'¿þ

loi ., lîo -l?lJ'

t131 I 5u-' l*ä--o'1".

Si"rr-*'-'---t - C Q-cf1

iÐ5 ts
ln¡¿onto

,r0ljt nt1

Address

¿A'yi qti_ t)
ß".U Zr-æ?aÊ Z'î?91

$a/a sa ,4tú A¿/ø

ñ*uo -o4-?zzzy'

\+33ts^l fiúnøtrV
5\1rri,r¡¿{ o( cïll,lO

ìq.3DO 5t-U f"\rcoA<S P<'

S-rreucoo, ÔrL q7l'{Ù

¡tç')oo 3v) fa-'n""*-< O,'.

Slr¿,'t,t,.'ùu¿;( , 0K 4''lt+"

Ðt

,'ì J

C1"ICU"_*- Fo¿"!¿€-

U.v,,u'Q)ftvft

Sþature

Ð"1t..7Y1ø

Printed Name

ÐEt or\'ls Ì4os¿P

D^r,, Llo*

(t'vr''¿,. lnvn'dc

\-\
ÐAvìb 13,¡<-rrrr

/ ¿ Ls i<E_

Ce rlt'Jt
,/l

232



We, the undersigned persons, support the proposed Text Amendment PA l2-04 (VLDR District Text Amendment) that provides the opportunity

for property owners of VLDR-zoned land to develop @ a maximum density of 4 units/acre using a PUD process.

'21 'to z s 99¿ /

I

tt-G7t ->¿þ8

Phone or e-mail

573 s/3,/95'¿

\-ö3')3>-Í /r/
r5 qÉ-=

¿.25"4 / Õ'>

I

-S'u-â F dì'-ook
,-oo/,¡.)t(-Jltlc,

'V-t-{$ 5vì fi¿rra,n<-

<-rJJ\n-c, *uÇJ <nA'þ
y'z-./zy'zz'a 5 ¿o,S ,4i,'.=-a'

Szz,-o,-z{ ao¿z.

I Ç¿/ I ¿, :nt l¡zt/¡r,t"L
a/,{ç'

/77?oSuJ fk
3\tn¡-.¡' ü{ 17 t v.u

\
J)utbtlr,y

/t
,, L/

iv lc Ð d+ßL {4

3) ..-42 ,tln-r4y'nz

J€s!É\ù{-,_-

b" ll,t'*
/

,\elil ()

233



We, the undersigned persons, support the proposed Text Amendment PA 12-04 (WDR District Text Amendment) that provides the opportunity

for property owners of VLDR-zoned land to develop @ a maximum densþ of 4 units/acre using a PIID process.

Phone or e-mail

5,9-1 b?-GLo I

,( {c2 47ç'tz</

Ittst lafa,n"/ç l\
€o,t SJ fl'h''/<¡
?i"ir*".^, . o, qz t+Õ

AddressSignature

à*r

PrintedName

C\"r.> fr*orl.

O' r, /, n.t

234



To: Shenryood City Council

From: Roger & Lisa Walker, Rufauna Craigmiles
23500 SW Murdock Rd
(Property directly adjacent to Denali Subdivision - 3 acres in VLDR)

RE: PA 12-04 VLDR Text Amendment

Date: 5121113

Although the current proposed text amendment language has been referred to as the
'Walker plan', we want to be sure to be clear on a few issues:

1) lt is our desire that no text amendment be made

2) This is the last area in Shen¡vood with this VLDR classification. We should retain
this special area that was initially zoned this way so as to address its ecological
uniqueness.

3) No decision has to be made tonight and no change must be made at all.

4) The applicant for this Text Amendment change is one property owner who is
requesting this change in order to more densely develop their Denali Subdivision
and stands to gain most from this change.

5) lf changes are made, strict and clear guidelines must be documented to ensure the
spirit of the SE Shen¡uood Master plan are considered in all development going
fon¡vard.

6) Two areas of the recommendation brought forth from the Planning Commission
were not captured in the latest version of the text amendment. (see green below)

Chapter 16.12 Residential Land Uses

Southeast Sherwood Master Planned Unit Development3

b

(1) Varied lot sizes are allowed with a minimum lot area of 10,000 sq. ft if it can be

landscapins. location of roadways or open space and in the locating of larger lot

OF

sizes next to these existing developed prope

hso. tþalwa-235



The loss of the treed Moser properQt since the SESMP wíll mean
the probable relocation of the largest open space identified ín the

SESM. Thereþre some cløríftcatíons must be møde as to
preferencesfor open space locøtion upon development. To

símply say símilar to the B/C Alterttative would not allow for the
ødjustment needed from thís í.mmense chønge to the landscøpe.

236


	01  City Council Packet Cover 09.03.13
	02  City Council Agenda 08.20.13
	03  08.20.13 City Council Minutes-DRAFT
	04  08.22.13 City Council Minutes-DRAFT
	05  Resolution 2013-050 Authorizing CM to Sign UASI IGA-STAFF REPORT
	06  Resolution 2013-050 Authorizing CM to Sign UASI IGA-DRAFT 09.03.13
	07  Resolution 2013-050 Authorizing CM to Sign UASI IGA-EXH A 09.03.13
	08  Resolution 2013-051 Authorizing CM to Sign Wa. Co. IGA, Health & Human Serv-STAFF REPORT
	09  Resolution 2013-051 Authorizing CM to Sign Wa. Co. IGA, Health & Human Serv-DRAFT
	10  Resolution 2013-051 Authorizing CM to Sign Wa. Co. IGA, Health & Human Serv-EXH A
	11  Ordinance 2013-003 Code Amendment VLDR hearing-STAFF REPORT 09 03 13
	12  Ordinance 2013-003 Code Amendment VLDR Hearing-Memo for Council
	13  Ordinance 2013-003 Code Amendment VLDR Hearing-DRAFT 09.03.13
	14  Ordinance 2013-003 Code Amendment VLDR PA 12-04-PC Recomm-EXH 1 05.21.13
	15  Ord. 2013-003 Exhibit 1-A PC Recommended Code Language
	16  Ord. 2013-003, Exhibits B-Q combined
	Exhibit B-Applicant materials
	Exhibit%20A-Proposed%20Code%20Amendment
	Exhibit%20B-applicant%27s%20materials

	Exhibit C
	Exhibit D
	Exhibit E
	Exhibit F
	Exhibit G
	Exhibit H
	Exhibit I
	Exhibit J
	Exhibit K
	Exhibit L
	Exhibit M
	Exhibit N
	Exhibit O
	Exhibit P
	02.26.13%20Planning%20Commission%20Packet_0 37
	02.26.13%20Planning%20Commission%20Packet_0 38

	Exhibit Q

	17  VLDR Text Amendment Exhibits presented at Hearing
	Exhibit A-C, E-VLDR Text Amendment
	Exhibit D-VLDR Amendments
	Exhibits F-H for Text amendment.pdf




